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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the Mgament's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ciionliand Results of Operations,
contains forward-looking statements, within the meg of the Private Securities Litigation ReformtAd 1995, that reflect our views about
future events and financial performance. When ursékis report, the words "may," "will,” "should;anticipate,” "estimate," "expect," "plar
"believe," "predict," "potential,” "intend" and silar expressions are intended to identify forwavdKing statements. Forward-looking
statements are subject to known and unknown riséluacertainties that could cause actual resultisffier materially from those projected.
You are cautioned not to place undue reliance esdtiorward-looking statements that speak onlyf #iseodate hereof. You are also urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclesunade by us which attempt to advise interestapaf the factors which affect our
business, including Exhibit 99 "Risk Factors" filaslan exhibit hereto and incorporated into thisrFd0K by reference, and our reports fil
with the Securities and Exchange Commission fronetio time.

Health benefits companies operate in a highly cditiye constantly changing environment that isn#figantly influenced by aggressive
marketing and pricing practices of competitorsutatpry oversight and organizations that have tedudtom business combinations. The
following is a summary of factors, the results



of which, either individually or in combination, ifiarkedly different from our planning assumptiormyld cause our results to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-logkstatements contained in this report:

. trends in health care costs and utilization rates

. ability to secure sufficient premium rate incresis

. competitor pricing below market trends of inciag<osts;

. increased government regulation of health bemafid managed care;
. significant acquisitions or divestitures by magompetitors;

. introduction and utilization of new prescriptidrugs and technology;
. a downgrade in our financial strength ratings;

. litigation targeted at health benefits companies;

. ability to contract with providers consistent lwfiast practice; and

. general economic downturns.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K st#rm "Anthem Insurance" refer to Anthem Insura@oenpanies, Inc., an Indiana
insurance company. References to the term "Anthrefiet to Anthem Insurance and its direct and irdiseibsidiaries before the
demutualization, and to Anthem, Inc., an Indiankimg company, and its direct and indirect subsid& including Anthem Insurance, after
the demutualization, as the context requires. Refes to the terms "we," "our," or "us," refer tathem, before and after the
demutualization. The demutualization was consumdhateNovember 2, 2001.



PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General Business Description

We are one of the nation's largest health benefitspanies, serving approximately eight million mensh or customers, primarily in Indiana,
Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Mai@elorado and Nevada. We hold the leading marketipnsn seven of these eight
states and own the exclusive right to market oadpcts and services using the Blue Cross(R) Bluel®R), or BCBS, names and marks in
all eight states under license agreements witlBthe Cross Blue Shield Association, or BCBSA, asoagtion of independent BCBS plans.
We seek to be a leader in our industry by offedrgroad selection of flexible and competitivelycpd health benefits products.

Our product portfolio includes a diversified mixmfinaged care products, including health maintemarganizations, or HMOs, preferred
provider organizations, or PPOs, and point of senor POS plans, as well as traditional indemmitducts. We also offer a broad range of
administrative and managed care services and fpaitiaured products for employer self-funded plahisese services and products include
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial sewjiprovider network access, medical cost managelaims processing and other
administrative services. In addition, we offer customers several specialty products including gide, disability, prescription
management, workers compensation, dental and vi€ionproducts allow our customers to choose fromide array of funding alternatives.
For our insured products, we charge a premium aadrae all or a majority of the health care riskdemour self-funded and partially insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and thdogpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or gonitg of the health care costs. Our 2001
operating revenue was 91.3% derived from fully regiproducts, while 8.7% was derived from admiaisie services and other revenues.

Our customer base primarily includes large grogpstfacts with 51 or more eligible employees), widlials and small groups (one to 50
employees), each of which accounted for 40.4%,%8#hd 17.7% of our 2001 operating revenue, resgagtiOther major customer
categories include National accounts, Medicarepients, federal employees and other federally fdmtegrams. We principally market our
products through an extensive network of indepenhdgents and brokers who are compensated on a @siombasis for new sales and
retention of existing business.

Our managed care plans and products are desigregtoairage providers and members to make quatist;effective health care decisions
by utilizing the full range of our innovative medlananagement services, quality initiatives andrfirial incentives. Our leading market
shares enable us to realize the long-term berddfitasesting in preventive and early detection dssemanagement programs. We further
improve our ability to provide cost-effective héaltenefits products and services through a dis@gliapproach to internal cost containment,
prudent management of our risk exposure and suct@segration of acquired businesses. These nreasave allowed us to achieve
significant growth in membership (93%), revenued), and net income (256%) from the beginning &71éhrough 2001.

We intend to continue to expand through a combonatif organic growth and strategic acquisitionbath existing and new markets. Our
growth strategy is designed to enable us to takargtdge of the additional economies of scale pexioy increased overall membership. In
addition, we believe geographic diversity reducasexposure to local or regional economic, regujaémd competitive pressures and
provides us with increased opportunities for exam3s/Nhile the majority of our growth has been thsult of strategic mergers and
acquisitions, we have also achieved growth in aistimg markets by providing excellent service eoifiig competitively priced products and
effectively capturing the brand strength of thedBross and Blue Shield names and mz



Anthem, Inc. is an Indiana corporation that wasnfed in July 2001 as a wholly owned subsidiary ofrem Insurance. Anthem, Inc. was
formed in connection with the conversion of Anthersurance from a mutual insurance company int@ekshsurance company in a process
called demutualization. The demutualization waseaffe on November 2, 2001, and at that time Anthesurance was converted into a st
insurance company and became a wholly owned sualogidf Anthem, Inc., and Anthem, Inc. became aiplpheld company. In addition,
effective November 2, 2001, all membership inter@stAnthem Insurance were extinguished and Anthesurance's eligible statutory
members received shares of Anthem, Inc. commork stiocash, as consideration for the extinguishroétiteir membership interests in
Anthem Insurance.

Industry Overview

The health benefits industry has experienced saamif change in recent years. The increasing foousealth care costs by employers, the
government and consumers has led to the growtheshatives to traditional indemnity health insuranHMO, PPO and hybrid plans, sucl
POS plans, incorporating features of each, are grttemvarious forms of managed care products thet developed in recent years. Thro
these types of products, the cost of health carengined by negotiating contracts with hospitalgsicians and other providers to deliver
health care at favorable rates. These productscalsdeature medical management and other qualdycast containment measures such as
pre-admission review and approval for non-emergémspital services, pre-authorization of outpatmmgical procedures, and network
credentialing to determine that network doctors laosbitals have the required certifications anceetige. In addition, providers may share
medical cost risk or have other incentives to dgliyuality medical services in a cost-effective memHMO, PPO and POS enrollees
generally are charged periodic, pre-paid premiand, pay co-payments or deductibles when they resswices. PPO and POS plans
provide benefits for out-of-network usage, typigalt higher out-of-pocket costs to members. HMO ipers generally select one of the
network's primary care physicians who then assusmsonsibility for coordinating their health caezdces. Typically, there is no out-of-
network benefit for HMO members. PPOs and othen@meess plans generally provide coverage when mensielect non-network
providers without coordination through a primaryecphysician, but at a higher out-of-pocket cogtbiiti plans, such as POS plans, typically
involve the selection of primary care physiciamsikir to HMOs, but allow members to self refer @ichoose nometwork providers at high
out-of-pocket costs similar to those of PPOs.

Recently, economic factors and greater consumerem&as have resulted in the increasing populafipyaducts that offer larger, more
extensive networks, more member choice relatedvterage and the ability to self refer within thostworks. There is also a growing
preference for greater flexibility to assume lardeductibles and co-payments in exchange for Igremiums. We believe we are well
positioned in each of our regions to respond teghmarket preferences. Our PPO products, whiclaizontost or all of the features noted
above, have experienced significant growth oveptist few years.

The Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, or BCBS#&s hlso undergone significant change in recensyéhstorically, most states had at
least one Blue Cross (hospital coverage) and aagpBlue Shield (physician coverage) company.rRoidhe mid 1980s there were more
than 125 separate Blue Cross or Blue Shield corepaMany of these organizations have merged, ragube number of independent
licensees to 43 as of December 2001. We expectrérid to continue, with plans merging or affiliegito address capital needs and other
competitive pressures.

Each of the BCBS plans work cooperatively in a nandf ways that create significant market advardagspecially when competing for v
large multi-state employer groups. As a resulhaf tooperation, each plan is able to take advanthgther member plans' substantial
provider networks and discounts when any membaen fvae state works or travels outside of the statehich the policy is written. We
receive a substantial and growing source of revemmaer this "BlueCard" program for providing membervices in our states for individuals
who are customers of other BCBS plans.



Our Operating Segments

Our reportable segments are strategic business delineated by geographic areas within which vieraimilar products and services, but
manage with a local focus to address each geograpfiion's unique market, regulatory and healtk dativery characteristics. The regions
are:

. the Midwest, which includes Indiana, Kentucky #@tiio;
. the East, which includes Connecticut, New Hampsaind Maine; and
. the West, which includes Colorado and Nevada.

In addition to our three geographic regions, weeha®pecialty segment and an Other segment. OgidBgesegment includes business units
providing:

. group life and disability insurance benefits;

. pharmacy benefit management;

. dental and vision administration services; and

. third party occupational health services.

Various ancillary business units (reported with @tber segment) include:

. AdminaStar Federal, a subsidiary which admingshedicare programs in Indiana, lllinois, Kentud Ohio; and

. Anthem Alliance Health Insurance Company, a glibsy which primarily provided health care beneéitel administration in nine states for
the Department of Defense's TRICARE program foitaryf families. On May 31, 2001, the TRICARE opé&as were sold.

The Other segment also includes intersegment revexpense eliminations and corporate expensealooated to reportable segments.
Our Strategy

Our strategic objective is to be among the besttaggest in our industry with the size and scalddtiver the best product value with the best
people.

To achieve these goals, we offer a broad selecfidiexible and competitively priced products amek to establish leading market positions.
We believe that increased scale in each of oubnagimarkets will provide us competitive advantagest efficiencies and greater
opportunities to sustain profitable growth. The keyur ability to deliver this growth is our contmient to work with providers to optimize
the cost and quality of care while improving thallle of our members and improving the quality of service.

Promote Quality Care

We believe that our ability to help our membersiee quality, cost-effective health care will be/ke our success. We promote the health of
our members through education and through prodhatscover prevention and early detection progrirashelp our members and their
providers manage illness before higher cost int@ioe is required. To help develop those programescollaborate with the providers in our
networks to promote improved quality of care for members. The following policies and programskagto improving the quality of care
that our members receive:

. Selection and continued assessment of providaranks: Our networks consist of providers who nes®d maintain our standards of medical
education, training and professional experience.

. Disease management: We develop disease managperograms that educate members on actions thetakarto help monitor and better
control their illnesses and to manage diseasesaidiabetes, asthma and congestive heart failure.
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. Prevention measures: We work with providers aedhivers to promote preventive measures such asobilidand adult immunizations, as
well as breast cancer screening.

. Education: We help our members prevent diseagddlarss or minimize their impact by promotingektyle modification through education.
For example, our nationally recognized smoking agss program in Maine has helped to reduce thelbmuraf our members in Maine who
smoke by 49% over four years.

. Technology: We also utilize technology to evadutdite medical care provided to our customers. kamgle, our Anthem Prescription
Management decision support system helps to ideptifentially harmful drug interactions and helpsyent members from receiving
potentially dangerous combinations of drugs.

Product Value

We work to create products that offer value to @ustomers. By offering a wide spectrum of prodscigported by broad provider networks,
we seek to meet the differing needs of our varmustomers. The breadth and flexibility of our béngan options, coupled with quality care
initiatives, are designed to appeal to a broad basenployer groups and individuals with differipgpduct and service preferences. We use
innovative product design, such as a three-tieredqguiption program that provides customer selaaimong generic, brand and formulary
drugs at various out-of-pocket costs. Innovativedpict designs help us contain costs and allow mayzts to be competitively priced in the
market.

Formulary drugs are prescription drugs that hawnbeviewed and selected by a committee of pragtidbctors and clinical pharmacists for
their quality and cost effectiveness. Use of meadica from the formulary, which includes hundred$and name and generic medications,
is encouraged through pharmacy benefit designréettier pharmacy benefit and the use of formutings allow members access to highly
useful prescription medications, while also helpgiongontrol the cost of pharmacy benefits to emptsyMembers have the same access to
medications but share a greater portion of the fovdirand name drugs through the co-payment streactinder a three-tier program, the
customer pays the lowest price for generic drudmgler price for formulary brand name drugs aretighest price for brand name drugs
included in the formulary.

Operational Excellence

To provide cost-effective products, we continuotstlyve to improve operational efficiency. We aetivbenchmark our performance against
other leading health benefits companies to idewmifgortunities to drive continuous performance iovement. Important performance
measures we use include operating margin, admatiigrexpense ratio, administrative expense perimemer month, or PMPM, and return
on equity. Current initiatives to drive operatioe#iciency include:

. consolidating and eliminating information systems
. standardizing operations and processes;
. implementing e-business strategies; and
. integrating acquired businesses.
Technology

We continuously review opportunities to improve oueractions with customers, brokers and providBysutilizing technologies, we seek to
make the interactions as simple, efficient and petisle as possible. We monitor ourselves usingstrgustandard customer service metrics,
which measure, among other things, call centecieficy, claims paying accuracy and speed of enaritmiWe ease the administrative burden
of enrolling new accounts, processing claims andhtipg records for our brokers and providers bymatting many of these processes. We
also collect information that enables us to furtingsrove customer service, product design and wmatarg decisions.

Growth

We believe that profitable growth, both organic #mdugh acquisitions, is an important part of business. Increased scale allows us to
increase customer convenience and improve openatargins, while keeping our products competitiveiced. Expansion into new
geographic markets enables us to reduce



exposure to economic cycles and regulatory chaageégprovides options for business expansion. e folgenerate earnings growth first by
increasing revenues through new enroliment, whiéntaining pricing discipline. In addition, we plemgrow our specialty segment by
increasing the penetration of specialty producesxisting health members through cross sellingeaqhnsion into non-Anthem markets.
These specialty products include prescription mamamt, vision, dental, group life and disabilitgumance. While enjoying a leading market
share in seven of our eight markets, we have mahaates ranging from 18% to 47% and believe theremaining opportunity to grow
profitably in each market. We also intend to makatsgic acquisitions to augment our internal growt

Our History

We were formed in 1944 under the name of Mutualgitakinsurance, Inc., commonly known as Blue Crisihdiana. In 1946, Mutual
Medical Insurance Inc., also known as Blue Shiélthdiana, was incorporated as an Indiana mutualrisnce company. In 1985, these two
companies merged under the name Associated Insui@ompanies, Inc. In 1993, Southeastern Mutuakémme Company, a Kentucky-
domiciled mutual insurance company doing businesBlae Cross and Blue Shield of Kentucky, was meig® us. In 1995, Community
Mutual Insurance Company, an Ohio-domiciled muinslirance company doing business as Community MBlua Cross and Blue Shield,
was merged into us. We changed our name to Antheardnce Companies, Inc. in 1996. In 1997, Blues€&Blue Shield of Connecticut,
Inc., or BCBS-CT, a Connecticut-domiciled mutualurance company, was merged into Anthem Insuradiescompleted our purchases of
New Hampshir-Vermont Health Service, which did business as Bluess and Blue Shield of New Hampshire, or BCBS-Biltl Rocky
Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, which digsimess as Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Coloraddume Cross and Blue Shield of
Nevada, or BCB-CO/NV, during 1999. In 2000, we completed our piase of Associated Hospital Service of Maine, whiichbusiness as
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Maine, or BCBS-MEN@vember of 2001, we completed our demutualizaiiomhich Anthem Insurance
converted from a mutual insurance company to &stwurance company, and became a wholly owneddiabgof Anthem, Inc., a holding
company formed in connection with the demutualamati

Mergers and Acquisitions

Much of our recent growth in membership has reduitem strategic mergers and acquisitions, prirgawith other Blue Cross and Blue
Shield licensees. These combinations, coupled gvitlwth in existing markets, have enabled us tobdistamulti-regional centers of focus
with a significant share of each region's healthefies market. The following table sets forth ouembership by state as of the dates indic.

Membership
December 31
200 1 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In Thousands)
Midwest
ORi0..cciii e 2,2 12 2,118 1,987 2,096 1,990
INdi@ana.......ccooevveniinieiiciecee 1,5 43 1,410 1,358 1,175 1,226
Kentucky........cooevvveeiiiiiiiieice 1,0 99 1,054 1,037 928 1,129
Subtotal........ccceviviiiiien, 4,8 54 4,582 4,382 4,199 4,345
East
COoNNECHICUL.......vvveeeiriieiee e 1,2 17 1,127 1,031 968 916
New Hampshire........ccccccevveeeeiininnnnns 5 39 479 366 -- -
MaINE....ccoiiiiiieiiiieee e 5 04 487 - - -
Subtotal........ccceviiiiiiiien, 2,2 60 2,093 1,397 968 916
West
Colorado.......ccccuveveiiiiiiiienieeeee 6 06 463 395 -- -
Nevada.........ccoevveeeeniiiineeiieeene 1 63 132 91 -
Subtotal........ccoevviiriiiiiin, 7 69 595 486 - -
Total oo 7.8 83 7,270 6,265 5,167 5,291
Percentage increase (decrease) from
previous year end..................... 8% 16% 21% (2)% 29%



During the last three years, we have completeddlieving acquisitions:

. On June 5, 2000, we purchased substantiallyf éifledassets and liabilities of BCBS-ME. The caslthase price was $95.4 million
(including direct costs of acquisition).

. On November 16, 1999, we purchased the stockGB®CO/NV. The cash purchase price was $160.7anillincluding direct costs of
acquisition).

. On October 27, 1999, we purchased the assetsadildies of BCBSNH. The cash purchase price was $125.4 millionliliog direct cost
of acquisition).

When integrating new operations, we focus on imprgeustomer service, underwriting, medical manag@nand administrative operations.
We improve operations by centralizing certain mamagnt and support functions, sharing best practindsconsolidating information
systems. We also improve underwriting practicesdipblishing discipline in our data analysis ar@ipct design.

Pending Acquisition of Blue Cross and Blue Shieldfd<ansas
General

On May 30, 2001, we signed a definitive agreemetit Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Kansas, IncBGBS-KS, pursuant to which we
agreed to acquire BCBS-KS, which would become allylogvned subsidiary of ours. On February 11, 2G82,Kansas Insurance
Commissioner disapproved the proposed transastibith had been previously approved by the BG&Spolicyholders in January 2002.
February 19, 2002, the board of directors of BCBSuted unanimously to appeal the Kansas Insur@ooemissioner's decision and BCBS-
KS will seek to have the decision overturned inviaieee County District Court. The Company will joil€BS-KS in the appeal.

Under the proposed transaction, BCBS-KS would cdrfrem a mutual insurance company to a stock iasce company through a process
known as a sponsored demutualization. Under theeagent, BCBS-KS policyholders eligible to receie@sideration in its demutualization
would be entitled to receive $190.0 million, a pmrtof which totaling $48.0 million we would pay @ash to the escrow described below at
the closing of the transaction. The portion of $#1€0.0 million not placed in escrow would be disited directly to eligible BCBS-KS
policyholders. The amount placed in the escrow aetwould be held in escrow pending the resolutiba matter involving a subpoena de
February 28, 2001, received by BCBS-KS from thaéd@fbf Inspector General, or OIG. The subpoenassdekuments related to an
investigation of possible improper claims againstdidare. The amount held in escrow would be usgayocosts, expenses and liabilities
related to the OIG investigation, and to pay casid expenses of the escrow, with any remaining aitrtowbe distributed to eligible BCBS-
KS members following final resolution of the mattier addition, at or prior to the closing, BCBS-KM®uld declare a special distribution
payable after the closing to its eligible policythels in an amount equal to the excess of BCBS-&®alidated closing book value over
$155.0 million.

BCBS-KS

BCBS-KS is the largest health insurer in KansasBB&KS provides insurance coverage or self-insudediaistration services to more than
800,000 individuals in all Kansas counties excepindon and Wyandotte, two counties near Kansas B@3S-KS also administers
Medicare and Medicaid government programs.

BCBS-KS offers a wide range of health benefit paiduncluding traditional indemnity products and BMPOS and PPO managed care
products. BCBS-KS also offers claims administratoil stop-loss coverage for employer self-fundedsglas well as underwriting, actuarial
services, provider network access, and medicalroastagement. Additionally, BCBS-KS offers sevepsaalty insurance products,
including group life, disability, dental and longrin care.



For the year ended December 31, 2001, B&®ad preliminary (unaudited) total revenue of0®%,1 million and a net loss of $12.6 mill
and, at December 31, 2001, assets of $770.3 méliwhsurplus of $312.3 million.

Core Health Benefits Products and Services

We offer a diversified mix of managed care produictsiuding HMO, PPO and POS plans, as well asttaahl indemnity products. Our
managed care products incorporate a broad ranggtiohs and financial incentives for both memberd participating providers, including
co-payments and provider risk pools. We also adfbroad range of administrative and managed caveces and partially insured products
for employer self-funded plans. These servicesmnducts include underwriting, stop loss insuraoyarial services, network access,
medical cost management, claims processing and atiministrative services. We charge a premiunirfeured plans and typically assume
all or a majority of the liability for the cost bialth care. For self-funded or partially-insuredducts, we charge a fee for services while the
employer assumes all or a majority of the riskse Tée is based upon the customer's selection frorpartfolio of services. We also provide
specialty products including group life, disabiliprescription management, dental and vision caue.principal health products, offered both
on an insured and employer-funded basis, are deschielow. Some managed care and medical costimomat features may be included in
each of these products, such as inpatient preficatibn, benefits for preventive services and taimsement at our maximum allowable
amount with no additional billing to members.

Preferred Provider Organization, or PPO. PPO prizdoffer the member an option to select any healtle provider, with benefits paid at a
higher level when care is received from a partifiganetwork provider. Coverage is subject to cgrpants or deductibles and coinsurance,
with member cost sharing limited by out-of-pocketdimums.

Traditional Indemnity. Indemnity products offer tieember an option to select any health care proV¥atecovered services. Coverage is
subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with merobstr sharing limited by out-of-pocket maximums.

Health Maintenance Organization, or HMO. HMO pradunclude comprehensive managed care benefitgrgnthrough a participating
network of physicians, hospitals and other proxd&rmember in one of our HMOs must typically seeprimary care physician, or PCP,
from our network. PCPs generally are family pramtiérs, internists or pediatricians who provideassary preventive and primary medical
care, and are generally responsible for coordigaither necessary health care. Preventive careessrare emphasized in these plans. We
offer HMO plans with varying levels of co-paymenigiich result in different levels of premium rates.

Point-of-Service, or POS. POS products blend tlaatttieristics of HMO and indemnity plans. Membens bave comprehensive HMO-style
benefits through participating network providershaminimum out-of-pocket expense (co-payments)aad can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecaitnpng other things, certain deductibles and coarsig. Member cost sharing is limited by
out-of-pocket maximums.

BlueCard Plan. BCBS plans across the United Ssitese their local provider networks in a uniqu@agement, where one plan's enrolled
members travel or live in another plan's servieaal he local or "host" plan is paid an administeatee by the "home" or selling plan in
exchange for providing claims and member serviod®tne plan customers in the host plan's serviea. &l claims are reimbursed by the
home plan, which may have an insured or self-funééationship with the member's employer under @irthe product designs discussed
above. BlueCard membership is calculated basetearmount of BlueCard administrative fees we rex&iom the BlueCard members' ha
plans. Generally, the administrative fees we raxzaie based on the number and type of claims wedemnd a portion of the network
discount on those claims. The



administrative fees are then divided by an assupeednember per month, or PMPM, factor in orderaizcualate the number of members. The
assumed PMPM factor is based on an estimate ofefmthexperience and BCBSA guidelines.

The following table sets forth our health benefitsmbership data by product:

December 31

(In Thousands)

PPO...oooiiiiiiiiee 3,193 2,733 2,427
Traditional Indemnity......... 1,113 1,155 1,048
HMO....ooiiiiiiiiiecee 1,211 1,121 964
POS...oooiiiiieiee 740 813 723

Directly Contracted Membership 6,257 5,822 5,162
BlueCard(R) (Anthem Host)..... 1,626 1,320 974

TRICARE.........cccouee. - 128 129

Specialty Products and Services

Prescription Management Services. We provide phaymatwork management, pharmacy benefits and madérqrescription services
through our subsidiary, Anthem Prescription Managetnor APM, our pharmacy benefit manager. APM auitérs its programs primarily
customers who are also Anthem health plan memBathem Rx, our retail pharmacy network, providesmhers access to more than 50,
chain and independent pharmacies across the Usitgds, and Anthem Rx Direct, our mail service ptaay, provides long-term therapy
medications through convenient home delivery.

Group Life and Disability. We offer an array of cpatitive group life insurance and disability behgfioducts to both large and small group
customers. We have over $24.5 billion of life iresure in force, insuring over 33,000 groups with erthian 835,000 employees. Our
traditional group insurance products include tefe hccidental death and dismemberment, short-tésability income and long-term
disability income. In addition, we offer voluntagyoup life and disability products through emplsyehich payroll-deduct premiums from
their participating employees.

Vision and Dental Care Programs. These programprararily for customers enrolled in our Blue Crassl Blue Shield health plans. Vision
and dental products available include both fullsuired and self-insured products. In addition, wevigle dental third-party administration
services through Health Management Systems, Incwbolly owned subsidiary.

Other Products and Services

In addition to the above-described products andiees, we provide services as a fiscal intermediarghe Medicare Part A and Part B
program in certain states.

Marketing

We market our managed care and specialty producisgh three regional business units. Our healthgpare generally marketed under the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield brand, except for ceigavernment programs. We organize our marketifaytefby customer segment and by
region in order to maximize our ability to meet #pecific needs of our customers. Marketing prograne developed by a cross-functional
team including the actuarial, underwriting, satgserations and finance departments to evaluateridkpricing and to ensure
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adherence to established underwriting guidelines bélieve our reputation, financial stability, highality customer service and exclusive
BCBS license provide us with competitive advantaayes allow us to gain share in our markets. Weestio develop solutions for our
customers. Our keys to success include developmg-ierm relationships and providing stable pricfigur products. Most contracts are for
one year, although we occasionally enter into rygtr arrangements.

We maintain the quality of our sales staff and pefedent brokers through regularly held trainingisans and advisory groups, which
familiarize them with evolving consumer preferenaswell as our products and current marketirgtesgies. In addition, we structure sales
commissions to provide incentives to our sales astad brokers to promote the full value of our proi$. Each region is responsible for
enrolling, underwriting and servicing its respeethwsinesses.

Customers

In each region, we balance the need to customimupts with the efficiencies of product standarticra Overall, we seek to establish pric
and product designs to achieve an appropriate t#yaiofitability for each of our customer cate@si Our customers include several
distinguishable categories:

. Local Large groups, defined as contracts witlmbmore eligible employees (but excluding "Natiobasiness," described below), accounted
for 40.4% of our operating revenue and 35.9% ofmembers as of and for the year ended Decemb&081, These groups are generally
sold through brokers or consultants working wittiuistry specialists from our in-house sales foreggk group cases are usually experience
rated or sold on a seifisured basis. The customer's buying decisionpe®ly based upon the size and breadth of our owdsy the quality o
our medical management services, the administratigeincluded in our quoted price, our financtabdity and our ability to effectively
service large complex accounts.

. Small groups, defined as contracts with one telfible employees, accounted for 17.7% of ouratyeg revenue and 10.3% of our
members as of and for the year ended Decembei081, Zhese groups are sold exclusively throughgeddent agents and brokers. Small
group cases are sold on a fully insured basis. trittng and pricing is done on a community ratedils, with individual state insurance
departments approving the rates. See "RegulaSomall Group Reform" below. Small group customeesgenerally more sensitive to proc
pricing and, to a lesser extent, the configuratibthe network and the efficiency of administratidecount turnover is generally higher with
small groups.

. Individual policies (under age 65) accounted3@% of our operating revenue and 3.9% of our mesae of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001. These policies are generaltythobugh independent agents and brokers. In sag®san in-house telemarketing unit is
used to generate leads. This business is usuatljcaily underwritten at the point of initial issuzn Rates are filed with and approved by
state insurance departments. In several of our etsrthere is much less competition for individoasiness than group contracts.

. Medicare Supplement business accounted for 6f88Graoperating revenue and 4.9% of our memberf asd for the year ended Decem
31, 2001. These standardized policies are soldadidare recipients as supplements to the benkéisreceive from the Medicare program.
New policyholders come from independent agentsakdrs or through the conversion of existing graugmbers or individual policyholde
when they retire and reach age 65.

. The Federal Employee Program accounted for 1@#étir operating revenue and 5.4% of our membeos aad for the year ended
December 31, 2001. As a BCBSA licensee, we padteipn a nationwide contract with the Federal goreent whereby we cover Federal
employees and their dependents in our eight-statéce area. Under a complex formula, we are rensdulifor our costs plus a fee. We also
participate in the overall financial risk for medliclaims on a pooled basis with the other partiig BCBS plans.
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. Medicare + Choice accounted for 6.0% of our ofregarevenue and 1.2% of our members as of anthéoyear ended December 31, 2001.
This program is the managed care alternative tdeitherally funded Medicare program. Most of thenpitem is paid directly by the Federal
government on behalf of the participant who mayp &ks charged a small premium. Medicare+Choice iketad in the same manner as
Medicare Supplement products.

. National business (including BlueCard) accouritec.1% of our operating revenue, but 36.8% ofmembers as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2001, because much of our Nationahéssis self-insured. These groups are genemalliytsrough brokers or consultants
working with our in-house sales force. We havegaificant competitive advantage when competingvieny large National accounts due to
our ability to access the national network of BQi&nhs and take advantage of their provider diseimtheir local markets.

The following chart shows our membership by custosegment:

Membership

December 3 1
Customer Segment 2001 2000 1 999

(In Thousand s)
Local Large group.........ccceeeeee.s 2,827 2,634 2 ,249
Small group......cceeeeeveviiicnnnns 813 775 637
Individual (under age 65)............ 311 260 215
Medicare Supplement (age 65 and over) 390 390 371
Federal Employee Program............. 423 407 362
Medicare + Choice.................... 97 106 96
National..........cccoeeeeiirrnne. 2,903 2,468 2 ,106
Other (1)..cveeeeeeiiieeieeee, 119 230 229
Total...oooeeereiecen 7,883 7,270 6 ,265

(1) Includes TRICARE and Medicaid at December 30N® 1999 and 1998. Consists of Medicaid only atddgber 31, 2001, since we sold
our TRICARE operations on May 31, 2001.

The Blue Cross Blue Shield License

We have the exclusive right to use the Blue CrossBlue Shield names and marks for all of our melad¢inefits products in Indiana,
Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Mai@elorado and Nevada. We believe that the BCBS namésnarks are valuable
identifiers of our products and services in thekatplace. The license agreements, which have &pexterm, contain certain requirements
and restrictions regarding our operations and seraf the BCBS names and marks. Upon terminatidgheoficense agreements, we would
cease to have the right to use the BCBS names arkkrim one or more of Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, @acticut, New Hampshire, Maine,
Colorado and Nevada, and the BCBSA could therestere a license to use the BCBS names and matkese states to another entity.
Events that could cause the termination of a lieexggeement with the BCBSA include:

. failure to comply with minimum capital requirenteimposed by the BCBSA,;

. impending financial insolvency;

. the appointment of a trustee or receiver;

. a change of control or violation of the BCBSA aship limitations on our capital stock; and
. the commencement of any action against Anthemrémee seeking its dissolution.
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Pursuant to the rules and license standards d@@RBSA, we guarantee the contractual and finand#gations to respective customers of
subsidiaries that hold controlled affiliate liceagem the BCBSA. Those subsidiaries are AnthemtHdédans of Kentucky, Inc., Anthem
Life Insurance Company, Anthem Health Plans, I6@ommunity Insurance Company, Anthem Health Plariseaf Hampshire, Inc., Rocky
Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc., Anthelealth Plans of Maine, Inc., HMO Colorado, Incatthew Thornton Health Plan, Inc.,
Maine Partners Health Plan, Inc. and Health Managei8ystems, Inc.

In addition, pursuant to the rules and licensedsteds of the BCBSA, we have agreed to indemnify BBBgainst any claims asserted
against it resulting from the contractual and ficiahobligations of AdminaStar Federal, our sulmigiwhich serves as a fiscal intermediary
providing administrative services for Medicare Padnd B.

Each license requires an annual fee to be paitet®lue Cross Blue Shield Association. The feeaiseld upon enroliment and premium.
BCBSA is a national trade association of Blue Cianss Blue Shield licensees, the primary functiomwhbich is to promote and preserve the
integrity of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield nanmas marks, as well as provide certain coordinatimorg the member plans. Each BCBSA
licensee is an independent legal organization samai responsible for obligations of other BCBSAmmber organizations. We have no righ
market products and services using the Blue Cnod$Béue Shield names and marks outside of our eigr states.

Information Systems

Information systems have played and will continuglaly a key role in our ongoing efforts to conbsly improve quality, lower costs and
increase benefit flexibility for our customers. Gamalytical technologies are designed to suppereasingly sophisticated methods of
managing costs and monitoring quality of care,wadelieve that our information systems are sudfitto meet current needs and future
expansion plans.

We use a combination of custom developed and lembegstems throughout our regions. An overall systarchitecture is maintained to
promote consistency of data and reduce duplicali@gorms. This architecture assumes single sepam@e systems supporting each of our
operating regions with centralized systems for g@ypany-wide functions such as financial servibesyan resources and servicing National
accounts. Focus is placed on identifying and elatiing redundant or obsolete applications with aptesis on increasing our capability to
operate in an Internet-enabled environment. Regmd@inistration systems serving unique productraarkets feed data to a combination
of regional and corporate decision support systdingse systems provide sources of information lfafaur data reporting and analysis
needs.

Our architecture calls for significant standardaibf software, hardware and networking produgtthancements are undertaken based on a
defined information systems plan. This plan, whgHeveloped collaboratively by our technical apérating leadership, is revalidated
regularly and maps out business-driven technolegyirements for the upcoming three-to-five yeaiqaer

We recognize consumer demand will cause an inergamed for more of our business to be conducteztrehically. Toward that end we
have developed several Internet-enabled initiatisessed on improving interactions with our custosnenembers, providers, brokers and
associates. We also are improving communicationdaa collection through compliance with the priarns of the Federal Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act or HIPAA. See éBulation--Regulation of Insurance Company and HRI@Biness Activities" below.

We are also engaged in a series of pilot prograaiswill result in web-enabled services such asirmmmembership enrollment and on-line
price quoting for brokers. Brokers will receive lime quoting capabilities for life, dental and wisirelated products. For our members, we
have on-line access to health information usingfcdly chosen content providers for consumer healibrmation. All of our members
currently have on-line access to physician and itedspetwork directories for their specific heafitan.
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Collaborations

In addition to internal efforts to leverage tectomyl, we are actively involved as investors andéesiih several collaborative technology
initiatives. As an example, we are one of severomagtional health benefits companies that ar@lnitvestors in MedUnite, Inc., an e-
business company. MedUnite is designing Internsetddechnology that will permit real-time transacsi between providers and insurance
companies. MedUnite's solutions will address clditirgy, eligibility determination and specialistferrals. These programs will make these
transactions more convenient for members while awipg efficiencies among doctors, hospitals andtheéasurers. Additionally, we are a
founding member of the Coalition for Affordable QittaHealthcare. This group, founded by 26 of tlaion's largest health benefits
companies and associations, develops programsa@ua access to quality health care coverage asinplify plan administration.

Pricing and Underwriting

We price our products based on our assessmentdefwriting risk and competitive factors. We contiiy review our underwriting and
pricing guidelines on a national and regional basishat our products remain competitive and comsisvith our marketing strategies and
profitability goals.

We have focused our efforts to maintain consistmtpetitive and strict underwriting standards. @dividual and group underwriting
targets have been based on our proprietary acctedudatuarial data. Subject to applicable legaktraimts, we have traditionally employed
case specific underwriting procedures for smallgrproducts and traditional group underwriting @awares with respect to large group
products. Also, we employ credit underwriting prdeees with respect to our self-funded products.

In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritiegisions follow a prospective rating processixéd premium rate is determined at the
beginning of the policy period. Unanticipated ireses in medical costs may not be able to be reedverthat current policy year. However,
prior experience, in the aggregate, is considaratbtermining premium rates for future periods.

For larger groups (over 300 lives) with PPO, POS8antitional benefit designs, we often employ reprective rating reviews. In retrospective
rating, a premium rate is determined at the begupoi the policy period. Once the policy period kased, the actual experience is reviewed.
If the experience is positive (i.e., actual claiosts and other expenses are less than those eXpébtm a refund may be credited to the
policy. If the experience is negative, then thaultasy deficit may either be recovered through cactiual provisions or the deficit may be
considered in setting future premium levels fordgheup. If a customer elects to terminate coverdgécits generally are not recovered.

We have contracts with the federal Centers for @i and Medicaid Services, or CMS (formerly thaltkeCare Financial Administration,
or HCFA), to provide HMO Medicare+Choice coveragévtedicare beneficiaries who choose health carereme through one of our HMO
programs. Under these annual contracts, CMS pagssasrate based on membership that is adjustetktfoographic factors. These rates are
subject to annual unilateral revision by CMS. ldliéidn to premiums received from CMS, most of theditare products offered by us req

a supplemental premium to be paid by the member.

See "Regulation--Small Group Reform" below for scdssion of certain regulatory restrictions onunaerwriting and pricing.
Reserves

We establish and report liabilities or reserve®onbalance sheet for unpaid health care coststip&ting the ultimate cost of incurred
claims that have not yet been reported to us by Imeesnor providers and reported claims that we ma@teet paid. Since these reserves
represent our estimates, the process requiresraalef)
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judgment. Reserves are established according toefiat Standards of Practice and generally acceqttdhrial principles and are based ¢
number of factors. These factors include experielee&zed from historical claims payments and adalassumptions to arrive at loss
development factors. Such assumptions and othtar&include healthcare cost trends, the incidefi¢ecurred claims, the extent to which

all claims have been reported and internal clairsgssing charges. Due to the variability inhenerihese estimates, reserves are sensitive tc
changes in medical claims payment patterns andgelsain medical cost trends. A worsening (or impnogst) of the medical cost trend or
changes in claims payment patterns from the trandgatterns assumed in estimating reserves wogtget a change. See Note 9 to our
audited consolidated financial statements for gtativie information on our reserves, including agression of reserve balances for each of
the last three years.

Medical Management

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that are intended to maintain afftctiveness while facilitating
improvements in the quality of care provided to me&mbers. One of the goals of these benefit feqigres assure that the care delivered to
our members is supported by appropriate medicabkaightific evidence.

Precertification. A traditional medical managemgratgram that we use involves assessment of theppateness of certain hospitalizations
and other medical services. For example, preceatifin is used to determine whether a set of halspitd medical services is being
appropriately applied to the member's clinical dbad in accordance with our criteria for medicalcessity as that term is defined in the
member's benefits contract.

Concurrent review. Another traditional medical mgeraent strategy we use is concurrent review, wisitfased on nationally recognized
criteria developed for the industry. With concutreview, the requirements and intensity of seiwidering a patient's hospital stay are
reviewed, often by an onsite skilled nurse profasal in coordination with the hospital's medicall anursing staff, in order to determine
whether those services are covered under a menfieeregits contract.

Disease management. More and more, health plasiading ours, are moving away from traditional neadimanagement approaches to n
sophisticated models built around disease manageanemadvanced care management. These progranssdndhose members who require
the greatest amount of medical services. We prawigrtant information to our providers and memberkelp them optimally manage the
care of their specific conditions. For examplejaertherapies and interventions for patients witibetes help prevent some of the serious,
long-term medical consequences of diabetes andesttie risks of kidney, eye and heart diseaseir@anmation systems can provide
feedback to our physicians to enable them to imptbe quality of care. For other prevalent medicaiditions such as heart disease or
asthma, our ability to correlate pharmacy dataraedical management data allows us to provide ilpbrhformation to our members and
providers which enables them to more effectivelynatge these conditions.

Formulary management. APM develops a formularglecsion of drugs based on clinical quality anaefiiveness, which is used across a
our regions. A pharmacy and therapeutics commitesisting of 20 physicians, 16 of whom are academd community physicians
practicing in our markets, make pharmacy medicaisitens about the clinical quality and efficacydofigs. Our three-tiered co-pay strategy
enables members to have access to all drugs thabacovered on formulary for an additional co-pay

Medical policy. A medical policy group comprisedpifysician leaders from all Anthem regions, workimglose cooperation with national
organizations such as the Centers for Disease @ptite American Cancer Society and community ptigieileaders, determines Anthem's
national policy for best approaches to the appboadf new technologies.
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Patient outcomes. A significant amount of healtte expenditures are used by a small percent ofneunbers who suffer from complex or
chronic illnesses. We have developed a seriesagframs aimed at helping our providers better maaagamprove the health of these
members. Often, these programs provide benefitedore care services and other support to reducesthe for repeated, expensive
hospitalizations. Increasingly, we are providinfpimation to our hospital networks to enable thermiprove medical and surgical care and
outcomes to our members. We endorse, encouragie@amtivize hospitals to support national initi@$vto improve patient outcomes and
reduce medication errors. We have been recognigednational leader in developing hospital quaditygrams.

External Review Procedures (Patients' Bill of R&ghin light of increasing public concerns aboultteplans denying coverage of medical
services, we work with outside experts throughacess of external review to help provide our meméth timely medical care. When we
receive member concerns, we have formal appeateg@uoes that ultimately allow coverage disputesteel to medical necessity decisions
under the benefits contract to be settled by indéeet expert physicians.

Service management. In HMO and POS networks, pyircare physicians serve as the overall coordinatonsembers' health care needs by
providing an array of preventive health serviced averseeing referrals to specialists for appropmiaedical care. In PPO networks, patients
have greater access to network physicians withquinaary care physician serving as the coordinataare.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is ablegfirg quality health care based on preventive heatasurements and outcomes of care. A
key to our success has been our ability to work witr network providers to improve the quality andcomes of the health care services
provided to our members. Our ability to providethguality service has been recognized by the Nati@ommittee on Quality Assurance, or
NCQA, the largest and most respected national ditateon program for managed care health plansbailone of our HMO plans in the E:
region hold the highest NCQA rating. Our HMO plan €olorado has received a three-year accreditaltioour Midwest region, our Ohio
HMO and POS plans hold the highest NCQA rating.aXjgect to seek accreditation for our managed darespn Indiana and Kentucky in
2002.

A range of quality health care measures have bdepted by the Health Plan Employer Data and InféioneSet, or HEDIS, which has been
incorporated into the oversight certification by @&. These HEDIS measures range from preventivécasysuch as screening
mammography and pediatric immunization, to elemehtsare, including decreasing the complicationdiabetes and improving treatment
for heart patients. While our results on specifieasures have varied over time, we are seeing eamtinimprovement overall in our HEDIS
measurements, and a number of our state plansremegathe best performers in the nation with resfecertain HEDIS standards.

In addition, we have initiated a broad array oflgug@rograms, including those built around smokoggsation and transplant management,
and an array of other programs specifically tatioi@ local markets. Many of these programs have beeloped in conjunction with
organizations such as the Arthritis Foundation regilonal diabetes associations.

Provider Arrangements

Our relationships with health care providers, ptigsis, hospitals and those professionals that geoancillary health care services are guided
by regional and national standards for network tgraent, reimbursement and contract methodologies.
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In contrast to some health benefits companies,generally our philosophy not to delegate fulafinial responsibility to our providers in the
form of capitation-based reimbursement. While ejwh can be a useful method to lower costs andoeednderwriting risk, we have
observed that, in general, providers do not padifiaccept the burden of maintaining the necedsaapcial reserves to meet the risks related
to capitation contracts.

We attempt to provide fair, market-based hospé@ahbursement along industry standards. We alsotsesksure physicians in our network
are paid in a timely manner at appropriate rates.Udé multi-year contracting strategies, includiage or fixed rates, to limit trend exposure
and increase cost predictability. In all regions, seek to maintain broad provider networks to ensuwgmber choice while implementing
effective management programs designed to impitoergtality of care received by our members.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationhyfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement sfiedevary substantially across markets.
Fee for service is our predominant reimbursemernhaumlogy for physicians. We generally use a reselased relative value system fee
schedule to determine fee for service reimbursendéns$ structure was developed and is maintaine@Mp and is used by the Medicare
system and other major payers. This system is enldgnt of submitted fees and therefore is not heevable to inflation. In addition,
physician incentive contracting is used to rewdrgsician quality and performance.

Like our physician contracts, our hospital consgmovide for a variety of reimbursement arrangasidepending on the network. Our
hospital contracts recognize the size of the figcilnd the volume of care performed for our membdemy hospitals are reimbursed on a
fixed allowance per day for covered services (pemdl or a case rate basis similar to Medicare (Bisgs Related Groups). Other hospitals
are reimbursed on a discount from approved chaages for covered services. Hospital outpatientisesvare reimbursed based on fixed case
rates, fee schedules or percent of charges. Tawegsredictability of expected cost, we frequentg a multi-year contracting approach
which provides stability in our competitive positisersus other health benefit plans in the market.

We believe our market share enables us to negdéadeable provider reimbursement rates. In somekets, we have a "modified favored
rate" provision in our hospital and ancillary caumtis that guarantees contracted rates at leaavaable as those given to our competitors
with an equal or smaller volume of business.

Behavioral Health and Other Provider Arrangements

We have a series of contracts with third party b&ral health networks and care managers who orgaanid provide for a continuum of
behavioral health services focusing on accesspoogpiate providers and settings for behavioralthezare. These contracts are generally
multi-year capitation based arrangements. Substamaese and alcohol dependency treatment prograsremantegral part of these behavioral
health programs.

In addition, a number of other ancillary serviceypders, including laboratory service providersptgohealth agency providers and
intermediate and long term care providers, areraotéd on a region-by-region basis to provide actes wide range of services. These
providers are normally paid on either a fee scheedided-per-day or per case basis.

Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitiveéhbrtionally and in our regional markets. Compmiihas intensified in recent years due
to more aggressive marketing and pricing, a pnaltfen of new products and increased quality awessmnd price sensitivity among
customers. Significant consolidation within theustty has also added to competition. In additioith ¥he 1999 enactment of the Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act, banks and other financial indibms have the ability to affiliate with insurancempanies, which may lead to new
competitors in the insurance and health beneftddi
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Industry participants compete for customers madmiythe following factors:
. price;

. quality of service;

. access to provider networks;

. flexibility of benefit designs;

. reputation (including NCQA accreditation status);

. brand recognition; and

. financial stability.

We believe our exclusive right to market productder the Blue Cross Blue Shield brand in our markebvides us with an advantage over
our competition. In addition, our strong marketrshand existing provider networks in both our Midivand East regions enable us to ach
cost-efficiencies and service levels that allovtaisffer a broad range of health benefits to owt@mers on a more cost-effective basis than
many of our competitors. In our West region, thekatplace is highly fragmented with no single plalyaving a dominant market share.
There, as in all regions, we strive to distinguisin products through excellent service, produai&alnd brand recognition.

Competitors in our markets include local and reglananaged care plans, and national health bewrefitpanies. In our Midwest region, our
largest competitors include UnitedHealthcare, Huanlae., Aetna U.S. Healthcare and Medical MutuaDbfo. In our East region, our main
competitors are Aetna U.S. Healthcare, Health Met, CIGNA HealthCare, ConnectiCare, Inc. and HaPilgrim Health Care. In our Wi
region, our principal competitors include Sierraakie Services, Inc., PacifiCare Health Systems, MdoitedHealthcare, Kaiser Permanente,
Aetna U.S. Healthcare and Hometown Health Plan, Toduild our provider networks, we also compet#hwther health benefits plans for
contracts with hospitals, physicians and other jgierg. We believe that physicians and other progigeimarily consider member volume,
reimbursement rates, timeliness of reimbursemethiaaministrative service capabilities along with thon-hassle" factor or reduction of
non-value added administrative tasks when decidingther to contract with a health benefits planth&t distribution level, we compete for
qualified agents and brokers to distribute our potsl Strong competition exists among insurancepeanes and health benefits plans for
agents and brokers with demonstrated ability toisenew business and maintain existing accouns balsis of competition for the services
of such agents and brokers are:

. commission structure;

. support services;

. reputation and prior relationships; and
. quality of the products.

We believe that we have good relationships withagents and brokers, and that our products, supporices and commission structure
compare favorably to our competitors in all of oegions.

Financial Strength Ratings

Financial strength ratings are the opinions ofrtiting agencies regarding the financial abilityaafinsurance company to meet its obligations
to its policyholders. Ratings provide both indugiarticipants and insurance consumers with meanimgfiormation on specific insurance
companies and have become an increasingly impddatar in establishing the competitive positiorirfurance companies. Rating agencies
continually review the financial performance andadition of insurers and higher ratings generalljicate
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financial stability and a strong ability to payiaotes. The current financial strength ratings of Aerthinsurance and its consolidated
subsidiaries are as follows:

Financial
Rating Agency Strength Rating Rating Description
AM Best Company, Inc. A- Seco nd highest of nine ratings categories and second
("Best") ("Excellent") high est within the category based on modifiers (i.e.,
A an d A- are "Excellent")
Standard & Poor's Rating A Thir d highest of nine ratings categories and mid-
Services ("S&P") ("Strong") rang e within the category based on modifiers (i.e.,
A+, A and A- are "Strong")
Moody's Investor Service, Inc. A2 Thir d highest of nine ratings categories and mid-
("Moody's") ("Good") rang e within the category based on modifiers (i.e.,
Al, A2 and A3 are "Good")
Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch") A+ Thir d highest of eight ratings categories and highest
("Strong")  with in the category based on modifiers (i.e., A+, A
and A- are "Strong")

These financial strength ratings reflect each gasigency's opinion as to our financial strengtteraping performance and ability to meet our
claim obligations to our policyholders. In DecemB601, S&P reaffirmed our A rating and maintainesdouutlook as positive. In December
2001, Moody's upgraded our rating to A2. In Apfl02, Fitch reaffirmed our A+ rating, and revisexlautlook to positive. Each of the rating
agencies reviews its ratings periodically and tlemre be no assurance that current ratings will Gmtained in the future. We believe our
strong ratings are an important factor in marketing products to our customers, since ratings médion is broadly disseminated and
generally used throughout the industry. Our ratimglect each rating agency's opinion of our finahstrength, operating performance and
ability to meet our obligations to policyholdersdaare not evaluations directed toward the prasaatif investors in our common stock, the
units or the debentures.

Investments

Our investment objective is to preserve our asag¢land to achieve rates of return, which are stamiwith our defined risk parameters, mix
of products, liabilities and surplus. Our portfoisostructured to provide sufficient liquidity toemt general operating needs, special needs
arising from changes in our financial position ahdnges in financial markets. As of December 3012€ixed maturity securities accounted
for 95% of total investments. Our fixed maturityrffolio consists exclusively of U.S. dollar-denomaiad assets, invested primarily in U.S.
government securities, corporate bonds, asset-ddukeds and mortgage-related securities. As of Déee 31, 2001, our corporate fixed
maturity portfolio (approximately 36% of the tofaded maturity portfolio as of December 31, 2004han average credit rating of
approximately double-A. Our investment policy piuts investments in derivatives.

Our portfolio is exposed to three primary sourciessk: credit quality risk, interest rate risk,camarket valuation risk for equity holdings.
Credit quality risk is defined as the risk of aditelowngrade to an individual fixed income seguahd the potential loss attributable to that
downgrade. We manage this risk through our investrpelicy, which establishes credit quality limitats on the overall portfolio as well as
dollar limits of our investment in securities otlimidual issuers. Interest rate risk is definedhespotential for economic losses on fixed-rate
securities, due to an adverse change in marketstteates. We manage interest rate risk by maintaia duration commensurate with our
insurance liabilities and shareholders' equity. kdawraluation risk for the equity holdings is de&fihas the potential for economic losses di
an adverse change in equity prices. We manage tisseby investing in index mutual funds that regle the risk and performance of the
S&P 500 and S&P 400 indices, resulting in a dierdiequity portfolio.
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For additional information regarding Investmengger to Note 5 to our audited consolidated finalngtiatements included herein.
Employees

As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately 1f80-time equivalent employees primarily locaiadCincinnati and Columbus, Ohio;
Indianapolis, Indiana; Louisville, Kentucky; Norttaven, Connecticut; Denver, Colorado; Portland,idaand Manchester, New Hampshire.
Employees were also located in various other citiéisin our regions, as well as in lllinois and N&werk. Our employees are an important
asset, and we seek to develop them to their faéimi@l. We believe that our relationships with eorployees are good. No employees are
subject to collective bargaining agreements.

Regulation
General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive aralle@tstate and federal regulation throughout thidd States in the jurisdictions in which
we do business. Supervisory agencies, includirtg bialth, insurance and corporation departmeats& hroad authority to:

. grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transagtéss;

. regulate many aspects of our products and sexvice

. monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy; and

. scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitatieeteria.

To carry out these tasks, these regulators peatigiexamine our operations and accounts.
Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Business Aivities

The federal government as well as the governmdriteecstates in which we conduct our operationstedopted laws and regulations that
govern our business activities in various ways.sEhlaws and regulations may restrict how we conducbusinesses and may result in
additional burdens and costs to us. Areas of ganental regulation include:

. licensure;

. premium rates;

. benefits;

. service areas;

. market conduct;

. utilization review activities;

. prompt payment of claims;

. member rights and responsibilities;
. sales and marketing activities;

. quality assurance procedures;

. plan design and disclosures;

. disclosure of medical information;
. eligibility requirements;

. provider rates of paymer



. surcharges on provider payments;
. provider contract forms;

. underwriting and pricing;

. financial arrangements;

. financial condition (including reserves); and
. corporate governance.

These laws and regulations are subject to amendmaedtchanging interpretations in each jurisdiction
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States generally require health insurers and HM@btain a certificate of authority prior to commgrg operations. If we were to establish a
health insurance company or an HMO in any staterevive do not presently operate, we generally whalk to obtain such a certificate. -
time necessary to obtain such a certificate vdraa state to state. Each health insurer and HMGtrfilg periodic financial and operating
reports with the states in which it does businesaddition, health insurers and HMOs are subjestate examination and periodic license
renewal.

There has been a recent trend of increased heaktregulation at the federal and state levelsisla@n, regulation and initiatives relating
this trend include, among other things, the follogi

. eliminating or reducing the scope of ERISA preption of state medical and bad faith claims undatedaw, thereby exposing health
benefits companies to expanded liability for pwsitand other extra-contractual damages;

. extending malpractice and other liability for nmed and other decisions from providers to healénsg;

. imposing liability for negligent denials or detain coverage;

. requiring

--coverage of experimental procedures and drugs,

--direct access to specialists for patients wittonkc conditions,

--direct access to specialists (including OB/GYHRIs)l chiropractors,

--expanded consumer disclosures and notices arahdegd coverage for emergency services,

--liberalized definitions of medical necessity,

--liberalized internal and external grievance appeal procedures (including expedited decision ngki

--maternity and other lengths of hospital inpatigtaty,

--point of service benefits for HMO plans, and

--payment of claims within specified time framegayment of interest on claims that are not patthiwithose time frames;
. prohibiting

--so-called "gag" and similar clauses in physi@gneements,

--incentives based on utilization, and

--limitation of arrangements designed to manageicaédosts such as capitated arrangements withigems/or provider financial incentives;
. regulating and restricting the use of utilizatrmanagement and review;

. regulating and monitoring the composition of pdar networks, such as "any willing provider" arfthpmacy laws (which generally provide
that providers and pharmacies cannot be deniettipation in a managed care plan where the progided pharmacies are willing to abide
by the terms and conditions of that plan);

. imposing

--payment levels for out-of-network care, and

--requirements to apply lifetime limits to menta&dith benefits with parity;

. exempting physicians from the antitrust laws grahibit price fixing, group boycotts and otherizontal restraints on competition;

. restricting the use of health plan claims infotiow



. regulating procedures that protect the confiddihtiof health and financial information;

. implementation of a state-run single payer system

. imposing third-party review of denials of benefiincluding denials based on a lack of medicakssity); and
. restricting or eliminating the use of formularfes prescription drugs.
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The health benefits business also may be advearaplcted by court and regulatory decisions thategphe interpretations of existing
statutes and regulations. It is uncertain whethecan recoup, through higher premiums or other ureasthe increased costs of mandated
benefits or other increased costs caused by patéegiisiation or regulation.

Patients' Bill of Rights

On August 8, 2001, the House of Representativesepias version of the Patients' Bill of Rights légien (an amended version of the Ganske-
Dingell bill) which would permit health plans to baed in state court for certain coverage deterioing The current administration has
indicated a willingness to pass some form of pafeatection legislation which could adversely affthe health benefits business, and, in
fact, the bill adopted by the House was the resfudt compromise reached by President Bush and Remtaive Charles Norwood (R-GA).
Under the bill a claim would be permitted for a wgéul coverage denial which is the proximate caafggersonal injury to, or the death of, a
patient. Medically reviewable claims against heaigurers would be tried in state court but und@elefal law. Patients would be required to
exhaust external review before filing suit. Patsawho lose an external review decision would havevercome a rebuttable presumption that
the insurer made the correct decision. The bilsaagn-economic damages at $1.5 million. Punitiveatges would be available only if
insurers do not follow an external review decisimdl would be capped at an additional $1.5 millidme bill also limits class action lawsuits
(both future suits and pending suits where a dlassnot yet been certified) against health insureder both ERISA and the Racketeer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act to groeplth plans established by a single plan sponsor.

The Senate version of the Patients' Bill of Ridatgslation (the McCain-Edwards bill) was passedlone 29, 2001 and contains broader
liability provisions than the House bill. The Sematll would permit patients to sue health planstate court over medical judgments or in
federal court over contractual issues, and it wouiticap damages in state courts. In federal cpuritive damages would be allowed, up to
$5 million, and there would be no limit on econorai@ non-economic damages. President Bush had #tatehe will veto any Patients' Bill
of Rights legislation that contains liability preiens similar to the Senate bill. The House andaewversions of the bill are expected to be
reconciled in the Conference Committee. We canredipt the provisions of the Patients' Bill of Riglegislation that may emerge from the
Conference Committee, if any, and whether any R&ti&ill of Rights legislation would be enactetbifaw. We also cannot predict what
impact any Patients' Bill of Rights legislation iddthave on our business, financial condition arsilits of operations.

Small Group Reform

All of the principal states in which Anthem doessingess have enacted statutes that limit the flgtyitlmf Anthem and other health insurers
relative to their small group underwriting and matipractices. Commonly referred to as "small gnafprm" statutes, these laws are generally
consistent with model laws originally adopted bg MAIC.

In 1991, the NAIC adopted the Small Group Healuhance Availability Model Act. This model law litsithe differentials in rates carriers
could charge between new business and health msairenewal business, and with respect to smalipgravith similar demographic
characteristics (commonly referred to as a "rakavg’). It also requires that insurers discloseustomers the basis on which the insurer
establishes new business and renewal rates, testrecapplicability of pre-existing condition emusions and prohibits an insurer from
terminating coverage of an employer group becaftifeecadverse claims experience of that group.mbdel law requires that all small grc
insurers accept for coverage any employer groufyaqgpfor a basic and standard plan of benefitsr(gmnly known as a "guarantee issue
law"), and provides for a voluntary reinsurance haagsm to spread the risk of high risk employeesragrall small group carriers
participating in the reinsurance mechanism. Reptasiges of Anthem actively participated in the enittees of the NAIC, which drafted and
proposed this model law. NAIC model laws are nqtligable to the industry until adopted by indivitistates, and there is significant
variation in the degree to which states adopt aralter NAIC model laws. Some, if not all, of thes¢ing and underwriting limitations are
present in small group reform statutes currentlypaeld in all of the principal states in which Antlhéoes business.
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Underwriting Limitations. In the past, insurancemganies were free to select and reject risks basednumber of factors, including the
medical condition of the person seeking to becamared. Small group health insurers were free tegicsome employees and reject other
employees for coverage within one employer groupirsurance company was also free to exclude fraverage medical conditions exist
within a group which the insurance company beliensggtesented an unacceptable risk level. Alsothemost part, insurance companies
were free to cancel coverage of a group due tondical conditions which were present in that gragiditionally, a new employee seeking
medical coverage under an existing group plan cbaldither accepted or rejected for coverage, aiddeave coverage excluded or delayed
for existing medical conditions.

The small group health insurance reform laws limniabolish a number of these commonly utilized ficas to address a societal need to
extend availability of insurance coverage more Bipéo those who were previously not eligible faverage. Reform laws have been ado
which at a minimum generally require that a groitipez be accepted or rejected for coverage as piteTine law in all of the states in which
Anthem does business now prohibits the practiderofinating the coverage of an employer group basetthe medical conditions existing
within that group. (Insurers may still cancel besis for a limited number of reasons.) These stdsesgenerally require "portability” of
coverage, which means that an insurer cannot eeaaderage for a pre-existing condition of a nevplelyee of an existing employer group

if that person had previously satisfied a pre-@xistondition limitation period with the prior inser, and if that person maintained continuous
coverage. Most state small group reform statutes @lohibit insurers from denying coverage to empgig@roups based upon industry
classification.

All states in which Anthem does business requie"tfuarantee issue" of small group policies, eithesugh specific state law or the states'
requirement to enforce a federal law, the Healuitance Portability and Accountability Act of 198&pwn as HIPAA. These laws require
insurer to issue coverage to any group that apfiiesoverage under any of the small group polioesketed by the insurer in that state,
regardless of the medical risks presented by thatpy

Rating Limitations. Prior to the adoption of sted¢e reform laws, there was very limited regulatidnhe rating practices utilized in the small
group health insurance market. There was virtuatlyegulation of the amount by which one grougds cauld vary from that of a
demographically similar group with different claimsperience, and there was no statutorily plagad tin the extent and frequency of rate
increases that could be applied to any one emplpyemp.

Over the last nine years, all of the principalesah which Anthem does business have enactedytativs. These laws are designed to reduce
the variation in rates charged to insured groups hdwve favorable and unfavorable claims experiefieey also limit the extent and
frequency of rate increases. They do not, howeastablish an appropriate base or "manual” ratd fevan insurer. The most stringent rate
reform regulation would be a pure community ratieguirement, pursuant to which all persons in aggggghic region would receive the same
rate for the same coverage as any other persdmutitonsideration of demographic factors suchgas gender, geographic location, med
risk or occupation. Most existing rating laws ailspose a limit on the extent and frequency of aigi®rate increases.

Small Group Statutory Reinsurance Mechanisms

At this time, the Connecticut, New Hampshire andata (HMO only) Anthem plans are subject to invtdup assessments from state small
group reinsurance mechanisms. These mechanismgsigmed to provide risk-spreading mechanismatguriers doing business in
jurisdictions that mandate that health insurances$iged on a guarantee issue basis. Guaranteeréglirements increase underwriting

for insurers by forcing them to accept higher-tisisiness than they would normally accept. Thissigiance mechanism allows the insurer to
cede this high-risk business to the reinsurandétfa¢hus sharing the underwriting experiencehnétl insurers in the state. Each of
Connecticut and New Hampshire subject insurancepeoils doing business in that jurisdiction to assesits to fund losses from the
reinsurance mechanisms. Each of Indiana,
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Ohio and Nevada provide voluntary reinsurance mashas in which the assessment is against only tbaseers electing to participate in t
reinsurance mechanism. Anthem has elected nottizipate in these voluntary reinsurance mechaniste#her Kentucky nor Maine has a
small group reinsurance mechanism.

Recent Medicare Changes

In 1997, the federal government passed legislagtated to Medicare that changed the method fardehing premiums that the government
pays to HMOs for Medicare members. In generalpéhe method has reduced the premiums payable tornpared to the old method,
although the level and extent of the reductionsegdny geographic market and depends on otherrfactbe legislation also requires us to

a "user fee." The changes began to be phasedJararary 1, 1998 and will continue over five yedtse federal government also announced
in 1999 that it planned to begin to phase in ridjistments to its premium payments over a five-yesiod commencing January 1, 2000.
While we cannot predict exactly what effect thesedMare reforms will have on our results of opersi we anticipate that the net impact of
the risk adjustments will be to reduce the premipangable to us.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

HIPAA and its regulations impose obligations fauers of health insurance coverage and health ibpief sponsors. This law requires
guaranteed health care coverage for small empldyaisg 50 or fewer employees and for individualovmeet certain eligibility
requirements. It also requires guaranteed reneityabflhealth care coverage for most employersiadividuals. The law limits exclusions
based on preexisting conditions for individualse®d under group policies to the extent the indiald had prior creditable coverage, and the
gap between the prior coverage and the new covemy®t exceed certain time frames.

In addition, HIPAA authorized the Secretary of theited States Department of Health and Human Sesyknown as HHS, to issue
standards for administrative simplification, as Ivesl privacy and security of medical records armoindividually identifiable patient data.
HIPAA requirements apply to plan sponsors, hedkimg health care providers and health care clglaoinses that transmit, maintain or have
maintained health information electronically (cotigely referred to as "Covered Entities"). Regigias adopted to implement HIPAA also
require that business associates acting for oretvalbof these Covered Entities be contractualljgabed to meet HIPAA standards.

Although HIPAA was intended ultimately to reduceradistrative expenses and burdens faced withirh#adth care industry, we believe the
law will initially bring about significant and, isome cases, costly changes. HHS has released legaoudate mandating the use of new
standards with respect to certain health care a@imns, including health information. The firstauequires the use of uniform standards for
common health care transactions, including health claims information, plan eligibility, referregrtification and authorization, claims
status, plan enrollment and disenrollment, payraedtremittance advice, plan premium payments anddawation of benefits, and it
establishes standards for the use of electroni@asiges. The new transaction standards becameiedf@r October 2000. Originally, almost
all Covered Entities were required to comply whiege standards by October 16, 2002. However, &igislwas enacted in December 2001
giving Covered Entities the option of extendingitlm®mpliance date to October 16, 2003, provided ¢hfiling is made with HHS prior to
October 16, 2002. We intend to take advantageeoégtension.

Second, HHS has developed new standards relatiting orivacy of individually identifiable healthfarmation. In general, these regulations
restrict the use and disclosure of medical recardbother individually identifiable health infornaat held or disclosed by health plans and
other affected entities in any form, whether comivated electronically, on paper or orally, subjaaly to limited exceptions. In addition, the
regulations provide patients with significant neghts to understand and control how their healtbrimation is used. These regulations dc
preempt more stringent state laws and regulatioatsnhay apply to us. The privacy standards becdfeetiee on April 14, 2001. We must
comply with these privacy standards by April 140200ne more
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regulation integral to administration and privacydar HIPAA has yet to be finalized. It will addresescurity requirements to be met regarding
accessibility of personal health information. Wéidaee the cost of complying with these new standamild be material.

Other recent federal legislation includes the Grab@ach-Bliley Act, which generally required insusé¢o provide affected customers with
notice regarding how their personal health andnféiel information is used and the opportunity tpt'out” of certain disclosures before the
insurer shares non-public personal information aition-affiliated third party. These requiremené&evo be implemented on a state-by-state
basis by July 1, 2001. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Asbayives banks and other financial institutiors aitvility to affiliate with insurance
companies, which may lead to new competitors iriilarance and health benefits fields.

Investment and Retirement Products and Services

We are subject to regulation by various governnagencies where we conduct business, includingieance departments of Indiana,
Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Mai@elorado and Nevada. Among other matters, thesecagemay regulate premium
rates, trade practices, agent licensing, policgngrunderwriting and claims practices, the maxiniterest rates that can be charged on life
insurance policy loans, and the minimum ratestiagt be provided for accumulation of surrender @alu

ERISA

The provision of services to certain employee hela¢nefit plans is subject to the Employee Retirgncome Security Act of 1974
("ERISA"), a complex set of laws and regulationbjseat to interpretation and enforcement by therhdieRevenue Service and the
Department of Labor ("DOL"). ERISA regulates cantaspects of the relationships between us and genslevho maintain employee benefit
plans subject to ERISA. Some of our administrasigevices and other activities may also be subjectdulation under ERISA. In addition,
some states require licensure or registration ofpamies providing third party claims administratsarvices for benefit plans. We provide a
variety of products and services to employee bepkfns that are covered by ERISA.

In December 1993, in a case involving an employeefit plan and an insurance company, the UnitateStSupreme Court ruled that assets
in the insurance company's general account that atgributable to a portion of a group pension @itissued to the plan that was not a
"guaranteed benefit policy" were "plan assets'piamposes of ERISA and that the insurance compadyitiaciary responsibility with respect
to those assets. In reaching its decision, theesa@iCourt declined to follow a 1975 DOL interprethulletin that had suggested that
insurance company general account assets werdamagsets.

The Small Business Job Protection Act (the "Act8svgigned into law in 1996. The Act created a fraork for resolving potential issues
raised by the Supreme Court decision. The Act piewihat, absent criminal conduct, insurers gelgeréll not have liability with respect to
general account assets held under contracts thaiohiguaranteed benefit policies based on claiaisthose assets are plan assets. The relief
afforded extends to conduct that occurs beforealéte that is 18 months after the DOL issues fiegltations required by the Act, except as
provided in the anti-avoidance portion of the regiohs. The regulations, which were issued on Jgrka2000, address ERISA's application
to the general account assets of insurers attiibita contracts issued on or before December @348 that are not guaranteed benefit poli
The conference report relating to the Act statas plolicies issued after December 31, 1998 thaharguaranteed benefit policies will be
subject to ERISA's fiduciary obligations. We are¢ oarrently able to predict how these matters mitignately affect our businesses.

HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws

Since the demutualization, we have been regulaethansurance holding company and have been subjtte insurance holding company
acts of the states in which our subsidiaries amicited. These acts contain
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certain reporting requirements as well as restmaion transactions between an insurer or HMO @raffiliates. These holding company le
and regulations generally require insurance congsazand HMOs within an insurance holding companyesygo register with the insurance
department of each state where they are domicitdd@file with those states' insurance departmestisin reports describing capital
structure, ownership, financial condition, certaitercompany transactions and general businessitiges. In addition, various notice and
reporting requirements generally apphti@nsactions between insurance companies and HM®thair affiliates within an insurance holdi
company system, depending on the size and natuhe ¢fansactions. Some insurance holding compamyg &nd regulations require prior
regulatory approval or, in certain circumstancemrmotice of certain material intercompany tramsfof assets as well as certain transactions
between insurance companies, HMOs, their parexifigpcompanies and affiliates.

Additionally, the holding company acts for the etabf domicile of Anthem and its subsidiaries iiesthe ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without priegulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsogh approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insceeholding company which controls an insurancepaomg or HMO, or merge with such a
holding company, if as a result of such transacsiach person would "control" the insurance holdiagpany. "Control" is generally defined
as the direct or indirect power to direct or catisedirection of the management and policies céragn and is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or mariethe voting securities of another person.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws irstnstates, insurance companies can be assessaddants paid by guaranty funds for
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @myecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency orantg association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amoun¢wfiypms received on insurance underwritten withicthsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Substhiyn@dl of our premiums are currently derived fransurance underwritten in Indiana,
Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New Hampshire, Mai@e|orado and Nevada.

Under many of these guaranty association lawssassmnts against insurance companies that issuegsodif accident or sickness insurance,
such as Anthem, are made retrospectively and aedb@p to prescribed limits) upon the ratio ott{g insurance company's premiums
received in the applicable state over the prevthtese calendar years on accident and sicknessaimseito (ii) the aggregate amount of
premiums received by all assessed member insucamepanies over such three calendar years on at¢@ddrsickness insurance. The
guaranty fund assessments made under these aednaigistered by the state's Guaranty Associatitnich has its own board of directors
selected by member insurers with the approval @&tate Insurance Department. In general, an aseassnay be abated or deferred by the
Guaranty Association if, in the opinion of the shgsgayment would endanger the ability of the mentbdulfill its contractual obligations.
The other member insurers, however, may be assésstid amount of such abatement or deferral. sugh assessment paid by a member
insurance company may be offset against its prentéxntiability to the state in question over a npli# year period (generally five to 10
years) following the year in which the assessmet paid. The amount and timing of any future assests, however, cannot be reason:
estimated and are beyond our control.

While the amount of any assessments applicabiéetarid health guaranty funds cannot be predictiélll eertainty, we believe that future
guaranty association assessments for insurer ieisciles will not have a material adverse effect wnliquidity and capital resources.

Risk-Based Capital Requirements

The states of domicile of our subsidiaries haveugiay risk-based capital, or RBC, requirementshfealth and other insurance companies
based on the RBC Model Act. These RBC requiremangsntended to assess the capital adequacy @fidenealth insurers, taking into
account the risk characteristics of an insurer's
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investments and products. The RBC Model Act seth filne formula for calculating the RBC requirentewhich are designed to take into
account asset risks, insurance risks, interestisks and other relevant risks with respect tangividual insurance company's business. In
general, under these laws, an insurance compantysubsit a report of its RBC level to the InsuraBapartment or Insurance
Commissioner, as appropriate, of its state of dden&s of the end of the previous calendar year.

The RBC Model Act provides for four different lesadf regulatory attention depending on the ratia obmpany's total adjusted capital
(defined as the total of its statutory capital pbus and asset valuation reserve) to its risk-baapdal. The "Company Action Level" is
triggered if a company's total adjusted capitéd$s than 200 percent but greater than or equii@qpercent of its risk-based capital. At the
"Company Action Level", a company must submit a paghensive plan to the regulatory authority whitdtdsses proposed corrective
actions to improve its capital position. A compaviyose total adjusted capital is between 250 pe@eaht200 percent of its risk-based capital
is subject to a trend test. The trend test calesltiie greater of any decrease in the margintfi@amount in dollars by which a company's
adjusted capital exceeds its risk-based capitélydmn the current year and the prior year and batvtlee current year and the average of the
past three years, and assumes that the decreddeocour again in the coming year. If a similar @ase in margin in the coming year would
result in a risk-based capital ratio of less th@@ fiercent, then "Company Action Level" regulatacyion would be triggered. The
"Regulatory Action Level" is triggered if a compayjotal adjusted capital is less than 150 persangreater than or equal to 100 percent of
its risk-based capital. At the "Regulatory ActioeMel", the regulatory authority will perform a sp@@xamination of the company and issue
an order specifying corrective actions that musfoiewed. The "Authorized Control Level" is triggel if a company's total adjusted capital
is less than 100 percent but greater than or équé) percent of its risk-based capital, at whrel the regulatory authority may take any
action it deems necessary, including placing thragamy under regulatory control. The "Mandatory Calritevel" is triggered if a company's
total adjusted capital is less than 70 percentsafisk-based capital, at which level the regulatarthority is mandated to place the company
under its control.

The law requires increasing degrees of regulateeysight and intervention as an insurance compd&BG declines. The level of regulatory
oversight ranges from requiring the insurance compa inform and obtain approval from the domicyidgnsurance Commissioner of a
comprehensive financial plan for increasing its RB@andatory regulatory intervention requiringiasurance company to be placed under
regulatory control in a rehabilitation or liquidasi proceeding. As of December 31, 2001, the RBE€l$ewf Anthem and our insurance
subsidiaries exceeded all RBC thresholds.

NAIC IRIS Ratios

In the 1970's, the NAIC developed a set of finalmekationships or "tests" called the Insurance R&igry Information System, or IRIS, that
were designed for early identification of comparitest may require special attention by insurangelegory authorities. Insurance companies
submit statutory financial data on an annual bistee NAIC, which in turn analyzes the data usitips covering eleven categories of data
with defined "usual ranges" for each category. #surance company may fall out of the usual rangerie or more ratios because of specific
transactions or events that are, in and of theraselmmmaterial. Generally, an insurance companyb&itome subject to regulatory scrutiny if
its IRIS results fall outside of the usual rangadaur or more of the ratios. If a company is adesihe ranges on four or more of the ratios, a
written explanation is prepared and sent to regrdafNeither Anthem nor its subsidiaries is culsestibject to regulatory scrutiny based on
IRIS ratios.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our principal executive offices are located at Mdhument Circle, Indianapolis, Indiana. In addittorthis property, our principal operating
facilities are located in Denver, Colorado; Nortavdn, Connecticut; Indianapolis, Indiana; Masoné@inati, Ohio; Worthington/Columbus,
Ohio; Manchester, New Hampshire;
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Louisville, Kentucky and South Portland, Mainetdial, we own approximately 14 facilities and leapproximately 45 facilities. These
locations total 4.8 million square feet, of whichtAem occupies 4.3 million square feet, and aratéztin 13 states. We believe that our
properties are adequate and suitable for our bssiag presently conducted.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
Litigation

A number of managed care organizations have beshiaiclass action lawsuits asserting various caasaction under federal and state law.
These lawsuits typically allege that the defendaahaged care organizations employ policies andegiioes for providing health care
benefits that are inconsistent with the terms efdbverage documents and other information providedeir members, and because of these
misrepresentations and practices, a class of menhlasrbeen injured in that they received benefitssser value than the benefits represe

to and paid for by such members. Two such procgedirhich allege various violations of the EmplojRstirement Income Security Act of
1974 ("ERISA") have been filed in Connecticut agaidinthem and/or our Connecticut subsidiary. Oree@eding, The State of Connecticut
v. Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Connectiémthem Health Plans, Inc., et al., No. 3:00 C\LATAWT), filed on September 7,
2000 in the United States District Court, Disto€tConnecticut, was brought by the Connecticut Aty General on behalf of a purported
class of HMO and Point of Service members in Coticgic No monetary damages are sought, althougBuheloes seek injunctive relief
from the court to preclude us from allegedly utiliz arbitrary coverage guidelines, making late pegts to providers or members, denying
coverage for medically necessary prescription damgsmisrepresenting or failing to disclose esaéimformation to enrollees. The comple
contends that these alleged policies and practieea violation of ERISA. A second proceeding, 4t Strand v. Anthem Blue Cross and
Blue Shield of Connecticut, Anthem Health Plans, et al., No. 3:00 CV 2037 (SRU), filed on OctoB6, 2000 in the United States District
Court, District of Connecticut, was brought on béb&a purported class of HMO and Point of Serwicembers in Connecticut and
elsewhere, and seeks injunctive relief to preclusléom allegedly making coverage decisions rejgtinmedical necessity without comply
with the express terms of the policy documents,argpecified monetary damages (both compensatatrpanitive).

In addition, our Connecticut subsidiary is a defamtdn three class action lawsuits brought on Bedfagrofessional providers in Connecticut.
Edward Collins, M.D., et al. v. Anthem Health Plah., No. CV-99 0156198 S, was filed on Decenmbtrl999, in the Superior Court
Judicial District of Waterbury, Connecticut. Stepi. Levinson, M.D., Karen Laugel, M.D. and J. Kelzynch, M.D. v. Anthem Health
Plans, Inc. d/b/a Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Sheéldonnecticut, No. 3:01 CV 426 (JBA), was filen Bebruary 14, 2001 in the Superior
Court Judicial District of New Haven, Connectic@bnnecticut State Medical Society v. Anthem HeRBl#ns, Inc., No. 3:01 CV 428 (JBA)
was filed on February 14, 2001 in the Superior €dudicial District of New Haven, Connecticut. Thts allege that the Connecticut
subsidiary has breached its contracts by, amorgy thimgs, allegedly failing to pay for servicesaiccordance with the terms of the contracts.
The suits also allege violations of the Connectidntair Trade Practices Act, breach of the impliledy of good faith and fair dealing,
negligent misrepresentation and unjust enrichmiémg. Collins and Levinson suits seek injunctiveaklCollins seeks an accounting under
terms of the provider agreements and injunctiviefrerohibiting us from continuing the unfair agi®alleged in the complaint and violating
its agreements. Levinson seeks permanent injunaiief prohibiting us from, among other thingdlizihg methods to reduce reimbursem

of claims, paying claims in an untimely fashion amdviding inadequate communication with regardddnials and appeals. Both of the suits
seek unspecified monetary damages (both compegsaidrpunitive). The third suit, brought by the @eaticut State Medical Society, seeks
the same injunctive relief as the Levinson casenbunonetary damages.

On July 19, 2001, the court in the Collins suitified a class as to three of the plaintiff's fifteallegations. The class is defined as those
physicians who practice in Connecticut or grougfcas which are
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located in Connecticut that were patrties to eithParticipating Physician Agreement or a PartiaigalPhysicians Group Agreement with
Anthem and/or its Connecticut subsidiary duringpkeod from 1993 to the present, excluding riskfsig arrangements and certain other
contracts. The claims which were certified as ctdasns are: Anthem's alleged failure to providaimtiffs and other similarly situated
physicians with consistent medical utilization/dqtyalnanagement and administration of covered sesvity paying financial incentive and
performance bonuses to providers and Anthem staffilbers involved in making utilization managemertisiens; an alleged failure to
maintain accurate books and records whereby improggaments to the plaintiffs were made based amatades submitted; and an alleged
failure to provide senior personnel to work witliptiffs and other similarly situated physicianse Wave appealed the class certification
decision.

We intend to vigorously defend these proceedinggh@&m denies all the allegations set forth in th@glaints and has asserted defenses,
including improper standing to sue, failure tostatclaim and failure to exhaust administrativeadims. All of the proceedings are in the
early stages of litigation, and their ultimate autes cannot presently be determined.

On October 10, 2001, the Connecticut State Dentabgiation along with five dental providers filadtsaagainst our Connecticut subsidiary.
Connecticut State Dental Association, Dr. MartirttRDr. Michael Egan, Dr. Sheldon Natkin, Dr. SugarNemeth, and Dr. Bruce Tandy v.
Anthem Health Plans, Inc. d/b/a Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield of Connecticut was filed in the SigmeCourt Judicial District of
Hartford, Connecticut. On November 9, 2001, this was, with the consent of the parties, volunyawithdrawn without prejudice, but it mi
be re-filed in the future. The suit alleged that Gonnecticut subsidiary violated the Connecticofdit Trade Practices Act by allegedly
unilaterally altering fee schedules without notite basis to do so, instituting unfair and desgptiost containment measures and refusing to
enroll new providers unless they agreed to pasdieifpn all available networks. The plaintiffs sotidaclaratory relief that the practices alle
in the complaint constituted deceptive and unfaidé practices. A permanent injunction was alsg@lsbprohibiting us from, among other
things, failing and refusing to inform network prders of the methodology supporting our fee schesiahd substituting our medical
judgment for that of dental providers. The suituesfed costs and attorney fees, but no other sgoifonetary damages. Anthem denied
allegations set forth in this complaint and vigaigudefended this suit.

Following our purchase of BCBS-ME, the Attorney ®gai of Maine and Consumers for Affordable HealtreCfiled administrative appeals
challenging the Superintendent of Insurance's"@uperintendent") decision approving the conversibBCBS-ME to a stock insurer, which
was a required step before the acquisition. BathAttiorney General and the consumers group filpdtidion for administrative review
seeking, among other things, a determination tietecision of the Superintendent in regard t@apyication of BCBS-ME to convert to a
stock insurer was in violation of statute or unsanpgd by substantial evidence on the record. Coessiffior Affordable Health Care, et al. v.
Superintendent of Insurance, et al., Nos. AP-00AB~0042 (Consolidated). On December 21, 2001, the d¢ssued an opinion affirming tl
decision of the Superintendent approving the caiwarof BCBS-ME and the subsequent acquisition bth&m. The Consumers for
Affordable Health Care have appealed this decigddhe Maine Supreme Judicial Court. The Attornen&ral did not appeal the decision,
and the appeals time has passed. While the Conswappeal is still pending, we do not believe thatdappeal will have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position aulkes of operations.

On March 11, 1998, Anthem and its Ohio subsidi@ymmunity Insurance Company ("CIC") were namededsrdiants in a lawsuit, Robert
Lee Dardinger, Executor of the Estate of Estheri¢mardinger v. Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shiel@)|., filed in the Licking County
Court of Common Pleas in Newark, Ohio. The plairstifught compensatory damages and unspecifiedipaidiamages in connection with
claims alleging wrongful death, bad faith and nggytice arising out of our denial of certain claimsrhiedical treatment for Ms. Dardinger.
September 24, 1999, the jury returned a verdictHemlaintiff, awarding $1,350 for compensatoryndaes, $2.5 million for bad faith in
claims handling and appeals processing, $49.0aniftor
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punitive damages and unspecified attorneys' feas immount to be determined by the court. The datet granted attorneys' fees of $0.8
million. Both companies filed an appeal of the vetrdn November 19, 1999. On May 22, 2001, the @woairt of Appeals (Fifth District)
affirmed the jury award of $1,350 for breach of taaot against CIC, affirmed the award of $2.5 rmillicompensatory damages for bad fai
claims handling and appeals processing against Itjismissed the claims and judgments againdtént The court also reversed the
award of $49.0 million in punitive damages agabwth Anthem and CIC, and remanded the questionoitipe damages against CIC to the
trial court for a new trial. Anthem and CIC, as lad the plaintiff, appealed certain aspects ofdthasion of the Ohio Court of Appeals. On
October 10, 2001, the Supreme Court of Ohio agred&ear the plaintiff's appeal, including the qigsbf punitive damages, and denied the
cross-appeals of Anthem and CIC. In December 2002 paid the award of $2.5 million compensatory dges for bad faith and the award
of $1,350 for breach of contract, plus accruedreste The ultimate outcome of the matters thatlaesubject of the pending appeal cannot be
determined at this time.

On October 25, 1995, Anthem Insurance and two had&ffiliates were named as defendants in a lawifled Dr. William Lewis, et al. v.
Associated Medical Networks, Ltd., et al., that vikesl in the Superior Court of Lake County, Indiahe plaintiffs are three related health
care providers. The health care providers assattih failed to honor contractual assignments afthénsurance benefits and violated
equitable liens held by the health care providgradt paying directly to them the health insurahegefits for medical treatment rendered to
patients who had insurance with us. We paid outocoers' claims for the health care providers' ses/by sending payments to our
customers as called for by their insurance polj@esl the health care providers assert that thematfailed to use the insurance benefits to
pay for the health care providers' services. Thapffs filed the case as a class action on bedfadimilarly situated health care providers and
seek compensatory damages in unspecified amourttsefansurance benefits not paid to the class neesiplus prejudgment interest. The
case was transferred to the Superior Court of Ma@iounty, Indiana, where it is now pending. On Delger 3, 2001, the Court entered
summary judgment for us on the health care prosid=juitable lien claims. The Court also enteredreary judgment for us on the health
care providers' contractual assignments claimseaaktent that the health care providers do nat bffiective assignments of insurance
benefits from patients. On the same date, the Qautified the case as a class action. As limitethle summary judgment order, the class
consists of health care providers in Indiana whon@dre not in one of our networks, (2) did not feealirect payment from us for services
rendered to a patient covered by one of our inggraolicies that is not subject to ERISA, (3) weot paid by the patient (or were otherwise
damaged by our payment to our customer insteaal thiet health care provider), and (4) had an effeassignment of insurance benefits fi
the patient. We have filed a motion seeking arrioteitory appeal of the class certification ordethie Indiana Court of Appeals. In any
event, we intend to continue to vigorously defemel ¢ase and believe that any liability that mayltedsom the case will not have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial positir results of operations.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, wemrelved in other pending and threatened litigatdd the character incidental to our
business or arising out of our insurance and imwest operations, and are from time to time involasd party in various governmental and
administrative proceedings. We believe that anyilits that may result from any one of these acsimunlikely to have a material adverse
effect on our financial position or results of cgtgons.

Other Contingencies

Anthem, like a number of other Blue Cross and BBhéld companies, serves as a fiscal intermedianviging administrative services for
Medicare Parts A and B. The fiscal intermediar@stiiese programs receive reimbursement for cectasts and expenditures, which are
subject to adjustment upon audit by CMS. The lamésragulations governing fiscal intermediariestf@ Medicare program are complex,
subject to interpretation and can expose an intéianeto penalties for nonempliance. Fiscal intermediaries may be subjectitainal fines
civil penalties or other sanctions as a resultughsaudits or reviews. In the last five yearsgeast eight Medicare fiscal intermediaries have
made payments to settle issues raised by suchsaardit

28



reviews. These payments have ranged from $0.7omitb $51.6 million, plus a payment by one compain$144.0 million. While we believe
we are currently in compliance in all material resg with the regulations governing fiscal interiaeds, there are ongoing reviews by the
federal government of Anthem's activities undetaiarof its Medicare fiscal intermediary contracts.

On December 8, 1999, Anthem Health Plans, IncAHP, one of our subsidiaries, reached a settlemgrgement with the Office of Inspec
General, or OIG, Health and Human Services, iratheunt of $41.9 million, to resolve an investigatinto misconduct in the Medicare fis
intermediary operations of BCBS-CT, AHP's predegeskhe period investigated was before Anthem'gyerewith BCBSET. The resolutio
of this case involved no criminal penalties agafrsthem as successor-in-interest nor any suspemwsierclusion from federal programs.
This expense was included in administrative expénser statement of consolidated income for tharynded December 31, 1999.

AdminaStar Federal, Inc., one of our subsidiafies, received several subpoenas from the OIG and.&eDepartment of Justice, seeking
documents and information concerning its respolits#s as a Medicare Part B contractor in its Kekjuoffice, and requesting certain
financial records from AdminaStar Federal, Inc. &oth us related to our Medicare fiscal intermegli@art A and Part B operations. We h.
made certain disclosures to the government relatirayir Medicare Part B operations in Kentucky. Wée advised by the government that,
in conjunction with its ongoing review of these teat, the government has also been reviewing siepaltagations made by individuals
against AdminaStar, which are included within thee timeframe and involve issues arising from #mesnucleus of operative facts as the
government's ongoing review. We are not in a pmsitd predict either the ultimate outcome of thesgéews or the extent of any potential
exposure should claims be made against us. Howeredoelieve any fines or penalties that may arismfthese reviews would not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated firg@randition.

As a BCBSA licensee, we participate in a nationwadetract with the federal Office of Personnel Mgemment to provide coverage to federal
employees and their dependents in our core eighd-atea. The program is called the Federal Empl&yegram, or FEP. On July 11, 2001,
we received a subpoena from the OIG, Office of &arel Management, seeking certain financial docusn@nd information, including
information concerning intercompany transactioelated to our operations in Ohio, Indiana and Kekywnder the FEP contract. The
government has advised us that, in conjunction itstbngoing review, the government is also reviey\ separate allegation made by an
individual against our FEP operations, which iduded within the same timeframe and involves issresng from the same nucleus of
operative facts as the government's ongoing rewea/are currently cooperating with the OIG andih®. Department of Justice on these
matters. We are not in a position to predict eitherultimate outcome of these reviews or the éxaéany potential exposure should claims
be made against us. There can be no assurandbahdtimate outcome of these reviews will not haveaterial adverse effect on our
consolidated results of operations or financialditbon.

We guaranteed certain financial contingencies ofsobsidiary, Anthem Alliance Health Insurance Camp("Anthem Alliance"), under a
contract between Anthem Alliance and the UnitedeSt®epartment of Defense. Under that contracthémtAlliance managed and
administered the TRICARE Managed Care Support Rrodor military families from May 1, 1998 throughayl 31, 2001. The contract
required Anthem Alliance, as the prime contradmassume certain risks in the event, and to tkenéxthe actual cost of delivering health
care services exceeded the health care cost pilopdsaitted by Anthem Alliance (the "Health CaresIR). The contract has a fiyear term
but was transferred to a third party, effective Ngdy 2001. We guaranteed Anthem Alliance's assumgti the Health Care Risk, which is
capped by the contract at $20.0 million annuallg $@5.0 million cumulatively over the contract peti Through December 31, 2000,
Anthem Alliance had subcontracts with two other BBC&mpanies not affiliated with us by which theiiractors agreed to provide cer
services under the contract and to assume apprxin®0% of the Health Care Risk. Effective Janukr2001, one of those subcontracts
terminated by mutual agreement of the parties, wiiicreased Anthem Alliance's portion of the He&ldre Risk to 90%. Effective May 1,
2001, the other subcontract was
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amended to eliminate the Health Care Risk shaningigion, which resulted in Anthem Alliance assught00% of the Health Care Risk for
the period from May 1, 2001 to May 31, 2001. Th&es no call on the guarantee for the period frony Mal998 to April 30, 1999 (which
period is now "closed"), and we do not anticipatathon the guarantee for the periods beginning Mal999 through May 31, 2001 (which
periods remain "open" for possible review by the&¢ment of Defense).

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
The Company did not submit any matters to a voteeofirity holders during the fourth quarter of 2001
Executive Officers of the Company

Name Age Posi tion

Larry C. Glasscock...... 53 President and Chief Ex
Director

David R. Frick.......... 57 Executive Vice Preside

ecutive Officer and

nt and Chief Legal and

Administrative Offic
Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D. 53 Executive Vice Preside

Officer
Michael L. Smith........ 53 Executive Vice Preside
and Accounting Offic
Marjorie W. Dorr........ 39 President, Anthem East
Keith R. Faller......... 54 President, Anthem Midw
Michael D. Houk......... 57 President, National Ac

Caroline S. Matthews.... 42 Chief Operating Office
and Blue Shield in C

er
nt and Chief Medical

nt and Chief Financial
er

est

counts

r, Anthem Blue Cross
olorado and Nevada

John M. Murphy.......... 50 President, Specialty B usiness Division of
Anthem

Jane E. Niederberger.... 42 Senior Vice President and Chief Information
Officer

The following is biographical information for ouxecutive officers:

Larry C. Glasscock has served as President and Ekéeutive Officer and a director of Anthem, lismce July 2001 and as President and
Chief Executive Officer and a director of Anthensuinance since October 1999. He joined Anthem Imaeran April 1998 as Senior
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offitte was named President and Chief Operating €ffit April 1999 and succeeded L.
Ben Lytle as Chief Executive Officer upon Mr. Lyfleetirement in October 1999. Prior to joining A& Insurance, Mr. Glasscock serve:
Chief Operating Officer of CareFirst, Inc. from dany 1998 to April 1998. Mr. Glasscock was Presidemd Chief Executive Officer of
Group Hospitalization and Medical Services, Inchjok did business as Blue Cross Blue Shield of\thonal Capital Area, from 1993 to
January 1998 and oversaw its affiliation with BZi®ss Blue Shield of Maryland. Prior to moving he thealth insurance industry, he served
as President and Chief Operating Officer and actbireof First American Bank, N.A. (Washington, DIZgdm 1991 until 1993 when the bank
was sold. During 1991, Mr. Glasscock was PresidadtChief Executive Officer of Essex Holdings, I Ohio-based capital investment
firm). He also held various executive positionsidgtis twenty-year tenure with Ameritrust Corpaoat a Cleveland, Ohio bank holding
company. Mr. Glasscock is a director of Zimmer Hiods, Inc. (orthopaedic industry).

David R. Frick has served as Executive Vice Pregidad Chief Legal and Administrative Officer of them, Inc. since July 2001. He joined
Anthem Insurance in 1995 as Executive Vice Presided Chief Legal and Administrative Officer. Priorjoining Anthem Insurance, he
served as a member of its board of directors.
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Mr. Frick was a partner at the law firm of BakeiDfaniels from 1982 to 1995, and he was managingeaftom 1987 to 1992. He was
Deputy Mayor of the City of Indianapolis from 19#%/1982. He is a director of Artistic Media Parsidnc. (radio stations) and The National
Bank of Indianapolis Corporation (bank holding camy).

Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.D. joined Anthem Insuranclaimuary 2001 as Executive Vice President and Gheefical Officer. From 1996 to
2000, Dr. Nussbaum served both as Executive Viesiéent for Medical Affairs and System IntegratédrBJC Health System of St. Louis
and as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of HreBhrtners of the Midwest. Prior to that, Dr. Naeasm was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Physician Partners of New Emgl, Senior Vice President for Health Care Deliarglue Cross Blue Shield of
Massachusetts and a professor at Harvard Meditaldhc

Michael L. Smith has served as Executive Vice Flerdi and Chief Financial and Accounting OfficeAoithem, Inc. since July 2001. He has
been Executive Vice President and Chief Financféit&€ of Anthem Insurance since 1999. From 1996968, Mr. Smith served as Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Anican Health Network, Inc., a former Anthem sulzsigd He was Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of Mayflower Group, Iftransport company) from 1989 to 1995. He israador of First Indiana Corporation
(bank holding company) and Finishmaster, Inc. (@atiot distribution).

Marjorie W. Dorr became President of Anthem Eashily 2000. She has held numerous executive ppsiince joining Anthem Insurance
in 1991, including Vice President of Corporate Fice; Chief Financial Officer of Anthem Casualtyurence Group; President of Anthem
Prescription Management, LLC; and Chief Operatiffificer of Anthem Health Plans, Inc. in Connecticut.

Keith R. Faller has been President of Anthem Midwg@tce 1997. He has held numerous executive pasisince joining Anthem Insurance
in 1970, including Senior Vice President for CuséorAdministration; President of Acordia of the SguExecutive Vice President, Health
Operations; Chief Executive Officer, Anthem Lifestmance Companies, Inc.; and President and ChifuEive Officer, Acordia Small
Business Benefits, Inc.

Michael D. Houk has been President of National Awitse for Anthem Insurance since December 2001.ddehleld various executive
positions since joining Anthem Insurance in 197@|uding Vice President of Sales and PresidentGhiidf Executive Officer of Acordia of
Central Indiana.

Caroline S. Matthews became Chief Operating Offafeknthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield in Coloradd &levada in 2000. She has held
various executive positions since joining Anthersurance in 1988, including Vice President of Coap®iFinance; Vice President of Planr
and Administration for Information Technology; a@ief Operating Officer and Chief Financial OfficarAcordia of the South.

John M. Murphy became President, Specialty Busibégsion of Anthem Insurance in 2000. He has heldous executive positions since
joining Anthem Insurance in 1988, including ViceeBident of Operations of Anthem Insurance; Presided Chief Executive Officer (
Anthem Life Insurance Company; and President andf@xecutive Officer of Acordia Senior Benefitagcl

Jane E. Niederberger joined Anthem Insurance irY B3fl has been Senior Vice President and Chiefriréftion Officer since 1999. From
1983 to 1996, she held various executive positwitts Harvard Pilgrim Health Care.

The above information includes business experielucieg the past five years for each of the Compaeyécutive officers. Executive officers
of the Company serve at the discretion of the Be&irectors. There is no family relationship beem any of the Directors or executive
officers of the Company.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 1GHe€, foregoing information regarding executive dfig is included as an unnumbered Item
in Part | of this Annual Report in lieu of beingcinded in the Company's Proxy Statement for it22@0nual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS.
Market Prices

The Company's Common Stock, par value $0.01 peeshagan trading on the New York Stock Exchanbky'SE") under the symbol
"ATH" on October 30, 2001. The following table peass high and low sales prices for the Common Stocthe NYSE for the periods
indicated.

2001:

First Quarter..... N/A (1) N/A (1)
Second Quarter.... N/A (1) N/A (1)
Third Quarter..... N/A (1) N/A (1)
Fourth Quarter (2) $ 51.90 $ 40.35

(1) N/A--Not applicable.
(2) Commencing October 30, 2001.

As of March 4, 2002, the closing price of the ComnStock was $55.50. On March 4, 2002 there werg9@3shareholders of record of the
Common Stock.

Dividends

No cash dividends have been paid on our commoik stod our board of directors does not presentignidtto declare any such dividen

The declaration and payment of future dividends mélat the discretion of our board of directord amust comply with applicable law. Fut
dividend payments will depend upon our financiatdition, results of operations, future liquidityaus, potential acquisitions, regulatory and
capital requirements and other factors deemedaatdw our board of directors. In addition, we ateolding company whose primary asse
100% of the capital stock of Anthem Insurance. &hility to pay dividends to our shareholders priflgatepends upon the receipt of
dividends from Anthem Insurance and its receipdiefdends from our other regulated insurance suaseas.

In addition, the indenture governing the termsuf $.95% debentures issued as part of our 6.00%yE§acurity Units prohibits, with certe
limited exceptions, the payment of dividends on@amnmon stock during a deferral of interest paymentthe debentures or an event of
default under the indenture. We also have the ppbalefer contract fee payments on the purchaseasis that are also a part of our Unit
we elect to defer contract fee payments, we canvitt,certain limited exceptions, pay dividendsaur common stock during a deferral
period.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

Effective November 2, 2001, the Company issuecettai eligible statutory members of Anthem Insemd8,095,675 shares of the
Company's Common Stock in connection with the dealigation of Anthem Insurance. The number of shi#sued will ultimately vary
slightly when all distribution matters are finalizel'his transaction was exempt from the registratégjuirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, pursuant to Section 3(a)(1@®dhbased on the Indiana Insurance Commissiongpi®aal of the plan of conversion.

Use of Proceeds

On October 29, 2001, the Securities and Exchangen@ission declared effective (i) the Registratioat&mnent on Form $-(Registration Nc
333-67714) of the Company with respect to the CamjsaCommon Stock; and (ii) the Registration Statehon Form S-1 (Registration No.
333-70566) of the Company with respect to the Camise6.00% Equity Security Units (the "Units").dddition, on October 29, 2001, the
Company filed a Registration Statement on FormpBrsuant to Rule 462(b) of the Securities Act B33 9Registration No. 333-72438) to
increase the amount of the Common Stock offeringcvRegistration Statement was effective upondili
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The offering of the Common Stock closed on Noven#he2001 and resulted in gross proceeds of $1,981ldn (including $259.2 million
of gross proceeds attributable to the shares off@amStock sold pursuant to exercise of the undevgtiover-allotment option), of which
$91.4 million was applied to the underwriting disat The proceeds to the Company equaled $1,898i8rmOf such amount, $28.9 millic
was contributed to Anthem Insurance and $5.4 milkias been used to pay additional expenses ofdher@n Stock offering and the
demutualization. Of the resulting net proceedfitoGompany from the Common Stock offering, $1,843il8on has been used to fund
payments to eligible statutory members of Anthesutance who received cash instead of shares of @on®tock in the demutualization of
Anthem Insurance (including payments to eligibltibry members pursuant to the "top up provisifithe plan of conversion), and the
remaining net proceeds of $17.7 million retainedhi®yCompany will be available for general corperatirposes. In February 2002, $3.9
million of the $17.7 million remaining net proceeslas used for interest payments on the Units.

The offering of the Units closed on November 2,288d resulted in gross proceeds of $230.0 millieciuding $30.0 million of gross
proceeds attributable to the Units sold pursuaei&rcise of the underwriters' ovaietment option), $8.6 million of which was appmlito the
underwriting discount and $1.6 million for othepexses related to the Units offering. The net prdseo the Company equaled $219.8
million which was used to fund payments to eligibiatutory members of Anthem Insurance who recedasth instead of shares of Common
Stock in the demutualization of Anthem Insurance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfire data of the Company. The information has tisrived from the Company's
consolidated financial statements for each of #ery in the five year period ended December 311 ,200ich have been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP. This selected consolidated financiabdgttould be read in conjunction with the auditedsctidated financial statements and
notes and "Management's Discussion and Analydisnaincial Condition and Results of Operations"udeld herein.

As of and for the Year Ended Dece mber 31
2001  2000(1) 1999(1)(2) 1998 1997
($ in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

Income Statement Data
Total operating revenue.........cccoeeeeveeeeeeee $10,120.3 $8,543.5 $6,080.6 $5,389 .7 $5,110.0
Total revenues.......ccoccevvceveiiccieceeeeeee . 10,444.7 8,771.0 6,270.1 5,682 4 53322
Income from continuing operations........ccccoeee.. . .. 3422 226.0 509 178 4 79.1
Netincome (I0SS).....ccovvveieeiiiiiieeeiceeee 342.2  226.0 449 172 4 (159.0)
Pro Forma Per Share Data(3)
Basic income from continuing operations............ . ... $ 331% 219 $ 049 $ 1. 73 $ 077
Diluted income from continuing operations.......... ... 3.30 2.18 049 1. 72 0.76
Other Data-(unaudited)(4)
Operating revenue and premium equivalents(5)....... ... $14,057.4 $11,800.1 $8,691.6 $7,987 4 $7,269.3
Operating gain (10SS)....cccoocevvevviciieeaaeeee 3195 184.1 285 35 4 (82.2)
Benefit expense ratio.......ccoccevvcveeeeneeeee L 84.5% 84.7% 84.6% 83 0% 83.7%
Administrative expense ratio:

Calculated using operating revenue............... ... 19.6% 21.2% 24.2% 26 3% 26.6%

Calculated using operating revenue and premium e quivalents. 14.1% 15.3% 16.9% 17 8% 18.7%
Operating margin.......ccocceevvvcveeeesicieeeees 3.2% 2.2% 05% O 7% (1.6)%
Members (000S)(6)....cvvvveveeeeeeeieiiiiee

MIDWESE..cciviiviiiiceieeieeeee 4,854 4,454 4253 4,0 46 4,345

EaSt..iiiiiiiiiiiecce e 2,260 2,093 1,397 9 68 916

WESL i, 769 595 486 - -

L1017 | PP 7,883 7,142 6,136 5,0 14 5,261
Balance Sheet Data
Total @SSetS..ccoieiiiiiiieeiee e $6,276.6 $5,708.5 $4,816.2 $4,359 2 $4,131.9
Longtermdebt.....cccooovviviiiiiiiiiienes 818.0 5975 522.0 301 9 3057
Total shareholders' equity(7).......ccoovvccceeeee 2,060.0 1,919.8 1,660.9 1,702 5 1,524.7

(1) The net assets and results of operations f8B8H, BCBS-CO/NV and BCBS-ME are included fromithespective acquisition dates.
(2) The 1999 operating gain includes a non-recgreimarge of $41.9 million related to the settlensgreement with the Office of Inspector
General ("OIG"). Net Income for 1999 includes cdnitions totaling $114.1 million ($71.8 million, nef tax) to nonprofit foundations in th
states of Kentucky, Ohio and Connecticut to settlgritable asset claims.

(3) There were no shares or dilutive securitiestaniding prior to November 2, 2001 (date of denlizaion and initial public offering.) For
comparative pro forma earnings per share presentdtie weighted average shares outstanding areffdet of dilutive securities for the
period from November 2, 2001 to December 31, 2084 used to calculate pro forma earnings per sbam@lfperiods presented.

(4) Operating gain consists of operating revenas lenefit and administrative expenses. The bemgiinse ratio represents benefit expense
as a percentage of premium revenue. The adming&raxpense ratio represents administrative expassepercentage of operating revenue
and has also been presented as a percentage afiopeevenue and premium equivalents. Operatingimaepresents operating gain (loss)
as a percentage of operating revenue.

(5) Operating revenue and premium equivalentsnieasure of the volume of business serviced by trepgany that is commonly used in the
health benefits industry to allow for a compariedperating efficiency among companies. It is gilted by adding to premiums,
administrative fees and other revenue the amoudaghs attributable to non-Medicare, self-fundeglth business where the Company
provides a complete array of customer servicemdadministration and billing and enrollment seegicThe self-funded claims included for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999,dr898997 were $3,937.1, $3,256.6, $2,611.0, $Z75a7d $2,159.3, respectively.

(6) Excludes TRICARE members of 128,000, 129,000 ¥8,000 at December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998ectsely.

(7) Represents policyholders' surplus prior to 2001
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
INTRODUCTION

We are one of the nation's largest health benegitspanies and an independent licensee of the Blioes@lue Shield Association, or
BCBSA. We offer Blue Cross Blue Shield branded picid to nearly eight million members throughoutiémé, Kentucky, Ohio, Connectic
New Hampshire, Maine, Colorado and Neve

Our reportable segments are strategic business delineated by geographic areas within which vieraimilar products and services. We
manage our business units with a local focus toesddeach geographic region's unique market, reguland healthcare delivery
characteristics. Our segments are: Midwest, whicludes Indiana, Kentucky and Ohio; East, whicluides Connecticut, New Hampshire
and Maine; and West, which includes Colorado andaNa.

In addition to our three geographic segments, weaip a Specialty segment that includes busindsspnoviding group life and disability
insurance benefits, pharmacy benefit managementaldend vision administration services and thiadyp occupational health services. Our
Other segment is comprised of AdminaStar Fedenahém Alliance Health Insurance Company, or Anttfdhance, intersegment revenue
and expense eliminations and corporate expensesdlocated to reportable segments. AdminaStar Bédea subsidiary that administers
Medicare programs in Indiana, lllinois, Kentuckyda@hio. Anthem Alliance is a subsidiary that prifyaprovided health care benefits and
administration in nine states for the DepartmerDefense's TRICARE Program for military familiesibwve sold our TRICARE operations
on May 31, 2001.

We offer traditional indemnity products and a dsréed mix of managed care products, including thealaintenance organizations or HM!
preferred provider organizations or PPOs, and mafiservice or POS plans. We also provide a broeay@f managed care services and
partially insured products to self-funded employe@rsluding underwriting, stop loss insurance, adtl services, provider network access,
medical cost management, claims processing and atiministrative services. Our operating revenuesists of premiums, benefit plan
administrative fees and other revenue. The premionte from fully insured contracts where we inddgnaur policyholders against loss.
The administrative fees come from self-funded @ty where our contract holders are wholly or plytself-insured and from the
administration of Medicare programs. Other reveisygincipally generated by our pharmacy benefihaggement company in the form of co-
pays and deductibles associated with the sale bfortker drugs.

Our benefit expense consists mostly of four costané components:

outpatient and inpatient care costs, physicianscastl pharmacy benefit costs. All four componergsaffected both by unit costs and
utilization rates. Unit costs, for example, are ¢bst of outpatient medical procedures, inpati@spital stays, physician fees for office visits
and prescription drug prices. Utilization ratesresgnt the volume of consumption of health servasekvary with the age and health of our
members and broader social and lifestyle factotherpopulation as a whole.

Our results in 1999, 2000 and 2001 were signifiganpacted by the acquisitions of Blue Cross ahgeBShield of New Hampshire, or
BCBS-NH, which we completed on October 27, 1999eBTross and Blue Shield of Colorado and NevadBGBS-CO/NV, which we
completed on November 16, 1999, and Blue CrosBdumel Shield of Maine, or BCBS-ME, which we comptéten June 5, 2000. We
accounted for these acquisitions as purchases andoluded the net assets and results of operatiomsr consolidated financial statements
from the respective dates of purchase. The follgwepresents the contribution to our total revenapsrating gain, assets and membersh
the year of and subsequent to each acquisitiothéoyears ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
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As of and for the Year Ended D

2001

Total Operating (000s) Total
Revenues Gain Assets Members Revenues
(% in Millions)
BCBS-ME $948.1 $12.6 $307.6 504 $489.4

As of and for the Year End

2000

Total Operating (000s) Tot
Revenues Gain Assets Members Reve

(% in Million
BCBS-NH... $ 591.0 $11.6 $ 316.8 479 $7
BCBS-CO/NV 678.6 6.5 5458 595 7
BCBS-ME... 4894 8.7 339.5 487

Total..... $1,759.0 $26.8 $1,202.1 1,561 $15

ecember 31

Operating (000s)
Gain Assets Members

ed December 31

1999

al Operating (000s)
nues Loss Assets Members

7.9 $(0.3) $250.6 366
6.9 (3.4) 521.5 486

Operating gain consists of operating revenue lesgfit expense and administrative expense.

We sold our TRICARE operations on May 31, 2001. fdsults of our TRICARE operations are reportedinOther segment (for Anthem
Alliance), and in our Midwest business segmentciwlsissumed a portion of the TRICARE risk from May 998, to December 31, 2000. -
operating results for our TRICARE operations fo8202000 and 1999 were as follows and include twhAnthem Alliance and Midwest
business segment results:

2001 2000 1999

($ in Millions)
Operating Revenue $263.2 $353.9 $292.4

Operating Gain...$ 42$% 39% 5.1

On May 30, 2001, we signed a definitive agreemétit Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Kansas, or BCBS-gursuant to which BCBS-KS
would become a wholly owned subsidiary. Under tfteppsed transaction, BCBS-KS would demutualize@mert to a stock insurance
company. The agreement calls for us to pay $19@l@min exchange for all of the shares of BCBS-K&h February 11, 2002, the Kansas
Insurance Commissioner disapproved the proposadacsion, which had been previously approved byBIBBSKS policyholders in Janua
2002. On February 19, 2002, the board of direatbBCBS-KS voted unanimously to appeal the Kaneaarance Commissioner's decision
and BCBS-KS will seek to have the decision oveedrim Shawnee County District Court. We will joi€BS-KS in the appeal.

You should read this discussion in conjunction vaitin audited consolidated financial statementsawdmpanying notes presented on pages
59 through 87.
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MEMBERSHIP--YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2000

We categorize our membership into eight differarstomer types: Local Large Group, Small Group,\itlial, National, Medicare + Choice,
Federal Employee Program, Medicaid and TRICARE.

. Local Large Group consists of those customers &/t or more eligible employees, which are not mered National accounts.
. Small Group consists of those customers withtor#® employees.
. Individual members include those in our under @géusiness and our Medicare Supplement (age d5aar) business.

. Our National accounts customers are employerggonhich have multi-state locations and requiréngaing with other Blue Cross and
Blue Shield plans for administration and/or acdesson-Anthem provider networks. Included withie tNational business are our BlueCard
customers who represent enrollees of health plar&eted by other Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plant)e home plans, who receive health
care services in our Blue Cross and Blue Shiekhbed markets.

. Medicare + Choice members have enrolled in cgesdhat are managed care alternatives for theddetlprogram.

. The Federal Employee Program, or FEP, providafttha&surance coverage to United States governemaptoyees and their dependents.
Our FEP members work in Anthem markets and areredvay this program.

. Medicaid membership represents eligible membéts state sponsored managed care alternativeg iMédicaid program which we
manage for the states of Connecticut and New Haimgpsh

. Our TRICARE program provided managed care sesvigactive and retired military personnel andrtdependents. We sold our TRICA|
business on May 31, 2001, and thus we had no TREEARmMbers as of December 31, 2001. At Decembe2(, our TRICARE
membership totaled 128,000, was fully insured actuded in the Midwest segment.

Our BlueCard membership is calculated based oarntmunt of BlueCard administrative fees we receigenfthe BlueCard members' home
plans. Generally, the administrative fees we raxzaie based on the number and type of claims wedemnd a portion of the network
discount on those claims. The administrative feedfzen divided by an assumed per member per mon®IMPM, factor to calculate the
number of members. The assumed PMPM factor is barsedh estimate of our experience and BCBSA guidsli

In addition to categorizing our membership by casotype, we categorize membership by funding gearent according to the level of risk
we assume in the product contract. Our two fundimgngement categories are fully insured and selfiéd. Self-funded products are offered
to customers, generally larger employers, withathiéity and desire to retain some or all of th&@ssociated with their employees' health
costs.

The renewal patterns of our membership are somesyieéical throughout the year. Typically, approxiels 37% of our group fully insured
business renews during the first quarter and ajpietely 30% renews during the third quarter. Theamder of our membership renewals
are evenly distributed over the other two quarters.
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The following table presents our membership coyrddgment, customer type and funding arrangemenit @ecember 31, 2001 and 2000.
The membership data presented are unaudited ardtain instances include our estimates of the murabmembers represented by each
contract at the end of the period, rounded to #aest thousand.

Membership

December 31

2001 2000 Change % C hange
(In Thousands)
Segment
Midwest.................. 4,854 4,582 272 6%
East.......ccccocen 2,260 2,093 167 8
West.......ooovevnenne 769 595 174 29
Total......c........ 7,883 7,270 613 8%
Customer Type
Local Large Group........ 2,827 2,634 193 7%
Small Group.............. 813 775 38 5
Individual............... 701 650 51 8
National accounts (1).... 2,903 2,468 435 18
Medicare + Choice........ 97 106 (9) (8)
Federal Employee Program. 423 407 16 4
Medicaid................. 119 102 17 17
Total without TRICARE.... 7,883 7,142 741 10
TRICARE.........ccoeee. - 128 (128) (1 00)
Total................ 7,883 7,270 613 8%
Funding Arrangement
Self-funded.............. 4,052 3,481 571 16%
Fully insured............ 3,831 3,789 42 1
Total............... 7,883 7,270 613 8%

(1) Includes BlueCard members of 1,626 as of Deer@h, 2001, and 1,320 as of December 31, 2000.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, total neeshiip increased 613,000, or 8%, primarily duertaswgh in National business and Lo
Large Group, including a significant increase in&Tard membership as a result of strong salestgaivd favorable retention. Excluding
TRICARE, membership increased 741,000, or 10%. Libasge Group membership increased 193,000, onivith,growth in all regions
attributable to the success of our PPO productsyas employer groups desire the broad, open ateeas networks provided by these
products. The 38,000, or 5%, growth in Small Grbupiness reflects our initiatives to increase S@atlup membership through revised
commission structures, enhanced product offeriogs)d promotion and enhanced relationships witkdmo

Medicare + Choice membership decreased as we withfiom the Medicare + Choice program in Connettitective January 1, 2001, due
to losses in this line of business in that markéDecember 31, 2000, our Medicare + Choice mentfiyeiis Connecticut totaled 18,000. W
such small membership, we concluded that attaipiogjtability in this program would be difficult. f&etting this decrease was growth in our
Medicare + Choice membership in certain countiedhin, where many competitors have left the maiketying us as one of the few
remaining companies offering this product. We deditb remain in these counties in Ohio becauseealieve we have a critical mass of
membership and can continue to achieve improvadtse$Ve withdrew, effective on January 1, 2008nfrthe Medicare + Choice market in
Colorado due to low membership in this market. Medicare + Choice membership in Colorado was 6@ecember 31, 2001.
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Individual membership increased primarily due tavfrisiness resulting from higher sales of Individuader age 65) products, particularly

in our Midwest segment.

Self-funded membership increased primarily dueuio23% increase in BlueCard membership. Fully iasdumembership, excluding
TRICARE, grew by 170,000 members, or 5%, from Deoen31, 2000, due to growth in both Local Large &nthll Group businesses.

Our Midwest and West membership grew primarily frimcreases in BlueCard activity, Local Large Graumgl National accounts. Our East
membership growth is attributed to increased safi¢®cal Large Group and growth in BlueCard. Lolcatge Group sales in our East
segment increased primarily due to the withdravi@vo of our largest competitors from the New Hafips and Maine markets.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 COMPARED TO THE YEAR

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

The following table presents our consolidated tssofl operations for the years ended December(11 and 2000:

Operating revenue and premium equivalents (1).....

Premiums........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiee,
Administrative fees
Other revenue..........cccoeveveevieveneeeennnn.

Total operating revenue
Benefit expense..........ccoeveiiiinennns
Administrative expense

Total operating expense....................

Operating gainN........coooevvveviciviiiniieeenns

Net investment income..........cccocceeeeninnns

Net realized gains on investments.................

Gain on sale of subsidiary operations (TRICARE)...
INnterest eXpense.......cccvvvveciveeieeeereennnns
Amortization of intangibles....
Demutualization eXpenses...........cccccueeeeennee

Income before taxes and minority interest.........
INCOME taxXes........coevveiviiiiiiiiiiiieieees
Minority interest (credit)

Net iNCOMEe.......ccvvviiiiiiieeieeeeeee e

Benefit expense ratio (3).......cccocvveeernins
Administrative expense ratio: (5).................
Calculated using operating revenue (6).........
Calculated using operating revenue and premium
equivalents (7).....cccccveeeeiicineeennnne
Operating margin (8).........cccceveeriiieeeennne

Change
2001 2000 $ %
(% in Millions)
$14,057.4 $11,800.1 $2,257.3 19%
$9,244.8 $7,737.3 $1,507.5 19%
817.3 755.6 61.7 8
58.2 50.6 7.6 15
10,120.3 8,543.5 1,576.8 18
7,814.7 6,551.0 1,263.7 19
1,986.1 1,8084 177.7 10
9,800.8 8,359.4 1,441.4 17
319.5 184.1 135.4 74
238.6 201.6 37.0 18
60.8 259 34.9 NM(2)
25.0 - 250 NM(2)
60.2 54.7 55 10
315 27.1 4.4 16
27.6 - 276 NM(2)
5246 329.8 194.8 59
183.4 102.2 81.2 79
(1.0) 1.6 (2.6 NM(2)
$ 3422 $ 226.0 $ 116.2 51%
845%  84.7% (20) bp(4)
19.6%  21.2% (160) bp(4)
14.1%  15.3% (120) bp(4)
100 bp
3.2% 2.2% 4)

The following definitions are also applicable tbather tables and schedules in this discussion:

(1) Operating revenue and premium equivalentsniasure of the volume of business commonly uséukitmealth insurance industry to
allow for a comparison of operating efficiency arga@ompanies. It is obtained by adding to premiwsdsninistrative fees and other revenue
the amount of claims attributable to non-Medicaedf-funded health business where we provide a tetmprray of customer service, claims
administration and billing and enroliment servicElse self-funded claims included for the year enBedember 31, 2001 were $3,937.1

million and for the year ended December 31, 200e¥8,256.6 million.



(2) NM = Not meaningful.

(3) Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense / Puemsi

(4) bp = basis point; one hundred basis points = 1%

(5) While we include two calculations of adminisiva expense ratio, we believe that administragixpense ratio including premium
equivalents is a better measure of efficiency a$intinates changes in the ratio caused by changms mix of insured and self-funded
business. All discussions and explanations rel@ediministrative expense ratio will be relate@dmninistrative expense ratio including
premium equivalents.

(6) Administrative expense / Operating revenue.

(7) Administrative expense / Operating revenue @retnium equivalents.

(8) Operating margin = Operating gain / Total ofiagarevenue.

Premiums increased $1,507.5 million, or 19%, t@48.,8 million in 2001 in part due to our acquisitiof BCBS-ME in June 2000 and the
additional risk we recaptured as of January 1, 2884ociated with the TRICARE business. Our suasgidhnthem Alliance had retained 3!
of the risk on its TRICARE contract as of Januard00, and we increased the retention as of Jariy&001, to 90% of the total risk for the
contract. We sold the TRICARE business on May 8012 Excluding our acquisition of BCBS-ME and tladesof our TRICARE business,
premiums increased $1,089.5 million, or 15%, dupranium rate increases and higher membership of alr business segments. Our
Midwest premiums increased due to higher membemshippremium rate increases in our group accobot (ocal Large Group and Small
Group) and higher membership in Medicare + Chdng. East and West premiums increased primarilytdygemium rate increases and
higher membership in group business.

Administrative fees increased $61.7 million, or §6m $755.6 million in 2000 to $817.3 million A1, with $30.2 million of this increase
from our acquisition of BCBS-ME. Excluding our agsjtion of BCBS-ME and the sale of our TRICARE mess, administrative fees
increased $112.2 million, or 20%, primarily from migership growth in National account self-fundedibess. Excluding our acquisition of
BCBS-ME and the sale of our TRICARE business, oteeenue, which is comprised principally of co-paysl deductibles associated with
Anthem Prescription Management's, or APM's, salmaif order drugs, increased $12.1 million, or 27%8M is our pharmacy benefit
manager and provides its services to other Anthiéitiates. Mail order revenues increased primadlye to additional volume resulting from
the introduction of APM as the pharmacy benefit agar at BCBS-NH in late 2000 and BCBS-CO/NV and BABE in 2001.

Benefit expense increased $1,263.7 million, or 1822001 due to our acquisition of BCBS-ME and ddelitional risk assumed by Anthem
Alliance for TRICARE business on January 1, 2004cl&ding our acquisition of BCBS-ME and the saleaf TRICARE business, benefit
expense increased $888.6 million, or 15%, duedhdti average membership and increasing cost of Cast of care trends were driven
primarily by higher utilization of outpatient seceis and higher prescription drug costs. Our beagfiense ratio decreased 20 basis points
from 84.7% in 2000 to 84.5% in 2001 primarily doedtsciplined pricing, implementation of diseasenagement plans and improvement in
provider contracting. Excluding our acquisitionBEBS-ME and the sale of our TRICARE business, aurdfit expense ratio decreased 40
basis points from 84.3% in 2000 to 83.9% in 20Q1ilie same reasons.

Total cost of care for 2001 increased approximat886 from 2000. Excluding changes in our mix ofibass between regions, total cost of
care for 2001 increased approximately 12%. Outpatiad professional services cost increases haiedvamong regions and products. For
the year ended December 31, 2001, cost increaseggeacerally averaged from 14% to 15% for outpasenvices and from 11% to 12% for
professional services. These increases resultetbaih increased utilization and higher unit colststeased outpatient utilization reflects an
industry-wide trend toward a broader range of madgicocedures being performed without overnightpitatstays, as well as an increasing
customer awareness of and demand for diagnostiegures such as magnetic resonance imagings, o.MRaddition, improved medical
technology has allowed more complicated medicatqulares to be performed on an outpatient basisrrétthn on an inpatient (hospitalized)
basis, increasing both outpatient utilization rated unit costs.

Prescription drug cost increases for the year daaiong regions and by product, but have genesalyaged from 16% to 17% in 2001 over
2000. The cost increases resulted from the introgluof new, higher
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cost drugs and higher overall utilization as a ltesflincreases in direct-to-consumer advertisiggpharmaceutical companies. In response to
increasing prescription drug costs, we have impleetethree-tiered drug programs and expanded #efusrmularies for our members.
Three-tiered drug programs reflect benefit desthas have three co-payment levels which dependenitug selected. Generic drugs have
the lowest co-payment, brand name drugs includédemrug formulary have a higher co-payment, aiattd name drugs omitted from the
drug formulary have the highest co-payment. Drugifdaries are a list of prescription drugs thatéhbeen reviewed and selected for their
quality and efficacy by a committee of practicirtgypicians and clinical pharmacists. Through ourptaey benefit design, we encourage use
of these listed brand name and generic drugs taremsembers receive quality and cost-effective oagitin.

Growth in inpatient costs was nearly 10% during2Qfp from low-single digits in previous years. Ihicrease was due to re-negotiation of
provider contracts and higher overall utilizatipayticularly for cardiac services admissions. Htadpihave taken a more aggressive stance in
their contracting with health insurance companiea eesult of reduced hospital reimbursements fvtadicare and pressure to recover the
costs of additional investments in new medical etbgy and facilities.

Administrative expense increased $177.7 millionl@¥, in 2001, which includes the impacts of owguasition of BCBS-ME and the sale of
our TRICARE business. Excluding our acquisitiorB&fBS-ME and the sale of our TRICARE business, adstrative expense increased
$194.0 million, or 12%, primarily due to higher camssions and premium taxes, which vary with premibigher salary and benefit costs,
additional costs associated with higher memberahgbinvestments in technology. Our administratieemse ratio, calculated using
operating revenue and premium equivalents, deadeb&@ basis points primarily due to operating rexeimcreasing faster than administra
expense.

Net investment income increased $37.0 million, &l primarily due to our higher investment portidtialances. The higher portfo

balances included net cash generated from opesatignwvell as cash generated from improved balstmeet management, such as quicker
collection of receivables and liquidation of noragtgic assets. Excluding the investment incomeesaby BCBS-ME and TRICARE, net
investment income increased $31.7 million, or 18%returns on fixed maturity portfolios are depamden market interest rates and changes
in interest rates are unpredictable, there is m@icgy that past investment performance will bge@ted in the future.

Net realized capital gains increased from $25.%ignilin 2000 to $60.8 million in 2001. Includedriet realized capital gains in 2001 v

$65.2 million of gains resulting from restructuriagr equity portfolio into fixed maturity securisi@nd equity index funds in the early to mid
third quarter of 2001. This offset $28.9 millionlotses on equity securities that we recognizeattasr than temporary impairment during the
second quarter of 2001. Net realized capital giom sale of equities decreased $4.8 million, d¥lio $38.7 million in 2001 from $43.5
million in 2000. Net realized capital gains froniesaf fixed income securities were $20.7 million2@01, while we experienced net realized
capital losses of $17.6 million in 2000. Net gadndosses on investments are influenced by maikeditions when an investment is sold, and
will vary from year to year.

Gain on sale of subsidiary operations of $25.0iamiltelates to the sale of our TRICARE busines$/ay 31, 2001.

Interest expense increased $5.5 million, or 109mamily reflecting the issuance of our 6.00% EqBicurity Units, or Units, on November
2, 2001 and the commitment fee associated witmewr $800.0 million line of credit.

Amortization of intangibles increased $4.4 milli@m,16%, from 2000 to 2001, primarily due to anmation expense associated with our
acquisition of BCBS-ME. As we adopted SFAS 142 anuiry 1, 2002, this standard did not have anygeffe these results. See Note 1 to
our audited consolidated financial statements daliteonal information.

Demutualization expenses, which are non-recurtistgJed $27.6 million in 2001.
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Income tax expense increased $81.2 million, or 7@¥marily due to higher income before taxes. Cigctive income tax rate in 2001 was
35.0% and was 31.0% in 2000. Our rate was lowaer tha statutory effective tax rate in 2000 primasis a result of changes in our deferred
tax valuation allowance. Our effective tax rater@ased in 2001 primarily due to the non-deductibdf demutualization expenses and a
portion of goodwill amortization for income tax jpases.

Net income increased $116.2 million, or 51%, prilgatue to the improvement in our operating resuits realized capital gains, gain on ¢
of subsidiary operations and higher investmentrmeoExcluding the gain on the sale of our TRICAREibess ($16.3 million after tax), net
realized gains on investments and demutualizatiperses, net income increased $105.0 million, 86.51

Midwest

Our Midwest segment is comprised of health bemefit related business for members in Indiana, Ké&gtand Ohio. The following table
presents our Midwest segment's summarized reduttgesations for the years ended December 31, 26612000:

2001 2000 % Ch ange
($ in Millions)
Operating Revenue... $5,093.0 $4,460.5 14%
Operating Gain...... $ 1615 $ 87.8 84%
Operating Margin.... 3.2% 2.0% 120 bp
Membership (in 000s) 4,854 4,454(1) 9%

(1) Excludes 128,000 TRICARE members.

Operating revenue increased $632.5 million, or 1492001 due primarily to premium rate increases the effect of higher average
membership in our Local Large Group, Small Groug Etedicare + Choice businesses.

Operating gain increased $73.7 million, or 84%ulti®y in an operating margin of 3.2% at Decembkr2)01, a 120 basis point
improvement from the year ended December 31, ZDKi8.improvement was primarily due to revenue gloand effective expense control.
Administrative expense increased at a slower r&e premiums as we gained operating efficienciddereraged our fixed costs over higher
membership.

Our Midwest segment assumed a portion of the osldhthem Alliance's TRICARE contract until Decemi3&, 2000. Effective January 1,
2001, Anthem Alliance reassumed this risk. Forytbar ended December 31, 2000, our Midwest segreeaived $122.1 million of premium
income, no administrative fees or other incomeyiired $113.8 million of benefit expense and $7 Hioni of administrative expense,
resulting in a $0.9 million operating gain on thRICARE contract. We also had 128,000 TRICARE memlieeluded in our Midwest
segment's membership at December 31, 2000, ancenhers at December 31, 2001.

Excluding TRICARE, membership increased 400,00®%r to 4.9 million members, primarily due to safeslational business, higher
BlueCard activity and favorable retention of busie

East

Our East segment is comprised of health benefitraladed business for members in Connecticut, Newpkhire and Maine. The following
table presents our East segment's summarizedseduperations for the years ended December 31, 26d 2000. BCBS-ME is included
from its acquisition date of June 5, 2000.

2001 2000 % Change

($ in Millions)
Operating Revenue... $3,667.3 $2,921.9 26%
Operating Gain...... $ 128.8 $ 103.8 24%
Operating Margin.... 3.5%  3.6% (10) bp
Membership (in 000s) 2,260 2,093 8%
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Operating revenue increased $745.4 million, or 26%&luding our acquisition of BCBS-ME in June 2G4 the effect of our exit from the

Medicare + Choice business in Connecticut on Jgnlia?001, operating revenue increased $449.0amjllbr 20%, in 2001 due to premium
rate increases in group business and higher avemageership. Increases in group membership acaddimtenost of our increase and were
primarily in our Local Large Group business.

Operating gain increased $25.0 million, or 24%mavily due to improved underwriting results in Sh@oup and Local Large Group
businesses, exiting the Medicare + Choice mark&annecticut, and higher overall membership. Opgganhargin decreased 10 basis points
primarily due to the relatively lower margins orr ddiaine business.

Membership increased 167,000, or 8%, primarily acél Large Group and BlueCard businesses.

On January 17, 2002, a subsidiary of Anthem InsteaAnthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc., signedalspurchase agreement to purchase
the remaining 50% ownership interest in Maine RadrHealth Plan, Inc. for an aggregate purchase pffi$10.6 million. Subject to the ter
and conditions of the agreement, the transactiexpected to close in the first quarter of 2002.

West

Our West segment is comprised of health benefitraleded business for members in Colorado and NevEtk following table presents our
West segment's summarized results of operatiorthéoyears ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue... $774.4 $622.4 24%
Operating Gain...... $20.1 $ 25 704%
Operating Margin.... 2.6% 0.4% 220 bp
Membership (in 000s) 769 595 29%

Operating revenue increased $152.0 million, or 2géarily due to higher premium rates designelring our pricing in line with cost of
care and higher membership in National and botlalLbarge Group and Small Group businesses.

Operating gain increased $17.6 million, to $20.Miom in 2001, primarily due to improved underwnigj performance as a result of premium
rate increases exceeding cost of care increasesiginer average membership, particularly in ourdld@rge Group business. This
improvement in our operating gain resulted in a Ba6is point increase in operating margin to 2.6%001.

Membership increased 174,000, or 29%, to 769,000 td increased BlueCard activity and higher salé®cal Large Group and Small
Group businesses. We exited the Medicare + Choarehin Colorado effective January 1, 2002. At@&uaber 31, 2001, our Medicare +
Choice membership in Colorado was approximatel@@,WWe expect no material effect on operating teftbm exiting this market.

We entered into an agreement with Sloan's Lake HiMColorado for the conversion of Sloan's Lake HB@iness effective January 1,
2001. The terms of the agreement include payme8idan's Lake for each member selecting our proaluttte group's renewal date and
continuing as our member for a minimum of nine rhenThrough December 31, 2001, we added approxiyzBe000 members from Sloa
Lake.
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Specialty

Our Specialty segment includes our group life aisdldlity, pharmacy benefit management, dentahasidn administration services, and
third party occupational health services. The fweltg table presents our Specialty segment's sumaethriesults of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000 9% Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue $396.1 $332.3 19%
Operating Gain... $32.9 $24.9 32%
Operating Margin.  8.3% 7.5% 80 bp

Operating revenue increased $63.8 million, or 1Pftnarily due to higher revenue at APM. APM's opieigarevenue grew primarily due to
increased mail order prescription volume and thglémentation of APM's pharmacy benefit programsrb@gg in 2001 by BCBS-CO/NV
and BCBS-ME, and in late 2000 by BCB&1. Mail service membership increased 28%, whitaitservice membership decreased 13%.
service prescription volume increased 38% andIngtascription volume increased 31%. This growthrertbhan offset the effect of the
termination of a special funding arrangement witarge life group on December 31, 2000. Life arghHility premiums decreased $28.8
million, or 23%, primarily due to this terminatiofhis group accounted for $35.9 million of life agidability premiums for 2000 and
contributed very low margins to our Specialty segtiseprofitability.

Operating gain increased $8.0 million, or 32%, prily due to increased mail order prescription weduat APM. Improved APM results,
coupled with the termination of the large life gpowesulted in an 80 basis point increase in oeratgmg margin to 8.3%.

Other

Our Other segment includes various ancillary bussinaits such as AdminaStar Federal, a subsidiatyadministers Medicare Parts A and B
programs in Indiana, lllinois, Kentucky and OhiagaAnthem Alliance, a subsidiary that provided hiealth care benefits and administration
in nine states for active and retired military eaygles and their dependents under the Departm@&@ufehse's TRICARE program for milita
families until our TRICARE business was sold on MHdy 2001. Our Other segment also includes intensaegj revenue and expense
eliminations and corporate expenses not allocategérating segments. The following table presgr@summarized results of operations for
our Other segment for the years ended Decembe&0B1L, and 2000:

2001 2000 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue $189.5 $206.4 (8)%
Operating Loss... $(23.8) $(34.9) 32%

Operating revenue decreased $16.9 million, or 8%%$.189.5 million in 2001. Excluding intersegmenengiing revenue eliminations of
$214.0 million in 2001 and $151.7 million in 20@perating revenue increased $42.6 million, or 1@ftnarily due to an increase in
premiums resulting from the additional risk assurasa@f January 1, 2001, by our TRICARE operaticfsite its sale on May 31, 2001.

Certain corporate expenses are not allocated tbuginess segments. These unallocated expensesmtatdor $33.0 million in 2001 and
$39.9 million in 2000, and primarily included suitdms as unallocated incentive compensation ageacwith better than expected
performance. Excluding unallocated corporate exggnsperating gain was $9.2 million in 2001 ve&hi® million in 2000.
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MEMBERSHIP--YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Our membership data presented below are unaudittthaertain instances include our estimates ®fhilimber of members at the end of the
period rounded to the nearest thousand.

The following table presents membership data bynesg, customer type and funding arrangement asoéMber 31, 2000 and 1999,
comparing both total and same-store membershiprmidrabership data presented are unaudited andtaircerstances include our estimates
of the number of members represented by each abmtréhe end of the period, rounded to the nedinestsand. We define same-store
membership as our membership at a given year-ead@yment or for a particular customer or fundypg, after excluding the impact of
members obtained through acquisitions or combinatiuring such year. As such, we believe that sstore-membership data best captures
the rate of organic growth of our operations yearqyear.

Membership

Same Total Same Store

Total BCBS-ME Stor
2000 Acquisition 2000

e Total --------- ----------
1999 Change % Change %

Segment
Midwest...........c...... 4582 -- 4,558 24,382 200 5% 200 5%
2,093 487 1,60 61,397 696 50 209 15
595 - 59 5 486 109 22 109 22
Total.....cceeeneee. 7,270 487 6,78 36,265 1,005 16% 518 8%

Customer Type

Local Large Group........ 2,634 278 2,35 62,249 385 17% 107 5%

Small Group.............. 775 62 71 3 637 138 22 76 12
Individual............... 650 84 56 6 586 64 11 (20) (3)
National accounts (1).... 2,468 32 2,43 62,106 362 17 330 16
Medicare + Choice........ 106 - 10 6 96 10 10 10 10

Federal Employee Program. 407 31 37 6 362 45 12 14 4

Medicaid................. 102 - 10

2 100 2 2 2 2

Total without TRICARE.... 7,142 487 6,65
TRICARE.........c...... 128 - 12

56,136 1,006 16 519 8
8 129 ()(1) (1) ()

Total................ 7,270 487 6,78

36,265 1,005 16% 518 8%

Funding Type

Fully insured............ 3,789 360 3,42 93,354 435 13% 75 2%
Self-funded.............. 3,481 127 3,35 42911 570 20 443 15
Total................ 7,270 487 6,78 36,265 1,005 16% 518 8%

(1) Includes BlueCard members of 1,320 as of Deegr@h, 2000, and 974 as of December 31, 1999.

Same-store membership increased 518,000, or 8%, X899 to 2000, primarily due to growth in Natiobakiness, including a significant
increase in enrollment in BlueCard programs. Th@0®, or 12%, growth in Small Group business in@@lects our initiatives to increase
Small Group membership, including revised commissiouctures, product offerings, brand promotiod anhanced relationships with our
brokers.

Medicare + Choice membership increased mostly dggdwth in Ohio, where many competitors havetleft market and we are one of the
few remaining companies offering this product. Veided to remain in selected markets for Medica@heice in Ohio because we believe
that with a critical mass of membership in thosekats we can achieve satisfactory results. We wétlvdrom the Medicare + Choice
program in Connecticut effective January 1, 20Qk @ losses in this line of business. At Decenie2000, membership in the Medicare +
Choice program in Connecticut was 18,000.
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Individual membership dropped primarily due to duion in Medicare Supplement business in our Mistwegion. This block of business,
which has traditionally generated high profit maggiis shrinking due to terminations of grandfagidgpolicies, primarily mortality related,
exceeding new sales. Effective on January 1, 1i9@2Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, MiSCthen known as the Health Care
Financing Administration, or HCFA, required thatwnsales of Medicare Supplement coverages be sdlekiform of one of 10 standardized
policies, while persons with existing Medicare Seppent coverages could retain their existing Medicaupplement products, which
generally had higher profit margins than the needprcts. Since that time, our Medicare Supplememhbeeship has, through terminations of
grandfathered policies and sales of new policiescied the point where at December 31, 2000, ajppataly 50% of our Medicare
Supplement membership in the Midwest was in theptdds and 50% in the new plans. During 2001, wedluced a line of competitive
Medicare Supplement policies in the Midwest to ioy@r the growth of this business and we modifiedptfieemium rate structures to improve
the attractiveness of these products in the madaep

Self-funded membership increased in 2000 primatilg to the increase in BlueCard membership, whilg insured membership grew
primarily as a result of the growth in our Smalb@p membership sales.

Our Midwest membership grew in 2000 primarily fréme growth in BlueCard membership discussed adaeal Large Group and National
accounts sales. Our East membership grew primduigyto increased sales of Small Group and growBlueCard. Small Group sales in our
East segment increased primarily due to the withdlaf two of our largest competitors from the Nelampshire market. Our West
membership growth was primarily due to higher BlasCmembership.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER

31, 1999

The following table presents our consolidated tssofl operations for the years ended December@1) and 1999:

Operating revenue and premium equivalents (1)......

Premiums.............
Administrative fees.......cccccccvveeeiiiiiiinnn,
Other reVeNUE.........cevvveeeeeieiieiecciiiis

Total operating revenue..............cccceveeee.
Benefit expense.................
Administrative expense

Total operating eXpense..........cccceueeeeeeens

Operating gain........coeeeeeeriveeeeiiiieeeeene

Net investment income...........cccccveveennnen.
Net realized gains on investments..................
Interest expense..........ccccvvveeveeeeenn.
Amortization of intangibles
Endowment of non-profit foundations................

Income from continuing operations before taxes and
interest

Income taxes

Minority interest (credit)

Income from continuing operations..................
Discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations.....

Net inComMe........ccoovveiiiiiieeeieeeeeeee,

Benefit expense ratio.............ccccvvvvrennnnns
Administrative expense ratio:
Calculated using operating revenue..............
Calculated using operating revenue and premium e
Operating margin........cccccceeeeeeeeeerenennnnns

(1) Self-funded claims included for the year enBettember 31, 2000, were $3,256.6 million and ferytear ended December 31,1999, were

$2,611.0 million.

2000 1999 $ %

($ in Millions)
........... $11,800.1 $8,691.6 $3,108.5 36%

...$7,737.3 $54185 $2,318.8 43%
. 7556 6111 1445 24
........... 506 51.0 (0.4) (1)
6,080.6 2,462.9 41
45827 19683 43
1,469.4 339.0 23

6,052.1 2,307.3 38

........... 184.1 285 1556 NM
........... 201.6 1520 49.6 33

259 375 (11.6) (31)
547 304 243 80
e 271 127 144 113
........... —~ 1141 (114.1) (100)

minority

329.8 60.8 269.0 NM
102.2 102 920 NM
16 (03) 19 NM

........... 226.0 509 1751 NM

........... ~ (6.0) 6.0 NM

........... $ 226.0 $ 449 $ 181.1 NM

........... 84.7% 84.6% 10
........... 21.2% 24.2% (300)
quivalents 15.3% 16.9% (160)
........... 22% 0.5% 170
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Premiums increased by $2,318.8 million, or 43%$#37.3 million in 2000 primarily due to our acsjtions of BCBS-NH and BCBS-
CO/NV in the fourth quarter of 1999 and BCBS-MEJume 2000. Excluding these acquisitions, premiumaeased by $870.5 million, or
16%, primarily due to premium rate increases agtiéri membership in our Midwest and East segmentsMidwest premiums increased
$473.8 million, or 13%, while our East premiumsreased $353.4 million, or 25%. Midwest premiumséased primarily due to higher
membership and premium rate increases in our gaoapunts (both Local Large Group and Small Group)) ligher membership in Medici
+ Choice. East premiums increased primarily dygrémium rate increases and higher membership impgbasiness, as well as the
conversion of the State of Connecticut accountily fnsured from self-funded status in mid-1999.

Administrative fees increased $144.5 million, o#@4rom $611.1 million in 1999 to $755.6 million 2000, with $135.3 million of this
increase resulting from our acquisitions of BCBS;M#CBS-CO/NV and BCBS-ME. In July 1999, we sold taan-strategic businesses
which had combined 1999 revenues of $12.8 milliexcluding these acquisitions and divestitures, adstrative fees increased $20.6
million, or 3%, primarily from membership growth National account business. Excluding these adiprisiand divestitures, other revenue
increased $6.0 million, or 14%, primarily due totAem Alliance assuming additional administrativediions under the TRICARE program.

Benefit expense increased $1,968.3 million, or 4822000, primarily due to acquisitions. Excludiogr acquisitions, benefit expense
increased $729.9 million, or 16%, due to increasiost of care and the effect of higher average negshiip throughout the year. Cost of care
trends were driven primarily by higher utilizatiohoutpatient services and higher prescription drogts. Our benefit expense ratio increased
10 basis points from 84.6% in 1999 to 84.7% in 20808 to our acquisition of BCBS-ME in 2000, whickdha higher benefit expense ratio
than our other operations. Excluding acquisitians, benefit expense ratio remained constant at84n62000 and 1999.

Outpatient cost increases in our segments ranget 5% to 20% in 2000 over 1999. These increases tegulted from both increased
utilization and higher unit costs. Increased ougpdtutilization reflects an industry-wide trendvard a broader range of medical procedures
being performed without overnight hospital stayswell as an increasing customer awareness of améuad for diagnostic procedures such
as MRIs. In addition, improved medical technologsg lallowed more complicated medical procedure® tpdsformed on an outpatient basis
rather than on an inpatient (hospitalized) basisigasing both outpatient utilization rates and costs.

Prescription drug cost increases have varied amegigns and by product, but generally ranged fr@¥ 1o 20% in 2000 over 1999,
primarily due to introduction of new, higher costigs as well as higher overall utilization as ailesf increases in direct-to-consumer
advertising by pharmaceutical companies. In respéméncreasing prescription drug costs, we impleiee a three-tiered drug program and
expanded the use of formularies for our members.

Administrative expense increased $339.0 million28%o, in 2000, primarily due to our acquisitiondB&BS-NH, BCBS-CO/NV and BCBS-
ME. Administrative expense in 1999 included $41i8iom resulting from our settlement with the Oiof Inspector General, or OIG, Health
and Human Services to resolve an investigationafitged misconduct in the Medicare fiscal interragdoperations in Connecticut during
periods preceding Blue Cross and Blue Shield ofr@oticut's, or BCBS-CT's, merger with Anthem. Exlihg acquisitions and the effect of
the OIG settlement, administrative expense incek&36&.6 million, or 5%, primarily due to higher conssions and premium taxes, which
vary with premium and higher incentive compensatiosts. Additionally, in December 2000, we mad@@.& million contribution to

Anthem Foundation, Inc., which is a charitable eddcational not-foprofit corporation. Excluding these costs, admmaiste expense woul
have been down slightly in 2000 due to productiuitypyrovements resulting from our ongoing effortsdentify and implement more efficient
processes in our customer service and claims opesat
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Our administrative expense ratio decreased 168 Ipagnts primarily due to operating revenues ingirgafaster than administrative expense.
Excluding acquisitions and the effect of the Ol@lement, our administrative expense ratio wouldehdecreased 120 basis points.

Net investment income increased $49.6 million, 3%63 primarily due to higher rates of investmentines earned on our fixed incor
portfolio and higher portfolio balances. The higpertfolio balances included net cash resultingfilacquisitions, net proceeds of $295.9
million from our surplus note issuance in Janud9® as well as cash generated from operation$randimproved balance sheet
management, such as quicker collection of recedgabhd sales of non-core assets. Excluding adgussitnet investment income increased
$24.9 million, or 17%.

Net realized capital gains decreased $11.6 milkor81%, in 2000. Included in net realized cap@hs in 1999 are capital losses of $Z
million related to our sale of several non-coreibesses. Excluding the effect of the capital logsedispositions, net realized capital gains
decreased $32.1 million, or 55%, primarily duedwér turnover in our portfolio resulting in feweapital gains. Net realized capital gains
from sale of equities decreased 37% to $43.5 milin2000 from $69.3 million in 1999. Net realizeabital losses from sale of fixed income
securities increased 56% to a $17.6 million los0dA0 from a $11.3 million loss in 1999. Net gadndosses on investments are influence:
market conditions when we sell an investment, aiidsary from year to year as sales of investmeamtsdetermined by our cash flow needs,
as well as our portfolio allocation decisions.

Interest expense increased $24.3 million, or 80%narily reflecting increased net borrowings folliog our private placement of $300.0
million principal amount of surplus notes in Janyu2000. The proceeds of those surplus notes wex tasretire shorterm borrowings whic
had been incurred to finance our purchases of BABSxnd BCBS-CO/NV in late 1999 and to bolster lijtyi as a part of our Year 2000
readiness effort.

Amortization of intangibles increased $14.4 milliam 113%, primarily due to amortization of goodwissociated with our acquisitions of
BCBS-NH, BCBS-CO/NV and BCBS-ME.

The payment to noprofit foundations of $114.1 million in 1999 repeesed our settlement of charitable asset claimgdiroby the Attorney
General of the states of Ohio, Kentucky and Cornoetct

Income before taxes and minority interest incre&289.0 million as a result of improvement in opemting results in all business segme
partially offset by the non-recurring endowmennoh-profit foundations during 1999.

Income tax expense increased $92.0 million duedioen income before taxes. Our effective incomergag in 2000 was 31.0% and in 1999
was 16.7%. These rates were lower than the stgtafactive tax rate in both periods primarily aseault of changes in our deferred tax
valuation allowance.

Excluding the after-tax effect of payments to rprnfit foundations in 1999, net income increased%%2 million, or 94%, primarily due to o
improvement in operating results, acquisitions higther investment income.

Midwest

Our Midwest segment is comprised of health berefit related business for members in Indiana, Kégtand Ohio. The following table
presents our Midwest segment's summarized redutigesations for the years ended December 31, 2660L999:

2000 1999 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue... $4,460.5 $3,975.5 12%
Operating Gain...... $ 878 $ 36.4 141%
Operating Margin.... 20% 0.9% 110bp
Membership (in 000s) 4,582 4,382 5%
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Operating revenue increased $485.0 million, or 1292000 primarily due to premium rate increasegroup (both Local Large Group and
Small Group) and Medicare + Choice businessesttandffect of higher average membership througtieuyear. Medicare + Choice
premium rates increased due to both the aging oingured Medicare + Choice population in 2000 arg% rate increase from CMS at the
beginning of 2000. We receive higher premiums flOMS as our Medicare + Choice population ages. Medie- Choice membership
increased 28% due to reduced competition in the @tarketplace as a result of competitors discomtgtheir participation in the Medicare
+ Choice product.

Operating gain increased $51.4 million, or 141%uléng in an operating margin of 2.0%, a 110 bpsisit improvement from the year enc
December 31, 1999. Operating gain increased priynduie to our growth in premiums and improved umd#ing results.

Membership increased 5% to 4.6 million membersnarily due to growth in our National, BlueCard dratal Large Group businesses.
East

Our East segment is comprised of health benefitraladed business for members in Connecticut, Nemptshire and Maine. The following
table presents our East segment's summarizedsedudperations for the years ended December 3 26d 1999. BCBS-NH is included
from its October 27, 1999, acquisition date and BEMBE is included from its acquisition date of J&n&000.

2000 1999 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue.... $2,921.9 $1,598.9 83%
Operating Gain (Loss) $ 103.8 $ (0.9) NM
Operating Margin..... 3.6% (0.1)% 370bp
Membership (in 000s). 2,093 1,397 50%

Operating revenue increased $1,323.0 million, 868@rimarily due to an increase in premiums, résglfrom our acquisitions of BCBS-NH
in October 1999 and BCBS-ME in June 2000 and tm@aion of the State of Connecticut account fretfifsinded to fully insured status in
July 1999. Due to the State of Connecticut's cagimar 2000 included a full year of premiums versianonths of premiums (July through
December) in 1999. For the first six months of 1,988 recorded administrative fee income for thaeSed Connecticut account. Excluding
the effect of acquisitions and the conversion ef$tate of Connecticut account, premiums incre&488.7 million, or 12%, in 2000 due to
premium rate increases in our group business ajttehaverage membership.

Operating gain increased $104.7 million and ouraipeg margin increased 370 basis points as threeedf disciplined pricing, expense
control and membership growth all contributed ® ithprovement in operating earnings. Additionadlgiministrative expense in 1999
included $41.9 million resulting from our settlenevith the OIG, Health and Human Services to rese@lm investigation into alleged
misconduct in the Medicare fiscal intermediary @pens in Connecticut during periods preceding B&BISs merger with Anthem.

Membership increased 50% to 2.1 million in 2000n@niilly due to our acquisition of BCBS-ME and growrtboth our Local Large Group
and Small Group and our National businesses. Exgjualir acquisition of BCBS-ME, membership grew 15%
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West

Our West segment is comprised of health benefitraleded business for members in Colorado and Neweattl it was established following
our acquisition of BCBS-CO/NV on November 16, 19B@sults of this segment have been included irconsolidated results from that date
forward. Accordingly, our 1999 results include appmately one and onkealf months of activity, while our 2000 resultslumbe 12 months ¢
activity. The following table presents our Westrsegt's summarized results of operations for thesyeaded December 31, 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue.... $622.4 $72.7 NM
Operating Gain (Loss) $ 2.5 $(3.5) NM
Operating Margin..... 0.4% (4.8)% 520 bp
Membership (in 000s). 595 486 22%

Operating results in our West segment improvedip02 primarily due to reduced administrative exjgess a result of integration savings
cost reduction programs as well as higher membgr3ihiese cost reduction programs included redutzdfing levels and improved
productivity in customer service and claims operagi

Our membership increased 22% due to higher satbbetiter retention of business, which was the teguinproved customer service and a
more comprehensive product portfolio.

Specialty

Our Specialty segment includes our group life aisalality, pharmacy benefit management, dentalasion administration services and
third party occupational health services operatidie following table presents our Specialty segteesummarized results of operations for
the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue $332.3 $249.1 33%
Operating Gain... $24.9 $16.2 54%
Operating Margin. 7.5% 6.5% 100 bp

Operating revenue increased $83.2 million, or 3@ftnarily due to an increase in life and disabifigmiums resulting from our acquisition
of Rocky Mountain Life, or RML, an affiliate of BCBCO/NV, higher life sales in our Midwest regiordancreased administrative fees due
to our acquisitions of Occupational Healthcare Mpamaent Services, Inc., a worker's compensatiod ffarty administration company, and
Health Management Systems, Inc., a dental berthfits party administration company, both subsidismf BCBS-CO/NV. Additionally,
other revenue increased primarily from APM. In 208BM began to provide pharmacy benefit managemsenices to both BCBS-NH and
Anthem Alliance. APM's revenues also increasedtduegher mail and retail prescription volumesiirelwith increased membership and
utilization. Mail service membership increased 2696le retail service membership increased 80%. IgiVice prescription volume
increased 15% and retail prescription volume ireeda39%.

Operating gain increased $8.7 million, or 54%, wliiperating margin increased 100 basis points5% Tn 2000, primarily due to improved
underwriting results from our life and disabilityggucts and from increased APM volume, followirgjiittroduction as the pharmacy benefit
manager for recently acquired membership.

Other

Our Other segment includes various ancillary bussinenits such as AdminaStar Federal, a subsidiatyatdministers Medicare Parts A and B
programs in Indiana, lllinois, Kentucky and OhiagaAnthem Alliance, a subsidiary that provided hiealth care benefits and administration
in nine states for active and retired military eaygles and their dependents under the Departmé&fehse's TRICARE program for milita
families. We sold the TRICARE business on May 32 Our Other segment also includes intersegnesehiue and
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expense eliminations and corporate expenses mab#dd to operating segments. The following tabdsents the summarized results of
operations for our Other segment for the years @iicember 31, 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999 % Change

(% in Millions)
Operating Revenue $206.4 $184.4 12%
Operating Loss... $(34.9) $(19.7) NM

Operating revenue increased $22.0 million, or 1886 1999. Excluding intersegment operating reveglirainations of $151.7 million in
2000 and $111.2 million in 1999, operating reveimeeeased $62.5 million, or 21%, primarily due tghtter premiums at Anthem Alliance.
These amounts were received in connection wittgtabyal settlement related to a series of bid paidgistments, requests for equitable
adjustments and change orders filed during thetpasyears with the Department of Defense undefTRICARE program.

Certain corporate expenses are not allocated tbuginess segments. These unallocated expensesmtatdor $39.9 million in 2000 and
$26.7 million in 1999, and primarily included sutdms as unallocated incentive compensation angt atbrporate expenses. Excluding
unallocated corporate expenses, operating gairb@smillion in 2000, $2.0 million, or 29%, lessathin 1999. Most of the decrease was due
to higher non-reimbursable administrative expengedaninaStar Federal.

INCOME TAXES

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 188counting for Income Taxes," requires, amorfgeothings, the separate recognition,
measured at currently enacted tax rates, of deféareassets and deferred tax liabilities for thedffect of temporary differences between
financial reporting and tax reporting. A valuati@ifowance must be established for deferred taxa#séis "more likely than not" that all or

a portion may be unrealized. See Note 13 to ouitedidonsolidated financial statements for addalanformation.

We believe a net deferred tax liability of $63.8lmmin properly reflects our net future tax obligatias of December 31, 2001. This net
deferred tax liability is comprised of a gross #sset of $467.1 million, less a valuation allowaot$250.4 million and a deferred tax liabil
of $280.3 million. We believe that our valuatiofoalance is sufficient and at each quarterly finahaeporting date, we evaluate each of our
gross deferred tax assets based on each of thkefjvelements that follow:

. the types of temporary differences making upgross deferred tax asset;

. the anticipated reversal periods of those temyalifferences;

. the amount of taxes paid in prior periods andlalke for a carry-back claim;

. the forecasted near term future taxable income; a

. any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary diéfeces.

As an entity taxed under Internal Revenue Codei@e883, at December 31, 2001, we have tax tempdiifferences of approximately
$199.7 million for net operating loss carry-forwsuahd alternative minimum tax and other creditse Buuncertainty of the realization of
these deferred tax assets, we have provided ati@aluslowance included above of $188.3 million foese amounts. This amount is part of
the total valuation allowance of $250.4 millionCetcember 31, 2001.

Further, because of challenges including industidevissues regarding both the timing and the amofidéductions, we have recorded
reserves for probable exposure. To the extent eegirin matters we have accrued for or are reguiogoay more than reserved, our future
effective tax rate in any given period could beenatly impacted. In addition, the Internal Rever@ezvice is currently examining two of our
five open tax years.
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LIABILITY FOR UNPAID LIFE, ACCIDENT AND HEALTH CLAI  MS

The most significant accounting estimate in oursobidated financial statements is our liability forpaid life, accident and health claims.
establish liabilities for pending claims and claimsurred but not reported. We determine the amofitttis liability for each of our business
segments by following a detailed process that Bsnsing both historical claim payment patternsvall as emerging medical cost trends to
project claim liabilities. We also look back to @ess how our prior year's estimates developed atigetextent appropriate, incorporate those
findings in our current year projections. Since délwverage life of a claim is just a few months, entrmedical cost trends and utilization
patterns are very important in establishing thability.

In addition, the liability for unpaid life, accideand health claims includes reserves for premieficigncy losses which we recognize whe
is probable that expected claims and loss adjudtegrenses will exceed future premiums on exidtieglth and other insurance contracts
without consideration of investment income. Forgmses of premium deficiency losses, contracts eeenéd to be either short or long
duration and are grouped in a manner consistehtauit method of acquiring, servicing and measutiiregprofitability of such contracts.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS--FAS 141 AND F AS 142

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 1Baisiness Combinations," and Statement of Acdagrstandards No. 142, "Gooduwiill
and Other Intangible Assets," were issued in JOB12 FAS 141 requires business combinations coeplefter June 30, 2001, to be
accounted for using the purchase method of acaugiriti also specifies the types of acquired inthlegassets that are required to be
recognized and reported separately from goodwildéfr FAS 142, goodwill and other intangible aséetth indefinite lives) will not be
amortized but will be tested for impairment at temmnually. We adopted FAS 142 on January 1, 280@ we do not expect to record an
impairment charge upon adoption. See Note 1 t@adited consolidated financial statements for éoithi information.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our cash receipts consist primarily of premiums adohinistrative fees, investment income and progdexun the sale or maturity of our
investment securities. Cash disbursements resuityrfeom policyholder benefit payments, adminisitta expenses and taxes. We also use
cash for purchases of investment securities, dapifsenditures and acquisitions. Cash outflowsftertuate because of uncertainties
regarding the amount and timing of settlement afl@bilities for benefit claims and the timing pdyments of operating expenses. Our
investment strategy is to make prudent investmentssistent with insurance statutes and other ag¢giyl requirements, with the principle of
preserving our asset base. Cash inflows could bersely impacted by general business conditionsidieg health care costs increasing
than premium rates, our ability to maintain favdegtirovider agreements, reduction in enrollmensngles in federal and state regulation,
litigation risks and competition. We believe thash flow from operations, together with the investtrportfolio, will continue to provide
sufficient liquidity to meet general operations ei&especial needs arising from changes in finapaaition and changes in financial markets.
We also have lines of credit totaling $935.0 milliand a $300.0 million commercial paper programprtvide additional liquidity. We have
made no borrowings under these facilities. Totatdwwings under these facilities cannot exceed $¥®8%llion because borrowing under
either facility reduces availability under the atffecility.

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Endé&2kcember 31, 2000

Net cash flow provided by operating activities $8&4.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2@0# $684.5 million for the ye.

ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $29.9 mitirod%. In both 2001 and 2000, net cash flow joled by operating activities was
impacted by better balance sheet management restitim the conversion of certain operating asseish as receivables and investments in
non-strategic assets, to cash. As the continuingsfon balance sheet management in order to maximiested assets began in early 2000,
our cash flow provided by operating activities DOR is unusually high.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $498llianifor the year ended December 31, 2001, and $7illion for the year ende
December 31, 2000, a decrease of $263.0 millioB5&6. This decrease was due primarily to our hadingcted our investment managers to
maintain greater liquidity at December 31, 200antht December 31, 2000. In part this liquidityllwvé necessary to fund the purchase of
BCBS-KS, pending the outcome of the appeal of thed@s Insurance Commissioner's decision (see Ndtedur audited consolidated
financial statements). In 2001 we received caslihfersale of our TRICARE operations, while in 2@@® used additional cash to purchase
BCBS-ME.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $4#ibion for the year ended December 31, 2001, $rf6l5 million for the year ende
December 31, 2000, a decrease of $28.9 millio8866. Our 2000 financing activities consisted of %29million net proceeds received from
the issuance of $300.0 million of surplus notesatiscounted basis less $220.4 million repaymebtok debt.

On November 2, 2001, Anthem Insurance Companies, dn Anthem Insurance, converted from a mutusiiiance company to a stock
insurance company in a process called demutuaiza®n the date of the demutualization, all mentiiprinterests in Anthem Insurance w
extinguished and the eligible statutory member&rdhem Insurance were entitled to receive constaeran the form of Anthem Inc.'s, or
Anthem's, common stock or cash, as provided irdéreutualization.

The demutualization required an initial public ofifey of common stock and provided for other capigééding transactions on the effective «
of the demutualization. On November 2, 2001, Antloempleted an initial public offering of 55.2 milh shares of common stock at an in
public offering price of $36.00 per share. The skassued in the initial public offering are in agtoh to 48.1 million shares of common stock
which were distributed to eligible statutory menshierthe demutualization. This number may ultimatelry when all distribution issues are
finalized.

Concurrent with our initial public offering of conan stock, we issued 4.6 million 6.00% Equity Segunits. Each Unit contains a purch
contract under which the holder agrees to purcHas&50.00, shares of common stock of Anthem omevaber 15, 2004, and a 5.95%
subordinated debenture. The number of shares poitohased will be determined based on the averadimg price of Anthem common stc

at the time of settlement. In addition, we will neauarterly contract fee payments on the purchasgacts at the annual rate of 0.05% of the
stated amount of $50.00 per purchase contractesuty our rights to defer these payments.

After an underwriting discount and other offeringpenses, net proceeds from our common stock offeviere approximately $1,890.4
million (excluding demutualization expenses of $2million). After underwriting discount and expesseet proceeds from our Units offer
were approximately $219.8 million. In December 20@bceeds from our common stock and Units offexiimgthe amount of $2,063.6
million were used to fund payments to eligible staty members of Anthem Insurance who received gatbad of common stock in our
demutualization.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Endé&ecember 31, 1999

Net cash flow provided by operating activities §&84.5 million in 2000 and $219.8 million in 199 increase of $464.7 million, or 211
Significant growth occurred in the amount of nefdime, increased depreciation and amortization esgoeglated to acquisitions, amortization
of a new claims and administration system in outhMist region and better balance sheet managensetiimg from our conversion of
certain operating assets, such as receivableaadtments in non-strategic assets, to cash. Twsties contributed $256.4 million of
additional operating cash in 2000. The year 198fuded the following non-recurring disbursement$156.0 million: payments for the
settlement of charitable asset claims in the stft€hio, Kentucky and Connecticut and the settieméth the OIG, Health and Human
Services, with respect to BCBS-CT.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $761llianiin 2000 and $356.8 million in 1999, an incseaf $404.3 million, or 113%, primari
from our increased operating cash flow in 2000. ifddally, the net cash we paid to acquire BCBS-8tt#l other purchase price adjustments
paid with respect to prior acquisitions in 2000uttes] in a decrease of approximately $161.7 millionash used for investing activities, as
compared to 1999 when we purchased BCBS-NH and BCB&\V.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $7#8ibion in 2000 and $220.1 million in 1999, a dease of $144.6 million or 66%. The c:
provided in 2000 was the net proceeds received fronissuance of $295.9 million of surplus notesatiscounted basis less $220.4 million
repayment of bank debt.

Future Liquidity

Additional future liquidity needs may include acsjtions, operating expenses, common stock repueshasd capital contributions to our
subsidiaries and will include interest and contfaetpayments on our Units. We anticipate that weparchase BCBS-KS with cash flow
from current operations, pending the outcome ofygeal of the Kansas Insurance Commissioner'sidadisee Note 21 to our audited
consolidated financial statements). We plan tozatidll or any combination of the following to fundr liquidity needs: cash flow from
operations, our investment portfolio, new borrovginoder our credit facilities, and future equity atebt offerings. Our source of liquidity
would be determined at the time of need, basedankenhconditions at that time. For additional imf@tion on our future debt and lease
commitments, see Notes 6 and 15 to our auditedotidased financial statements.

Investment Portfolio

Our investment portfolio is carried at fair valées a result, we evaluate our investment securitiea quarterly basis, using both quantitative
and qualitative factors, to determine whether didedn value is other than temporary. If any dee$ are determined to be other than
temporary, we charge the losses to income. At DeeerB1, 2001, we had gross unrealized gains o#%®dlion and gross unrealized losses
of $18.4 million, none of which were deemed to beeothan temporary.

Dividends from Subsidiaries

The ability of our licensed insurance company diibsies to pay dividends to their parent compaisdisnited by regulations in their
respective states of domicile. Generally, divideimdsny 12month period are limited to the greater or lesdepénding on state statute) of
prior year's statutory net income or 10% of stausurplus. Dividends in excess of this amountdassified as extraordinary and require
prior approval of the respective departments afiiasce. Further, an insurance company may not piyidend unless, after such payment,
its surplus is reasonable in relation to its oundiag liabilities and adequate to meet its finaheeeds, as determined by the department of
insurance.

In connection with our acquisitions of BCBS-ME aB@BS-NH, further limitations were imposed on theility to pay dividends. Until June
2005, BCBS-ME may not declare any dividend withttwet prior approval of the Department of Insuranicklaine. BCBS-NH could not pay
any dividends for as long as it continued to ustagefavorable statutory accounting practices peech by the New Hampshire Department
of Insurance before our acquisition. Such practpEmitted by the New Hampshire Department of lasae had no effect on our
consolidated financial statements. The applicatithese permitted statutory accounting practi@&tbeen discontinued subsequent to
December 31, 2001. The maximum dividend payabknthem Insurance from its licensed insurance comgaisidiaries without prior
approval in 2001 was approximately $163.0 millidhe dividends paid by such regulated subsidiane)D1 to Anthem Insurance were
$368.1 million, which includes some extraordinaiyidends. The amount of dividends planned to be pgiAnthem Insurance to Anthem in
2002 is $400.0 million. Pending approval of theiémé Department of Insurance, this 2002 dividerekjgected to be paid by the end of the
first quarter of 2002, and will be classified asoadinary dividend.
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Credit Facilities and Commercial Paper

On November 5, 2001, Anthem and Anthem Insuranteret into two new unsecured revolving credit fies totaling $800.0 million.
Anthem is jointly and severally liable for all bowings under the facilities. Anthem also will beméted to be a borrower under the
facilities, if the Indiana Insurance Commissiongp@ves Anthem Insurance's joint liability for Aeth's obligations under the facilities.
Borrowings under these facilities bear interesttgs, as defined in the agreements, which gegemadvide for three different interest rate
alternatives. One facility, which provides for bmsings of up to $400.0 million, expires as of Now®n5, 2006. The other facility, which
provides for borrowings of up to $400.0 million péres as of November 4, 2002. Any amount outstandimder this facility as of November
4, 2002 (other than amounts which bear interessrdétermined by a competitive bid process) magobeerted into a one-year term loan at
the option of Anthem and Anthem Insurance. EacHitegreement requires Anthem to maintain certaarfcial ratios and contains minimal
restrictive covenants. Availability under theseilfes is reduced by the amount of any commerpagber outstanding. Upon execution of
these facilities, Anthem Insurance terminated iitsrp$300.0 million unsecured revolving facility oNamounts were outstanding under the
current or prior facilities as of December 31, 2002000 or during the years then ended. Duringdagly, 2002, Anthem and Anthem
Insurance entered into two new agreements alloagggegate additional borrowings of $135.0 million.

In addition to the revolving credit facilities deked above, Anthem Insurance currently has a $80llion commercial paper program
available for general corporate purposes. Comnlguajger notes are short term senior unsecured ,netssa maturity not to exceed 270 d
from date of issuance. When issued, the notesibegiest at current market rates. Availability unttee commercial paper program is redu
by the amount of any borrowings outstanding undemrevolving credit agreements. There were no cororalepaper notes outstanding at
December 31, 2001 or 2000.

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors approved a common stock reépase program under which our management hasawtkarized to purchase up to
$400.0 million worth of shares from time to timabgect to business and market conditions. Shargstmaepurchased in the open market
in negotiated transactions for a period of twelhanths beginning February 6, 2002. During 2002, eshautstanding may be affected by sl
repurchases.

Risk-Based Capital

Our subsidiaries' states of domicile have statutisibased capital, or RBC, requirements for lneaitd other insurance companies based on
the RBC Model Act. These RBC requirements are ofedrto assess the capital adequacy of life andhhiealurers, taking into account the
risk characteristics of an insurer's investmentsgnoducts. The RBC Model Act sets forth the foranar calculating the RBC requirements
which are designed to take into account asset,riskgrance risks, interest rate risks and otHewaat risks with respect to an individual
insurance company's business. In general, undee taers, an insurance company must submit a repdgt RBC level to the state insurance
department or insurance commissioner, as apprepaatof the end of the previous calendar year.

Risk-based capital standards will be used by régrddo set in motion appropriate regulatory adioglating to insurers that show indications
of weak or deteriorating conditions. It also prasdcan additional standard for minimum capital rezgraents that companies should meet to
avoid being placed in rehabilitation or liquidation

Anthem's risk based capital as of December 31, 26@iinues to be substantially in excess of alhdadory RBC thresholds.
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This management's discussion and analysis cortaitain forward-looking information. Words such'agpect(s)", "feel(s)", "believe(s)",
"will", "may", "anticipate(s)", "estimate(s)", "sktd", "intend(s)" and similar expressions are iuket to identify forward-looking statements.
Such statements are subject to known and unknaka and uncertainties that could cause actualtsesutliffer materially from those
projected. These risks and uncertainties may ircltrénds in healthcare costs and utilization rates ability to secure sufficient premium
rate increases; competitor pricing below marketdseof increasing costs; increased government atgalof health benefits and managed
care; significant acquisitions or divestitures bgjon competitors; introduction and utilization afw prescription drugs and technology; a
downgrade in our financial strength ratings; litiga targeted at health benefits companies; odityhd contract with providers consistent
with past practice; and general economic downtuResders are cautioned not to place undue reliamt¢eese forward-looking statements
that speak only as of the date hereof. We undertak@bligation to republish revised forward-lookistatements to reflect events or

circumstances after the date hereof or to refleeiccurrence of unanticipated events.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

As a result of our investing and borrowing actesti we are exposed to financial market risks, oholythose resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valnstiPotential impacts discussed below are basaa sgnsitivity analyses performed on
Anthem's financial positions as of December 31,12@®tual results could vary significantly from #geestimates. Our primary objective is
the preservation of the asset base and the mationzaf total return given an acceptable leveliskr

Our portfolio is exposed to three primary sourciessi: interest rate risk, credit risk, and marketuation risk for equity holdings.

The primary risks associated with our fixed mayusiecurities are credit quality risk and inter@demrisk. Credit quality risk is defined as the
risk of a credit downgrade to an individual fixedtéme security and the potential loss attributabklat downgrade. We manage this risk
through our investment policy, which establishexlirquality limitations on the overall portfolic avell as dollar limits of our investment in
securities of any individual issuer. Since we ateigsed immediately of circumstances surroundinglitmating downgrades, we are able to
promptly avoid or minimize exposure to losses Hirgpthe subject security. The result is a welddisified portfolio of fixed income
securities, with an average credit rating of appmnately double-A. Interest rate risk is definedfaes potential for economic losses on fixed-
rate securities, due to a change in market intea¢ss. Our fixed maturity portfolio consists exalely of U.S. dollar-denominated assets,
invested primarily in U.S. government securitiegporate bonds, asset-backed bonds and mortgagedelecurities, all of which represent
an exposure to changes in the level of marketéstaates. We manage interest rate risk by maintaanduration commensurate with our
insurance liabilities and shareholder's equity. ifiddally, we have the capability of holding anycadty to maturity, which would allow us to
realize full par value. Our investment policy pfaits use of derivatives to manage interest rate ris

Our portfolio consists of corporate securities fappmately 36% of the total fixed income portfold December 31, 2001) which are subject
to credit/default risk. In a declining economic Bomment, corporate yields will usually increasempted by concern over the ability of
corporations to make interest payments, thus cgusitecrease in the price of corporate securdigd the decline in value of the corporate
fixed income portfolio. This risk is managed extdiy by our money managers--through fundamentalitemnalysis, diversification of issuers
and industries, and an average credit rating o€tinporate fixed income portfolio of approximateiyuble-A.

Our equity portfolio is exposed to the volatilityhierent in the stock market, driven by concernsg egenomic conditions, earnings and sales
growth, inflation and consumer confidence. Thestesyatic risks cannot be managed through diveasidio alone. However, more routine
risks, such as stock/industry specific risks, asmaged by investing in index mutual funds thaticapd the risk and performance of the S&P
500 and S&P 400 indices, resulting in a diversifegity portfolio.
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All of our current investments are classified aaikable-for-sale. As of December 31, 2001, appr@tety 95% of these were fixed maturity
securities. Market risk is addressed by activelyaging the duration, allocation and diversificatafrour investment portfolio. We have
evaluated the impact on the fixed income portfslfair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpghiange in interest rates. A 100 basis
point increase in interest rates would result impproximate $194.6 million decrease in fair valubereas a 100 basis point decrease in
interest rates would result in an approximate $1.8fillion increase in fair value. As of December 3001, no portion of our fixed income
portfolio was invested in non-US dollar denominategestments.

We also maintain a diverse portfolio of large caltaition equity securities. An immediate 10% daseein each equity investment's value,
arising from market movement, would result in a felue decrease of $18.9 million. Alternatively,immediate 10% increase in each equity
investment's value, attributable to the same fagtould result in a fair value increase of $18.9iom. No portion of our equity portfolio was
invested in non-US dollar denominated investmestsfddecember 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2001hele no derivative financial or
commodity-based instruments.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Shareholders and Board of Directors
Anthem, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Anthem, Inc. as of December 31, 26612800, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholdeugtyeand cash flows for each of the three yearthénperiod ended December 31, 2001.
These financial statements are the responsibilithie Company's management. Our responsibilitg Esxipress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assera@mout whether the financial statements aredreeaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of Anthem,
Inc. at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the cataell results of its operations and its cash fllmwvgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accignprinciples generally accepted in the Unitede&ta

/'Sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
I ndi anapol i s, Indiana
January 28, 2002

except for Note 21, as to which
the date is February 19, 2002
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ANTHEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Millions, Except Share Data)

Assets
Current assets:
Investments available-for-sale, at fair value:
Fixed maturity securities.....................
Equity securities..........ccoceeernunennn.

Cash and cash equivalents.......................
Premium and self funded receivables.............
Reinsurance receivables.........................
Other receivables
Income tax receivables..........cccccceeeenn.
Other current assets..........cccocvvvveveenenns

Total current assets..........ccceveevevveeeennns

Other noncurrent investments...............c.......
Restricted cash and investments..
Property and equipment
Goodwill and other intangible assets...............
Other noncurrent assets.............cccveeeeennee

Total aSSetS......ccevvvvvviciiiiiiiiiiieeeeeennn,

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Unpaid life, accident and health claims.......
Future policy benefits..........ccccceeeeee
Other policyholder liabilities................

Total policy liabilities...........cccccceeuees

Unearned inCOMe........ccccocuvveeeiiiinenennne
Accounts payable and accrued expenses...........
Bank overdrafts.... .
Income taxes payable..............cccooueeen.
Other current liabilities.......................

Total current liabilities...........cccccceee....
Long term debt, less current portion
Retirement benefits..............cccccvvivinens

Other noncurrent liabilities.......................

Total liabilities.........ccccvveveveeeeeeenennn,

Shareholders' equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares authoriz
issued and outstanding--none......................
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorized--9
and outstanding: 2001, 103,295,675; 2000, none....
Additional paid in capital...........cc.c.ece.n.

Retained earnings..........ccooevvevenvvvienennns

Accumulated other comprehensive income.............

Total shareholders' equity............cccceeeee....

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.........

See accompanying notes.

December 31

2001 2000
.............................. $3,882.7 $3,048.2
.............................. 189.1 463.1
4,071.8 3,511.3
.............................. 406.4 203.3
.............................. 544.7 510.5
.............................. 76.7 105.1
241.0
11.0
42.1
.............................. 5,299.9 4,624.3
18.0
. 89.6
.............................. 402.3 428.8
.............................. 467.4 498.9
.............................. 56.6 48.9
.............................. $6,276.6 $5,708.5
.............................. $1,411.3 $1,411.1
.............................. 247.9 240.4
.............................. 57.3 72.0
.............................. 1,716.5 1,723.5
. 260.2
303.7
250.5
22.6
237.5
.............................. 2,962.6 2,798.0
. 597.5
175.1
218.1
.............................. 4,216.6 3,788.7
ed--100,000,000; shares
00,000,000; shares issued
.............................. 1.1 -
.............................. 1,960.8 -
.............................. 55.7 1,848.6
.............................. 424 71.2
.............................. 2,060.0 1,919.8
.............................. $6,276.6 $5,708.5
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ANTHEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

Revenues
Premiums.........ooooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeen
Administrative fees........cccccceeeeeeiiiinienns
Other reVeNUE.........cevvveeeeeieiieieiiiiis

Total operating revenue..............cccuveeee.
Net investment income..................
Net realized gains on investments..................
Gain on sale of subsidiary operations..............

Expenses

Benefit eXpense........cccccevvieiieiiiiieeeene
Administrative eXpense........cccccceeeeeeeiennnns

INterest eXPenSse.........uuvvveeiieiieeeeeeieennnns
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible asset
Endowment of non-profit foundations................
Demutualization expenses........cccccccveeeeeennn.

Income from continuing operations before income tax
INTErest......ocoviiiieiiiee e

Income taxes............
Minority interest (credit).............cooevnnnee

Income from continuing operations..................

Discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations........

Net iNCOME......cooviiiiiiiiiii e

Pro forma basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations...............
Discontinued operations..............cccccce...
Net iNCOMEe........cccuveeeiiriiie e

Pro forma diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations...............
Discontinued operations................ccc......

Net inCome..........ocoecvvvvirieiieeeeeee,

Net income for the period from November 2, 2001 (da
and initial public offering) to December 31, 2001

Basic and diluted net income per share for the peri
2001 (date of demutualization and initial public

See accompanying notes.

Year ended December 31

2001 2000 199

......................... $9,244.8 $7,737.3 $5,41
......................... 817.3 7556 61
......................... 58.2 506 5

10,120.3 8,543.5 6,08
238.6 201.6 15
60.8 259 3

......................... 7,814.7 6,551.0 4,58
1,808.4 1,46
54.7 3
271 1
- 1
8,441.2 6,20
es and minority
......................... 5246 3298 6
1
......................... 3422 2260 5
......................... - -
......................... $ 3422 $ 226.0% 4
......................... $ 331 % 219% 0
......................... - - (0
......................... $ 331% 219% O
......................... $ 330% 218% O
......................... - - (0
......................... $ 330% 218% 0

......................... $ 557

od from November 2,
offering) to December 31,
......................... $ 054
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ANTHEM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock Accumulated
--------------- --- Additional Other Total
Number of Pa r Paidin Retained Comprehensive Shareholder
Shares Val ue Capital Earnings Income  Equity (1)

(In Millions, Except Share Data) ----------- ---
Balance at December 31, 1998....... -3 - $ - $1577.7 $12438 $1,702.5
Net income.........ccoceevevrinns - - -- 44.9 - 44.9
Change in net unrealized gains

(losses) on investments.......... -- - - - (88.5) (88.5
Change in additional minimum

pension liability................ -- -- -- -- 2.0 2.0
Comprehensive loss................. (41.6
Balance at December 31, 1999....... - - - 1,622.6 38.3 1,660.9
Net income..........coceeeeninnes - - - 226.0 - 226.0
Change in net unrealized gains on

investments...........cccceeeee - - -- -- 36.8 36.8
Change in additional minimum

pension liability................ - - -- - (3.9) 3.9
Comprehensive income............... 258.9
Balance at December 31, 2000....... - - -- 1,848.6 71.2 1,919.8

Net income before the date of

demutualization and initial

public offering.................. - - -- 2865 - 286.5
Net income after the date of

demutualization and initial

public offering.................. -- -- -- 55.7 -- 55.7
Change in net unrealized gains

(losses) on investments.......... -- - - - (29.3) (29.3
Change in additional minimum

pension liability................ -- -- -- -- 0.5 0.5
Comprehensive income............... 313.4
Initial public offering of common

StOCK...eevevieiiiee i 55,200,000 0.6 1,889.8 - - 1,890.4
Common stock issued in the

demutualization.................. 48,095,675 05 710 (71.5) - -
Cash payments to eligible statutory

members in lieu of stock......... -- -- -- (2,063.6) -- (2,063.6
Balance at December 31, 2001....... 103,295,675 $ 1.1 $1,960.8 $ 55.7 $42.4 $2,060.0

(1)--Prior year amounts represent "Policyholdargdlsis” prior to demutualization.
See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Millions)
Operating activities
Net iNCOME.......oocvvieiiiiiii e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pro
activities:
Net realized gains on investments...............
Gain on sale of subsidiary operations
Depreciation, amortization and accretion........
Deferred income taxes...........ccoueeeennnes
Loss from discontinued operations...............
Loss on sale of assets.........occeveerenneen.
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net
and divestitures:
Restricted cash and investments.............
Receivables...........ccocceiiiiiienns
Other assets........ccoceeevvrverenninnns
Policy liabilities....
Unearned inCome..........ccoccuvveeeeunnnn.
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.......
Other liabilities...........ccccvevrnnee.
INnCome taxes.......ccccceevevevinicncnnnne

Net cash provided by continuing operations.........
Net cash used in discontinued operations...........

Cash provided by operating activities..............

Investing activities
Purchases of investments
Sales or maturities of investments....
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired....
Sales of subsidiaries, net of cash sold............
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment.......
Purchases of property and equipment................

Cash used in investing activities..................

Financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings.................
Payments on long term borrowings...................

Net proceeds from common stock issued in the initia
Net proceeds from issuance of Equity Security Units
Payments to eligible statutory members in the demut

Cash provided by financing activities..............

Change in cash and cash equivalents................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year...........

See accompanying notes.

ANTHEM, INC.

Year ended December 3

2001 2000
........................ $ 3422 $ 226.0
vided by operating
(25.9)
102.1
36.6
0.5
of effect of purchases
........................ 8.1 10.0
(70.7)
25.3
124.1
. 22.3
........................ 27.8 69.9
119.0
47.5
........................ 659.7 686.7
........................ (5.1) (2.2)
........................ 654.6 684.5
(3,957.3) (3,544.8)
. 3,484.6 2,925.2
(4.2) (85.1)
45.0 5.4
4.1 11.5
(70.4) (73.3)
........................ (498.1) (761.1)
........................ - 295.9
........................ - (220.4)
| public offering....... 1,890.4 --

........................ 203.1
........................ 203.3

(1.1)
204.4
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ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001
(Dollars in Millions, Except Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountadjcies

Basis of Presentation: On November 2, 2001, Anthesarance Companies, Inc. ("Anthem Insurance") eoied from a mutual insurance
company to a stock insurance company after conopleti required approvals and conditions, as séi forthe Plan of Conversion (the
"Conversion"). The demutualization was accountedfoa reorganization using the historical carryialyies of the assets and liabilities of
Anthem Insurance. Accordingly, immediately folloithe demutualization and the initial public offeyj Anthem Insurance's policyholders'
surplus was reclassified to par value of commooksémd additional paid in capital. Concurrent vifte demutualization, Anthem Insurance
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Anthem, InAnghem").

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeinésithem and its subsidiaries (collectively, tl@&otnpany") have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States. All significant interqmany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. Anthem Insuramicis subsidiary insurance companies are liceirsedl states and are Blue Cross Blue
Shield Association licensees in Indiana, KentugBlyio, Connecticut, Maine, New Hampshire, Coloradd Blevada. Products include health
and group life insurance, managed health caregamdrnment health program administration.

Minority interest represents other shareholdetsr@sts in subsidiaries, which are majority-owned.

Use of Estimates: Preparation of the consolidatezhtial statements requires management to makeates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financiakstants and accompanying notes. Actual results atifflel from those estimates.

Investments: All fixed maturity and equity secw#tiare classified as "available-for-sale" securitied are reported at fair value. The
Company has determined that all investments ipdtffolio are available to support current openadiand, accordingly, has classified such
investment securities as current assets. The uredajgains or losses on these securities are iedludaccumulated other comprehensive
income as a separate component of shareholdeity egless the decline in value is deemed to beratian temporary, in which case the |
is charged to income.

Realized gains or losses, determined by speciéintification of investments sold, are includedrindme.
Cash Equivalents: All highly liquid investments lvihaturities of three months or less when purchasedlassified as cash equivalents.

Premium and Self Funded Receivables: Premium dhflsded receivables include the uncollected am®@mom insured and self funded
groups, less an allowance for doubtful accoun®3@.6 and $35.1 at December 31, 2001 and 2000zcteely.

Reinsurance Receivables: Reinsurance receivalpessent amounts recoverable on claims paid orieduand amounts paid to the reinsurer
for premiums collected but not yet earned, anckatinated in a manner consistent with the liab#itassociated with the reinsured policies.
There was no allowance for uncollectible reinsueamezeivables at December 31, 2001 or 2000.
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ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accouniadjcies (continued)

Other Receivables: Other receivables include ansdiantinterest earned on investments, proceedsrdaebrokers on investment trades,
government programs, pharmacy sales and other haiseeus amounts due to the Company. These redes/hbve been reduced by an
allowance for uncollectible amounts of $23.2 and.3%t December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Restricted Cash and Investments: Restricted casimaastments represent fiduciary amounts held madénsurance contract and other
agreements.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipmergderded at cost. Depreciation is computed prinkig®l the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill repents the excess of cost of acquisition overahesélue of net assets acquired. Other
intangible assets represent the values assigriegtses, non-compete and other agreements. Gdadwlilother intangible assets are
amortized using the straight-line method over miianging from two to 20 years. Accumulated amatitbn of goodwill and other
intangible assets at December 31, 2001 and 2006948 and $58.4, respectively. The carrying valugoodwill and other intangible assets
is reviewed annually to determine if the facts amdumstances indicate that they may be impairé@. darrying value of these assets is
reduced to its fair value if this review, which imdes comparison of asset carrying amounts to eggexash flows, indicates that such
amounts will not be recoverable.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardsaifidssued FAS 141, Business Combinations, and &S Goodwill and Other Intangit
Assets. FAS 141 requires business combinations lepetpafter June 30, 2001 to be accounted for ukiagurchase method of accountin
also specifies the types of acquired intangibletasthat are required to be recognized and repeepdrately from goodwill. Under FAS 142,
goodwill and certain other intangible assets (witlefinite lives) will not be amortized but will hested for impairment at least annually. The
Company plans to adopt FAS 142 on January 1, 2082laes not expect any impairment of goodwill updoption. If the Company had
adopted FAS 142 on January 1, 2001, income beficaie taxes and minority interest and net incoméhi®year ended December 31, 2(
would have increased by $17.5 and $15.2, respéytive

Policy Liabilities: Liabilities for unpaid claimsiclude estimated provisions for both reported améjported claims incurred on an
undiscounted basis. The liabilities are adjustedlaly based on historical experience and inclestenates of trends in claim severity and
frequency and other factors, which could vary &sdlhims are ultimately settled. Although it is possible to measure the degree of
variability inherent in such estimates, managerbetieves these liabilities are adequate.

The life future policy benefit liabilities repregegmrimarily group term benefits determined usiranstard industry mortality tables with inter
rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.5%.

Premium deficiency losses are recognized whenpitdbable that expected claims and loss adjustmeenses will exceed future premiums
on existing health and other insurance contradtsout consideration of investment income. For pagsoof premium deficiency losses,
contracts are deemed to be either short or longtidur and are grouped in a manner consistent WélCompany's method of acquiring,
servicing and measuring the profitability of sucimtracts.

Retirement Benefits: Retirement benefits represatgtanding obligations for retiree health, lifelatental benefitsand any unfunded liability
related to defined benefit pension plans.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income inclndegcome, the change in unrealized gains (Idssesivestments and the change in
the additional minimum pension liability.
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ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accouniadjcies (continued)

Revenue Recognition: Gross premiums for fully ieslicontracts are prorated over the term of theraotst, with the unearned premium
representing the unexpired term of policies. Feumnce contracts with retrospective rated premitinesestimated ultimate premium is
recognized as revenue over the period of the comt#atual experience is reviewed once the poliesiqul is completed and adjustments are
recorded when determined. Premium rates for celitegs of business are subject to approval by tepatment of Insurance of each
respective state.

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to basktfor all, or with supplemental insurance
arrangements, a portion of their claims experiefibe. Company charges self-funded groups an admatiigt fee which is based on the
number of members in a group or the group's claipegence. Under the Company's self-funded arraegénamounts due are recognized
based on incurred claims paid plus administrative @her fees. In addition, administrative feedude amounts received for the
administration of Medicare or certain other goveemtrprograms. Administrative fees are recognizeatioordance with the terms of the
contractual relationship between the Company aedtistomer. Such fees are based on a percent#iye @&im amounts processed or a
combination of a fixed fee per claim plus a peragetof the claim amounts processed. All benefitpts under these programs are
excluded from benefit expense.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromgales of prescription drugs and revenues are neoed) as prescription drug orders are
delivered or shipped.

Federal Income Taxes: Anthem files a consolidagéarn with its subsidiaries that qualify as defitgothe Internal Revenue Code.

StockBased Compensation: The Company has a plan thétpsofor the award of stock options to employ&tsck options are granted fc
fixed number of shares with an exercise price attlequal to the fair value of the shares at the afagrant. The Company accounts for stock
options using Accounting Principles Board Opinioan. 185, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeesl, accordingly, recognizes no
compensation expense related to stock options.

Earnings Per Share: Earnings per share amoungsbasic and diluted basis, have been calculateztihgson the weighted average common
shares outstanding or deemed to be outstandinthdqueriod after the date of the demutualizatiash iaftial public offering.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnsputed by dividing income available to common shatders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the pebddted earnings per share includes the dilutiffeat of all stock options and purchase
contracts included in Equity Security Units, usthg treasury stock method. Under the treasury stuatkod, exercise of stock options and
purchase contracts is assumed with the proceedstagrirchase common stock at the average mariet for the period. The difference
between the number of shares assumed issued arzbnofrshares assumed purchased represents thieeddhares.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year balances lmen reclassified to conform to the current yeasgntation.
2. Demutualization, Initial Public Offering and EtyuSecurity Unit Offering

On November 2, 2001, the date the Conversion beedf@etive, all membership interests in Anthem hasice were extinguished and the
eligible statutory members of Anthem Insurance bezantitled to receive consideration in the forrdothem's common stock or cash, as
provided in the Conversion.
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ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

2. Demutualization, Initial Public Offering and EtyuSecurity Unit Offering
(continued)

The Conversion required an initial public offeriofjcommon stock and provided for other capitalingigransactions on the effective date of
the Conversion. On the Conversion effective dategh&m completed an initial public offering of 5502000 shares of common stock at an
initial public offering price of $36.00 per shaiiéhe shares issued in the initial public offering ar addition to 48,095,675 shares of common
stock (which will ultimately vary slightly when adlistribution issues are finalized) distributecktigible statutory members in the
demutualization.

Concurrent with the initial public offering of conum stock noted above, Anthem issued 4,600,0000806.Equity Security Units ("Units").
Each Unit contains a purchase contract under wihielholder agrees to purchase, for fifty dollahgres of common stock of Anthem on
November 15, 2004, and a 5.95% subordinated defee(gee Note 6). The number of shares to be purdhasl be determined based on-
average trading price of Anthem common stock atithe of settlement. In addition, Anthem will payagterly contract fee payments on the
purchase contracts at the annual rate of 0.05%eo$tated amount of $50.00 per purchase contragea to Anthem's rights to defer these
payments.

After underwriting discount and other offering ashemutualization expenses, net proceeds from thenmmstock offering were
approximately $1,862.8. After underwriting discoant expenses, net proceeds from the Units offeverg approximately $219.8. In
December 2001, proceeds from the common stock aitd bfferings in the amount of $2,063.6 were useflind payments to eligible
statutory members of Anthem Insurance who recepasth instead of common stock in the demutualization

3. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Discontinued Gyiens
Acquisitions:
Pending

On January 17, 2002, a subsidiary of Anthem InsteaAnthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc., signedalspurchase agreement to purchase
the remaining 50% ownership interest in Maine RadrHealth Plan, Inc. for an aggregate purchase pfi$10.6. Subject to terms and
conditions of the agreement, the transaction igetga to close in the first quarter of 2002.

2000

On June 5, 2000, the Company completed its purabfasgbstantially all of the assets and liabilittdsAssociated Hospital Service of Maine,
formerly d/b/a Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Maftf#fCBS-ME"), in accordance with the Asset Purchageeement dated July 13, 1999.
The purchase price was $95.4 (including directscoftcquisition) and resulted in $90.5 of goodwaiit other intangible assets which are
being amortized over periods ranging from ten ty@ars. In 2001, goodwill was reduced by $2.1 fmchase price allocation adjustments
based on final valuation studies. This acquisiti@s accounted for as a purchase and the net assktesults of operations have been
included in the Company's consolidated financialeshents from the purchase date. The pro formatsftéd the BCBS-ME acquisition would
not be material to the Company's consolidated t&stiloperations for periods preceding the purchiase.

1999

On October 27, 1999, the Company completed itshase of the assets and liabilities of New Hampsti@amont Health Services, formerly
d/b/a Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Hampshire ("EB2BH"), in accordance with the Asset Purchase Agexg entered into on February
19, 1999. The purchase price was $125.4 (includirert costs of acquisition), which resulted in $8of goodwill and other intangible
assets, which are being amortized over periodsmgrigpm two to 20 years.
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3. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Discontinued Qyiens (continued)

On November 16, 1999, the Company completed itshase of the stock of Rocky Mountain Hospital anetiMal Service, formerly d/b/a
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Colorado and Blues€mand Blue Shield of Nevada ("BCBS-CO/NV"). Thegmase price was $160.7
(including direct costs of acquisition) and resdlie $152.1 of goodwill and other intangible asseich are being amortized over periods
ranging from five to 20 years.

These acquisitions were accounted for as purclteaskthe net assets and results of operations remreibcluded in the Company's
consolidated financial statements from the respegqiurchase dates.

Unaudited pro forma results of operations assurntfirgl999 acquisitions occurred on January 1, 1889]d have resulted in total revenues
of $7,186.4, income from continuing operations 81 $ and net income of $5.5 for 1999.

Divestitures:
2001

On May 31, 2001, Anthem Insurance and its subsiddathem Alliance Health Insurance Company ("Alkat), sold the TRICARE
operations of Alliance to a subsidiary of Humame, for $45.0. The transaction, which closed on &ay2001, resulted in a gain on sale of
subsidiary operations of $25.0, net of selling ewges.

1999

During 1999, the Company disposed of several simminess operations, which were no longer deematkgically aligned with the
Company's core business. The Company recognizessaf $14.2 (net of income tax benefit of $6.1}teese disposals. The pro forma
effects of these divestitures are insignificanthg® consolidated results of operations.

Discontinued Operations:
1999

During 1999, the Company recognized additionaldess $6.0, net of income tax benefit of $6.2, ltésy from sales agreement contingency
adjustments relating to the discontinued operatsmhd in prior years.

4. Endowment of Non-Profit Foundations

During 1999, Anthem Insurance reached agreemertiteintates of Kentucky, Ohio and Connecticut $mlkee any questions as to whether
Anthem Insurance or the predecessor/successaesmiere in possession of property that was impregsth a charitable trust.

In 1999, contributions of $45.0, $28.0 and $41.4renmade for the benefit of charitable foundationsentucky, Ohio, and Connecticut,
respectively, from Anthem Insurance's subsidiaiegghem Health Plans of Kentucky, Inc., Communitgurance Company and Anthem
Health Plans, Inc., respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

5. Investments

The following is a summary of available-for-salggstments:

Costor Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

December 31, 2001

Fixed maturity securities:
United States Government securities............. .$ 6847 $182 $(4.7) $ 698.2

Obligations of states and political subdivisions . 3.7 0.1 -- 3.8
Corporate Securities..........ccoovuveeeennnes . 1,3814 352 (10.3) 1,406.3

Mortgage-backed securities . 1,7443 335 (3.4) 1,774.4

. 38141 87.0 (18.4) 3,882.7
1857 3.4 ~  189.1

Total fixed maturity securities....................
Equity SECUrties.........ccveverriiiieeennen.

$3,999.8 $90.4 $(18.4) $4,071.8

December 31, 2000
Fixed maturity securities:

United States Government securities............. .$ 7234 $256 $(25) $ 7465
Obligations of states and political subdivisions . 08 -- -- 0.8
Corporate Securities.........cccoovuveeeennnes . 1,041.4 194 (20.1) 1,040.7
Mortgage-backed securities...................... . 1,250.3 211 (13.0) 1,258.4
Preferred Stocks........ccccvvvveveeieneennnnnn. 1.9 -- (0.2) 1.8

Total fixed maturity securities.................... . 3,017.8 66.1 (35.7) 3,048.2

376.2 133.0 (46.1) 463.1

Equity SECUrties.........cccueveeriiiieeennee.

$3,394.0 $199.1 $(81.8) $3,511.3

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusiégurities at December 31, 2001, by contractu&linty, are shown below. Expected
maturities may be less than contractual maturii@sause the issuers of the securities may hawigtiiteto prepay obligations without

prepayment penalties.

Amortized F air
Cost V alue
Due in one year or less............... $ 516 % 52.6
Due after one year through five years. 589.7 606.6
Due after five years through ten years 833.3 845.5
Due after ten years ... 5952 603.6

2,069.8 2 ,108.3
Mortgage-backed securities............ 1,7443 1 J74.4
$3,814.1 $3 ,882.7



ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

5. Investments (continued) The major categorigsedinvestment income are as follows:

2001 2000 1 999
Fixed maturity securities....... $220.5 $178.8 $1 37.0
Equity securities............... 6.4 6.1 6.3
Cash, cash equivalents and other 15.7 21.5 12.8
Investment revenue.............. 2426 2064 1 56.1
Investment expense.............. (4.0) (4.8) (4.2)
Net investment income........... $238.6 $201.6 $1 52.0

Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity and equitusées during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $3,4882311.8 and $2,336.8, respectively.
Gross gains of $164.3, $71.3 and $86.8 and grasgs$oof $103.5, $45.4 and $49.3 were realizeddd,22000 and 1999, respectively, on
those sales.

6. Long Term Debt and Commitments

Debt consists of the following at December 31.:

200 1 2000
Surplus notes at 9.125% due 2010.............. $295 .9 $295.5
Surplus notes at 9.00% due 2027............... 197 .3 197.2
Senior guaranteed notes at 6.75% due 2003..... 99 .7 995
Debentures included in Units at 5.95% due 2006 220 2 -
Other.....cooviiiiec e 5 2 55
Long term debt.........ccceeveriiiiieennnnns 818 .3 597.7
Current portion of long term debt............. (0] .3) (0.2)
Long term debt, less current portion.......... $818 .0 $597.5

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthesurince and are subordinate in right of paymeal twf Anthem Insurance's existing and
future indebtedness. Any payment of interest argypial on the surplus notes may be made only wighprior approval of the Indiana
Department of Insurance ("DOI"), and only out opital and surplus funds of Anthem Insurance that@®I| determines to be available for
the payment under Indiana insurance laws. Fortstgtaccounting purposes, the surplus notes arsidered a part of capital and surplus of
Anthem Insurance.

Senior guaranteed notes are unsecured and unsodiediobligations of Anthem Insurance and will ragkally in right of payment with all
other existing and future senior indebtedness @¢hé&m Insurance.

On November 2, 2001, Anthem issued 4,600,000 df%.&quity Security Units (see Note 2). Each Unittains a 5.95% subordinated
debenture. The debentures are unsecured and anelgwted in right of payment to all of Anthem'sstixg and future senior indebtedness.
The debentures will mature on November 15, 2006hEbenture will initially bear interest at théeraf 5.95% per year, payable quarterly,
commencing February 15, 2002, subject to Antheigigs to defer these payments.
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6. Long Term Debt and Commitments (continued)

On November 5, 2001, Anthem and Anthem Insurantered into two new unsecured revolving credit faes totaling $800.0. Anthem is
jointly and severally liable for all borrowings wrcthe facilities. Anthem also will be permittedite a borrower under the facilities, if t
Indiana Insurance Commissioner approves Anthenramse's joint liability for Anthem's obligations der the facilities. Upon execution of
these facilities, Anthem Insurance terminated iitsrp$300.0 unsecured revolving facility. Borrowmgnder these facilities will bear interest
at rates, as defined in the agreements, which giyperovide for three different interest rate att@ives. One facility, which provides for
borrowings of up to $400.0, expires on Novembe&t()6. The second facility, which provides for bevings of up to $400.0, expires on
November 4, 2002. Certain amounts outstanding uthitefacility at November 4, 2002, as definedhia agreement, may be converted in
one-year term loan at the option of Anthem and Anthinsurance. Each credit agreement requires Antbenaintain certain financial ratios
and contains minimal restrictive covenants. Avaligbunder these facilities is reduced by the amioof any commercial paper outstanding.
No amounts were outstanding under the currentior facilities at December 31, 2001 or 2000 or dgrihe years then ende

In addition to the revolving credit facilities deked above, Anthem Insurance currently has a $86@mnmercial paper program available for
general corporate purposes. Commercial paper aogeshort term senior unsecured notes, with a iahot to exceed 270 days from date
issuance. When issued, the notes bear interestraint market rates. Availability under the comnedrpaper program is reduced by the
amount of any borrowings outstanding under the Gaomgjs revolving credit facilities. There were nargoercial paper notes outstanding at
December 31, 2001 or 2000 or during the years é¢neied.

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, Anthem and Anthsanance entered into two new agreements alloagugegate indebtedness of
$135.0. Anthem will guarantee all obligations oftAem Insurance under the facilities. Anthem alsblvei permitted to be a borrower under
the facilities, if the Indiana Insurance Commissgioapproves Anthem Insurance's guarantee of Anshelligations under the facilities.

Interest paid during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $%$49.9 and $28.2, respectively.
Future maturities of debt are as follows: 20023$2003, $100.1; 2004, $1.3; 2005, $0.5; 2006, $2ad thereafter $495.3.
7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Considerable judgment is required to develop esémaf fair value for financial instruments. Accimgly, the estimates shown are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that woulddaized in a one time, current market exchangalaff the financial instruments.

The carrying values and estimated fair values dagefinancial instruments are as follows at Deben31:

2001 2 000
Carrying Fair Carryin g Fair
Value Value Value Value
Fixed maturity securities $3,882.7 $3,882.7 $3,048. 2 $3,048.2
Equity securities........ 189.1 189.1 463. 1 463.1
Restricted investments... 38.7 38.7 42. 7 427
Debt:
Equity Security Units. 220.2 294.4 - --
Other.......ccccc... 598.1 681.9 597. 7 562.2
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7. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

The carrying value of all other financial instrunteeapproximates fair value because of the relatishbrt period of time between the
origination of the instruments and their expectslization. Fair values for securities, restrigtegestments and Equity Security Units are
based on quoted market prices, where availableséa@irities not actively traded, fair values atérested using values obtained from
independent pricing services. The fair value okotlebt is estimated using discounted cash flowyaes, based on the Company's current
incremental borrowing rates for similar types ofrowing arrangements.

8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment includes the following at&eber 31:

2001 2000
Land and improvements........ccccooceevceeneeees Ll $21.8$21.0
Building and components..........cccoeevevvceeee. L 251.2 251.3
Data processing equipment, furniture and other equi pment 432.7 407.6
Leasehold improvementS......cccccoceeeeevveveneeee L 36.4 37.2

742.1 717.1
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization..... ... 339.8 288.3

Property and equipment includes non-cancelablgaldpases of $7.3 and $7.4 at December 31, 2002600, respectively. Total
accumulated amortization on these leases at Dege3th@001 and 2000 was $3.9 and $3.7, respectiVely related lease amortization
expense is included in depreciation and amortinagipense. Depreciation and leasehold improvenmattaation expense for 2001, 2000
and 1999 was $89.6, $75.3 and $47.1, respectively.

9. Unpaid Life, Accident and Health Claims

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances for unpaid lifeidant and health claims:

2001 2000 1999

Balances at January 1, net of reinsurance........... ... $1,382.1 $1,052.6 $ 735.6
Business purchases (divestitures)........ccoceeee.. . L (139.1) 1139 190.4
Incurred related to:
CUIMENE Y AN ..ccii i vciiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 7,894.1 6,593.6 4,608.9
Prioryears......coooovovvviviiiiiiineneeees (96.4) (60.1) (30.9)
Totalincurred.......cccoovviveeiiiieceeeeee 7,797.7 6,533.5 4,578.0
Paid related to:

CUIMeNt Year. ..o 6,521.5 5,361.9 3,769.8
Prioryears....cccooovvoeiiiiiieies 1,1155 956.0 681.6
Total paid....ccveveeeiiiiieeeeeiiieee 7,637.0 6,317.9 4,451.4
Balances at December 31, net of reinsurance........ ... 1,403.7 1,382.1 1,052.6

Reinsurance recoverables at December 31............ ... 76 29.0 109.2
Reserve gross of reinsurance recoverables on unpaid claims at
December 31.....ccoovviiiiiiiieiiieeiieeeees $1,411.3 $1,411.1 $1,161.8
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Amounts incurred related to prior years vary froravously estimated liabilities as the claims dtamately settled. Negative amounts
reported for incurred related to prior years reiifrom claims being settled for amounts less traginally estimated.

10. Reinsurance

The Company reinsures certain of its risks witreotompanies and assumes risk from other compangksuch reinsurance is accounted for
as a transfer of risk. The Company is contingelidglyle for amounts recoverable from the reinsunghe event that it does not meet its
contractual obligations.

The Company evaluates the financial condition®féinsurers and monitors concentrations of crekitarising from similar geographic
regions, activities, or economic characteristicthefreinsurers to minimize its exposure to sigaifit losses from reinsurer insolvencies.

The details of net premiums written and earnedhar®llows for the years ended December 31:

2001 200 0 1999
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Consolidated:
Direct.............. $9,325.7 $9,285.9 $7,993.0 $7,961.5 $5,674.8 $5,693.7
Assumed............. 1.6 1.7 0.7 1.9 239 269
Ceded............... (42.5) (42.8) (229.2) (226.1) (305.6) (302.1)
Net premiums........ $9,284.8 $9,244.8 $7,764.5 $7,737.3 $5,393.1 $5,418.5
Reportable segments:
Midwest............. $4,814.2 $4,774.2 $4,240.4 $4,203.1 $3,708.6 $3,729.3
... 3,462.5 3,462.5 2,753.0 2,768.9 1,490.3 1,495.4
716.1 716.1 5711 569.6 645 64.2
949 949 1237 123.7 96.3 96.3
197.1 1971 76.3 72.0 334 333
........ $9,284.8 $9,244.8 $7,764.5 $7,737.3 $5,393.1 $5,418.5

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense felsvs for the years ended December 31.:

2001 2000 1999
Assumed--increase in benefit expense $6.2$ 8.6 $ 27.4
Ceded--decrease in benefit expense.. 38.0 233.0 299.8

The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abditias is as follows at December 31:

2001 2000
Policy liabilities assumed. $29.2 $28.6
Unearned premiums assumed.. 0.7 0.2
Premiums payable ceded..... 7.8 85
Premiums receivable assumed 0.3 0.3
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11. Employee Stock Purchase and Stock and Long Treremtive Plans

The Company has reserved 3,000,000 shares of corstock for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("SRagkhase Plan"). The Stock
Purchase Plan is expected to be implemented by2@&@@ and any employee that meets the eligibiligureements, as defined, may
participate. No employee will be permitted to pasé more than twenty five thousand dollars of sto@ay calendar year.

The Company's 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the "SRlaek") provides for the granting of stock optiorestricted stock awards, performance
stock awards, performance awards and stock apftimTigghts to eligible employees and non-emplogigectors. The Company has
registered 7,000,000 shares of its common stocissmiance under the Stock Plan, including 2,000sb@@es solely for issuance under grants
of stock options to substantially all employees ordssuance under similar grants to new employ@esrds are granted by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directongti@s vest and expire over terms as set by theritiee at the time of grant. In
accordance with the Plan, options to purchase fhfes of common stock at the initial public offerprice of $36.00 per share were granted
to eligible employees. These options generally ae#te end of two years and expire 10 years flwrgtant date.

A summary of the activity in the Stock Plan for fheriod from January 1, 2001 to December 31, 28@E ifollows:

Number of Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price
Balance at January 1, 2001.............. - $ -
Granted..........ccoevereeieeninenne 1,479,000 36.00
Forfeited.........ccoeuveeiiniinnenn. 20,368 36.00
Balance at December 31, 2001............ 1,458,632 $36.00
Options exercisable at December 31, 2001 36 $36.00

The weighted average remaining contractual lifthefoptions is 9.83 years. As of December 31, 26(BU1,368 shares were available for
future grants.

The pro forma information regarding net income aarthings per share as required by FAS 123 hasdetermined as if the Company had
accounted for its stock-based compensation unédiathvalue method of the Statement. The fair @dar the stock options was estimated at
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-atim model with the following weighted averageussptions for 2001:

Risk-free interest rate............cccc..... 4 .96%
Volatility factor..........cccccevviieenn. 42 .00%
Dividend yield........cccccccceveviiinnnns --
Weighted average expected life............... 4 ye ars

The Black-Scholes option-valuation model was dgwedbfor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In additioption valuation models require the input ofiygsubjective assumptions including the
expected stock price volatility. Because the Comglsastock option grants have characteristics sigpnitly different from those of traded
options, and because changes in the subjectivé agsumptions can materially affect the fair vadsémate, in management's opinion, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a rédiaingle measure of the fair value of its stockarpgrants.
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For purposes of pro forma disclosures, compensatipense is increased for the estimated fair valtlee options amortized over the optic
vesting periods. The Company's pro forma informmatar 2001 is as follows:

As Reported Pro Forma

NEetiNCOME...cccveiieiiciee e e $342.2 $341.1
Net income for the period from November 2, 2001 (da te of demutualization

and initial public offering) to December 31, 2001 55.7 54.6
Earnings per share--basic and diluted net income af ter demutualization and

initial public offering.......ccccccovvevcceeeees e 0.54 0.53
Weighted average fair value of each option granted during the year........ - 14.12

Certain executives are participants in a Long Tkroentive Plan ("LTIP"). The LTIP operates duringsessive three-year periods. At the
beginning of each three-year period, the Compems&@bmmittee establishes performance goals, whidlide specific strategic objectives
such as growth in net income, operating marginamdparison of performance against peer companah Rarticipant's target award is
established as a percentage ranging from 30% t#IfGnnual base salary for each year of the tiieaeperiod. The LTIP expense for 2(
2000 and 1999 totaled $49.9, $50.9 and $14.9, ctsph.

12. Earnings Per Share

The following sets forth the denominator for beand diluted earnings per share for the period fikoaember 2, 2001 (date of
demutualization and initial public offering) thrdu@pecember 31, 2001:

Denominator for basic earnings per share--weighted average shares........ 103,295,675
Effect of dilutive securities--employee stock optio NS.iiieiieieiiieiens 313,397
Effect of dilutive securities--incremental shares f rom conversion of Unit

purchase CONtracts........cccoocveeeeniccccees e 212,766
Denominator for diluted earnings per share......... . L 103,821,838

Weighted average shares used for basic earningshpex assumes that shares distributed to eligibtatory members as consideration in the
demutualization were issued on the effective dath@Plan. Since the average market price of Antaeommon stock exceeds the grant
price of stock options, such options are dilutwéAhthem's earnings per share. The purchase ctstrextuded in the Units are dilutive to
Anthem's earnings per share, because the averaggetrpaice of Anthem's common stock exceeds adthteshold price of $43.92 per sh:

There were no shares or dilutive securities outtanprior to the demutualization and initial pubtiffering. For comparative pro forma
earnings per share presentation, the weighted geesfzares outstanding and the effect of dilutiveisges for the period from November 2,
2001 to December 31, 2001 as shown above was asediculate pro forma earnings per share for albge presented.
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The components of deferred income taxes at DeceBibare as follows:

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Pension and postretirement benefits........... .~ .. $ 605 $ 84.7
Accrued eXPEeNSES......cccoevvciieeeensiieeaeeee 98.3 85.2
Alternative minimum tax and other credits....... ... 133.5 83.7
INSUraNCe reSerVeS.....ccooveveeeeeeeeeieeeeeee 47.8 33.0
Net operating loss carryforwards................ .. 66.2 1745
Bad debt reserves.....ocoovvveeveeeeeeeeenes L 19.8 35.1
...... 41.0 315
Total deferred tax assets......ccccceveeeee. L 467.1 527.7
Valuation allowance........cccccoeeveeveeeee L (250.4) (338.7)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allo wance. 216.7 189.0
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on securities.......cccccceeee.. L 25.4 414
Goodwill and other intangible assets............ ... 70.0 55.1
Other e 1849 724
Total deferred tax liabilities........cccococ... . 280.3 168.9
Net deferred tax asset (liability)................. . .. $(63.6) $ 20.1

The resolution of an Internal Revenue Service eration during 2000 resulted in certain subsidiahi@ging an increase in alternative
minimum tax credits and net operating loss carwéods. Due to the uncertainty of the realizatiothefse deferred tax assets, the Company
increased its valuation allowance accordingly. Bgr2001, portions of these net operating loss t@ammards were utilized and the valuation
allowance was reduced accordingly. The net chamgjeei valuation allowance for 2001, 2000 and 1@®8&8led $(88.3), $190.5 and $(14.4),
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reported witteocurrent assets or liabilities and other norentrassets or liabilities on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets at December 31 aodi@sd:

2001 2000
Deferred tax asset (liability)--current... $ (8.3) $10.5
Deferred tax asset (liability)--noncurrent (55.3) 9.6
Net deferred tax asset (liability)........ $(63.6) $20.1

Significant components of the provision for incotares consist of the following:

2001 2000 1 999

$101.1$539% (2.6)

7.7 3.9 (7.0)

Total current tax expense (benefit) 108.8 57.8 (9.6)
Deferred tax expense.. . 746 444 19.8

Total income tax expense........... $183.4 $102.2 $ 10.2
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13. Income Taxes (continued)

Current federal income taxes consisted of amownsfar alternative minimum tax and tax obligati@fisubsidiaries not included in the
consolidated return of Anthem. During 2001, 2006 2899 federal income taxes paid totaled $74.1,326d $0.0, respectively.

A reconciliation between actual income tax exparsgthe amount computed at the statutory ratefisllasvs:

2001 2000 1999

Amount % Amount % Amount %

Amount at statutory rate................cceene.. .. $183.6 35.0 $115.4 35.0 $21.3 35.0
State and local income taxes (benefit) net of feder al

tax benefit.........ccocoeeiiiiiiiii .. 35 07 26 08 (4.8) (7.9
Amortization of goodwill .. 59 11 56 17 31 51
Dividends received deduction....................... . (1.4)(0.2) (1.2)(04) (@1.3) (2.1
Deferred tax valuation allowance change,

net of net operating loss carryforwards

and other tax creditS..........ccccoevvieeeennee .. (20.3) (3.9) (20.0) (6.0) (14.4) (23.7)
Other, Net.....oviiiiiieee e . 121 23 (0.2)(0.1) 6.3 104

$183.4 35.0 $102.2 31.0 $10.2 16.8

At December 31, 2001, the Company had unused federaet operating loss carryforwards of approxeha$189.1 to offset future taxable
income. The loss carryforwards expire in the y@a&@2 through 2019.

14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following is a reconciliation of the componentsaccumulated other comprehensive income at Dbee®il:

2 001 2000
Gross unrealized gains on investments........... $ 90.4 $199.1
Gross unrealized losses on investments.......... ( 18.4) (81.8)
Total pretax net unrealized gains on investments 72.0 117.3
Deferred tax liability.............cccceeennnee ( 25.4) (41.4)
Net unrealized gains on investments............. 46.6 75.9
Additional minimum pension liability............ (6.5) (7.2)
Deferred tax asset.........ccccceevvvveerennnns 23 25
Net additional minimum pension liability........ 4.2y 4.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income.......... $ 424 $71.2

A reconciliation of the change in unrealized aralized gains (losses) on investments included auiacilated other comprehensive income
follows:

2001 2000 1999
Change in pretax net unrealized gains on investment Sttt $155 $83.1 $(99.2)
Less change in deferred taxesS.......cccooveveeeeees e (5.3) (28.4) 36.9
Less net realized gains on investments, net of inco me taxes (2001, $21.3; 2000, $8.0;
1999, $11.3), included in NetiNCOME............. . L (39.5) (17.9) (26.2)
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investme NES. e $(29.3) $36.8 $(88.5)
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15. Leases

The Company leases office space and certain comggtepment using noncancelable operating leasdatdtl lease expense for 2001, 2000
and 1999 was $45.2, $64.0, and $60.9, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, future lease payments foratipg leases with initial or remaining noncancedalerms of one year or more consisted
of the following: 2002, $35.7; 2003, $32.0; 20027 ®; 2005, $24.4; 2006, $21.9; and thereafter 845

16. Retirement Benefits

Anthem Insurance and its subsidiary, Anthem HeRléms of New Hampshire, Inc. (which acquired theitess of BCBS-NH), sponsor
defined benefit pension plans. These plans gegagaller all full-time employees who have complete@ year of continuous service and
attained the age of twenty-one.

The Company's plan, which beginning January 1, 20@ludes all affiliates except for Anthem Heahtans of New Hampshire, Inc., is a
cash balance arrangement where participants hasecaunt balance and will earn a pay credit equtiree to six percent of compensation,
depending on years of service. In addition to e @edit, participant accounts earn interestrat@based on the 10-year Treasury notes.

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, Inc. sponagssn that is also a cash balance arrangememewglagticipants have an account
balance and will earn a pay credit equal to fiveepet of compensation. The participant accounts ederest at a rate based on the lesser of
the 1-year Treasury note or 7%.

Through December 31, 2000, a subsidiary of Rockymain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc. ("RMHM$f9rmerly known as BCBS-
CO/NV) sponsored a pension equity plan where thcgaants earn retirement credit percentages basdtieir age and service when the
credit was earned. A lump sum benefit is calculdecdach participant based on this formula. EffecDecember 31, 2000, the RMHMS p
was frozen and its participants became participafitise Company's plan on January 1, 2001. Effectipril 30, 2001, the RMHMS plan was
merged into the Company's plan.

Through December 31, 2000, Anthem Health Plans&ifi®] Inc. (which acquired the business of BCBS-Mi)nsored a final average pay
defined benefit plan with contributions made aai@ intended to fund the cost of benefits earnbd.dlan's benefits are based on years of
service and the participant's highest five yearage compensation during the last ten years of @mpgnt. Effective December 31, 2000, the
Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc. plan was merigéalthe Company's plan and its participants becpantcipants of the Company's plan
on January 1, 2001.

All of the plans' assets consist primarily of conmamd preferred stocks, bonds, notes, governmeatisies, investment funds and shtetm
investments. The funding policies for all plans tareontribute amounts at least sufficient to nteetminimum funding requirements set forth
in the Employee Retirement Income Security Act @ush additional amounts as are necessary to pragsets sufficient to meet the bene
to be paid to plan members.

The effect of acquisitions on the consolidated Eienbligation and plan assets is reflected throtlghbusiness combination lines of the ta
below.

In addition to the Company's defined benefit anfihée contribution plans, the Company offers masplyees certain life, health, vision ¢
dental benefits upon retirement. There are seydaab, which differ in amounts of coverage, dedles, retiree contributions, years of
service and retirement age. The Company fundsiodyemefit costs through contributions to a VoluptBmployees' Beneficiary Association
("VEBA") trust and others are accrued, with thérest paying a portion of the costs. Postretirenpéam assets held in the VEBA trust consist
primarily of bonds and equity securities.
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16. Retirement Benefits (continued)
The reconciliations of the benefit obligation baseda measurement date of September 30 are aw$ollo

Pension Ben efits Other Benefits

2001 2 000 2001 2000
71.8 $111.6 $117.1

Service COStu...uuuuiiiieeeeieninnnns . 27.3 15 13
Interest cost.............. 36.6 87 8.4
Plan amendments..... (1.2) 15 (5.2
Actuarial (gain) loss.. 35.4 31.7 (11.0)
Benefits paid................ . 53.1) (10.7) (8.0)
Business combinations.... 50.8 - 90

67.6 $144.3 $111.6

The changes in plan assets are as follows:

Pens ion Benefits Other Benefits

200 1 2000 2001 2000

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 65 0.6 $557.5 $28.4 $23.2

Actual return on plan assets.................. (11 5.7) 753 (3.6) 3.1
Employer contributions 3.0 300 20 1.2
Benefits paid................... 2.6) (53.1) (3.1) (3.7)
Business combinations - 409 - 46

Fair value of plan assets at end of year...... $49 5.3 $650.6 $23.7 $28.4

The reconciliations of the funded status to thebmeiefit cost accrued are as follows:

Pensi on Benefits Other Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000

Funded status.............ccccoeeiennnnne
Unrecognized net loss (gain).................
Unrecognized prior service cost..
Unrecognized transition asset................ -
Additional minimum liability................. (6.

Accrued benefit cost at September 30......... (16.

Payments made after the measurement date..... 76.

(61.5) (5.1) (44.1)

3) (22.8) (33.6) (41.9)

(1.0)

) (1.9) - -

1.0 27 26

$ (8.5) $(156.6) $(166.6)
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16. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The weighted average assumptions used in calcglt#tamaccrued liabilities for all plans are asdols:

Pension Bene fits Other Benefits

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Discount rate .... -7—.—25% 7.50% -750%725%750% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase......... 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 6.50% 6.27% 6.50%

The assumed health care cost trend rate used isumireg the other benefit obligations is generafty & 2000 and 7% in 1999, and is
assumed to decrease 1% per year to 5% throughrlegt&0, 2001. Beginning October 1, 2001, the assumealth care trend rate is 10%
decreasing 1% per year to 5% in 2007.

The health care cost trend rate assumption candaignificant effect on the amounts reported. &-parcentage-point change in assumed
health care cost trend rates would have the foligwaffects:

1-Percentage 1-Percentage
Point Point
Increase  Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost compon ents.... $0.4 $(0.4)
Effect on the accumulated postretirement benefit ob ligation 7.9 (6.5)

Below are the components of net periodic benefit:co

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

SEIVICE COSt...viiiraniiairaie e eeeaee e ..$29.3 $27.3 $26.6 $15 $13 $2.1
INterest COSt.......cocvvveeriiieieeiieeeee .. 409 36.6 314 87 84 6.2
Expected return on assets.............ccceeeeennee ... (65.1) (49.9) (39.6) (1.8) (1.4) (1.2)
Recognized actuarial (gain) l0ss................... .. 03 28 12 (1.7) 1.7) (2.4
Amortization of prior service cost................. ... (3.9 (3.3) (3.3) (6.8) (6.5 (5.9
Amortization of transition asset................... .. (1.0) 1.7 (20 - - -

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) before curtailme nts 10.5 11.8 14.3 (0.1) 0.1 (0.7)
Net settlement/curtailment credit.................. e == (19 - - -

Net periodic benefit cost (credit)................. ..$105 $11.8 $ 6.4 $(0.1) $0.1 $(0.7)

The net settlement/curtailment credit in 1999 refsum the divestitures of several non-core busiessas previously discussed in Note 3.

The Company has several qualified defined contidbuplans covering substantially all employeesgible employees may only participate
one plan. Voluntary employee contributions are imadcat the rate of 50%, up to a maximum dependaog the plan, subject to certain
limitations. Contributions made by the Company lexte$11.2, $10.3 and $8.7 during 2001, 2000 an® 1@%pectively.

81



ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
17. Contingencies
Litigation:

A number of managed care organizations have beshiaiclass action lawsuits asserting various caaaction under federal and state law.
These lawsuits typically allege that the defendaahaged care organizations employ policies andegioes for providing health care
benefits that are inconsistent with the terms efdbverage documents and other information providékdeir members, and because of these
misrepresentations and practices, a class of menhlasrbeen injured in that they received benefitssser value than the benefits represe

to and paid for by such members. Two such procgedirhich allege various violations of the EmplojRstirement Income Security Act of
1974 ("ERISA") have been filed in Connecticut agathe Company or its Connecticut subsidiary. Oeegeding was brought by the
Connecticut Attorney General on behalf of a purpdrtlass of HMO and Point of Service members inn@oticut. No monetary damages are
sought, although the suit does seek injunctiveféom the court to preclude the Company fromgatdly utilizing arbitrary coverage
guidelines, making late payments to providers omimers, denying coverage for medically necessarycpipgion drugs and misrepresenting
or failing to disclose essential information to@hees. The complaint contends that these allegéidigs and practices are a violation of
ERISA. A second proceeding, brought on behalf pfigoorted class of HMO and Point of Service membefSonnecticut and elsewhere,
seeks injunctive relief to preclude the Companyfialegedly making coverage decisions relating éolital necessity without complying
with the express terms of the policy documents,argpecified monetary damages (both compensatatpanitive).

In addition, the Company's Connecticut subsidiarg defendant in three class action lawsuits broogtbehalf of professional providers in
Connecticut. The suits allege that the Connectabsidiary has breached its contracts by, amorgy tiings, failing to pay for services in
accordance with the terms of the contracts. This silso allege violations of the Connecticut Unfaimde Practices Act, breach of the impl
duty of good faith and fair dealing, negligent rejgresentation and unjust enrichment. Two of this sgiek injunctive relief and monetary
damages (both compensatory and punitive). The #hiitd brought by the Connecticut State Medicali&gc seeks injunctive relief only.

The Company intends to vigorously defend thesegwdings. All of the proceedings are in the eardgess of litigation, and their ultimate
outcomes cannot presently be determined.

Following the purchase of Blue Cross and Blue Shi¢lMaine ("BCBS-ME"), appeals were filed by twarpes that intervened in the
administrative proceedings before Maine's Suparaeat of Insurance (the "Superintendent”), chailepthe Superintendent's decision
approving the conversion of BCBS-ME to a stock mesuwhich was a required step before the acqorsitn one appeal, Maine's Attorney
General requested the Court to modify the Superdeet's decision, by requiring BCBS-ME to submiuadate to the statutorily mandated
appraisal of its fair market value and to depagib the charitable foundation the difference betwtbe net proceeds that have been transi
to the foundation and the final value of BCBS-MEgrieater. In the other appeal, a consumers' gatgagpchallenged that portion of the
Superintendent's decision regarding the value 8®IE. On December 21, 2001, the Court issued amapaffirming the decision of the
Superintendent of Insurance approving the conversi@CBS-ME and the subsequent acquisition by Anthnsurance. The Consumers for
Affordable Health Care have appealed this decigiche Maine Supreme Judicial Court. The Attornen&al did not appeal the decision,
and the appeals time has passed. While the Consappeal is still pending, the Company does notbelthat the appeal will have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial positir results of operations.
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On March 11, 1998, Anthem Insurance and its Ohisisliary, Community Insurance Company ("CIC") weagned as defendants in a
lawsuit, Robert Lee Dardinger, Executor of the testd Esther Louise Dardinger v. Anthem Blue Crassd Blue Shield, et al., filed in the
Licking County Court of Common Pleas in Newark, @hihe plaintiff sought compensatory damages asgegified punitive damages in
connection with claims alleging wrongful death, faith and negligence arising out of the Compadgisial of certain claims for medical
treatment for Ms. Dardinger. On September 24, 1889jury returned a verdict for the plaintiff, awang $1,350 (actual dollars) for
compensatory damages, $2.5 for bad faith in cldiamlling and appeals processing, $49.0 for punitareages and unspecified attorneys'
fees in an amount to be determined by the cous.cturt later granted attorneys' fees of $0.8. ppeal of the verdict was filed by the
defendants on November 19, 1999. On May 22, 20@10Ohio Court of Appeals (Fifth District) affirmélde jury award of $1,350 (actual
dollars) for breach of contract against CIC, affihthe award of $2.5 compensatory damages forditidim claims handling and appeals
processing against CIC, but dismissed the claimg@tgments against Anthem Insurance. The countraigersed the award of $49.0 in
punitive damages against both Anthem InsuranceCd@dand remanded the question of punitive damagasst CIC to the trial court for a
new trial. Anthem Insurance and CIC, as well asplaitiff, appealed certain aspects of the denisibthe Ohio Court of Appeals. On
October 10, 2001, the Supreme Court of Ohio agredéear the plaintiff's appeal, including the qigsbf punitive damages, and denied the
cross-appeals of Anthem Insurance and CIC. In Dbeer2001, CIC paid the award of $2.5 compensatargatjes for bad faith and $1,350
(actual dollars) for breach of contract, plus aedrinterest. The ultimate outcome of the matteasit dhe the subject of the pending appeal
cannot be determined at this time.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, then@any is also involved in other pending and thmeadditigation of the character incidental
to the business transacted, arising out of itsramste and investment operations, and is from torterte involved as a party in various
governmental and administrative proceedings. Thag@amy believes that any liability that may reswinf any one of these actions is unlik
to have a material adverse effect on its consaiiedsults of operations or financial condition.

Other Contingencies:

The Company, like a number of other Blue CrossBiné Shield companies, serves as a fiscal interangdor Medicare Parts A and B. The
fiscal intermediaries for these programs receiu@barsement for certain costs and expendituresshvisi subject to adjustment upon audit by
the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid $esjiformerly the Health Care Financing Administrat The laws and regulations
governing fiscal intermediaries for the Medicaregram are complex, subject to interpretation amdecgose an intermediary to penalties for
non-compliance. Fiscal intermediaries may be stlgecriminal fines, civil penalties or other sapnos as a result of such audits or reviews.

In the last five years, at least eight Medicaredisntermediaries have made payments to setilesssaised by such audits and reviews. These
payments have ranged from $0.7 to $51.6, plus enpayby one company of $144.0. While the Comparligwes it is currently in

compliance in all material respects with the retjoies governing fiscal intermediaries, there argaing reviews by the federal governmen

the Company's activities under certain of its Madicfiscal intermediary contracts.

On December 8, 1999, Anthem Health Plans, Inc. PAlHa subsidiary of Anthem Insurance, reachedtiesgent agreement with the Office
of Inspector General ("OIG"), Department of Healtld Human Services, in the amount of $41.9, tolvesan investigation into misconduct
in the Medicare fiscal intermediary operations afeBCross & Blue Shield of Connecticut ("BCBS-CTAKP's predecessor. The period
investigated was before Anthem Insurance mergeld B@BS-CT. The resolution of this case involvedcriminal penalties against the
Company nor any suspension or exclusion from fégeograms. This expense was included in admiriisgaxpense in the statement of
consolidated income for the year ended Decembet39.

83



ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
17. Contingencies (continued)

AdminaStar Federal, Inc. ("AdminaStar"), a subsigdiaf Anthem Insurance, has received several sulgm&om the OIG and the U.S.
Department of Justice, one seeking documents dadrnation concerning its responsibilities as a Madé Part B contractor in its Kentucky
office, and the others requesting certain finangabrds and information of AdminaStar and Anthesurance related to the Company's
Medicare fiscal intermediary (Part A) and carrieaft B) operations. The Company has made certagtodures to the government relating to
its Medicare Part B operations in Kentucky. The @any was advised by the government that, in comjomaevith its ongoing review of the
matters, the government has also been reviewirgratpallegations made by individuals against Aé@tar, which are included within the
same timeframe and involve issues arising fronstrae nucleus of operative facts as the governmargsing review. The Company is not
in a position to predict either the ultimate outeoaf these reviews or the extent of any potentpbsure should claims be made against the
Company. However, the Company believes any fingmeaoalties that may arise from these reviews waootchave a material adverse effect
on the consolidated financial condition of the Camy

As a Blue Cross Blue Shield Association licenskee,Gompany participates in the Federal Employegr@no ("FEP"), a nationwide contract
with the Federal Office of Personnel Managememtréwide coverage to federal employees and theieggnts. On July 11, 2001, the
Company received a subpoena from the OIG, Offid@estonnel Management, seeking certain financiaents and information, includi
information concerning intercompany transactioelated to operations in Ohio, Indiana and Kentuahgler the FEP contract. The
government has advised the Company that, in cotipmuith its ongoing review, the government isoaleviewing a separate allegation
made by an individual against the Company's FERatipas, which is included within the same timefeaand involves issues arising from
the same nucleus of operative facts as the govern'srangoing review. The Company is currently caapeg with the OIG and the U.S.
Department of Justice on these matters. The Comisamyt in a position to predict either the ultimautcome of these reviews or the extent
of any potential exposure should claims be madaagthe Company. There can be no assurance #aitthate outcome of these reviews
will not have a material adverse effect on the Canyfs consolidated results of operations or fir@remndition.

Anthem Insurance guaranteed certain financial ogeticies of its subsidiary, Anthem Alliance Hedittburance Company ("Alliance"), unt

a contract between Alliance and the United Stagsaltment of Defense. Under that contract, Alliamamaged and administered the
TRICARE Managed Care Support Program for militamnflies from May 1, 1998 through May 31, 2001. Ehesas no call on the guarantee
for the period from May 1, 1998 to April 30, 1998hich period is now "closed"), and the Company duasanticipate a call on the guarantee
for the periods beginning May 1, 1999 through May 3001 (which periods remain "open" for possiledew by the Department of
Defense).

Vulnerability from Concentrations:

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consignprily of investment securities and
premiums receivable. All investment securitiesraenaged by professional investment managers wiihlicies authorized by the board of
directors. Such policies limit the amounts that rhayinvested in any one issuer and prescribe odrtaestee company criteria.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to prems receivable are limited due to the large numebemployer groups that constitute the
Company's customer base in the geographic regiowsich we conduct business. As of December 311 20f@re were no significant
concentrations of financial instruments in a siriglestee, industry or geographic location.
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ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
18. Segment Information

The Company's principal reportable segments aagegfic business units primarily delineated by gaphic areas that essentially offer similar
insurance products and services. They are managpedagely because each geographic region has umigtiet, regulatory and healthcare
delivery characteristics. The geographic regioes tre Midwest region, which operates primarilyridiana, Kentucky and Ohio; the East
region, which operates primarily in ConnecticutWNdampshire and Maine; and the West region, whipdrates in Colorado and Nevada.
BCBS-NH was added to the East region effective wilOctober 27, 1999 acquisition, while the Wesgfion was established following the
acquisition of BCBS-CO/NV on November 16, 1999. B&SBIE is included in the East segment since its isdtipn date of June 5, 2000.

In addition to its three principal reportable geaggric segments, the Company operates a Specigityese, which includes business units
providing group life and disability insurance betgfpharmacy benefit management, dental and visitministration services and third party
occupational health services. Various ancillaryifess units (reported with the Other segment) sbpsimarily of AdminaStar Federal whi
administers Medicare programs in Indiana, lllinégentucky and Ohio and Anthem Alliance, which pard health care benefits and
administration in nine states for the Departmerefense's TRICARE Program for military familiehel TRICARE operations were sold on
May 31, 2001. The Other segment also includessatgnent revenue and expense eliminations and atepexpenses not allocated to
reportable segments.

Through its participation in the Federal EmployeegPam, Medicare, Medicare at Risk, and TRICAREgPam, the Company generated
approximately 20%, 22% and 23% of its total cordatkd revenues from agencies of the U.S. governfoettie years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Company defines operating revenues to incluemipm income, administrative fees and other regen@perating revenues are derived
from premiums and fees received primarily from dhée and administration of health benefit produdserating expenses are comprised of
benefit and administrative expenses. The Compalcyledes operating gain or loss as operating rexdess operating expenses.

The accounting policies of the segments are the semthose described in the summary of signifiaaobunting policies except that certain
shared administrative expenses for each segmente@wgnized on a pro rata allocated basis, whicggregate approximates the consolid
expense. Any difference between the allocated esgeeand actual consolidated expense is includethar expenses not allocated to
reportable segments. Intersegment sales and expareseecorded at cost, and eliminated in the diofaded financial statements. The
Company evaluates performance of the reportablmeety based on operating gain or loss as defineekalihe Company evaluates
investment income, interest expense, amortizatiperse and income taxes, and asset and liabiligilsi@n a consolidated basis as these
items are managed in a corporate shared serviémament and are not the responsibility of segnogrtrating management.

The following tables present financial data by meploie segment for each of the years ended Decedih@001, 2000 and 1999:

Reportable Segments

Other and
Midwest East West Specialty Eliminations Total

2001
Operating revenue from external
CUStOMETS.....c.verivrinne $5,093.0 $3,667.3 $ 774.4 $182.1 $403.5 $10,120.3
Intersegment revenues.......... -- -- - 2140 (214.0)
Operating gain (loss).......... 1615 128.8 20.1 329 (23.8) 319.5
Depreciation and amortization.. 1.0 2.4 28 26 80.8 89.6
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ANTHEM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)

18. Segment Information (continued)

Midwest East

2000

Operating revenue from external
CUSIOMETrS......covverrriee. $4,452.3 $2,921.9 %

Intersegment revenues.......... 8.2

Operating gain (loss).......... 87.8 103.8

Depreciation and amortization.. 16.9 17.1

Midwest East
1999
Operating revenue from external
customers........c.cceeeee. $3,968.0 $1,598.9
Intersegment revenues.......... 7.5 --
Operating gain (loss).......... 36.4 (0.9)

Depreciation and amortization.. 16.6 8.5

eportable Segments

Other and
West Specialty Eliminations Total

622.4 $188.8 $358.1 $8,5435
-~ 1435 (151.7) -
25 249 (349) 1841
87 21 305 753

Reportable Segments

Other and
West Specialty Eliminations Total

$72.7 $1454 $295.6 $6,080.6
~ 1037 (111.2) -
(35) 162  (19.7) 285
05 14 201 471

Asset and equity details by reportable segment havbeen disclosed, as they are not reportedhaligroy the Company.

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includédeirconsolidated statements of income

for 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

Reportable segments operating revenues $10,120.3 $8

Net investment income................. 238.6
Net realized gains on investments.....
Gain on sale of subsidiary operations.

Total revenues................

60.8
25.0 - -

. $10,444.7 $8

2000 1999

,543.5 $6,080.6
201.6 152.0
259 375

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingnga income from continuing operations before imeotaxes and minority interest incluc
in the consolidated statements of income for 2Q0D0 and 1999 is as follows:

Reportable segments operating gain.................
Net investment income...........cocccveeeennnnnen.

Net realized gains on investments
Gain on sale of subsidiary operations..............
INterest eXPense.........couvvvvveeviiiiieneeennens
Amortization of goodwill and other intangible asset
Endowment of non-profit foundations................
Demutualization expenses..........cccccceeeveenee

Income from continuing operations before income tax
INterest........coovvieiiiiiiiicice

2001 2000 1999
$319.5 $184.1 $ 285
238.6 201.6 152.0
60.8 25.9 37.5

250 - -

... (60.2) (54.7) (30.4)
.. (31.5) (27.1) (12.7)
.- - 14

es and minority
$524.6 $329.8 $ 60.8

86



ANTHEM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(Contin ued)
19. Statutory Information

Statutory-basis capital and surplus of Anthem lasae amounted to $2,338.7 and $1,907.5 at Dece®db@001 and 2000, respectively.
Statutory-basis net income of Anthem Insurance $486.9, $91.7 and $201.7 for 2001, 2000 and 193®ectively. Statutory-basis capital
and surplus of Anthem Insurance is subject to e#guy restrictions with respect to amounts avaddbt dividends to Anthem.

In 1998, the National Association of Insurance Cassioners adopted codified statutory accountinggiples ("Codification") which becan
effective January 1, 2001. Codification resultedhianges to certain accounting practices that Antlmsurance and its insurance subsidiaries
use to prepare statutory-basis financial statem&htsimpact of these changes was not significant.

20. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2001 Data
Total revenues.........cccceeeeeeeniieeiieeene. .. $2,560.5 $2,558.3 $2,663.7 $2,662.2
Operating gain..........coovecvvvvviieneeeenennn. .. 599 734 79.1 107.1
Net iNnCOMe.......ccevveiiiiiiee e .. 70,6 724 1115 87.7
Pro forma basic earnings per share................. .. 0.68 0.70 1.08 0.85
Pro forma diluted earnings per share............... .. 0.68 0.70 1.07 0.85
Basic and diluted net income per share for the peri od
from November 2, 2001 (date of demutualization
and initial public offering) to December 31, 2001 . - - - 0.54
2000 Data
Total reVeNnUEeS.......cccveveevveieecieeieeeeen ..$1,962.1 $2,104.1 $2,320.0 $2,384.8
Operating gaiN..........cceveiveereniiieeeennis . 324 342 53.3 64.2
Net iNCOME.......ccuveeeiiiiiiee e, .. 404 499 63.5 72.2
Pro forma basic earnings per share................. .. 039 048 0.62 0.70
Pro forma diluted earnings per share............... .. 039 048 0.61 0.70

There were no shares or dilutive securities outstenprior to the demutualization and initial pubdiffering. For comparative pro forma
earnings per share presentation, the weighted geesfzares outstanding and the effect of dilutiveisges for the period from November 2,
2001 to December 31, 2001 was used to calculatéopma earnings per share for all periods presented

21. Subsequent Events

Anthem's Board of Directors approved a common stepkirchase program under which management hasdoieorized to purchase up to
$400.0 worth of shares, subject to business and@haonditions. Shares may be repurchased in tae oparket and in negotiated
transactions for a period of twelve months begigritebruary 6, 2002.

On May 30, 2001, Anthem Insurance and Blue CrodsBine Shield of Kansas ("BCBKS") signed a definitive agreement pursuant to W
BCBS-KS would become a wholly-owned subsidiary ati#em Insurance. Under the proposed transactioBRKS would demutualize and
convert to a stock insurance company. The agreecadistfor Anthem Insurance to pay $190.0 in exdesior all of the shares of BCBS-KS.
On February 11, 2002, the Kansas Insurance Cononissilisapproved the proposed transaction, whidiblean previously approved by the
BCBS-KS policyholders in January 2002. On Februd#y2002, the board of directors of BCBS-KS votednimously to appeal the Kansas
Insurance Commissioner's decision and BCBS-KSsgitk to have the decision overturned in Shawneatgdistrict Court. The Company
will join BCBS-KS in the appeal.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreementshgitBompany's independent certified public acamiston accounting or financial
disclosures.

PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT.

The information required by this Item concerning Birectors and nominees for Director of the Conypamd concerning disclosure of
delinquent filers under Section 16(a) of the Exgj@Act is incorporated herein by reference fromGoenpany's definitive Proxy Statement
for its 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, whigh be filed with the Commission pursuant to Reaidn 14A within 120 days after the
end of the Company's last fiscal year. Informationcerning the executive officers of the Comparnpdtuded under the caption "Executive
Officers of the Company" at the end of Part | a§ thnnual Report. Such information is incorporatedein by reference, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K and InstrotB to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item concerninmumeration of the Company's officers and Directord information concerning material
transactions involving such officers and Directigricorporated herein by reference from the Coryijsagefinitive Proxy Statement for its
2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders which will Bed with the Commission pursuant to Regulation ddithin 120 days after the end of
the Company's last fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The information required by this Iltem concerning gtock ownership of management and five percemdfimal owners is incorporated her
by reference from the Company's definitive Proxat&nent for its 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholaengch will be filed with the
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 12@gafter the end of the Company's last fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS.

The information required by this Item concerningi@im relationships and related transactions isfiporated herein by reference from the
Company's definitive Proxy Statement for its 200thal Meeting of Shareholders which will be filedhwthe Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of @@mpany's last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.
(@) 1. Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statementshaf Company and its subsidiaries are set forthaim IP, Item 8.
Report of Independent Auditors

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 26064 2000
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseiicember 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equitthfoyears ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaidled December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule
The following financial statement schedule of thepany is included in Item 14(d):
Schedule lI--Condensed Financial Information of Regnt (Parent Company Only).

All other schedules for which provision is maddhe applicable accounting regulations of the Séiesrand Exchange Commission are not
required under the related instructions, are iriapple, or the required information is includedhe consolidated financial statements, and
therefore have been omitted.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbis report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitdjich immediately precedes such exhibits, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
The following Current Reports on Form 8-K werediler furnished during the fourth quarter of 2001:

1. Form 8-K filed November 14, 2001 attaching aspnelease dated November 14, 2001, announcingcfadaesults for the third quarter
2001.

2. Form 8-K furnished, not filed, December 17, 2@€dorting meetings at which it was expected thatiegs expectations previously
reported would be confirmed.
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(d) Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule lI--Condensed Financial Information of Reigtrant

Anthem, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2001

(In Millions,
Except Share Data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........ccccccceeeee.. $ 246
Interest receivable..........cccoovveeeeeee. e 0.8
Total CUreNt @SSetS....ccovvvvvciiiiiiiieiees 25.4
Investment in subsidiary.......ccccovvvccceeees e 2,259.0
Total ASSeLS.uuviieiiiiiic e e $2,284.4

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses............ e $ 23
Income taxes payable........ccoocenvceecccees 1.9
Total current liabilities.............cccccceeeee 4.2
Debentures included in Equity Security Units....... 220.2
Total labilities.......oooeviiiiiiiee e 224.4
Shareholders' equity
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorized--9 00,000,000; shares issued and
outstanding: 103,295,675.....ccccceeeeveveveeceee 1.1
Additional paid in capital..............c.......... 1,960.8
Retained earnings 55.7
Accumulated other comprehensive income............. 42.4
Total shareholders' equUity......cccccoeeeevceeees e 2,060.0
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity.......... L $2,284.4

See accompanying notes.
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Schedule lI--Condensed Financial Information of Reigtrant--(continued)

Anthem, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Income

For the Period from
November 2, 2001
(Date of Demutualization
and Initial Public Offering)
to December 31, 2001

(In Millions)
Revenues
Net investmentincome.........cccoocvvvvevvceeeee. L $7.7
Expenses
Interest eXPenSe....ccccvveeeveveveeeeeeeieieeeeee 2.6
Income before income taxes........cccoeveeveveeeee L 5.1
INCOME taXES...ovvviiiiii i 1.9
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of s ubsidiary 3.2
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary..... ... 52.5
NetinCOMe....cccvvvveiiicieiceee e $55.7

See accompanying notes.
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Schedule lI--Condensed Financial Information of Reigtrant--(continued)

Anthem, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Period f rom
November 2, 20 01
(Date of Demutuali zation
and Initial Public O ffering)
to December 31, 2001
(In Millions)
Operating activities
NELINCOME. ..o $ 557
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pro vided by operating activities:
Undistributed earnings of subsidiary............ . (52.5)
Amortization of debt issuance COStS............. L 0.3
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Interest receivable............cccccceee (0.8)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses....... 2.3
INCOME taXesS......coevvvvreiriiiieenins 1.9
Cash provided by operating activities.............. s 6.9
Investing activities
Capital contribution to subsidiary........ccccceee.. (28.9)
Cash used in investing activities................. s (28.9)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from common stock issued in the initia | public offering............. 1,890.4
Net proceeds from issuance of Equity Security Units s 219.8
Payments to eligible statutory members in the demut ualization............c....... (2,063.6)
Cash provided by financing activities.............. s 46.6
Change in cash and cash equivalents................ s 24.6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period... --
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.......... $ 246

See accompanying notes.
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Schedule lI--Condensed Financial Information of Reigtrant--(continued)

Anthem, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(Dollars in Millions)
1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accouniagjcy

On November 2, 2001, Anthem Insurance Companies(1Anthem Insurance") converted from a mutualmsice company to a stock
insurance company. The demutualization was accduoteas a reorganization using the historicalyiag values of the assets and liabilities
of Anthem Insurance. Accordingly, immediately follmg the demutualization and the initial publicarfhg, Anthem Insurance's
policyholders' surplus was reclassified to par gaficommon stock and additional paid in capitain€irrent with the demutualization,
Anthem Insurance became a wholly-owned subsiditdnthem, Inc. ("Anthem").

In the parent company financial statements, Anthénvestment in subsidiary is stated at cost piusty in undistributed earnings of the
subsidiary since the effective date of the demigatibn on November 2, 2001. Anthem's share ofrreime of its unconsolidated subsidiary
is included in income using the equity method afcamting.

Parent company only financial statements shouldhd in conjunction with Anthem's audited consdéddinancial statements and the
accompanying notes thereto included in Part Iml&of this Form 10-K.

2. Investment in Subsidiary
Following the demutualization and initial publidefing, Anthem made a capital contribution to Amthinsurance in the amount of $28.9.
3. Long Term Debt

On November 2, 2001, Anthem issued 4,600,000 df%.&quity Security Units. Each Unit contains a 3®8ubordinated debenture. The
debentures are unsecured and are subordinateghirofipayment to all of Anthem's existing and fetsenior indebtedness. The debentures
will mature on November 15, 2006. Each debentutkiniiially bear interest at the rate of 5.95% pyear, payable quarterly, commencing
February 15, 2002, subject to Anthem's rights ferdinese payments.

On November 5, 2001, Anthem and Anthem Insurantered into two new unsecured revolving credit faes totaling $800.0. Anthem is
jointly and severally liable for all borrowings wrcthe facilities. Anthem also will be permittedite a borrower under the facilities, if t
Indiana Insurance Commissioner approves Anthenramse's joint liability for Anthem's obligations der the facilities. Each credit
agreement requires Anthem to maintain certain firmatios and contains minimal restrictive covesaAvailability under these facilities is
reduced by the amount of any commercial paperaudatg under Anthem Insurance's commercial papmgram. No amounts were
outstanding under these facilities at Decembe@8@}1 or during the year then ended.

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, Anthem and Anthsanance entered into two new agreements alloagugegate indebtedness of
$135.0. Anthem will guarantee all obligations oftAem Insurance under the facilities. Anthem alsblvei permitted to be a borrower under
the facilities, if the Indiana Insurance Commisgioapproves Anthem Insurance's guarantee of Anghelofigations under the facilities.

93



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

ANTHEM, INC.

By: /sl LARRY C. GLASSCOCK

Larry C. d asscock
Presi dent and Chi ef Executive
Oficer
Dat ed: March 25, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Name Title Dat e

/sl  LARRY C. GLASSCOCK Presi dent, Chief Executive March 25, 2002
----------------------------- O ficer and Director

Larry C. d asscock (Principal Executive
O ficer)
/S MCHAEL L. SMTH Executive Vice President and Mrch 25, 2002
----------------------------- Chi ef Financial and
M chael L. Smith Accounting O ficer

(Principal Financial and
Pri nci pal Accounting

O ficer)
/'SI L. BEN LYTLE Di rect or March 25, 2002
O UBeniytle
/'S SUSAN B. BAYH Di rector March 25, 2002
© susan B Bayh
IS/ WLLIAM B. HART Di rect or March 25, 2002
““““ WiliamB Hart
/'S ALLAN B. HUBBARD Di rector March 25, 2002
“““ Alan B Hubbard
/Sl VICTOR S. LISS Di rect or March 25, 2002
““““ Victor S Liss
/'Sl WLLIAM G MAYS Di rector March 25, 2002
““““ WiliamG Mys
/'Sl JAVMES W MCDOWELL, JR. Director March 25, 2002
©James W McDovell, Jr.
/'Sl B. LARAE ORULLI AN Di rector March 25, 2002
B LaRee Grullian
/'SI  DONALD W RIEGLE, JR Di rector March 25, 2002

Senator Donald W Riegle, Jr.
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/sl WLLIAMJ. RYAN Di rector March 25, 2002

/sl CGEORGE A. SCHAEFER, JR Director March 25, 2002

George A. Schaefer, Jr.
/sl DENNI'S J. SULLIVAN, JR Director March 25, 2002

Dennis J. Sullivan, Jr.
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10.6* Employment Agreement by and between Anthem
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10.7* (i) Employment Agreement by and between A
(i) Employ g Yy
Dorr, dated as of January 1, 1999 (1)

(ii) Amendment One to Employment Agreement
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(i) Amendment Two to Employment Agreement
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EXHIBIT 10.5(ii)

AMENDMENT ONE
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by andetween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an Indisaance

company (the "Company") and Samuel R. Nussbaum, Kthe "Executive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENTREEMENT (the
"Agreement") between the parties dated as of thé/2fay of January, 2001, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2003.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeehduly executed this AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.
Sanuel R Nussbaum M D. Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/'s/ Samuel R Nussbaum By: [/s/ Larry C. d asscock

Name: Larry C. d asscock

Title: President and CEO



EXHIBIT 10.7(v)

AMENDMENT FOUR
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT FOUR TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by argetween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an ladigurance

company (the "Company") and Marjorie W. Dorr (tl&&cutive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGREEME(He "Agreement")
between the parties dated as of the 1/st/ daymfalg, 1999, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2004.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement, includipgragraph 2 and 3 of Amendment Three, shall reindinll force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeehduly executed this AMENDMENT FOUR TO EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.
Marjorie W Dorr Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/sl Marjorie W Dorr By: [/s/ Larry C. d asscock

Name: Larry C. d asscock

Title: President and CEO



EXHIBIT 10.8(iv)

AMENDMENT THREE
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT THREE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by anlgetween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an madiasurance
company (the "Company") and Keith R. Faller (thee&utive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENHAe("Agreement”)
between the parties dated as of the 1/st/ daymfalg, 1999, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2004.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executiaeehduly executed this AMENDMENT THREE TO EMPLOYMEN
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.

Keith R Faller Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/sl Keith R Faller By: /sl Larry G d asscock

Name: Larry C. Glasscoc

Title: President and CE



EXHIBIT 10.9(ii)
AMENDMENT ONE
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by andebween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an Indissuaance
company (the "Company") and Michael D. Houk (thee€utive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENie("Agreement")
between the parties dated as of the 12th day ofistu@000, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2003.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeeduly executed this AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firsbwedowritten.

M chael D. Houk Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, |nc.

/'s/ M chael D. Houk By: /sl Larry C. d asscock

Name: Larry C. Glasscoc

Title: President and CE



EXHIBIT 10.10(iv)

AMENDMENT THREE
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT THREE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by anlgetween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an madiasurance
company (the "Company") and Caroline S. MattheWws (Executive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGRHEENT (the
"Agreement") between the parties dated as of thié day of April, 1999, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2003.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeehduly executed this AMENDMENT THREE TO EMPLOYMEN
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.
Caroline S. Matthews Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/sl Caroline S. Matthews By: [/s/ Larry C. d asscock

Name: Larry C. d asscock

Title: President and CEO



EXHIBIT 10.11ii)

AMENDMENT ONE
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by andetween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an Indisaance
company (the "Company") and John Murphy

(the "Executive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGREENT (the "Agreement")

between the parties dated as of the 6/th/ day pteG&er, 2000, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminak#e and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2003.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeehduly executed this AMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.

John Mur phy Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/'s/ John Mur phy By: [/s/ Larry C. dasscock

Name: Larry C. d asscock

Title: President and CEO



EXHIBIT 10.12(jii)

AMENDMENT TWO
TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TWO TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT by anddiween Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc., an Indiswance
company (the "Company") and Jane E. Niederberper"@Executive") hereby amends the EMPLOYMENT AGRHEENT (the "Agreement")
between the parties dated as of the 22/nd/ daglfirary, 1999, as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 2002, Section 2 of the &grent is hereby amended by deleting the terminakite and inserting in place thereof the
31/st/ day of December, 2003.

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall rémia full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Executaeenduly executed this AMENDMENT TWO TO EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT effective as of the day and year firshabwritten.

Jane E. Ni ederberger Ant hem | nsurance Conpani es, Inc.

/'s/ Jane E. Ni ederberger By: /sl Larry C. d asscock

Name: Larry C. d asscock

Title: President and CE



Exhibit 10.22
BLUE CROSS LICENSE AGREEMENT
(Includes revisions, if any, adopted by Member Bldmough their June 15, 2001 meeting)

This agreement by and between Blue Cross and BligddSAssociation ("BCBSA") and The Blue Cross Rlamown as Anthem, Inc. (the
"Plan").

Preamble

WHEREAS, the Plan and/or its predecessor(s) irréstgcollectively the "Plan") had the right to use BLUE CROSS and BLUE CROSS
Design service marks (collectively the "Licensedrkéd) for health care plans in its service areaiciiwas essentially local in nature;

WHEREAS, the Plan was desirous of assuring natideysrotection of the Licensed Marks, maintainingarm quality controls among
Plans, facilitating the provision of cost effectivealth care services to the public and otherwgsefiting the public;

WHEREAS, to better attain such ends, the Plan bagtedecessor of BCBSA in 1972 simultaneously @eelcthe BCA License Agreement
(s) and the Ownership Agreement; and

WHEREAS, BCBSA and the Plan desire to supercedkAgieement(s) to reflect their current practiced to assure the continued integrity
of the Licensed Marks and of the BLUE CROSS system;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl he mutual agreements hereinafter set fortif@nother good and valuab
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties agree asvigil



Agreement

1. BCBSA hereby grants to the Plan, upon the temasconditions of this License Agreement, the righise BLUE CROSS in its trade
and/or corporate name (the "Licensed Name"), aadigt to use the Licensed Marks, in the sale katarg and administration of health care
plans and related services in the Service Arefosiit and defined in paragraph 5 below. As usee@ihehealth care plans and related services
shall include acting as a nonprofit health cara péafor-profit health care plan, or mutual heatisurer operating on a not-for-profit or for-
profit basis, under state law; financing accedsa@lth care services; providing health care manageand administration; administering, but
not underwriting, non-health portions of Workersn@pensation insurance; and delivering health caméces, except hospital services (as
defined in the Guidelines to Membership Standarggliéable to Regular Members).

2. The Plan may use the Licensed Marks and Naroerinection with the offering of: a) health carensland related services in the Service
Area through Controlled Affiliates, provided thatol such Controlled Affiliate is separately licethée use the Licensed Marks and Name
under the terms and conditions contained in theeAgrent attached as Exhibit 1 hereto (the "ContidMffiliate License Agreement"); and:
insurance coverages offered by life insurers uttteapplicable law in the Service Area, other ttherse which the Plan may offer in its own
name, provided through Controlled Affiliates, prbed that each such Controlled Affiliate is sepdydteensed to use the Licensed Marks
Name under the terms and conditions containedetireement attached as Exhibit 1A hereto (the t@tad Affiliate License Agreemet
Applicable to Life Insurance Companies") and furthevided that the offering of such services doatsand will not dilute or tarnish the
unique value of the Licensed Marks and Name; aratlojinistration and underwriting of Workers' Comgeion Insurance Controlled
Affiliates, provided that each such Controlled Affie is separately licensed to use the Licenserk&/and Name under the terms and
conditions contained in the Agreement attachedxdibif 1 hereto (the "Controlled Affiliate Licensg.As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate
is defined as an entity organized and operatedéh & manner that it is subject to the bona fidgrobof a Plan or Plans and, if the entity
meets the standards of subparagraph B but not mdma@h A of this paragraph, the entity, its ownarsl persons with authority to select or
appoint members or board members, other than adPlBtans, have received written approval of BCBBBsent written approval by
BCBSA of an alternative method of control, bonafabntrol shall mean that a Plan or Plans authdtizeise the Licensed Marks in the
Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate pursuaotthis License Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other tsanh Controlled Affiliate's License
Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(s)"), must éav

A. The legal authority, directly or indirectly thrgh wholly-owned subsidiaries: (a) to select memsloéithe Controlled Affiliate's governing
body having more than 50% voting control therebf;tp exercise control over the policy and operatiof the Controlled Affiliate; (c) to
prevent any change in the articles of incorporatimytaws or other establishing or governing docutmefthe Controlled Affiliate with which
the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur. In addita Plan or Plans directly or indirectly througholly-owned subsidiaries shall own more
than 50% of any for-profit Controlled Affiliate; or

Amended as of March 11, 1999



B. The legal authority directly or indirectly thrglu wholly-owned subsidiaries (a) to select membétbe Controlled Affiliate's governing
body having not less than 50% voting control th&rg) to prevent any change in the articles obimporation, bylaws or other establishing or
governing documents of the Controlled Affiliate lvihich the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not conga);to exercise control over the policy
and operations of the Controlled Affiliate at leagtial to that exercised by persons or entitigat(joor individually) other than the
Controlling Plan(s). Notwithstanding anything t@ tbontrary in (a) through (c) hereof, the Contildfiliate's establishing or governing
documents must also require written approval byGbaetrolling Plan(s) before the Controlled Affikatan:

1. Change its legal and/or trade name;

2. Change the geographic area in which it operates;

3. Change any of the types of businesses in whiehgages;

4. Create, or become liable for by way of guarardaey indebtedness, other than indebtedness aiisihg ordinary course of business;
5. Sell any assets, except for sales in the orgioaurse of business or sales of equipment no lomggful or being replaced;

6. Make any loans or advances except in the ongicaurse of business;

7. Enter into any arrangement or agreement withpamty directly or indirectly affiliated with anyf the owners of the Controlled Affiliate or
persons or entities with the authority to selecagpoint members or board members of the Contréiféliate, other than the Plan or Plans
(excluding owners of stock holdings of under 5% ipublicly traded Controlled Affiliate);

8. Conduct any business other than under the LétkENgarks and Name;
9. Take any action that any Controlling Plan or BB2Breasonably believes will adversely affect theelnised Marks or Names.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtiyough wholly owned subsidiaries shall own ast&#®% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

Amended as of June 11, 1998 -2a-
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3. The Plan may engage in activities not requine8B8BSA to be directly licensed through Controlkffiliates and may indicate its
relationship thereto by use of the Licensed Name tag line, provided that the engaging in suclvitiets does not and will not dilute or
tarnish the unique value of the Licensed MarksMadhe and further provided that such tag line us®isn a manner likely to cause
confusion or mistake. Consistent with the avoidasfogonfusion or mistake, each tag line use ofRRfam's Licensed Name: (a) shall be in the
style and manner specified by BCBSA from time-tuodj (b) shall not include the design service mai®sshall not be in a manner to import
more than the Plan's mere ownership of the Coettdiiffiliate; and (d) shall be restricted to thenBee Area. No rights are hereby created in
any Controlled Affiliate to use the Licensed Naméts own name or otherwise. At least annually,Rlen shall provide BCBSA with
representative samples of each such use of ith&émkName pursuant to the foregoing conditions.

4. The Plan recognizes the importance of a compsbe national network of independent BCBSA licassevhich are committed to
strengthening the Licensed Marks and Name. ThefRtdmer recognizes that its actions within its\B& Area may affect the value of the
Licensed Marks and Name nationwide. The Plan agegds maintain in good standing its membershiB@BSA; (b) promptly to pay its
dues to BCBSA, said dues to represent the roydtirethis License Agreement; (c) materially to cdynwith all applicable laws; (d) to
comply with the Membership Standards Applicabl®egular Members of BCBSA, a current copy of whighttached as Exhibit 2 hereto;
and (e) reasonably to permit BCBSA, upon a writtgrod faith request and during reasonable busimasss, to inspect the Plan's books and
records necessary to ascertain compliance herefstho other Plans and third parties, BCBSA shalintain the confidentiality of all
documents and information furnished by the Plaspamt hereto, or pursuant to the Membership Stdsdand clearly designated by the F
as containing proprietary information of the Plan.

5. The rights hereby granted are exclusive to tha Rithin the geographical area(s) served by the Bn June 30, 1972, and/or as to which
the Plan has been granted a subsequent licensgh stiereby defined as the "Service Area," extiegitBCBSA reserves the right to use the
Licensed Marks in said Service Area, and exceflidaextent that said Service Area may overlap aengd by one or more other licensed
Blue Cross Plans as of said date or subsequensb¢cas to which overlapping areas the rights lyagednted are nonexclusive as to such
other Plan or Plans only.

Amended as of November 20, 1997



6. Except as expressly provided by BCBSA with respe National Accounts, Government Programs amthiceother necessary and
collateral uses, the current rules and regulatimerning which are attached as Exhibit 3 and EkHibereto, or as expressly provided
herein, the Plan may not use the Licensed Markd\amde outside the Service Area or in connectioh wiher goods and services, nor may
the Plan use the Licensed Marks or Name in a mamhieh is intended to transfer in the Service Ateagoodwill associated therewith to
another mark or name. Nothing herein shall be coedtto prevent the Plan from engaging in lawftivity anywhere under other marks and
names not confusingly similar to the Licensed Makd Name, provided that engaging in such actoitys and will not dilute or tarnish the
unique value of the Licensed Marks and Name. Irtidto any and all remedies available hereunB&@BSA may impose monetary fines
the Plan for the Plan's use of the Licensed MankisNeames outside the Service Area provided thaptbeedure used in imposing a fine is
consistent with procedures specifically prescribgdCBSA from time to time in regulations of gerleapplication.

7. The Plan agrees that it will display the LicahMarks and Name only in such form, style and maaseshall be specifically prescribed by
BCBSA from time-totime in regulations of general application in ortieprevent impairment of the distinctiveness & ticensed Marks at
Name and the goodwill pertaining thereto. The Rlaall cause to appear on all materials on or imeotion with which the Licensed Mar

or Name are used such legends, markings and netscBEBSA may reasonably request in order to gdprapriate notice of service mark or
other proprietary rights therein or pertaining #gier

8. BCBSA agrees that: (a) it will not grant anyeatlicense effective during the term of this Licedggreement for the use of the Licensed
Marks or Name which is inconsistent with the rigtmtanted to the Plan hereunder; and

(b) it will not itself use the Licensed Marks inrdgation of the rights of the Plan or in a maneedéprive the Plan of the full benefits of this
License Agreement. The Plan agrees that it willattzck the title of BCBSA in and to the Licensedrkis or Name or attack the validity of
the Licensed Marks or of this License Agreement Phan further agrees that all use by it of theehged Marks and Name or any similar
mark or name shall inure to the benefit of BCBS#q ¢he Plan shall cooperate with BCBSA in effedhgathe assignment to BCBSA of any
service mark or trademark registrations of the hégel Marks or any similar mark or name held byRtam or a Controlled Affiliate of the
Plan, all or any portion of which registration cts of the Licensed Marks.

Amended November 18, 1999



9. (a). Should the Plan fail to comply with the yisbons of paragraphs 2-4, 6, 7 and/or 12, anccag such failure within thirty (30) days of
receiving written notice thereof (or commence cgidch failure within such thirty day period andhtioue diligent efforts to complete the
curing of such failure if such curing cannot readuy be completed within such thirty day period;BSA shall have the right to issue a
notice that the Plan is in a state of noncompliaBxeept as to the termination of a Plan's Licehgeement or the merger of two or more
Plans, disputes as to noncompliance, and all alisputes between or among BCBSA, the Plan, otlersPdnd/or Controlled Affiliates, shall
be submitted promptly to mediation and mandatosputie resolution pursuant to the rules and reguiatof BCBSA, a current copy of which
is attached as Exhibit 5 hereto, and shall be timetsented and resolved. The mandatory disputduteesn panel shall have authority to issue
orders for specific performance and assess monptaralties. If a state of noncompliance as afoddsaindisputed by the Plan or is found to
exist by a mandatory dispute resolution panel anthcured as provided above, BCBSA shall haveig to seek judicial enforcement of-
License Agreement. Except, however, as providgahnagraphs 9(d)(iii) and 15(a)(i)-(viii) below, Rtan's license to use the Licensed Marks
and Name may be finally terminated for any reasidhomt the affirmative vote of three-fourths of tRkans and three-fourths of the total then
current weighted vote of all the Plans.

(b). Notwithstanding any other provision of thisénse Agreement, a Plan's license to use the ledevisrks and Name may be forthwith
terminated by the affirmative vote of three-fourttighe Plans and three-fourths of the total thement weighted vote of all the Plans at a
special meeting expressly called by BCBSA for thegppse on ten (10) days written notice to the Ridwising of the specific matters at issue
and granting the Plan an opportunity to be headitampresent its response to Member Plans fofai{i)re to comply with any minimum

capital or liquidity requirement under the MembépsBtandard on Financial Responsibility; or (ii)gending financial insolvency; or

(iii) the pendency of any action instituted agaiinet Plan seeking its dissolution or liquidatioriterassets or seeking appointment of a trustee
interim trustee, receiver or other custodian for ahits property or business or seeking the detiam or establishment of a trust for any of its
property of business, unless this License Agreerasibeen earlier terminated under paragraph 1&(&);) such other reason as is
determined in good faith immediately and irrepaydblthreaten the integrity and reputation of BCB&#e Plans and/or the Licensed Marks.

(c). To the extent not otherwise provided theragither: (i) the Membership Standards Applicabl®émular Members of BCBSA; nor (ii)
the rules and regulations governing National Acésu@overnment Programs and certain other usegjindhe rules and regulations
governing mediation and mandatory dispute resatutisay be amended unless and until each such aneedsrfirst adopted by the
affirmative vote of three-fourths of the Plans afithree-fourths of the total then current weightete of all the Plans.

Amended as of March 11, 1999



9. (d). The Plan may operate as a for-profit corgganthe following conditions:

() The Plan shall discharge all responsibilitidsiet it has to the Association and to other Plansitiue of this Agreement and the Plan's
membership in BCBSA.

(i) The Plan shall not use the licensed Marks Badhe, or any derivative thereof, as part of italegame or any symbol used to identify the
Plan in any securities market. The Plan shall heditensed Marks and Name as part of its tradeenaithin its service area for the sale,
marketing and administration of health care analteel services in the service area.

(iii) The Plan's license to use the Licensed Mankd Name shall automatically terminate effectigg:thirty days after the Plan knows, or
there is an SEC filing indicating that, any Inditnal Investor, has become the Beneficial Owneseafurities representing 10% or more of
voting power of the Plan ("Excess Institutional 83}, unless such Excess Institutional Voter sbadlse to be an Excess Institutional Voter
prior to such automatic termination becoming effext(b) thirty days after the Plan knows, or thisran SEC filing indicating that, any
Noninstitutional Investor has become the Benefi@alner of securities representing 5% or more ofviiteng power of the Plan ("Exce
Noninstitutional Voter") unless such Excess Noringbnal Voter shall cease to be an Excess Notirigtnal Voter prior to such automat
termination becoming effective; (c) thirty dayseafthe Plan knows, or there is an SEC filing inti@athat, any Person has become the
Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the Plan's tbatstanding common stock or other equity secuniegh (either by themselves or in
combination) represent an ownership interest of 20%hore pursuant to determinations made undegpaph 9(d)(iv) below ("Excess
Owner"), unless such Excess Owner shall cease am li&xcess Owner prior to such automatic terminatiecoming effective; (d) ten
business days after individuals who at the timeRtlae went public constituted the Board of Direstof the Plan (together with any new
directors whose election to the Board was apprdoyea vote of 2/3 of the directors then still inioff who were directors at the time the Plan
went public or whose election or nomination wasvjnesly so approved) (the "Continuing Directors&ase for any reason to constitute a
majority of the Board of Directors; or (e) ten mess days after the Plan consolidates with or nsexgth or into any person or conveys,
assigns, transfers or sells all or substantiallpfals assets to any person other than a mergehich the Plan is the surviving entity and
immediately after which merger, no person is andsgdnstitutional Voter, an Excess Noninstitutioviater or an Excess Owner: provided
that, if requested by the affected Plan in a wgitieceived by BCBSA prior to such automatic terrtioxabecoming effective, the provisions
of this paragraph 9(d)(iii) may be waived, in wholein part,

Amended as of September 17, 1997
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upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the digrested Plans and a majority of the total thereot weighted vote of the disinterested
Plans. Any waiver so granted may be conditionechugaech additional requirements (including but moited to imposing new and
independent grounds for termination of this Licgreseshall be approved by the affirmative vote ofaority of the disinterested Plans and a
majority of the total then current weighted votetod disinterested Plans. If a timely waiver reqeseceived, no automatic termination shall
become effective until the later of:

(1) the conclusion of the applicable time perioddfied in paragraphs

9(d)(iii)(a)-(d) above, or (2) the conclusion oétfirst Member Plan meeting after receipt of sueteéver request.

In the event that the Plan's license to use therlsed Marks and Name is terminated pursuant td*triagraph 9(d)(iii), the license may be
reinstated in BCBSA's sole discretion if, within @8ys of the date of such termination, the Planatestnates that the Person referred to in
clause (a), (b) or (c) of the preceding paragrapioilonger an Excess Institutional Voter, an Esdésninstitutional Voter or an Excess
Owner.

(iv) The Plan shall not issue any class or serdegourity other than

(i) shares of common stock having identical termspiions or derivatives of such common stock,(@h-voting, non-convertible debt
securities or (iii) such other securities as trenRhay approve, provided that BCBSA receives naideast thirty days prior to the issuanc
such securities, including a description of thenefor such securities, and BCBSA shall have thkeaity to determine how such other
securities will be counted in determining whethey Berson is an Excess Institutional Voter, Exdémsinstitutional Voter or an Excess
Owner.

(v) For purposes of paragraph 9(d)(iii), the follog definitions shall apply:

(a) "Affiliate" and "Associate" shall have the resfive meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule2l@bthe General Rules and Regulations
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as artkadd in effect on November 17, 1993 (the "Exclkahdt").

(b) A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owoégnd shall be deemed to "beneficially own" aegusities:
(i) which such Person or any of such Person'siafék or Associates beneficially owns, directlyratirectly;
Amended as of September 17, 1997
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(i) which such Person or any of such Person'sliafés or Associates has (A) the right to acquivkegther such right is exercisable
immediately or only after the passage of time) pam to any agreement, arrangement or understanalingpon the exercise of conversion
rights, exchange rights, warrants or options, beatise; or (B) the right to vote pursuant to agyeament, arrangement or understanding;
provided, however, that a Person shall not be ddeheBeneficial Owner of, or to beneficially ovamy security if the agreement,
arrangement or understanding to vote such sediitgrises solely from a revocable proxy or cong@regn to such Person in response to a
public proxy or consent solicitation made pursutanand in accordance with, the applicable rulesragulations promulgated under the
Exchange Act and

(2) is not also then reportable on Schedule 13Ceutite Exchange Act (or any comparable or succesgort); or

(iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or iimdctly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate osgociate thereof) with which such Person (or
any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates)drasagreement, arrangement or understanding (tithercustomary agreements with and
between underwriters and selling group members reitpect to a bona fide public offering of secasifirelating to the acquisition, holding,
voting (except to the extent contemplated by tlwigo to

(b)(ii)(B) above) or disposing of any securitiestloé Plan.

Notwithstanding anything in this definition of Bdiogéal Ownership to the contrary, the phrase "tbetstanding," when used with referenc
a Person's Beneficial Ownership of securities efRkan, shall mean the number of such securitesidsued and outstanding together with
the number of such securities not then actuallysdsand outstanding which such Person would be e&¢mown beneficially hereunder.

(c) A Person shall be deemed an "Institutional &te€' if (but only if) such Person (i) is an entdy group identified in the SEC's Rule 13d-1
(b)(2)(ii) as constituted on June 1, 1997, andefigry filing made by such Person with the SEC uitkgulation 13D-G (or any successor
Regulation) with respect to such Person's Benéf@ienership of Plan securities shall have contameertification identical to the one
required by item 10 of SEC Schedule 13G as comstitan June 1, 1997.

Amended as of September 17, 1997
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(d) "Noninstitutional Investor" means any Persorovginot an Institutional Investor.

(e)"Person" shall mean any individual, firm, partigp, corporation, trust, association, joint veatar other entity, and shall include any
successor (by merger or otherwise) of such entity.

Amended as of September 17, 1997 -5d-
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10. This License Agreement shall remain in effégt:until terminated as provided herein; or (b)ilthis and all such other License
Agreements are terminated by the affirmative vdétiniee-fourths of the Plans and three-fourthsheftotal then current weighted vote of all
the Plans; (c) until terminated by the Plan upan(8) months written notice to BCBSA.

11. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 1&ber by the affirmative vote of three-fourthstbe Plans and three-fourths of the total
then current weighted vote of all the Plans, oessithis and all such other License Agreementsiargltaneously terminated by force of law,
the termination of this License Agreement for aggson whatsoever shall cause the reversion to BGB3MArights in and to the Licensed
Marks and Name, and the Plan agrees that it wolinutly discontinue all use of the Licensed Markd Atame, will not use them thereafter,
and will promptly, upon written notice from BCBSghange its corporate name so as to eliminate ttenked Name therefrom.

12. The license hereby granted to Plan to useittenked Marks and Name is and shall be persornhétBlan so licensed and shall not be
assignable by any act of the Plan, directly orriactly, without the written consent of BCBSA. SiaEnse shall not be assignable by
operation of law, nor shall Plan mortgage or patih\wossession or control of this license or agptihereunder, and the Plan shall have no
right to grant any sublicense to use the Licensadksland Name.

13. BCBSA shall maintain appropriate service madistrations of the Licensed Marks and BCBSA sta&ié such lawful steps and
proceedings as may be necessary or proper to fireserof the Licensed Marks by any person who isaothorized to use the same. Any
actions or proceedings undertaken by BCBSA undeptbvisions of this paragraph shall be at BCBSAle cost and expense. BCBSA shall
have the sole right to determine whether or notlaggl action shall be taken on account of unaigbdruse of the Licensed Marks, such r
not to be unreasonably exercised. The Plan shadkrt@any unlawful usage of the Licensed Marks tdBB@ in writing and agrees, free of
charge, to cooperate fully with BCBSA's progranenforcing and protecting the service mark rightsjé name rights and other rights in the
Licensed Marks.

-6-



14. The Plan hereby agrees to save, defend, indeammil hold BCBSA and any other Plan(s) harmlesmfand against all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatiggion which may arise exclusively and directtyaresult of the activities of the Plan.
BCBSA hereby agrees to save, defend, indemnifytantdi the Plan and any other Plan(s) harmless frathagainst all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatiggion which may arise exclusively and directtyaresult of the activities of BCBSA.

15. (a). This Agreement shall automatically terrteénapon the occurrence of any of the following ese(i) a voluntary petition shall be filed
by the Plan or by BCBSA seeking bankruptcy, reoizgtion, arrangement with creditors or other reliefler the bankruptcy laws of the
United States or any other law governing insolvemicgebtor relief, or (ii) an involuntary petitiar proceeding shall be filed against the Plan
or BCBSA seeking bankruptcy, reorganization, areangnt with creditors or other relief under the brapkcy laws of the United States or ¢
other law governing insolvency or debtor relief andh petition or proceeding is consented to oui@sged in by the Plan or BCBSA or is
dismissed within sixty (60) days of the date updnial the petition or other document commencingpteeeeding is served upon the Plan or
BCBSA respectively, or (iii) an order for relieféntered against the Plan or BCBSA in any caseruhéeébankruptcy laws of the United
States, or the Plan or BCBSA is adjudged bankrupismlvent (as that term is defined in the Unifd@@mmercial Code as enacted in the
state of lllinois) by any court of competent juiitttbn, or (iv) the Plan or BCBSA makes a genesdignment of its assets for the benefit of
creditors, or (v) the Department of Insurance deotegulatory agency assumes control of the Rlaelinquency proceedings (voluntary or
involuntary) are instituted, or (vi) an action i®bght by the Plan or BCBSA seeking its dissolutiotiquidation of its assets or seeking the
appointment of a trustee, interim trustee, receivasther custodian for any of its property or loesis, or (vii) an action is instituted by any
governmental entity or officer against the PlaB@BSA seeking its dissolution or liquidation of &ssets or seeking appointment of a tru:
interim trustee, receiver or other custodian for ahits property or business and such action iseated to or acquiesced in by the Plan or
BCBSA or is not dismissed within one hundred th{@$0) days of the date upon which the pleadingtioer document commencing the
action is served upon the Plan or BCBSA respegtiybvided that if the action is stayed or itsg@oution is enjoined, the one hundred tr
(130) day period is tolled for the duration of #tay or injunction, and provided further, that &ssociation's Board of Directors may toll or
extend the 130 day period at any time prior t@xgiration, or (viii) a trustee, interim trusteeceiver or other custodian for any of the Plan's
or BCBSA's property or business is appointed, elRlan or BCBSA is ordered dissolved or liquidatedjx) the Plan shall fail to pay its
dues and shall not cure such failure within th{9) days of receiving written notice thereof. Nithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, a declaration or a request for dectawaif the existence of a trust over any of the BlanBCBSA's property or business shall

in itself be deemed to constitute or seek appointroga trustee, interim trustee, receiver or othestodian for purposes of subparagraphs 15
(a)(vii) and (viii) of this Agreement.

Amended March 12, 1998



(b). BCBSA, or the Plans (as provided and in additpb the rights conferred in Paragraph 10(b) apoway terminate this Agreement
immediately upon written notice upon the occurreoiceither of the following events: (a) the PlarB&€BSA becomes insolvent (as that term
is defined in the Uniform Commercial Code enactethe state of Illinois), or (b) any final judgmegainst the Plan or BCBSA remains
unsatisfied or unbonded of record for a periodixtly60) days or longer.

(c). If this License Agreement is terminated aB&BSA for any reason stated in subparagraphs Hi@)b) above, the ownership of the
Licensed Marks shall revert to each of the Plans.

(d). Upon termination of this License Agreemenany Controlled Affiliate License Agreement of a gar Controlled Affiliate, as defined in
Exhibit 1 to this License Agreement:

() The terminated entity shall send a notice tigitothe U.S. mails, with first class postage affixedall individual and group customers,
providers, brokers and agents of products or sesvéold, marketed, underwritten or administerethbyterminated entity or its Controlled
Affiliates under the Licensed Marks and Name. Térenfand content of the notice shall be specifieBBBSA and shall, at a minimum,
notify the recipient of the termination of the i, the consequences thereof, and instructiorabtaining alternate products or services
licensed by BCBSA. This notice shall be mailed with5 days after termination or, if terminatiorpigrsuant to paragraph 10(d) of this
Agreement, within 15 days after the written notic@CBSA described in paragraph 10(d).

(i) The terminated entity shall deliver to BCBSAthin five days of a request by BCBSA a listingnattional accounts in which the
terminated entity is involved (in a Control, Papating or Servicing capacity), identifying the ioatal account and the terminated entity's role
therein. For those accounts where the terminatéty énthe Control Plan, the Plan must also intBdhe Participating and Servicing Plans in
the national account syndicate.

Amended as of September 19, 1996



(iiif) Unless the cause of termination is an evéatesl in paragraph 15(a) or (b) above respectinB®& the Plan and its Licensed Controlled
Affiliates shall be jointly liable for payment to®SA of an amount equal to $25 multiplied by thenber of Licensed Enrollees of the
terminated entity and its Licensed Controlled Adfies; provided that if any other Plan is permittgdBCBSA to use marks or names licensed
by BCBSA in the Service Area established by thiselgnent, the payment shall be multiplied by a foactthe numerator of which is the
number of Licensed Enrollees of the terminatedgamd its Licensed Controlled Affiliates and trendminator of which is the total number
of Licensed Enrollees in the Service Area. Licensatbllee means each and every person and covepmhdent who is enrolled as an
individual or member of a group receiving produmtservices sold, marketed or administered undeksrma names licensed by BCBSA as
determined at the earlier of (a) the end of theflasal year of the terminated entity which engeidr to termination or (b) the fiscal year
which ended before any transactions causing tieirtation began. Notwithstanding the foregoing, dh®unt payable pursuant to this
subparagraph (d)(iii) shall be due only to the ekthat, in BCBSA's opinion, it does not causertbeworth of the Plan to fall below 100% of
the capital benchmark formula or its equivalentamahy successor formula, as set forth in the egiplié financial responsibility standards
established by BCBSA (provided such equivalenpigraved for purposes of this sub paragraph by ffivenative vote of three-fourths of the
Plans and three-fourths of the total then curregigtited vote of all the Plans), measured as ofi¢tte of termination and adjusted for the
value of any transactions not made in the ordicanyrse of business. This payment shall not be mgernnection with transactions
exclusively by or among Plan or their affiliatas¢luding reorganizations, combinations or mergaigere the BCBSA Board of Directors
determines that the license termination does rsfitrén a material diminution in the number of Lised Enrollees or the extent of their
coverage.

Amended as of November 19, 1998
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(iv) BCBSA shall have the right to audit the boaksl records of the terminated entity and its LieenSontrolled Affiliates to verify
compliance with this paragraph 15(d).

(v) As to a breach of 15 (d) (i), (ii), (iii) or\), the parties agree that the obligations are idiately enforceable in a court of competent
jurisdiction. As to a breach of 15 (d) (i), (i) 6v) by the Plan, the parties agree there is remadte remedy at law and BCBSA is entitle:
obtain specific performance.

(e). BCBSA shall be entitled to enjoin the Plarany related party in a court of competent jurisdicfrom entry into any transaction which
would result in a termination of this License Agremnt unless the License Agreement has been temdipairsuant to paragraph 10 (d) of this
Agreement upon the required six (6) month writtetiae.

(f). BCBSA acknowledges that it is not the ownems$ets of the Plan.

16. This Agreement supersedes any and all otheeawnts between the parties with respect to thiecdubatter herein, and contains all of
the covenants and agreements of the parties ae twénsing of the Licensed Marks and Name. Tlgse@ment may be amended only by the
affirmative vote of three-fourths of the Plans dmebe-fourths of the total then current weightetevar all the Plans as officially recorded by
the BCBSA Corporate Secretary.

17. If any provision or any part of any provisiditlis Agreement is judicially declared unlawfuial and every other provision, or any part
of any provision, shall continue in full force aeffect notwithstanding such judicial declaration.

18. No waiver by BCBSA or the Plan of any breacklefault in performance on the part of BCBSA orBen or any other licensee of any of
the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agredrsball constitute a waiver of any subsequent rescefault in performance of said ter
covenants or conditions.

19a. All notices provided for hereunder shall beviiting and shall be sent in duplicate by reguleail to BCBSA or the Plan at the address
currently published for each by BCBSA and shalhtsrked respectively to the attention of the Pregided, if any, the General Counsel, of
BCBSA or the Plan.

Amended as of November 20, 1997
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19b. Except as provided in paragraphs 9(b), 9{d)lib(a), and 15(b) above, this Agreement mayebminated for a breach only upon at least
30 days' written notice to the Plan advising ofghecific matters at issue and granting the Plaopgortunity to be heard and to present its
response to the Member Plans.

19c. For all provisions of this Agreement referringsoting, the term “Plans' shall mean all ergitieensed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreemamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentieatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if anyj thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threentbis weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall §e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddst weighted votes in favor of the question.

Amended as of June 16, 2000 -8c-
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20. Nothing herein contained shall be construembttstitute the parties hereto as partners or j@nturers, or either as the agent of the other,
and Plan shall have no right to bind or obligateBS®. in any way, nor shall it represent that it hay right to do so. BCBSA shall have no
liability to third parties with respect to any aspef the business, activities, operations, proglumt services of the Plan.

21. This Agreement shall be governed, construedrgietpreted in accordance with the laws of theeSed lllinois.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigihse Agreement to be executed, effective as afateof last signature written
below.

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION

By /s/ Scott P. Serota

Title President and CEO

Dat e 11/ 02/ 01

By /s/ Larry C. dasscock

Title President and CEO

Date November 2, 2001




EXHIBIT 1

BLUE CROSS
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT

(Includes revisions adopted by Member Plans thrabght November 15, 2001, meeting)

This Agreement by and among Blue Cross and Bluel&lissociation ("BCBSA") and ("Controllaffiliate™), a Controlled
Affiliate of the Blue Cross Plan(s), known as ("Plan™), which is also a Party signatory tere

WHEREAS, BCBSA is the owner of the BLUE CROSS ahdJBE CROSS Design service marks;

WHEREAS, Plan and Controlled Affiliate desire thia latter be entitled to use the BLUE CROSS antd BICROSS Design service marks
(collectively the "Licensed Marks") as service nwahd be entitled to use the term BLUE CROSS iadetname ("Licensed Name");

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing #&me mutual agreements hereinafter set forth andther good and valuak
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agréalows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE

Subject to the terms and conditions of this AgresimBCBSA hereby grants to Controlled Affiliate thight to use the Licensed Marks and
Name in connection with, and only in connectionhw(f) health care plans and related servicesgéinetl in BCBSA's License Agreeme

with Plan, and administering the non-health porobmorkers' compensation insurance, and (i) uwdiéng the indemnity portion of
workers' compensation insurance, provided that ©ted Affiliate's total premium revenue comprisess than 15 percent of the sponsoring
Plan's net subscription revenue.

This grant of rights is noexclusive and is limited to the Service Area servgdhe Plan. Controlled Affiliate may use the Lised Marks an
Name in its legal name on the following conditioisthe legal name must be approved in advanceriting, by BCBSA,; (ii) Controllec
Affiliate shall not do business outside the SenAcea under any name or mark; and (iii) Controldtiliate shall not use the Licensed Marks
and Name, or any derivative thereof, as part ofreame or symbol used to identify itself in any séms market. Controlled Affiliate may u
the Licensed Marks and Name in its Trade Name witly the prior, written, consent of BCBSA.

2. QUALITY CONTROL

A. Controlled Affiliate agrees to use the Licendéarks and Name only in connection with the licenservices and further agrees to be
bound by the conditions regarding quality conttadwn in attached Exhibit A as they may be amengeB®BSA from time-to-time.

Amended as of November 16, 2000



B. Controlled Affiliate agrees to comply with ajpplicable federal, state and local laws.

C. Controlled Affiliate agrees that it will provid® an annual basis (or more often if reasonalgyired by Plan or by BCBSA) a report or
reports to Plan and BCBSA demonstrating Controliffdiate's compliance with the requirements ofstiiigreement including but not limited
to the quality control provisions of this paragraptd the attached Exhibit A.

D. Controlled Affiliate agrees that Plan and/or BEBmay, from time-to-time, upon reasonable notiegiew and inspect the manner and
method of Controlled Affiliate's rendering of ser@iand use of the Licensed Marks and Name.

E. As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate is defines an entity organized and operated in such aenathat it meets the following
requirements:

(1) A Plan or Plans authorized to use the Licermdatks in the Service Area of the Controlled Affitkgpursuant to separate License
Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other than such Controidfiliate's License Agreement(s), (the "Controfjifrlan(s)"), must have the legal
authority directly or indirectly through wholly-oved subsidiaries to select members of the Contrdiféitiate’'s governing body having not
less than 50% voting control thereof and to:

(a) prevent any change in the articles of incorpanabylaws or other establishing or governingutaents of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur;

(b) exercise control over the policy and operatiohthe Controlled Affiliate at least equal to tleetercised by persons or entities (jointly or
individually) other than the Controlling Plan(sjica

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in (a)ahgh (b) hereof, the Controlled Affiliate's estahlhg or governing documents must ¢
require written approval by the Controlling Plarifgfore the Controlled Affiliate can:

(i) change its legal and/or trade names;
(i) change the geographic area in which it opesate

(iii) change any of the type(s) of businesses iicivit engages;



(iv) create, or become liable for by way of guaesntany indebtedness, other than indebtednessgaiisthe ordinary course of business;
(v) sell any assets, except for sales in the orginaurse of business or sales of equipment nodibageful or being replaced;
(vi) make any loans or advances except in the arglinourse of business;

(vii) enter into any arrangement or agreement aith party directly or indirectly affiliated with grof the owners or persons or entities with
the authority to select or appoint members or boagdchbers of the Controlled Affiliate, other thae fAlan or Plans (excluding owners of
stock holdings of under 5% in a publicly traded Colfed Affiliate);

(viii) conduct any business other than under treehsed Marks and Name;
(ix) take any action that any Controlling Plan cZBSA reasonably believes will adversely affectltimensed Marks and Name.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly owned subsidiaries shall own asté&®% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

Or

(2) A Plan or Plans authorized to use the Licermdatks in the Service Area of the Controlled Affitkgpursuant to separate License
Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other than such Controléfiliate's License Agreement(s), (the "ControgiiPlan(s)"), have the legal authority
directly or indirectly through wholly-owned subsidies to select members of the Controlled Affilisgoverning body having more than 50%
voting control thereof and to:

(a) prevent any change in the articles of incorpanabylaws or other establishing or governingutoents of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur;

(b) exercise control over the policy and operatiofithe Controlled Affiliate.
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In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly-owned subsidiaries shall own asté#)% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

3. SERVICE MARK USE

A. Controlled Affiliate recognizes the importandesocomprehensive national network of independePBBA licensees which are committed
to strengthening the Licensed Marks and Name. TdrerGlled Affiliate further recognizes that its imcts within its Service Area may affect
the value of the Licensed Marks and Name nationwide

B. Controlled Affiliate shall at all times make jper service mark use of the Licensed Marks and Namkiding but not limited to use of
such symbols or words as BCBSA shall specify tagmothe Licensed Marks and Name and shall comijily such rules (generally
applicable to Controlled Affiliates licensed to ubke Licensed Marks and Name) relative to serviegkmise, as are issued from time-to-time
by BCBSA. Controlled Affiliate recognizes and aggdleat all use of the Licensed Marks and Name hyti@bed Affiliate shall inure to the
benefit of BCBSA.

C. Controlled Affiliate may not directly or indirlg use the Licensed Marks and Name in a manneittéasfers or is intended to transfer in
the Service Area the goodwill associated theretaithnother mark or name, nor may Controlled Affdi@angage in activity that may dilute or
tarnish the unique value of the Licensed Marksdacdhe.

D. If Controlled Affiliate meets the standards &(2) but not 2E(2) above and any of Controlled Wffe's advertising or promotional

material is reasonably determined by BCBSA andierRlan to be in contravention of rules and regaiatgoverning the use of the Licensed
Marks and Name, Controlled Affiliate shall for nipng€90) days thereafter obtain prior approval frB@BSA of advertising and promotional
efforts using the Licensed Marks and Name, approwdisapproval thereof to be forthcoming withinefi(5) business days of receipt of same
by BCBSA or its designee. In all advertising andrpotional efforts, Controlled Affiliate shall obserthe Service Area limitations applicable
to Plan.

E. Controlled Affiliate shall use its best effomsthe Service Area to promote and build the valihe Licensed Marks and Name.
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4. SUBLICENSING AND ASSIGNMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall not, directly or indirélg, sublicense, transfer, hypothecate, sell, erimmor mortgage, by operation of law or
otherwise, the rights granted hereunder and anly acicshall be voidable at the sole option of PlaBCBSA. This Agreement and all rights
and duties hereunder are personal to Controlleiigké.

5. INFRINGEMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall promptly notify Plan ariflan shall promptly notify BCBSA of any suspectats of infringement, unfair
competition or passing off that may occur in relatio the Licensed Marks and Name. Controlled #&ffd shall not be entitled to require Plan
or BCBSA to take any actions or institute any peatings to prevent infringement, unfair competittrpassing off by third parties.
Controlled Affiliate agrees to render to Plan ar@BSA, without charge, all reasonable assistancemmection with any matter pertaining to
the protection of the Licensed Marks and Name b3BE.

6. LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION

Controlled Affiliate and Plan hereby agree to salefend, indemnify and hold BCBSA harmless from agdinst all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatliggion (except those arising solely as a resuB@BSA's negligence) that may arise as a
result of or related to Controlled Affiliate's rearthg of services under the Licensed Marks and Name

7. LICENSE TERM

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, the licagrsmted by this Agreement shall remain in effectsf period of one (1) year and shall be
automatically extended for additional one (1) yeariods unless terminated pursuant to the provssimrein.

B. This Agreement and all of Controlled Affiliateights hereunder shall immediately terminate witheny further action by any party or
entity in the event that Plan ceases to be autbdtia use the Licensed Marks and Name.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmgent, this license to use the Licensed Marks aamdeNmay be forthwith terminated by
the Plan or the affirmative vote of the majoritytbé Board of Directors of BCBSA present and votin@ special meeting expressly called by
BCBSA for the purpose on ten

(10) days written notice to the Plan advising @& $pecific matters at issue and granting the Riaspgortunity to be heard and to present its
response to



the Board for: (1) failure to comply with any amglble minimum capital or liquidity requirement undlee quality control standards of this
Agreement; or

(2) failure to comply with the "Organization and&onance" quality control standard of this Agreetnen(3) impending financial
insolvency; or (4) for a Smaller Controlled Affitea(as defined in Exhibit A), failure to comply Wiany of the applicable requirements of
Standards 2, 3, 4, 5 or 7 of attached Exhibit A{(3)rthe pendency of any action instituted agaimstControlled Affiliate seeking its
dissolution or liquidation of its assets or seekapgointment of a trustee, interim trustee, reaeivether custodian for any of its property or
business or seeking the declaration or establishofentrust for any of its property or businessiesgs this Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement has been earlier terminated under paraghee); or (6) failure by a Controlled Affiliatedat meets the standards of 2E(1) but not
2E(2) above to obtain BCBSA's written consent thiange in the identity of any owner, in the extafmwnership, or in the identity of any
person or entity with the authority to select opaipt members or board members, provided that pslticly traded Controlled Affiliates th
provision shall apply only if the change affecisesison or entity that owns at least 5% of the Qe Affiliate's stock before or after the
change; or (7) such other reason as is determimgdad faith immediately and irreparably to threatee integrity and reputation of BCBSA,
the Plans, any other licensee including Controi#diate and/or the Licensed Marks and Name.

D. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 7{f&)) or 7(E) herein, should Controlled Affiliatailfto comply with the provisions of this
Agreement and not cure such failure within thi@p) days of receiving written notice thereof (omtoence a cure within such thirty day
period and continue diligent efforts to complete tlure if such curing cannot reasonably be comgpletthin such thirty day period) BCBSA
or the Plan shall have the right to issue a ndliaethe Controlled Affiliate is in a state of nanepliance. If a state of noncompliance as
aforesaid is undisputed by the Controlled Affiliateis found to exist by a mandatory dispute resmtupanel and is uncured as provided
above, BCBSA shall have the right to seek judieigbrcement of the Agreement or to issue a nofticermination thereof. Notwithstanding
any other provisions of this Agreement, any disp@® to the termination of this License pursuamaagraphs 7(B), 7(C) or 7(E) of this
Agreement shall not be subject to mediation anddatmy dispute resolution. All other disputes beaw&CBSA, the Plan and/or Controlled
Affiliate shall be submitted promptly to mediatiand mandatory dispute resolution. The mandatonyutiésresolution panel shall have
authority to issue orders for specific performaand assess monetary penalties. Except, howevproaisled in Paragraphs 7(B) and 7(E) of
this Agreement, this license to use the Licensedckbland Name may not be finally terminated for eegson without the affirmative vote o
majority of the present and voting members of tbar8 of Directors of BCBSA.
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E. This Agreement and all of Controlled Affiliatelghts hereunder shall immediately terminate witheny further action by any party or
entity in the event that:

(1) Controlled Affiliate shall no longer comply \ifitem 2(E) above;

(2) Appropriate dues, royalties and other payméat€ontrolled Affiliate pursuant to paragraph 9dwf, which are the royalties for this
License Agreement, are more than sixty (60) daysriears to BCBSA, or

(3) Any of the following events occur: (i) a volany petition shall be filed by Controlled Affiliageeking bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement with creditors or other relief undertlankruptcy laws of the United States or any da@rgoverning insolvency or debtor
relief, or (ii) an involuntary petition or proceadi shall be filed against Controlled Affiliate segekbankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement
with creditors or other relief under the bankrupnys of the United States or any other law govegninsolvency or debtor relief and such
petition or proceeding is consented to or acquidgtéy Controlled Affiliate or is not dismissedthin sixty (60) days of the date upon which
the petition or other document commencing the prdirg is served upon the Controlled Affiliate, i) @n order for relief is entered against
Controlled Affiliate in any case under the bankaoypiaws of the United States, or Controlled Affiids adjudged bankrupt or insolvent as
those terms are defined in the Uniform Commerc@d€as enacted in the State of lllinois by any tolicompetent jurisdiction, or (iv)
Controlled Affiliate makes a general assignmeritoéssets for the benefit of creditors, or (v) Department of Insurance or other regulatory
agency assumes control of Controlled Affiliate efiniquency proceedings (voluntary or involuntamg mstituted, or (vi) an action is broug
by Controlled Affiliate seeking its dissolution kguidation of its assets or seeking the appointnoém trustee, interim trustee, receiver or
other custodian for any of its property or business

(vii) an action is instituted by any governmentatity or officer against Controlled Affiliate seelg its dissolution or liquidation of its assets
or seeking the appointment of a trustee, interimatire, receiver or other custodian for any of iitcgprty or business and such action is
consented to or acquiesced in by Controlled At#liar is not dismissed within one hundred thirtyQjLdays of the date upon which the
pleading or other document commencing the actiaeiged upon the Controlled Affiliate, providedttifahe action is stayed or its
prosecution is enjoined, the one hundred thirty

(130) day period is tolled for the duration of #tay or injunction, and provided further, that &ssociation's Board of Directors may toll or
extend the 130 day period at any time prior t@xgiration, or (viii) a trustee, interim trusteeceiver or other custodian for any of Controlled
Affiliate's property or business is appointed a @ontrolled Affiliate is ordered dissolved or lidated. Notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement,



a declaration or a request for declaration of ttistence of a trust over any of the Controlled Kdfe's property or business shall not in itself
be deemed to constitute or seek appointment afstéete, interim trustee, receiver or other custotbapurposes of subparagraphs 7(e)(3)(vii)
and (viii) of this Agreement.

F. Upon termination of this Agreement for causethierwise, Controlled Affiliate agrees that it dhimimediately discontinue all use of the
Licensed Marks and Name, including any use irréitd¢ name.

G. Upon termination of this Agreement, Controlleffiliate shall immediately notify all of its custaens that it is no longer a licensee of
BCBSA and, if directed by the Association's Boaf@®wectors, shall provide instruction on how thestomer can contact BCBSA or a
designated licensee to obtain further informatinrsecuring coverage. The notification requiredHiy paragraph shall be in writing and in a
form approved by BCBSA. The BCBSA shall have tightito audit the terminated entity's books and nésto verify compliance with this
paragraph.

H. In the event this Agreement terminates purst@ii{b) hereof, or in the event the Controlled Kdfe is a Larger Controlled Affiliate (as
defined in Exhibit A), upon termination of this Aggment, the provisions of Paragraph
7.G. shall not apply and the following provisiofsh apply:

(1) The Controlled Affiliate shall send a noticedhgh the U.S. mails, with first class postagexef, to all individual and group customers,
providers, brokers and agents of products or sesvéold, marketed, underwritten or administerethbyControlled Affiliate under the
Licensed Marks and Name. The form and contentehtitice shall be specified by BCBSA and shal§ atinimum, notify the recipient of
the termination of the license, the consequenaa®df, and instructions for obtaining alternatedpicis or services licensed by BCBSA. This
notice shall be mailed within 15 days after terrtiora

(2) The Controlled Affiliate shall deliver to BCBSWithin five days of a request by BCBSA a listinfgnational accounts in which the
Controlled Affiliate is involved (in a control, paripating or servicing capacity), identifying thational account and the Controlled Affiliate's
role therein.

(3) Unless the cause of termination is an evemteaeting BCBSA stated in paragraph 15(a) or (bhefRlan's license agreement with BCBSA
to use the Licensed Marks and Name, the Contrélféiiate, the Plan, and any other Licensed Con¢mlAffiliates of the Plan shall be

jointly liable for payment to BCBSA of an amountuatjto $25 multiplied by the number of Licensed @leies of the Controlled Affiliate
provided that if any other Plan is permitted by BS2Bto use marks or names licensed by BCBSA in thei& Area
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established by this Agreement, the payment shathibiiplied by a fraction, the numerator of whishthe number of Licensed Enrollees of
Controlled Affiliate, the Plan, and any other Lised Controlled Affiliates and the denominator ofieithis the total number of Licensed
Enrollees in the Service Area. Licensed Enrolleamsesach and every person and covered dependeri$ whimlled as an individual or
member of a group receiving products or servicéd soarketed or administered under marks or namesded by BCBSA as determined at
the earlier of (i) the end of the last fiscal ye&the terminated entity which ended prior to teration or (ii) the fiscal year which ended
before any transactions causing the terminatiomibeljotwithstanding the foregoing, the amount p&yalrsuant to this subparagraph H. (3)
shall be due only to the extent that, in BCBSA'mimm, it does not cause the net worth of the Guled Affiliate, the Plan or any other
Licensed Controlled Affiliates of the Plan to faklow 100% of the capital benchmark formula, oefsiivalent under any successor formula,
as set forth in the applicable financial respotisjbétandards established by BCBSA (provided seghivalent is approved for purposes of
this sub paragraph by the affirmative vote of tHimaths of the Plans and three-fourths of theltibian current weighted vote of all the
Plans); measured as of the date of terminationadpdsted for the value of any transactions noteriadhe ordinary course of business. This
payment shall not be due in connection with tratisas exclusively by or among Plans or their &dfiis, including reorganizations,
combinations or mergers, where the BCBSA Boardicdddors determines that the license terminatiomsdwt result in a material diminution
in the number of Licensed Enrollees or the extéheir coverage.

(4) BCBSA shall have the right to audit the bookd eecords of the Controlled Affiliate, the Plandaany other Licensed Controlled
Affiliates of the Plan to verify compliance withistparagraph 7.H.

(5) As to a breach of 7.H.(1), (2), (3) or (4), treerties agree that the obligations are immediarfgrceable in a court of competent
jurisdiction. As to a breach of 7.H.(1), (2) or @) the Controlled Affiliate, the parties agreerthis no adequate remedy at law and BCBS
entitled to obtain specific performance.

I. In the event the Controlled Affiliate is a SnealiControlled Affiliate (as defined in Exhibit Athe Controlled Affiliate agrees to be jointly
liable for the amount described in H.3. hereof ufgmination of the BCBSA license agreement of bagger Controlled Affiliate of the Pla

J. BCBSA shall be entitled to enjoin the Controlfftiliate or any related party in a court of contget jurisdiction from entry into any
transaction which would result in a terminatiorttoé Agreement unless the Plan's license from BCBS#se the Licensed Marks and Nar
has been terminated



pursuant to 10(d) of the Plan's license agreemmurt the required 6 month written notice.
K. BCBSA acknowledges that it is not the owner sgeats of the Controlled Affiliate.

L. In the event that the Plan has more than 50gmnoting control of the Controlled Affiliate undBaragraph 2(E)(2) above and is a Larger
Controlled Affiliate (as defined in Exhibit A), thehe vote called for in Paragraphs 7(C) and 7{i2va shall require the affirmative vote of
three-fourths of the Plans and three-fourths oftdii@ then current weighted vote of all the Plans.

8. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The parties agree that any disputes between thdrataeen or among either of them and one or mamesRir Controlled Affiliates of Plans
that use in any manner the Blue Cross and BluesOvizsks and Name are subject to the Mediation aadddtory Dispute Resolution
process attached to and made a part of Plan'sdedeom BCBSA to use the Licensed Marks and Nantexagbits 5, 5A and 5B as amended
from time-to-time, which documents are incorpordtedein by reference as though fully set forth imere

9. LICENSE FEE
Controlled Affiliate will pay to BCBSA a fee for ih License determined pursuant to the formula(sjosth in Exhibit B.
10. JOINT VENTURE

Nothing contained in the Agreement shall be comstras creating a joint venture, partnership, agenemployment relationship betwe
Plan and Controlled Affiliate or between either &8@BSA.

Amended as of March 11, 1999
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11. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE

Notices regarding the subject matter of this Agreehor breach or termination thereof shall be ittimg and shall be addressed in duplic
to the last known address of each other party, ethr&spectively to the attention of its Presidert, & any, its General Counsel.

12. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the complete understandifitiee parties in relation to the subject mattnelof. This Agreement may only be
amended by the affirmative vote of three-fourthshef Plans and three-fourths of the total thenerurweighted vote of all the Plans as
officially recorded by the BCBSA Corporate Secnrgtar

13. SEVERABILITY

If any term of this Agreement is held to be unlaiidfy a court of competent jurisdiction, such finglinshall in no way affect the remaining
obligations of the parties hereunder and the amast substitute a lawful term or condition for amlawful term or condition so long as the
effect of such substitution is to provide the gagtivith the benefits of this Agreement.

14. NONWAIVER

No waiver by BCBSA of any breach or default in penfiance on the part of Controlled Affiliate or astyer licensee of any of the tern
covenants or conditions of this Agreement shalktitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or defaplerformance of said terms,
covenants or conditions.

14A. VOTING

For all provisions of this Agreement referring tmting, the term "Plans' shall mean all entitiesriwed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreemamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentieatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if anyj thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threentbis weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddst weighted votes in favor of the question.

Amended as of June 16, 2000
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15. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by, and constamedinterpreted in accordance with, the laws ofStete of Illinois.
16. HEADINGS

The headings inserted in this agreement are foreruance only and shall have no bearing on thepngééation hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thighse Agreement to be executed and effective e afate of last signature written
below.

Controlled Affiliate:

By:
Date:

Plan:

By:

Date:

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION
By:

Date:
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EXHIBIT A

CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
June 2001

PREAMBLE

The standards for licensing Controlled Affiliates @stablished by BCBSA and are subject to chamge fime-to-time upon the affirmative
vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the Plans and tHmeths (3/4) of the total weighted vote. Eachitised Plan is required to use a standard
Controlled Affiliate license form provided by BCBS#d to cooperate fully in assuring that the lieeh€ontrolled Affiliate maintains
compliance with the license standards.

The Controlled Affiliate License provides a flex@bkehicle to accommodate the potential range dfthead workers' compensation related
products and services Plan Controlled Affiliatesvile. The Controlled Affiliate License collapsesrher health Controlled Affiliate licenses
(HCC, HMO, PPO, TPA, and IDS) into a single licemsing the following business-based criteria tovmte a framework for license
standards:

o Percent of Controlled Affiliate controlled by pat: Greater than 50 percent or 50 percent?
o Risk assumption: yes or no?
o Medical care delivery: yes or no?

o Size of the Controlled Affiliate: If the Contretl Affiliate has health or workers' compensatiomauistration business, does such business
constitute 15 percent or more of the parent's dinerdicensed health subsidiaries' contract enetit

14



EXHIBIT A (continued)
For purposes of definition:

o A "smaller Controlled Affiliate:" (1) comprisesds than fifteen percent (15%) of Plan's anddened Controlled Affiliates' total contract
enrollment (as reported on the BCBSA Quarterly Bmrent Report, excluding rider and freestandingezage, and treating an entity seeking
licensure as licensed);* or (2) underwrites theeimdity portion of workers' compensation insurante laas total premium revenue less than
15 percent of the sponsoring Plan's net subscnipgeenue.

o A "larger Controlled Affiliate" comprises fiftegrercent (15%) or more of Plan's and its licensedt@lled Affiliates' total contract
enrollment (as reported on the BCBSA Quarterly Bmrent Report, excluding rider and freestandingezage, and treating an entity seeking
licensure as licensed.)*

Changes in Controlled Affiliate status:

If any Controlled Affiliate's status changes regagdits Plan ownership level, its risk acceptaacdirect delivery of medical care, the
Controlled Affiliate shall notify BCBSA within thiy (30) days of such occurrence in writing and cante compliance with the applicable
standards within six (6) months.

If a smaller Controlled Affiliate's health and werk' compensation administration business reaahasrpasses fifteen percent (15%) of the
total contract enroliment of the Plan and licenSedtrolled Affiliates, the Controlled Affiliate sha

15



EXHIBIT A (continued)

1. Within thirty (30) days, notify BCBSA of this¢ain writing, including evidence that the Conteall Affiliate meets the minimum liquidity
capital (BCBSA "Health Risk-Based Capital (HRBC}%'defined by the NAIC and state-established minimeserve) requirements of the
larger Controlled Affiliate Financial Responsibjlistandard; and

2. Within six (6) months after reaching or surpagshe fifteen percent (15%) threshold, demonstatepliance with all license requireme
for a larger Controlled Affiliate.

If a Controlled Affiliate that underwrites the indeity portion of workers' compensation insuranaeiees a change in rating or proposed
change in rating, the Controlled Affiliate shalltiip BCBSA within 30 days of notification by the &xnal rating agency.

*For purposes of this calculation,
The numerator equals:

Applicant Controlled Affiliate's contract enrolimigms defined in BCBSA's Quarterly Enroliment Refgexrcluding rider and freestanding
coverage).

The denominator equals:

Numerator PLUS Plan and all other licensed CoradbAffiliates' contract enrollment, as reportedi@BSA's Quarterly Enroliment Repc
(excluding rider and freestanding coverage).

Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

STANDARDS FOR LICENSED CONTROLLED AFFILIATES

As described in Preamble section of Exhibit A te #ffiliate License Agreement, each controlledlaite seeking licensure must answer four

guestions. Depending on the controlled affiliabaiswers, certain standards apply:

1. What percent of the controlled affiliate is aofied by the parent Plan?

More than 50% 50%

[ l
v Vv

Standard 1A, 4

* Applicable only if using the names and marks.

2. Is risk being assumed?

Yes
/1 |
\% \%
Controlled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Contr

underwrites any comprises less than compr
indemnity portion ~ 15% of total contract total

of workers' enroliment of Plan  enrol
compensation and its licensed and i
insurance affiliates, and does affil

Il not underwrite the  notu
\% indemnity portion of indem

Standards 7A-7E workers' worke
compensation compe
insurance insur

[ |
\Y
Standard 2 Stand

(Guidelines 1.1,1.2)

3. Is medical care being directly provided?

Yes
[
\%

Standard 3A

Standard 1B, 4

100% and Primary Business is
Government Non-Risk
Il
\Y
Standard 4*,10A
IN ADDITION,
No
VA /1 [ A
Vv \Y; Vv \%

olled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Controlled

ises => 15% of comprises less than comprises =>15% of Affiliate's
contract 15% of total contract total cont ract Primary Business
Iment of Plan  enroliment of Plan  enroliment of Plan is Government
ts licensed and its licensed and its li censed Non-Risk
iates, and does affiliates affiliates
nderwrite the |
nity portion of | |
rs' \% \Y
nsation
ance Standard 2 Standard 6 H Standard 10B
(Guidelines 1.1,1.3)
|
\%
ard 6H
IN ADDITION,

No

[

\%

Standard 3B
IN ADDITION,

4. If the controlled affiliate has health or worketompensation administration business, doeslsusiness comprise 15% or more of the total
contract enroliment of Plan and its licensed cdledoaffiliates?

Yes

I
[ \
\%

Standards 6A-61 Controlled Affiliate i
a former primary

No
Il N\
\% \%
S Controlled Controlled Affiliate 's

Affiliate isnota  Primary Business is



licensee

[
v

Standards 5,8,9

former primary Government Non-Risk
licensee
[l
[l v
\

Standards 8, 10(C)
Standards 5,8
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 1 - Organization and Governance
1A.) The Standard for more than 50% Plan control is

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that a licensed Plan or Rlatimrized to use the Licensed Marks in
the Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate purati#o separate License Agreement(s) with BCBSAewthan such Controlled Affiliate's
License Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(shigve the legal authority, directly or indirectlydbigh wholly-owned subsidiaries: 1) to
select members of the Controlled Affiliate's gowegnbody having more than 50% voting control théraad 2) to prevent any change in the
articles of incorporation, bylaws or other estaitig or governing documents of the Controlled Adfié with which the Controlling Plan(s) do
(es) not concur; and 3) to exercise control overpblicy and operations of the Controlled Affiliate addition, a Plan or Plans directly or
indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries stalin more than 50% of any for-profit Controlled Aifite.

1B.) The Standard for 50% Plan control is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that a licensed Plan or Rlatimrized to use the Licensed Marks in
the Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate purati#o separate License Agreement(s) with BCBSAewothan such Controlled Affiliate's
License Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(shigye the legal authority, directly or indirectlydbgh wholly-owned subsidiaries:

1) to select members of the Controlled Affiliatgtsserning body having not less than 50% voting i@rhereof ; and

2) to prevent any change in the articles of incoaiion, bylaws or other establishing or governinguments of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concurd an

3) to exercise control over the policy and operatiof the Controlled Affiliate at least equal tatlexercised by persons or entities (jointly or
individually) other than the Controlling Plan(s).
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 1) tigh 3) hereof, the Controlled Affiliate's estabiighor governing documents must a
require written approval by the Controlling Plarifgfore the Controlled Affiliate can:

o change the geographic area in which it operates

o change its legal and/or trade names

o change any of the types of businesses in whiehgages

o create, or become liable for by way of guarardeg,indebtedness, other than indebtedness aiisthg ordinary course of business
o sell any assets, except for sales in the ordicanyse of business or sales of equipment no lomggful or being replaced

o make any loans or advances except in the ordowmse of business

0 enter into any arrangement or agreement withpanty directly or indirectly affiliated with any afie owners or persons or entities with the
authority to select or appoint members or board besmof the Controlled Affiliate, other than tha®lor Plans (excluding owners of stock
holdings of under 5% in a publicly traded Contrdlkffiliate)

o conduct any business other than under the Licekseks and Name
o take any action that any Controlling Plan or B@B8asonably believes will adversely affect thedrised Marks and Name.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly-owned subsidiaries shall own astez0% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 2 - Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantigat provides reasonable financial assurancdtthan fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers. If a risk-assumingnttalled Affiliate ceases operations for any rea®loe Cross and/or Blue Cross Plan
coverage will be offered to all Controlled Affilemsubscribers without exclusions, limitations onditions based on health status. If a nonrisk-
assuming Controlled Affiliate ceases operationsafy reason, sponsoring Plan(s) will provide fowvises to its

(their) customers.

Standard 3 - State Licensure/Certification

3A.) The Standard for a Controlled Affiliate thamploys, owns or contracts on a substantially exetubasis for medical services is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain unimpairecc&nsure or certification for its medical care pd&rs to operate under applicable state laws.
3B.) The Standard for a Controlled Affiliate thate$ not employ, own or contract on a substantedfusive basis for medical services is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain unimpaireccénsure or certification to operate under applieabdte laws.

Standard 4 - Certain Disclosures

A Controlled Affiliate shall make adequate disclasin contracting with third parties and in disseating public statements of 1) the struc
of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield System; and )rtlependent nature of every licensee; and 3¢ trarolled Affiliate's financial conditiol

Standard 5 - Reports and Records for Certain SmalleControlled Affiliates
For a smaller Controlled Affiliate that does notlenwrite the indemnity portion of workers' compedisainsurance, the Standard is:
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

A Controlled Affiliate and/or its licensed Plan&)all furnish, on a timely and accurate basis, msm@nd records relating to these Standards
and the License Agreements between BCBSA and dtatrAffiliate.

Standard 6 - Other Standards for Larger Controlled Affiliates
Standards 6(A) - (1) that follow apply to larger@mlled Affiliates.
Standard 6(A): Board of Directors

A Controlled Affiliate Governing Board shall acttine interest of its Corporation in providing ceftective health care services to its
customers. A Controlled Affiliate shall maintairgaverning Board, which shall control the Controlksfdiliate, composed of a majority of
persons other than providers of health care sesvigho shall be known as public members. A pubkenber shall not be an employee of or
have a financial interest in a health care provider be a member of a profession which providedtheare services.

Standard 6(B): Responsiveness to Customers
A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mannesponsive to customer needs and requirements.
Standard 6(C): Participation in National Programs

A Controlled Affiliate shall effectively and effiently participate in each national program as ftone to time may be adopted by the Men
Plans for the purposes of providing portabilitynedmbership between the licensees and ease of glaoosssing for customers receiving
benefits outside of the Controlled Affiliate's SeevArea.

Such programs are applicable to licensees, anddacl
1. Transfer Program;
2. BlueCard Program,;
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

3. Inter-Plan Teleprocessing System (ITS);

4. Electronic Claims Routing Process; and

5. National Account Programs, effective Januarg0D2.
Standard 6(D): Financial Performance Requirements

In addition to requirements under the national prots listed in Standard 6C:
Participation in National Programs, a Controlledilfsdte shall take such action as required to eastsrfinancial performance in programs i
contracts of an inter-licensee nature or where BEBS party.

Standard 6(E): Cooperation with Plan PerformancgpBese Process

A Controlled Affiliate shall cooperate with BCBSAB®ard of Directors and its Plan Performance amafdial Standards Committee in the
administration of the Plan Performance ResponseeBroand in addressing Controlled Affiliate perfante problems identified thereunder.

Standard 6(F): Independent Financial Rating

A Controlled Affiliate shall obtain a rating of ifmyancial strength from an independent rating ageapproved by BCBSA's Board of
Directors for such purpose.

Standard 6(G): Best Efforts

During each year, a Controlled Affiliate shall utsebest efforts in the designated Service Argartanote and build the value of the Blue
Cross Mark.

Standard 6(H): Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantteat provides reasonable financial assurancdttban fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 6(1): Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish to BCBSA ontamely and accurate basis reports and recordsnglad compliance with these Standards
and the License Agreements between BCBSA and Atadraffiliate. Such reports and records are thiéofeing:

A) BCBSA Controlled Affiliate Licensure InformatioRequest; and
B) Biennial trade name and service mark usage mjtarcluding disclosure material; and

C) Changes in the ownership and governance of timer@led Affiliate, including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in a Controlled Affiliate's Board compasitior changes in the identity of the Controllediliste’'s Principal Officers, and changes in
risk acceptance, contract growth, or direct deliarmedical care; and

D) Quarterly Financial Report, Semi-annual "He#&ikk-Based Capital (HRBC) Report"as defined byN#e¢C, Annual Financial Forecast,
Annual Certified Audit Report, Insurance DepartmEramination Report, Annual Statement filed witht8tinsurance Department (with all
attachments), and

E) Quarterly Enroliment Report, Semi-Annual Ben€fitst Management Report.
Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 6(J): Control by Unlicensed Entities Fritbd

No Controlled Affiliate shall cause or permit artignother than a Plan or a Licensed Controlledlistie thereof to obtain control of tt
Controlled Affiliate or to acquire a substantiartion of its assets related to licensable services.

Standard 7 - Other Standards for Risk-Assuming \&ia'KCompensation Controlled Affiliates
Standards 7(A) - (E) that follow apply to Contrdllaffiliates that underwrite the indemnity portiofiworkers' compensation insurance.
Standard 7 (A): Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantteat provides reasonable financial assurancdttban fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Standard 7(B): Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish, on a timelynd accurate basis, reports and records relatiogripliance with these Standards and the
License Agreements between BCBSA and the Contréifétiate. Such reports and records are the follogy

A. BCBSA Controlled Affiliate Licensure InformatidRequest; and
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mktgeincluding disclosure materials; and

C. Annual Certified Audit Report, Annual Statemastfiled with the State Insurance Department (aitlattachments), Annual NAIC's Risk-
Based Capital Worksheets for Property and Caslradtyrers, Annual Financial Forecast; and

Amended June 16, 2000
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

Quarterly Financial Report, Quarterly EstimatedkRmsed Capital for Property and Casualty Insulessjrance Department Examination
Report.

D. Notification of all changes and proposed charigesdependent ratings within 30 days of receijt aubmission of a copy of all rating
reports; and

E. Changes in the ownership and governance of tméralled Affiliate including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in a Controlled Affiliate's Board compasitiPlan control, state license status, operatiag,dahe Controlled Affiliate's Principal
Officers or direct delivery of medical care.

Standard 7(C): Loss Prevention
A Controlled Affiliate shall apply loss preventignotocol to both new and existing business.
Standard 7(D): Claims Administration

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain an effectivdaims administration process that includes allrteeessary functions to assure prompt and
proper resolution of medical and indemnity claims.

Standard 7(E): Disability and Provider Management

A Controlled Affiliate shall arrange for the proias of appropriate and necessary medical and rétadivie services to facilitate early
intervention by medical professionals and timelg appropriate return to work.

Amended November 16, 2000
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 8 - Cooperation with Controlled Affilidteeense Performance Response Process Protocol

A Controlled Affiliate and its Sponsoring Plan(la#l cooperate with BCBSA's Board of Directors @sd’lan Performance and Financial
Standards Committee in the administration of that@dled Affiliate License Performance ResponsecBss Protocol (ALPRPP) and in
addressing Controlled Affiliate compliance probleishantified thereunder.

Standard 9 - Participation in National Programs bySmaller Controlled Affiliates

A smaller Controlled Affiliate for which this staatd applies pursuant to the Preamble section oibliixh of the Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement shall effectively and efficiently pantiate in certain national programs from time to tmsemay be adopted by Member Plans for
the purposes of providing ease of claims procedsingustomers receiving benefits outside of that@dled Affiliate's service area and be
subject to certain relevant financial and reportieguirements.

A. National program requirements include:

o BlueCard Program;

o Inter-Plan Teleprocessing System (ITS);

o Transfer Program;

o Electronic Claims Routing Process effective uthi@ mandated date for implementation of the HIPsA@ndard transaction; and
o National Account Programs, effective January0D22

B. Financial Requirements include:

o Standard 6(D): Financial Performance RequiremamtisStandard 6(H):

Financial Responsibility; or

o A financial guarantee covering the Controlledilffe's BlueCard Program obligations in a formd &imm a guarantor, acceptable to
BCBSA.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 9 - Participation in National Programs bySmaller Controlled Affiliates
C. Reporting requirements include:
0 The Semi-Annual Health Risk-Based Capital (HRBEport.
Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

Standard 10 - Other Standards for Controlled Affds Whose Primary Business is Government Non-Risk
Standards 10(A) - (C) that follow apply to ContedllAffiliates whose primary business is governnremnt-risk.
Standard 10(A) - Organization and Governance

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that it is 1) wholly ownedadicensed Plan or Plans and 2) the
sponsoring licensed Plan or Plans have the legiitlyab prevent any change in the articles of immaration, bylaws or other establishing or
governing documents of the Controlled Affiliate mvithich it does not concur.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 10(B) - Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantigat provides reasonable financial assurancdtthan fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Standard 10(C):- Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish, on a timelynd accurate basis, reports and records relaticgrtgliance with these Standards and the
License Agreements between BCBSA and the Contréifétiate. Such reports and records are the follogy

A. BCBSA Affiliate Licensure Information Requeshd
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mktgeincluding disclosure material; and

C. Annual Certified Audit Report, Annual Stateméhtequired) as filed with the State Insurance Bement (with all attachments), Annual
NAIC Risk-Based Capital Worksheets (if required) as filethwiie State Insurance Department (with all attastis), and Insurance
Department Examination Report (if applicable)*; and

D. Changes in the ownership and governance of tmgr@lled Affiliate, including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in the Controlled Affiliate's Board comgiosi, Plan control, state license status, operaiieg, the Controlled Affiliate's Principal
Officers or direct delivery of medical care.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 11: Participation in Electronic Routingd&iss

The Standard is:

A smaller controlled affiliate for which this staandl applies pursuant to the Preamble section oftiifxh of the Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement shall effectively and efficiently, paipiate in certain national programs from time todias may be adopted by Member Plans for
the purpose of providing ease of claims proces&ingustomers receiving benefits outside of thetrmdled affiliate's service area.

National program requirements incluc
A. Electronic Claims Routing Process effective uplesnmandated date for implementation of HIPAA d&ad transaction.
Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT B
ROYALTY FORMULA FOR SECTION 9 OF THE
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT

Controlled Affiliate will pay BCBSA a fee for thitkcense in accordance with the following formula:
FOR RISK AND GOVERNMENT NON-RISK PRODUCTS:
For Controlled Affiliates not underwriting the inuaity portion of workers' compensation insurance:

An amount equal to its pro rata share of each sporgPlan's dues payable to BCBSA computed wighattidition of the Controlled
Affiliate's subscription revenue and contractsiaggrom products using the marks. The paymentdshesponsoring Plan of its dues to
BCBSA, including that portion described in this ggaph, will satisfy the requirement of this paegar, and no separate payment will be
necessary.

For Controlled Affiliates underwriting the indenyiportion of workers' compensation insurance:

An amount equal to 0.35 percent of the gross rexgan annum of Controlled Affiliate arising fromopliucts using the marks; plus, an annual
fee of $5,000 per license for a Controlled Affiéatubject to Standard 7.

For Controlled Affiliates whose primary businesgdernment non-risk:

An amount equal to its pro-rata share of each sporg Plan's dues payable to BCBSA computed wighattidition of the Controlled
Affiliate's government nc-risk beneficiaries



EXHIBIT B (continued)

FOR NONRISK PRODUCTS:

An amount equal to 0.24 percent of the gross rexgen annum of Controlled Affiliate arising fromoplucts using the marks; plus:
1) An annual fee of $5,000 per license for a CdledoAffiliate subject to Standard 6 D.

2) An annual fee of $2,000 per license for all otBentrolled Affiliates.

The foregoing shall be reduced by one-half wheth BBBLUE CROSS(R) and BLUE SHIELD(R) License asuied to the same Controlled
Affiliate. In the event that any license periodyigater or less than one (1) year, any amountslaiebe prorated. Royalties under this
formula will be calculated, billed and paid in ars.



EXHIBIT 1A

CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT
APPLICABLE TO LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

(Includes revisions adopted by Member Plans thrahghr June 15, 2001 meeting)

This agreement by and among Blue Cross and BlugdSAssociation ("BCBSA") ("Controlled
Affiliate"), a Controlled Affiliate of the Blue Cigs Plan(s), known as n()Pla

WHEREAS, BCBSA is the owner of the BLUE CROSS ahdJBE CROSS Design service marks;

WHEREAS, the Plan and the Controlled Affiliate deghat the latter be entitled to use the BLUE CB@8d BLUE CROSS Design service
marks (collectively the "Licensed Marks") as seeuwnarks and be entitled to use the term BLUE CR{D2Srade name ("Licensed Name");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl he mutual agreements hereinafter set fortif@nother good and valuab
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agréalows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agre@mBCBSA hereby grants to the Controlled Affilidtee exclusive right to use the licensed
Marks and Names in connection with and only in @mtion with those life insurance and related sexwi@uthorized by applicable state law,
other than health care plans and related servaseddfined in the Plan's License Agreements witB8&) which services are not separately
licensed to Controlled Affiliate by BCBSA, in theice Area served by the Plan, except that BCB&#&nves the right to use the Licensed
Marks and Name in said Service Area, and excefttee@xtent that said Service Area may overlap tha ar areas served by one or more
other licensed Blue Cross Plans as of the datei®ficense as to which overlapping areas the sigbteby granted are non-exclusive as to
such other Plan or Plans and their respective kiegiControlled Affiliates only. Controlled Affiliatcannot use the Licensed Marks or Name
outside the Service Area or, anything in any otltense to Controlled Affiliate notwithstanding, s legal or trade name.

2. QUALITY CONTROL

A. Controlled Affiliate agrees to use the Licendéarks and Name only in relation to the sale, mankeand rendering of authorized products
and further agrees to be bound by the conditiogarteng quality control shown in Exhibit A as it ynbe amended by BCBSA from time-to-
time.

Amended as of November 17, 1994



B. Controlled Affiliate agrees that Plan and/or BE8Bmay, from time-to-time, upon reasonable notiegiew and inspect the manner and
method of Controlled Affiliate's rendering of sergiand use of the Licensed Marks and Name.

C. Controlled Affiliate agrees that it will provid® an annual basis (or more often if reasonalgjyired by Plan or by BCBSA) a report to
Plan and BCBSA demonstrating Controlled Affiliatetsmpliance with the requirements of this Agreenieciuding but not limited to the
quality control provisions of Exhibit A.

D. As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate is defings an entity organized and operated in such aendhat it is subject to the bona fide
control of a Plan or Plans. Absent written apprdxaBCBSA of an alternative method of control, bdide control shall mean the legal
authority, directly or indirectly through wholly-oved subsidiaries: (a) to select members of therGlbed Affiliate's governing body having
not less than 51% voting control thereof; (b) tereise operational control with respect to the goaece thereof; and (c) to prevent any
change in its articles of incorporation, bylawstrer governing documents deemed inappropriataddition, a Plan or Plans shall own at
least 51% of any for-profit Controlled Affiliatef the Controlled Affiliate is a mutual company, tR&n or its designee(s) shall have and
maintain, in lieu of the requirements of itemsdajl (c) above, proxies representing 51% of thesvat@any meeting of the policyholders and
shall demonstrate that there is no reason to leeti@g such proxies shall be revoked by sufficfiicyholders to reduce such percentage
below 51%.

3. SERVICE MARK USE

Controlled Affiliate shall at all times make propmarvice mark use of the Licensed Marks, includingnot limited to use of such symbols or
words as BCBSA shall specify to protect the Licenstarks, and shall comply with such rules (applieab all Controlled Affiliates licensed
to use the Marks) relative to service mark usarasssued from time-to-time by BCBSA. If theraisy public reference to the affiliation
between the Plan and the Controlled Affiliate odithe Controlled Affiliate's licensed servicedlie Service Area of the Plan shall be rend
under the Licensed Marks. Controlled Affiliate rgozes and agrees that all use of the Licensed MaylControlled Affiliate shall inure to
the benefit of BCBSA.

4. SUBLICENSING AND ASSIGNMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall not sublicense, transfeypothecate, sell, encumber or mortgage, by dperaf law or otherwise, the rights granted
hereunder and any such act shall be voidable aiptien of Plan or BCBSA. This Agreement and ahts and duties hereunder are personal
to Controlled Affiliate.
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5. INFRINGEMENTS

Controlled Affiliate shall promptly notify Plan arBICBSA of any suspected acts of infringement, urdampetition or passing off which m
occur in relation to the Licensed Marks. Controli@lliate shall not be entitled to require PlanBEBSA to take any actions or institute any
proceedings to prevent infringement, unfair contjmetior passing off by third parties. Controlledfildite agrees to render to Plan and
BCBSA, free of charge, all reasonable assistancermection with any matter pertaining to the petta of the Licensed Marks by BCBSA.

6. LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION

Controlled Affiliate hereby agrees to save, deféndemnify and hold Plan and BCBSA harmless from against all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andadiggion which may arise as a result of Controlidtiliate's rendering of health care services
under the Licensed Marks.

7. LICENSE TERM

The license granted by this Agreement shall rermaeffect for a period of one (1) year and shalblnéomatically extended for additional one
(1) year periods upon evidence satisfactory tdPla@ and BCBSA that Controlled Affiliate meets then applicable quality control
standards, unless one of the parties hereto rothie other party of the termination hereof attlsady (60) days prior to expiration of any
license period.

This Agreement may be terminated by the Plan d®BSA for cause at any time provided that ContrbKdfiliate has been given a
reasonable opportunity to cure and shall not eSach a cure within thirty (30) days of receivingtten notice of the intent to terminate (or
commence a cure within such thirty day period amtiaue diligent efforts to complete the cure i€swcuring cannot reasonably be compl
within such thirty day period). By way of exampledanot for purposes of limitation, Controlled Aféite's failure to abide by the quality
control provisions of Paragraph 2, above, shatidiesidered a proper ground for cancellation of Agseement.

This Agreement and all of Controlled Affiliate'ghts hereunder shall immediately terminate withenyt further action by any party or entity
in the event that:
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A. Controlled Affiliate shall no longer comply witBtandard No. 1 (Organization and Governance) aiflixA or, following an opportunity
to cure, with the remaining quality control prowiss of Exhibit A, as it may be amended from timettoe; or

B. Plan ceases to be authorized to use the Licaviagekks; or

C. Appropriate dues for Controlled Affiliate pursiido item 8 hereof, which are the royalties fas thicense Agreement are more than sixty
(60) days in arrears to BCBSA.

Upon termination of this Agreement for cause oeotlise, Controlled Affiliate agrees that it shatimediately discontinue all use of the
Licensed Marks including any use in its trade name.

In the event of any disagreement between Plan &892\ as to whether grounds exist for terminatioa®to any other term or condition
hereof, the decision of BCBSA shall control, subjegrovisions for mediation or mandatory disprgsolution in effect between the parties.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensed CadigrbAffiliate shall immediately notify all of itsustomers that it is no longer a license
the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association andigminstruction on how the customer can contacBtiue Cross and Blue Shield
Association or a designated licensee to obtaiméurinformation on securing coverage. The writtetifitation required by this paragraph
shall be in writing and in a form approved by theséciation. The Association shall have the righaudit the terminated entity's books and
records to verify compliance with this paragraph.

8. DUES

Controlled Affiliate will pay to BCBSA a fee for ihlicense in accordance with the following formula
o An annual fee of five thousand dollars ($5,008) lixense, plus

0 .05% of gross revenue per year from branded gpoogucts, plus

0 .5% of gross revenue per year from branded iddali products plus

0 .14% of gross revenue per year from branded igidal annuity products.

Amended as of November 20, 1997



The foregoing percentages shall be reduced by atievhere both a BLUE CROSS(R) and BLUE SHIELD(R¥hse are issued to the same
entity. In the event that any License period isatgeor less than one (1) year, any amounts duketghprorated. Royalties under this formula
will be calculated, billed and paid in arrears.

Plan will promptly and timely transmit to BCBSA allies owed by Controlled Affiliate as determinedhoy above formula and if Plan shall
fail to do so, Controlled Affiliate shall pay sudbes directly.

9. JOINT VENTURE

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be carestras creating a joint venture, partnership, agenemployment relationship betwe
Plan and Controlled Affiliate or between either &8@BSA.

9A. VOTING

For all provisions of this Agreement referring t@ting, the term “Plans' shall mean all entitiesri®ed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreenaamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentleatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if any] thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threexths weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddet weighted votes in favor of the question.

10. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE

Notices regarding the subject matter of this Agreetor breach or termination thereof shall be iitimg and shall be addressed in duplic
to the last known address of each other party, ethr&spectively to the attention of its Presidet, & any, its General Counsel.

Amended as of June 16, 2000 -4a-
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11. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the complete understandifitiee parties in relation to the subject mattnelof. This Agreement may only be
amended by a writing executed by all parties.

12. SEVERABILITY

If any term of this Agreement is held to be unlaividfy a court of competent jurisdiction, such finglishall in no way effect the remaining
obligations of the parties hereunder and the amast substitute a lawful term or condition for amlawful term or condition so long as the
effect of such substitution is to provide the pegtith the benefits of this Agreement.

13. NONWAIVER

No waiver by BCBSA of any breach or default in penfiance on the part of the Controlled Affiliateamy other licensee of any of the ten
covenants or conditions of this Agreement shalktitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or defaplerformance of said terms,
covenants or conditions.

14 . GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by, and constamedinterpreted in accordance with, the laws ofStete of Illinois.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thighse Agreement to be executed, effective as afatesof last signature written
below.

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION

By:
Date

Controlled Affiliate

By:

Date:




EXHIBIT A
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

Page 1 of 2
PREAMBLE

The standards for licensing Life Insurance Compa(life and Health Insurance companies, as defiyestate statute) are established by
BCBSA and are subject to change from time-to-tirperuthe affirmative vote of three-fourths (3/4)tleé Plans and three-fourths (3/4) of the
total weighted vote of all Plans. Each Licensedidaequired to use a standard controlled aféliatense form provided by BCBSA and to
cooperate fully in assuring that the licensed Lifeurance Company maintains compliance with trenbe standards.

An organization meeting the following standarddlidia eligible for a license to use the Licensed®kdawithin the service area of its
sponsoring Licensed Plan to the extent and the eraauthorized under the Controlled Affiliate Liceregpplicable to Life Insurance
Companies and the principal license to the Plan.

Standard 1 - Organization and Governance

The LIC shall be organized and operated in sucluan@r that it is controlled by a licensed Planlan® which have, directly or indirectly: 1)
not less than 51% of the voting control of the L@ 2) the legal ability to prevent any changthaarticles of incorporation, bylaws or
other establishing or governing documents of the Wwith which it does not concur; and 3) operatia@itrol of the LIC.

If the LIC is a mutual company, the Plan or itsigaee(s) shall have and maintain, in lieu of thguieements of items 1 and 2 above, proxies
representing at least 51% of the votes at any ylodicler meeting and shall demonstrate that theme iason to believe such proxies shall be
revoked by sufficient policyholders to reduce spehcentage below 51%.

Standard 2 - State Licensure

The LIC must maintain unimpaired licensure or diedie of authority to operate under applicableéestaws as a life and health insurance
company in each state in which the LIC does busines
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CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

Page 2 of 2
Standard 3 - Records and Examination

The LIC and its sponsoring licensed Plan(s) shalhtain and furnish, on a timely and accurate basish records and reports regarding the
LIC as may be required in order to establish coamgé with the license agreement. The LIC and issqring licensed Plan(s) shall permit
BCBSA to examine the affairs of the LIC and shglleee that BCBSA's board may submit a written refwthe chief executive officer(s) and
the board(s) of directors of the sponsoring Plan(s)

Standard 4 - Mediation

The LIC and its sponsoring Plan(s) shall agreestthe thercurrent BCBSA mediation and mandatory dispute téBm processes, in lieu
a legal action between or among another licensattalted affiliate, a licensed Plan or BCBSA.

Standard 5 - Financial Responsibility
The LIC shall maintain adequate financial resoutogsrotect its customers and meet its businesgatfuns.
Standard 6 - Cooperation with Affiliate License fBemance Response Process Protocol

The LIC and its Sponsoring Plan(s) shall coopenatie BCBSA's Board of Directors and its Plan Pamrfance and Financial Standards
Committee in the administration of the Affiliatedeinse Performance Response Process Protocol (ADRREmM addressing LIC compliar
problems identified thereunder.
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EXHIBIT 2
Membership Standards

Page 1 of 4
Preamble

The Membership Standards apply to all organizatemeking to become or to continue as Regular Mesriifethe Blue Cross and Blue Shield
Association. Any organization seeking to becomeegufar Member must be found to be in substantiaptimnce with all Membership
Standards at the time membership is granted andrtfamization must be found to be in substantial@nce with all Membership Standa
for a period of two (2) years preceding the dat@sofipplication. If Membership is sought by anitgnihich controls or is controlled by one
or more Plans, such compliance shall be deternonetie basis of compliance by such Plan or Plans.

The Regular Member Plans shall have authority terjpret these Standards. Compliance with any MeshiiigStandard may be excused, at
the Plans' discretion, if the Plans agree that diamge with such Standard would require the Plavidtate a law or governmental regulation
governing its operation or activities.

A Regular Member Plan that operates as a "ShelliHgICompany" is defined as an entity that assumasnderwriting risk and has less tt
1% of the consolidated enterprise assets (exclindestments in subsidiaries) and less than 5%ettmnsolidated enterprise general and
administrative expenses.

A Regular Member Plan that operates as a "Hybrildliig Company" is defined as an entity that assuneegnderwriting risk and has either
more than 1% of the consolidated enterprise agsettudes investments in subsidiaries) or more 8tarof the consolidated enterprise
general and administrative expenses.

Standard 1: A Plan's Board shall not be contr olled by any special interest
group, and shall act in the inter est of its Corporation in
providing cost-effective health ¢ are services to its
customers. A Plan shall maintain a governing Board, which
shall control the Plan, composed of a majority of persons
other than providers of health ca re services, who shall be
known as public members. A public member shall not be an
employee of or have a financial i nterest in a health care
provider, nor be a member of a pr ofession which provides

health care services.

Am ended as of November 19, 1998



EXHIBIT 2

Membership Standards

Page 2 of 4
Standard 2: A Plan shall furnish to the Assoc iation on a timely and
accurate basis reports and record s relating to compliance with
these Standards and the License A greements between the
Association and the Plans. Such r eports and records are the

following:
A. BCBSA Membership Information Request;
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mhtercluding disclosure material under Standard 7

C. Changes in the governance of the Plan, includireznges in a Plan's Charter, Articles of Incorpponaor Bylaws, changes in a Plan's
Board composition, or changes in the identity &f Bian's Principal Officers;

D. Quarterly Financial Report, Semi-annual "He&tbk-Based Capital (HRBC) Report" as defined byNi#d¢C, Annual Financial Forecast,
Annual Certified Audit Report, Insurance DepartmEramination Report, Annual Statement filed witht8tinsurance Department (with all
attachments), Plan, Subsidiary and Affiliate Repand

o Plans that are a Shell Holding Company as defim¢ide Preamble hereto are required to furnisly ardalendar year-end "Health Risk-
Based Capital (HRBC) Report" as defined by the NAIC

Amended as of November 15, 2001



EXHIBIT 2

Membership Standards

E. Quarterly Enroliment Report

Standard 3:

Standard 4:

Standard 5:

Plans, and include:

A. Transfer Program;

Page 3 of 4
, Semi-Annual Ben€fitst

Management Report and Membe
(MTM) starting 12/31/00 and
and
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Amended as of November 15, 20C



EXHIBIT 2

Membership Standards

Page 4 of 4

Standard 6: In addition to requirements under
in Standard 5: Participation in N
shall take such action as require
performance in programs and contr
or where the Association is a par
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Amended as of June 18, 1999



EXHIBIT 3

GUIDELINES WITH RESPECT TO USE OF
LICENSED NAME AND MARKS IN CONNECTION WITH NATIONAL
ACCOUNTS

Page 1 of 3

1. The strength of the Blue Cross/Blue Cross Nalidxtcounts mechanism, and the continued provisfaost effective, quality health care
benefits to National Accounts, are predicated aally managed provider networks coordinated ontmmnal scale in a manner consistent \
effective service to National Account customers emalsistent with the preservation of the integoityhe Blue Cross/Blue Shield system and
the Licensed Marks. These guidelines shall bepnéted in keeping with such ends.

2. A National Account is an entity with employeealfor retiree locations in more than one Plan's iSer&rea. Unless otherwise agreed, a
National Account is deemed located in the ServioesaAn which the corporate headquarters of theoNatiAccount is located. A local plai
office or division headquarters of an entity maydeemed a separate National Account when that daat, office or division headquarters
has employee locations in more than one Servica,Amed 2) has independent health benefit decisiaking authority for the employees
working at such local plant, office or division loggarters and for employees working at other locatioutside the Service Area. In such a
case, the local plant, office or division headgeiaris a National Account that is deemed locateterService Area in which such local plant,
office or division headquarters is located. The @rPlan of a National Account is the Plan in wba@&szrvice Area the National Account is
located. A participating ("Par") Plan is a Plamminose Service Area the National Account has emgl@yel/or retiree locations, but in which
the National Account is not located.

3. The National Account Guidelines enunciated mebeilow shall be applicable only with respect ® llusiness of new National Accounts
acquired after January 1, 1991.

4. Control Plans shall utilize National Accountrigification cards complying with then currently eftive BCBSA graphic standards in
connection with all National Accounts businessaailftate administration thereof, to minimize sutiiser and provider confusion, and to
reflect a commitment to cooperation among Plans.

Amended June 15, 200



EXHIBIT 3
Page 2 of 3

5. Disputes among Plans and/or BCBSA as to thepregtion or implementation of these Guidelinea®to other National Accounts issues
shall be submitted to mediation and mandatory déspesolution as provided in the License Agreemieat.two years from the effective date
of the License Agreement, however, such disputal b subject to mediation only, with the reswoltsuch mediation to be collected and
reported in order to establish more definitive apieg parameters for National Accounts businesstasérve as ground rules for future
binding dispute resolution.

6. The Control Plan may use the BlueCard Prograntééined by IPOC) to deliver benefits to employaed nonMedicare eligible retirees
a Participating Plan's service area if an alteveatirrangement with the Participating Plan caneatdgotiated. The Participating Plan's
minimum servicing requirement for those employe®s$ @on-Medicare retirees in its service area delover benefits using the BlueCard
Program. Account delivery is subject to the poBgigrovisions and procedures of the BlueCard Progra

7. For provider payments in a Participating Planésa (on non-BlueCard claims), payment to the plervinay be made by the Participating
Plan or the Control Plan at the Participating Rlaption. If the Participating Plan elects to pag provider, it may not withhold payment of a
claim verified by the Control Plan or its desigmhpEocessor, and payment must be in conformity s&tivice criteria established by the Bc
of Directors of BCBSA (or an authorized committhereof) to assure prompt payment, good servicavananum confusion with providers
and subscribers. The Control Plan, at the Particip@lan's request, will also assure that measanetaken to protect the confidentiality of
the data pertaining to provider reimbursement keaeld profiles.

Amended as of June 14, 19¢



EXHIBIT 3
Page 3 of 3

8. For claim payments in a Participating Plan'adom non-BlueCard claims), Participating Planssarengly encouraged, but not required, to
pass along to the Control Plan part or all of Iqualvider discounts and differentials for use by @ontrol Plan in negotiating financial
arrangements with National Accounts. However, sthessize, basis, form and use of local differéattan vary substantially among Plans
and also by individual National Account charactits the degree and form of any discount or dififéial passed along to the Control Plan
shall be strictly a matter of negotiated contracaggeement between a Participating Plan and thgr@ldPlan and may also vary from one
National Account to another. In order to facilitéte quotation of national account pricing anddffering of a variety of National Accou
delivery systems, all Plans are strongly encouragexriodically publish to other Plans and the EB2Btheir National Account contracting
policies with respect to the handling of differafsi

The Control Plan, in its financial agreements vaitNational Account, is expected to reasonably ceflee aggregate amount of differentials
passed along to the Control Plan by all ParticigaRlans in a National Account. The exact form sulostance of this may vary from one
National Account to another and shall be a mattexplicit negotiation and contractual relationsbgtween the National Account and
Control Plan. The specifics in an agreement betweeiControl Plan and the National Account may varform (e.g., a guaranteed offset
against retentions, or a direct pass through,guaaanteed aggregate percentage discount, or sdpaek at all, etc.), and the Control Plan
the responsibility and the Authority to negotiateqise arrangements. However, irrespective ofitted &rrangements between the Control
Plan and the National Account, a Participating Bl&ability for passing along differentials shaé limited to the contractual agreement the
Participating Plan has with the Control Plan opectfic National Account.

9. Other than in contracting with health care pdevs or soliciting such contracts in areas contiguo a Plan's Service Area in order to serve
its subscribers or those of its licensed Controfiiate residing or working in its Service Area,Control Plan may not use the Licensed
Marks and/or Name, as a tag line or otherwiseggotiate directly with providers outside its Seevitrea.



EXHIBIT 4
GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS AND CERTAIN OTHER USES

Page 1 of 2

1. A Plan and its licensed Controlled Affiliate mase the Licensed Marks and Name in bidding onexeduting a contract to serve a
Government Program, and in thereafter communicatiitiy the Government concerning the Program. Wagpect, however, to such contri
entered into after the 1st day of January, 199 | tbensed Marks and Name will not be used in compations or transactions with
beneficiaries or providers in the Government Proglacated outside a Plan's Service Area, unlesBldmecan demonstrate to the satisfaction
of BCBSA's governing body that such a restrictioruse of the Licensed Marks and Name will jeoparitiz ability to procure the contract

for the Government Program. As to both existing fatdre contracts for Government Programs, Platisdigicontinue use of the Licensed
Marks and Name as to beneficiaries and Provideisidmutheir Service Area as expenditiously as airstances reasonably permit. Effective
January 1, 1995, except as provided in the finstesee above, all use by a Plan of the Licensek$/and Name in Government Programs
outside of the Plan's Service Area shall be disooad. Incidental communications outside a PlaatyiSe Area with resident or former
resident beneficiaries of the Plan, and other caiteg of necessary incidental communications apmidyy BCBSA, are not prohibited.

2. In connection with activity otherwise in furtla@ce of the License Agreement, a Plan may useitemsed Marks and Name outside its
Service Area in the following circumstances which deemed legitimate and necessary and not liketatise consumer confusion:

a. sending letterhead, envelopes, and similar isotedy for administrative purposes (e.g., notdarposes of marketing, advertising,
promoting, selling or soliciting the sale of heatdire plans and related services);

b. distributing business cards other than in mangedind selling;

c. contracting with health care providers or stifig such contracts in areas contiguous to a P&ergice Area in order to serve its subscri
or those of its licensed Controlled Affiliate reisig or working in its service area;

d. issuing a small sign containing the legal namigamle name of the Plan or its licensed ControMfdiate for display by a provider to
identify the latter as a participating providertioé Plan or Controlled Affiliate;

Amended March 16, 2001



EXHIBIT 4
Page 2 of 2
e. advertising in publications or electronic mesti¢ely to persons for employment;

f. advertising in print, electronic or other medihich serve, as a substantial market, the Serviea Af the Plan or licensed Controlled
Affiliate, provided that no Plan may advertise ddesits Service Area on the national broadcastcatide networks and that advertisements in
national print media are limited to the smallegfioaal edition encompassing the Service Area;

g. advertising by direct mail where the addressap'sode plus 4 includes, at least in part, tremBIService Area or that of a licensed
Controlled Affiliate.

h. negotiating rates with a health care providestrvices to a specific member in case managementided that:

(1) the health care provider does not contract tighLicensee (or any of the Licensees in the ohsgerlapping Service Areas) in whose
Service Area the health care provider is located; a

(2) the Licensee(s) in whose Service Area the healte provider is located consent(s) in advance.

Amended November 15, 200



EXHIBIT 5
MEDIATION AND MANDATORY DISPUTE RESOLUTION (MMDR) R ULES

The Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans ("Plans")thaBlue Cross Blue Shield Association ("BCBSA'§agnize and acknowledge that the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield system is a unique radit@md for-profit system offering cost effectitaealth care financing and services. The
Plans and BCBSA desire to utilize Mediation and Metory Dispute Resolution ("MMDR") to avoid expersand timezonsuming litigatior
that may otherwise occur in the federal and stateejal systems. Even MMDR should be viewed, howgeas methods of last resort, all other
procedures for dispute resolution having failedcépt as otherwise provided in the License Agreesehé Plans, their Controlled Affiliates
and BCBSA agree to submit all disputes to MMDR pard to these Rules and in lieu of litigation.

1. Initiation of Proceedings
A. Pre-MMDR Efforts

Before filing a Complaint to invoke the MMDR proseshe CEQO of a complaining party, or his/her desigd representative, shall undertake
good faith efforts with the other side(s) to tryrésolve any dispute.

B. Complaint

To commence a proceeding, the complaining partp#oties) shall provide by certified mail, retuateipt requested, a written Complaint to
the BCBSA Corporate Secretary (which shall alscstitiute service on BCBSA if it is a respondent) &madny Plan(s) and/or Controlled
Affiliate(s) named therein. The Complaint shall taon:

i. identification of the complaining party (or pag) requesting the proceeding;

ii. identification of the respondent(s);

iii. identification of any other persons or entiti@ho are interested in a resolution of the dispute
iv. a full statement describing the nature of thepdte;

v. identification of all of the issues that arerggsubmitted for resolution;

Amended as of November 21, 19¢



vi. the remedy sought;
vii. a statement as to whether the complainingyp@n parties) elect(s) first to pursue Mediation;

viii. any request, if applicable, that one or morembers of the Mediation Committee be disqualifiedh the proceeding and the grounds for
such request;

ix. any request, if applicable, that the mattehbadled on an expedited basis and the reason$ahexed

X. a statement signed by the CEO of the complaiparty affirming that the CEO has undertaken effaot has directed efforts to be
undertaken, to resolve the dispute before resottiige MMDR process.

The complaining party (or parties) shall file amiv@ with the Complaint copies of all documentsahtthe party (or parties) intend(s) to of
at the Arbitration Hearing and a statement idetgythe witnesses the party (or parties) intenti(gresent at the Hearing, along with a
summary of each witness' expected testimony.

C. Answer

Within twenty (20) days after receipt of the Coniplaeach respondent shall serve on the BCBSA arith® complaining party (or parties)
and on the Chairman of the Mediation Committee;

i. a full Answer to the aforesaid Complaint;

ii. a statement of any Counterclaims against theptaining party (or parties), providing with respdtereto the information specified in
Paragraph 1.B., above;

iii. a statement as to whether the respondentstedirst pursue Mediation;

iv. any request, if applicable, that one or morenhers of the Mediation Committee be disqualifiemhirthe proceeding and the grounds for
such request; and

v. any request, if applicable, that the matter &edbed on an expedited basis and the reasonsdahe



The respondent(s) shall file and serve with thewfersor by the date of the Initial Conference sethfin Paragraph 3.B., below, copies of all
documents which the respondent(s) intend(s) ta efféhe Arbitration Hearing and a statement idgimg the witnesses the party (or parties)
intend(s) to present at the Hearing, along witbrammary of each witness' expected testimony.

D. Reply To Counterclaim

Within ten (10) days after receipt of any Countairal, the complaining party (or parties) shall seasmeBCBSA and on the responding party
(or parties) and on the Chairman of the Mediatiom@ittee, a Reply to the Counterclaim. Such Replgtprovide the same information
required by Paragraph 1.C.

2. Mediation
A. Mediation Committee

To facilitate the mediation of disputes betweeamong BCBSA, the Plans and/or their Controlled lfsffes, the BCBSA Board has
established a Mediation Committee. Mediation maptmesued in lieu of or in an effort to obviate iandatory Dispute Resolution process,
and all parties are strongly urged to exhaust tadiation procedure.

B. Election To Mediate

If any party elects first to pursue Mediation, dhidl appears to the Corporate Secretary that thpude falls within the jurisdiction of the
Mediation Committee, as set forth in Exhibit 5-Aét®, then the Corporate Secretary will promptignfsh the Mediation Committee with
copies of the Complaint, Answer, Counterclaim argli to Counterclaim, and other documents refer@mecé®aragraph 1, above.

C. Selection of Mediators

The parties shall promptly attempt to agree updrihé number of mediators desired, not to exceeskt mediators; and (i) the selection of
the mediator(s) who may include members of the BlEmh Committee and/or experienced mediators frorimdependent entity to mediate
disputes set forth in the Complaint and Answer (@odnterclaim and Reply, if any). In the event plaeties cannot agree upon the number of
mediators desired, that number shall default teehin the event the parties cannot agree uposetieetion of mediator(s), the Chairman will
select the mediator(s), at least one of which df®@kn experienced mediator from an independeity ecnsistent with the provisions set
forth in this Paragraph. No member of the MediatBmmmittee who is a representative of any parth¢éoMediation may b



selected to mediate the dispute. The Chairman alsallendeavor not to select as a mediator any meailthe Mediation Committee whorr
party has requested to be disqualified. If, aftex tegard for availability, expertise, and sucteottonsiderations as may best promote an
expeditious Mediation, the Chairman believes tleabhshe must consider for selection a membereoMédiation Committee whom a party
has requested to be disqualified, the other mendfalee Committee eligible to be selected to medihe dispute shall decide the request for
disqualification. By agreeing to participate in tediation of a dispute, a member of the Mediattmmmittee represents to the party (or
parties) thereto that he or she knows of no growtdsh would require his or her disqualification.

D. Binding Decision

Before the date of the Mediation Hearing describeldw, the Corporate Secretary will contact theypgor parties) to determine whether tt
wish to be bound by any recommendation of the sedemediators for resolution of the disputes. llixash to be bound, the Corporate
Secretary will send appropriate documentation ¢artlior their signatures before the Mediation Heplirgins.

E. Mediation Procedure

The Chairman shall promptly advise the parties efleeduled Mediation Hearing date. Unless a paduests an expedited procedure, or
unless all parties to the proceeding agree to omeooe extensions of time, the Mediation Hearingfeeh below shall be completed within
forty (40) days of BCBSA's receipt of the Complaifihe selected mediators, unless the parties otbegree, shall adhere to the following
procedure:

i. Each party must be represented by its CEO ara#ipresentative who has been delegated full &tythio resolve the dispute. However,
parties may send additional representatives assbeit.

ii. By no later than five (5) days prior to the eakesignated for the Mediation Hearing, each parall supply and serve a list of all persons
who will be attending the Mediation Hearing, andigate who will have the authority to resolve thepdte.

iii. Each party will be given one-half hour to pees its case, beginning with the complaining péotyparties), followed by the other party or
parties. The parties are free to structure thes@ntations as they see fit, using oral statenoemsect examination of withesses. However,
neither cros-examination nor questioning of opposing represengatwill be



permitted. At the close of each presentation, ghected mediators will be given an opportunity $& guestions of the presenters and
witnesses. All parties must be present throughmiMediation Hearing. The selected mediators mégneikthe time allowed for each party's
presentation at the Mediation Hearing. The selectediators may meet in executive session, outbiel@tesence of the parties, or may meet
with the parties separately, to discuss the cortisy

iv. After the close of the presentations, the partiill attempt to negotiate a settlement of tlepdie. If the parties desire, the selected
mediators, or any one or more of the selected nmdiawill sit in on the negotiations.

v. After the close of the presentations, the selbotediators may meet privately to agree upona@metendation for resolution of the dispute
which would be submitted to the parties for thensideration and approval. If the parties haveiptesly agreed to be bound by the results of
this procedure, this recommendation shall be bodioon the parties.

vi. The purpose of the Mediation Hearing is to ststhie parties to settle their grievances shomamfdatory dispute resolution. As a result, the
Mediation Hearing has been designed to be as ibasipossible. Rules of evidence shall not apigtgre will be no transcript of the
proceedings, and no party may make a tape recodfitige Mediation Hearing.

vii. In order to facilitate a free and open diséassthe Mediation proceeding shall remain confitnA "Stipulation to Confidentiality”
which prohibits future use of settlement offers$ palsition papers or other statements furnishatiecselected mediators, and decisions or
recommendations in any Mediation proceeding stakxecuted by each party.

viii. Upon request of the selected mediators, a ohthe parties, BCBSA staff may also submit doentation at any time during the
proceedings



F. Notice Of Termination Of Mediation

If the Mediation cannot be completed within thesorébed or agreed time period due to the lack opeoation of any party, as determined by
the selected mediators, or if the Mediation dods@sult in a final resolution of all disputes la¢ tMediation Hearing or within forty (40) days
after the Complaint was served, whichever comss, fimy party or any one of the selected mediatang so notify the Corporate Secretary,
who shall promptly issue a Notice of terminatiomaddiation to all parties, to the selected med&tand to the MDR Administrator, defined
below. Such notice shall serve to bring the Mediatb an end and to initiate Mandatory Dispute Regm. Upon agreement of all parties
and the selected mediators, the Mediation procegsamntinue at the same time the MDR process skied. The Notice described above
would serve to initiate the MDR proceeding and wioubt terminate the proceedings.

3. Mandatory Dispute Resolution (MDR)

If all parties elect not to first pursue Mediatiam,if a notice of termination of Mediation is igslias set forth in Paragraph 2.F., above, then
the unresolved disputes set forth in any Compkamat Answer (and Counterclaim and Reply, if any)ldf@subject to MDR.

A. MDR Administrator

The Administrator shall be an independent entighsas the Center for Public Resources, Inc. or §gude, Inc., specializing in alternative
dispute resolution. The Administrator shall be geated initially, and may be changed from timerwet by the affirmative vote of a majority
of the Plans present and voting and a majoritheftotal then current weighted vote of all the Blaresent and voting.

B. Initial Conference

Within five (5) days after a Notice of Terminatibas issued, or within five (5) days after the tiimefiling and serving the Reply to any
Counterclaim if the parties elect first not to nagdj the parties shall confer with the Administratodiscuss selecting a dispute resolution
panel ("the Panel"). This Initial Conference mayblgeelephone. The parties are encouraged to agrbe composition of the Panel and to
present that agreement to the Administrator atriiel Conference. If the parties do not agredtm composition of the Panel by the time of
the Initial Conference, or by any extension thewggeed to by all parties and the Administratoentthe Panel Selection Process set forth in
subparagraph C shall be followed.

Amended September 21, 2000



C. Panel Selection Process

The Administrator shall designate at least sevearni@l arbitrators. The exact number designatedl ble sufficient to give each party at least
two peremptory strikes. Each party shall be pesditb strike any designee for cause and the Adtrads shall determine the sufficiency
thereof in its sole discretion. The Administratdl @esignate a replacement for any designee $kstr. Each party shall then be permitted
two peremptory strikes. From the remaining designtree Administrator shall select a three membeeP&he Administrator shall set the
dates for exercising all strikes and shall complleéePanel Selection Process within fifteen (1%)sdzf the Initial Conference. Each Arbitra
shall be compensated at his or her normal houté/og in the absence of an established rateredsonable hourly rate to be promptly fixed
by the Administrator for all time spent in connectiwith the proceedings and shall be reimburseafrgrtravel and other reasonable
expenses.

D. Duties Of The Arbitrators

The Panel shall promptly designate a Presidingtfatair for the purposes reflected below, but stethiin the power to review and modify &
ruling or other action of said Presiding Arbitrateach Arbitrator shall be an independent Arbitrashall be governed by the Code of Ethics
for Arbitrators in Commercial Disputes, appendedaiibit "5-B" hereto, and shall at or prior to tb@mmencement of any Arbitration
Hearing take an oath to that effect. Each Arbitratwll promptly disclose in writing to the Panetlao the parties any circumstances,
whenever arising, that might cause doubt as to subitrator's compliance, or ability to comply, Wwisaid Code of Ethics, and, absent
resignation by such Arbitrator, the remaining Arditibrs shall determine in their sole discretion thbethe circumstances so disclosed
constitute grounds for disqualification and forleeg@ment. With respect to such circumstances grmircoming to the attention of a party
after an Arbitrator's selection, a party may likesvrequest the Arbitrator's resignation or a datetion as to disqualification by the
remaining Arbitrators. With respect to a sole Anditior, the determination as to disqualificationlsba made by the Administrator.

There shall be no ex parte communication betweepé#hnties or their counsel and any member of tmelPa
E. Panel's Jurisdiction And Authority

The Panel's jurisdiction and authority shall extemdll disputes between or among the Plans, eitrolled Affiliates, and/or BCBSA,
except for those disputes excepted from these M\dERedures as set forth in the License Agreem



With the exception of punitive or treble damagks, Panel shall have full authority to award théfét deems appropriate to resolve the
parties' disputes, including monetary awards ajuhations, mandatory or prohibitory. The Panel haswuthority to award punitive or treble
damages except that the Panel may allocate orsasssgmonsibility for punitive or treble damageseased by another tribunal. Subject to the
above limitations, the Panel may, by way of examiple not of limitation:

i. interpret or construe the meaning of any tenpisase or provision in any license between BCBS&aPlan or a Controlled Affiliate
relating to the use of the BLUE CROSS(R) or BLUEIBED(R) service marks.

ii. determine whether BCBSA, a Plan or a ControM¢éfiliate has violated the terms or conditionsanfy license between the BCBSA and a
Plan or a Controlled Affiliate relating to the usfiethe BLUE CROSS(R) or BLUE CROSS(R) service marks

iii. decide challenges as to its own jurisdiction.
iv. issue such orders for interim relief as it deeppropriate pending Hearing and Award in any thabon.

It is understood that the Panel is expected tdvesssues based on governing principles of lawserving to the maximum extent legally
possible the continued integrity of the Licensedhdaand the BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD system. The Pahall apply federal law to all
issues which, if asserted in the United StatesribisCourt, would give rise to federal questionigdiction, 28 U.S.C. ss. 1331. The Panel shall
apply lllinois law to all issues involving intergagion, performance or construction of any LiceAgeeement or Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement unless the agreement otherwise providet other issues, the Panel shall choose thécapje law based on conflicts of law
principles of the State of Illinoi



F. Administrative Conference And Preliminary Arbitr ation Hearing

Within ten (10) days of the Panel being selectied Rresiding Arbitrator will schedule an Adminisiva Conference to discuss scheduling of
the Arbitration Hearing and any other matter apgedp to be considered including:

any written discovery in the form of requests fasguction of documents or requests to admit fabesjdentity of any witness whose
deposition a party may desire and a showing of gtimeal good cause for the taking of any such diipos the desirability of bifurcation or
other separation of the issues; the need for amtifie of record of conferences and hearings, dictuthe need for transcripts; the need for
expert witnesses and how expert testimony shoulatésented; the appropriateness of motions to disand/or for full or partial summary
judgment; consideration of stipulations; the ddslity of presenting any direct testimony in wrignand the necessity for any-site

inspection by the Panel.

G. Discovery

i. Requests for Production of Documents: All redsiésr the production of documents must be sergeaf she date of the Administrative
Conference as set forth in Paragraph 3.F., abowbitwenty (20) days after receipt of a requestdocuments, a party shall produce all
relevant and non-privileged documents to the retipngeparty. In his or her discretion, the Presidikitrator may require the parties to
provide lists in such detail as is deemed apprtgoéall documents as to which privilege is claih@ad may further require in-camera
inspection of the same.

ii. Requests for Admissions: Requests for Admissioray be served up to 21 days prior to the Arlidnaitiearing. A party served with
Requests For Admissions must respond within twé@y days of receipt of said request. The goodh faste of and response to Requests for
Admissions is encouraged, and the Panel shall fulivdiscretion, with reference to the Federal Rubd Civil Procedure, in awarding
appropriate sanctions with respect to abuse optbeedure



iii. Depositions As a general rule, the partied wilt be permitted to take deposition testimonydisicovery purposes. The Presiding
Arbitrator, in his or her sole discretion, shallveahe authority to permit a party to take suchodépn testimony upon a showing of
exceptional good cause, provided that no deposittordiscovery purposes or otherwise, shall exdbesk (3) hours, excluding objections
and colloquy of counsel.

iv. Expert witness(es): If a party intends to pregbe testimony of an expert witness during thed bearing, it shall provide all other parties
with a written statement setting forth the inforfoatrequired to be provided by Fed. R. Civ. P. 2@8(§A)(i) prior to the expiration of the
discovery period.

v. Discovery cut-off: The Presiding Arbitrator sha@étermine the date on which the discovery pewddend, but the discovery period shall
not exceed forty-five (45) days from its commencetmwithout the agreement of all parties.

vi. Additional discovery: Any additional discovewill be at the discretion of the Presiding ArbitiatThe Presiding Arbitrator is authorizec
resolve all discovery disputes, which resolutiofi aé binding on the parties unless modified by Atnbitration Panel. If a party refuses to
comply with a decision resolving a discovery digpuihe Panel, in keeping with Fed. R. Civ. P. 3dy mefuse to allow that party to suppor
oppose designated claims or defenses, prohibiptrdy from introducing designated matters intalewce or, in extreme cases, decide an
issue submitted for resolution adversely to thatypa

H. Panel Suggested Settlement/Mediation

At any point during the proceedings, the Pandhatéquest of any party or on its own initiativeynsuggest that the parties explore
settlement and that they do so at or before thelasion of the Arbitration Hearing, and the Parwllsgive such assistance in settlement
negotiations as the parties may request and thel Py deem appropriate. Alternatively, the Pangy airect the parties to endeavor to
mediate their disputes as provided above, or ttoex@m mini-trial proceeding, or to have an indegent party render a neutral evaluation of
the parties' respective positions. The Panel gimadlr such sanctions as it deems appropriate esfect to any party failing to pursue in good
faith such Mediation or other alternate disput®haton methods



I. Subpoenas On Third Parties

Pursuant to, and consistent with, the Federal fatiin Act, 9 U.S.C. ss. 9 et seq., a party mayestjthe issuance of a subpoena on a third
party, to compel testimony or documents, and, ddyand sufficient cause is shown, the Panel séglle such a subpoena.

J. Arbitration Hearing

An Arbitration Hearing will be held within thirty30) days after the Administrative Conference ifdigcovery is taken, or within thirty (30)
days after the close of discovery, unless all pardind the Panel agree to extend the ArbitraticariFig date, or unless the parties agree in
writing to waive the Arbitration Hearing. The padimay mutually agree on the location of the Aaltitin Hearing. If the parties fail to agree,
the Arbitration Hearing shall be held in Chicadbnois, or at such other location determined bg Bresiding Arbitrator to be most
convenient to the participants. The Panel will detee the date(s) and time(s) of the ArbitratioraHeg(s) after consultation with all parties
and shall provide reasonable notice thereof tpaties or their representatives.

K. Arbitration Hearing Memoranda

Twenty (20) days prior to the Arbitration Hearirggch party shall submit to the other party (oripgytand to the Panel an Arbitration Hea
Memorandum which sets forth the applicable law amg argument as to any relevant issue. The Arlmtrdiearing Memorandum will
supplement, and not repeat, the allegations, irdtion and documents contained in or with the Coimplénswer, Counterclaim and Reply,
if any. Ten (10) days prior to the Arbitration Hieggy, each party may submit to the other party @tips) and to the Panel a Response
Arbitration Hearing Memorandum which sets forth aegponse to another party's Arbitration Hearingrideandum



L. Notice For Testimony

Ten (10) days prior to the Arbitration Hearing, goarty may serve a Notice on any other party (otigg) requesting the attendance at the
Arbitration Hearing of any officer, employee orefitor of the other party (or parties) for the pwgof providing noncumulative testimony. If
a party fails to produce one of its officers, enygles or directors whose noncumulative testimonindithe Arbitration Hearing is reasonably
requested by an adverse party, the Panel may refusw that party to support or oppose desighataims or defenses, prohibit that party
from introducing designated matters into evidengénoextreme cases, decide an issue submitteshdmdatory dispute resolution adversel
that party. This Rule may not be used for the psepaf burdening or harassing any party, and theiditing Arbitrator may impose such ord
as are appropriate so as to prevent or remedywhylsurden or harassment.

M. Arbitration Hearing Procedures

i. Attendance at Arbitration Hearing: Any persorving a direct interest in the proceeding is erditie attend the Arbitration Hearing. The
Presiding Arbitrator shall otherwise have the potearequire the exclusion of any witness, othenthaarty or other essential person, during
the testimony of any other witness. It shall beditonary with the Presiding Arbitrator to detenmithe propriety of the attendance of any
other person.

ii. Confidentiality: The Panel and all parties $hmhintain the privacy of the Arbitration ProceeagliThe parties and the Panel shall treat the
Arbitration Hearing and any discovery or other medings or events related thereto, including argrdwesulting therefrom, as confidential
except as otherwise necessary in connection witldiaial challenge to or enforcement of an awardmess otherwise required by law.

iii. Stenographic Record: Any party, or if the pastdo not object, the Panel, may request thareogtaphic or other record be made of any
Arbitration Hearing or portion thereof. The costste recording and/or of preparing the transcstmll be borne by the requesting party and
by any party who receives a copy thereof. If thedPaequests a recording and/or a transcript, tisésahereof shall be borne equally by the

parties.



iv. Oaths: The Panel may require witnesses tofyastider oath or affirmation administered by anyydyualified person and, if requested by
any party, shall do so.

v. Order of Arbitration Hearing: An Arbitration Heag shall be opened by the recording of the dateg, and place of the Arbitration
Hearing, and the presence of the Panel, the paatigstheir representatives, if any. The Panel mgthe beginning of the Arbitration Heari
ask for statements clarifying the issues involved.

Unless otherwise agreed, the complaining partyéoties) shall then present evidence to suppoit ¢ke@m(s). The respondent(s) shall then
present evidence supporting their defenses andt€mlaims, if any. The complaining party (or pasjishall then present evidence suppol
defenses to the Counterclaims, if any, and rebuttal

Witnesses for each party shall submit to questignadverse parties and/or the Panel.

The Panel has the discretion to vary these proesdbut shall afford a full and equal opportunétyall parties for the presentation of any
material and relevant evidence

vi. Evidence: The parties may offer such eviderg&s aelevant and material to the dispute and gimatluce such evidence as the Panel may
deem necessary to an understanding and resoldtibe dispute. Unless good cause is shown, asrdeted by the Panel or agreed to by all
other parties, no party shall be permitted to offeidence at the Arbitration Hearing which was distlosed prior to the Arbitration Hearing
by that party. The Panel may receive and consiteevidence of witnesses by affidavit upon sucmsess the Panel deems appropri



The Panel shall be the judge of the relevance aatdnmlity of the evidence offered, and conforntgyegal rules of evidence, other than
enforcement of the attorney-client privilege anel wWork product protection, shall not be necessHng. Federal Rules of Evidence shall be
considered by the Panel in conducting the Arbitratdearing but those rules shall not be controllifigevidence shall be taken in the
presence of the Panel and all of the parties, éxglpere any party is in default or has waived fbtrto be present.

Settlement offers by any party in connection witedihtion or MDR proceedings, decisions or recomragads of the selected mediators,
and a party's position papers or statements fuedish the selected mediators shall not be adméssiitlence or considered by the Panel
without the consent of all parties.

vii. Closing of Arbitration Hearing: The Presididgbitrator shall specifically inquire of all parievhether they have any further proofs to
offer or witnesses to be heard. Upon receiving tiegaeplies or if he or she is satisfied that teeord is complete, the Presiding Arbitrator
shall declare the Arbitration Hearing closed withagpropriate notation made on the record. Subjeoging reopened as provided below, the
time within which the Panel is required to make derd shall commence to run, in the absence dfagnagreement by the parties, upon
closing of the Arbitration Hearing.

With respect to complex disputes, the Panel maisisole discretion, defer the closing of the Awdtion Hearing for a period of up to thirty
(30) days after the presentation of proofs in otdgrermit the parties to submit post-hearing ragid argument, as the Panel deems
appropriate, prior to making an award.

For good cause, the Arbitration Hearing may be eeeg for up to thirty (30) days on the Panel'satiite, or upon application of a party, at
any time before the award is me



N. Awards

An Award must be in writing and shall be made prtynpy the Panel and, unless otherwise agreed dpdnties or specified by law, no later
than thirty

(30) days from the date of closing the Arbitratldearing. If all parties so request, the Award shaiitain findings of fact and conclusions of
law. The Award, and all other rulings and deterrtiores by the Panel, may be by a majority vote.

Parties shall accept as legal delivery of the Awhedplacing of the Award or a true copy thereathie@ mail addressed to a party or its
representative at its last known address or pelsanaice of the Award on a party or its represtvia

Awards are binding only on the parties to the Agtibn and are not binding on any nparties to the Arbitration and may not be useditexd:
as precedent in any other proceeding.

After the expiration of twenty (20) days from iaitidelivery, the Award (with corrections, if anyjal be final and binding on the parties, and
the parties shall undertake to carry out the AweitHout delay.

Proceedings to confirm, modify or vacate an Awdrallsbe conducted in conformity with and controlledthe Federal Arbitration Act. 9
U.S.C. ss. 1, et seq.

O. Return Of Documents

Within sixty (60) days after the Award and the doson of any judicial proceedings with respectréte, each party and the Panel shall re
any documents produced by any other party, inctydihcopies thereof. If a party receives a discpvequest in any other proceeding which
would require it to produce any documents produodtlby any other party in a proceeding hereunishall not produce such documents
without first notifying the producing party and gig said party reasonable time to respond, if appate, to the discovery reque



4. Miscellaneous
A. Expedited Procedures

Any party to a Mediation may direct a request foreapedited Mediation Hearing to the Chairman efitediation Committee, to the selec
Mediators, and to all other parties at any timee Thairman of the Mediation Committee, or at his@r direction, the then selected
Mediators, shall grant any request which is suggubhty good and sufficient reasons. If such a regaeganted, the Mediation shall be
completed within as short a period as practicasejetermined by the Chairman of the Mediation Cdtaeor, at his or her direction, the
then selected Mediators.

Any party to an Arbitration may direct a requestéapedited proceedings to the Administrator, ®mRanel, and to all other parties at any
time. The Administrator, or the Presiding Arbitnaiithe Panel has been selected, shall grant acly equest which is supported by good
sufficient reasons. If such a request is grantesl Arbitration shall be completed within as shatit@e as practicable, as determined by the
Administrator and/or the Presiding Arbitrator.

B. Temporary Or Preliminary Injunctive Relief

Any party may seek temporary or preliminary injunetrelief with the filing of a Complaint or at amiyne thereafter. If such relief is sought
prior to the time that an Arbitration Panel hasrbeelected, then the Administrator shall seleébhgls Arbitrator who is a lawyer who has no
interest in the subject matter of the dispute, mmdonnection to any of the parties, to hear anerdene the request for temporary or
preliminary injunction. If such relief is soughtaf the time that an Arbitration Panel has beeecsed], then the Arbitration Panel will hear
and determine the request. The request for temyporagpreliminary injunctive relief will be deterned with reference to the temporary or
preliminary injunction standards set forth in FRdCiv. P. 65.

C. Defaults And Proceedings In The Absence Of A Per

Whenever a party fails to comply with the MDR Ruless manner deemed material by the Panel, thel Baak fix a reasonable time for
compliance and, if the party does not comply witkeid period, the Panel may enter an Order of dtefaafford such other relief as it deems
appropriate. Arbitration may proceed in the evdra default or in the absence of any party wharafue notice, fails to be present or fails to
obtain an extension. An Award shall not be madelgan the default or absence of a party, but #neePshall require the party who is pres
to submit such evidence as the Panel may requirtaéomaking of findings, determinations, conclasioand Awards



D. Notice

Each party shall be deemed to have consentedriigiapers, notices, or process necessary or pfoptre initiation or continuation of a
proceeding under these rules or for any court adgticonnection therewith may be served on a gaytsnail addressed to the party or its
representative at its last known address or byopatsservice, in or outside the state where the Mideeding is to be held.

The Corporate Secretary and the parties may akséagsimile transmission, telex, telegram, or othetten forms of electronic
communication to give the notices required by threges.

E. Expenses

The expenses of witnesses shall be paid by thg pautsing or requesting the appearance of suctesges. All expenses of the MDR
proceeding, including compensation, required travnel other reasonable expenses of the Panel, ammbsh of any proof produced at the
direct request of the Panel, shall be borne eqilithe parties and shall be paid periodically dimeely basis, unless they agree otherwise or
unless the Panel in the Award assesses such espensay part thereof against any party (or pgytie exceptional cases, the Panel may
award reasonable attorneys' fees as an item ohsgpand the Panel shall promptly determine theuatmaf such fees based on affidavits or
such other proofs as the Panel deems sufficient.

F. Disqualification Or Disability Of A Panel Member

In the event that any Arbitrator of a Panel withrenthan one Arbitrator should become disqualifredign, die, or refuse or be unable to
perform or discharge his or her duties after thmm@ncement of MDR but prior to the rendition ofAamard, and the parties are unable to
agree upon a replacement, the remaining Panel mésitbe

i. shall designate a replacement, subject to tite of any party to challenge such replacementéoise.

ii. shall decide the extent to which previouslychbearings shall be repeat:



If the remaining Panel members consider the prangedo have progressed to a stage as to makecespéant impracticable, the parties may
agree, as an alternative to the recommencemehedflandatory Dispute Resolution process, to resolwf the dispute by the remaining
Panel members.

In the event that a single Arbitrator should becalisgualified, resign, die, or refuse or be undblperform or discharge his or her duties :
the commencement of MDR but prior to the renditban Award, and the parties are unable to agree apeplacement, the Administrator
shall appoint a successor, subject to the riglingfparty to challenge such successor for causkth@nsuccessor shall decide the extent to
which previously held proceedings shall be repeated

G. Extensions of Time

Any time limit set forth in these Rules may be exted upon agreement of the parties and apprové) dfiec Chairman of the Mediation
Committee if the proceeding is then in Mediatidi);the Administrator if the proceeding is in Arkdtion, but no Arbitration Panel has been
selected; or (iii) the Arbitration Panel, if theopeeding is in Arbitration and the Arbitration Pehnas been selected.

H. Intervention

The Plans, their Controlled Affiliates, and BCBS4 the extent subject to MMDR pursuant to theirdrise Agreements, shall have the right
to move to intervene in any pending Arbitrationw#itten motion for intervention shall be made t#tile Administrator, if the proceeding is
in Arbitration, but no Arbitration Panel has beetested; or (ii) the Arbitration Panel, if the pescling is in Arbitration and the Arbitration
Panel has been selected. The written motion ferwention shall be delivered to the BCBSA Corpofsgeretary (which shall also constitute
service on the BCBSA if it is a respondent) andrig Plan(s) and/or Controlled Affiliate(s) whictegrarties to the proceeding. Any party to
the proceeding can submit written objections tortizgion to intervene. The motion for interventidrab be granted upon good cause shown.
Intervention also may be allowed by stipulationited parties to the Arbitration proceeding. Inteti@mshall be allowed upon such terms as
the Arbitration Panel decides.

|. BCBSA Assistance In Resolution of Disputes
The resources and personnel of the BCBSA may heestgd by any member Plan at any time to try tolvedisputes with another Plan.

Amended September 21, 2000



J. Neutral Evaluation
The parties can voluntarily agree at any time teeten independent party render a neutral evaluafitime parties' respective positions.
K. Recovery of Attorney Fees and Expenses
Motions to Compel

Nothwithstanding any other provisions of these Ruémy Party subject to the License Agreementspffigposes of this Section L and all ol
subsections only hereinafter referred to colletyiveand individually as a "Party”) that initiategaurt action or administrative proceeding
solely to compel adherence to these Rules shabedietermined to have violated these Rules biafimy such action or proceeding.

Recovery of Fees, Expenses and Costs

The Arbitration Panel may, in its sole discretiamjard a Party its reasonable attorneys' fees, eggeand costs associated with a filing to
compel adherence to these Rules and/or reasorttdrieeys' fees, expenses and costs incurred immnelapg to an action filed in violation of
these Rules; provided, however, that neither fexgsenses, nor costs shall be awarded by the Atibitr®anel if the Party from which the
award is sought can demonstrate to the Arbitrgtiemel, in its sole discretion, that it did not aitd these Rules or that it had reasonable
grounds for believing that its action did not vielahese Rules.

Requests for Reimbursement

For purposes of this Section L, any Party may regregmbursement of fees, expenses and/or costghipitting said request in writing to the
Arbitration Panel at any time before an award isvde=d pursuant to

Section 3-N hereof, with a copy to the Party frotmch reimbursement is sought, explaining why erigitled to such reimbursement. The
Party from which reimbursement is sought shall i2Z@elays to submit a response to such requesetartitration Panel with a copy to the
Party seeking reimbursement.

Amended September 21, 2000



EXHIBIT 5-A

MEDIATION COMMITTEE

REPORTS TO: Board of Directors

CHARGE: 1. Develop and implement processes for

or disagreements between Plans or betwe
under the following circumstances:

a. Matters at issue regarding
or between Plans and the As

b. Matters at issue regarding
or between Plans and the As

c. Matters at issue under the
and Transfer Programs.

d. Matters at issue regarding
performance under the Medic

2. Determination of equalization allowa
under FEP shall not be considered by th

MEMBERSHIP: Six to Eight

STAFF: Senior Vice President and General Cou

resolving misunderstandings
en Plans and the Association

relationships between Plans
sociation.

relationships between Plans
sociation.

Inter-Plan Bank, Reciprocity,
contractor selection or
are Part A Program.

nces and/or cost allowances
is Committee.



Exhibit 10.23
BLUE SHIELD LICENSE AGREEMENT
(Includes revisions, if any, adopted by Member Bldmough their June 15, 2001 meeting)

This agreement by and between Blue Cross and BligddSAssociation ("BCBSA") and The Blue Shield ®l&nown as Anthem, Inc. (the
"Plan").

Preamble

WHEREAS, the Plan and/or its predecessor(s) irréstgcollectively the "Plan") had the right to use BLUE SHIELD and BLUE SHIELD
Design service marks (collectively the "Licensedrkéd) for health care plans in its service areaiciwas essentially local in nature;

WHEREAS, the Plan was desirous of assuring natidewsirotection of the Licensed Marks, maintainingarm quality controls among
Plans, facilitating the provision of cost effectivealth care services to the public and otherwgsefiting the public;

WHEREAS, to better attain such ends, the Plan bagtedecessor of BCBSA executed the Agreemengg)iRg to the Collective Service
Mark "Blue Shield"; and

WHEREAS, BCBSA and the Plan desire to supercedkeAgieement(s) to reflect their current practiced to assure the continued integrity
of the Licensed Marks and of the BLUE SHIELD system

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl he mutual agreements hereinafter set fortif@nother good and valuab
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties agree asvigil



Agreement

1. BCBSA hereby grants to the Plan, upon the temasconditions of this License Agreement, the righise BLUE SHIELD in its trade
and/or corporate name (the "Licensed Name"), aadigt to use the Licensed Marks, in the sale katarg and administration of health care
plans and related services in the Service Arefosiit and defined in paragraph 5 below. As usee@ihehealth care plans and related services
shall include acting as a nonprofit health cara péafor-profit health care plan, or mutual heatisurer operating on a not-for-profit or for-
profit basis, under state law; financing accedsa@lth care services; providing health care manageand administration; administering, but
not underwriting, non-health portions of Workersn@pensation insurance; and delivering health caméces, except hospital services (as
defined in the Guidelines to Membership Standarggliéable to Regular Members).

2. The Plan may use the Licensed Marks and Naroerinection with the offering of: a) health carensland related services in the Service
Area through Controlled Affiliates, provided thatol such Controlled Affiliate is separately licethée use the Licensed Marks and Name
under the terms and conditions contained in theeAgrent attached as Exhibit 1 hereto (the "ContidMffiliate License Agreement"); and:
insurance coverages offered by life insurers uttteapplicable law in the Service Area, other ttherse which the Plan may offer in its own
name, provided through Controlled Affiliates, prbed that each such Controlled Affiliate is sepdydteensed to use the Licensed Marks
Name under the terms and conditions containedetireement attached as Exhibit 1A hereto (the t@tad Affiliate License Agreemet
Applicable to Life Insurance Companies") and furthevided that the offering of such services doatsand will not dilute or tarnish the
unique value of the Licensed Marks and Name; aratlojinistration and underwriting of Workers' Comgeion Insurance Controlled
Affiliates, provided that each such Controlled Affie is separately licensed to use the Licenserk&/and Name under the terms and
conditions contained in the Agreement attachedxdibif 1 hereto (the "Controlled Affiliate Licensg.As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate
is defined as an entity organized and operatedéh & manner that it is subject to the bona fidgrobof a Plan or Plans and, if the entity
meets the standards of subparagraph B but not mdma@h A of this paragraph, the entity, its ownarsl persons with authority to select or
appoint members or board members, other than adPlBtans, have received written approval of BCBBBsent written approval by
BCBSA of an alternative method of control, bonafabntrol shall mean that a Plan or Plans authdtizeise the Licensed Marks in the
Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate pursuaotthis License Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other tsanh Controlled Affiliate's License
Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(s)"), must éav

A. The legal authority, directly or indirectly thrgh wholly-owned subsidiaries: (a) to select memsloéithe Controlled Affiliate's governing
body having more than 50% voting control therebf;tp exercise control over the policy and operatiof the Controlled Affiliate; (c) to
prevent any change in the articles of incorporatimytaws or other establishing or governing docutmefthe Controlled Affiliate with which
the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur. In addita Plan or Plans directly or indirectly througholly-owned subsidiaries shall own more
than 50% of any for-profit Controlled Affiliate; or

Amended as of March 11, 1999



B. The legal authority directly or indirectly thrglu wholly-owned subsidiaries (a) to select membétbe Controlled Affiliate's governing
body having not less than 50% voting control th&rg) to prevent any change in the articles obimporation, bylaws or other establishing or
governing documents of the Controlled Affiliate lvihich the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not conga);to exercise control over the policy
and operations of the Controlled Affiliate at leagtial to that exercised by persons or entitigat(joor individually) other than the
Controlling Plan(s). Notwithstanding anything t@ tbontrary in (a) through (c) hereof, the Contildfiliate's establishing or governing
documents must also require written approval byGbaetrolling Plan(s) before the Controlled Affikatan:

1. Change its legal and/or trade name;

2. Change the geographic area in which it operates;

3. Change any of the types of businesses in whiehgages;

4. Create, or become liable for by way of guarardaey indebtedness, other than indebtedness aiisihg ordinary course of business;
5. Sell any assets, except for sales in the orgioaurse of business or sales of equipment no lomggful or being replaced;

6. Make any loans or advances except in the ongicaurse of business;

7. Enter into any arrangement or agreement withpamty directly or indirectly affiliated with anyf the owners of the Controlled Affiliate or
persons or entities with the authority to selecagpoint members or board members of the Contréiféliate, other than the Plan or Plans
(excluding owners of stock holdings of under 5% ipublicly traded Controlled Affiliate);

8. Conduct any business other than under the LétkENgarks and Name;
9. Take any action that any Controlling Plan or BB2Breasonably believes will adversely affect theelnised Marks or Names.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtiyough wholly owned subsidiaries shall own ast&#®% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

Amended as of June 11, 1998 -2a-
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3. The Plan may engage in activities not requine8B8BSA to be directly licensed through Controlkffiliates and may indicate its
relationship thereto by use of the Licensed Name tag line, provided that the engaging in suclvitiets does not and will not dilute or
tarnish the unique value of the Licensed MarksMadhe and further provided that such tag line us®isn a manner likely to cause
confusion or mistake. Consistent with the avoidasfogonfusion or mistake, each tag line use ofRRfam's Licensed Name: (a) shall be in the
style and manner specified by BCBSA from time-tuodj (b) shall not include the design service mai®sshall not be in a manner to import
more than the Plan's mere ownership of the Coettdiiffiliate; and (d) shall be restricted to thenBee Area. No rights are hereby created in
any Controlled Affiliate to use the Licensed Naméts own name or otherwise. At least annually,Rlen shall provide BCBSA with
representative samples of each such use of ith&émkName pursuant to the foregoing conditions.

4. The Plan recognizes the importance of a compsbe national network of independent BCBSA licassevhich are committed to
strengthening the Licensed Marks and Name. ThefRtdmer recognizes that its actions within its\B& Area may affect the value of the
Licensed Marks and Name nationwide. The Plan agegds maintain in good standing its membershiB@BSA; (b) promptly to pay its
dues to BCBSA, said dues to represent the roydtirethis License Agreement; (c) materially to cdynwith all applicable laws; (d) to
comply with the Membership Standards Applicabl®egular Members of BCBSA, a current copy of whighttached as Exhibit 2 hereto;
and (e) reasonably to permit BCBSA, upon a writtgrod faith request and during reasonable busimasss, to inspect the Plan's books and
records necessary to ascertain compliance herefstho other Plans and third parties, BCBSA shalintain the confidentiality of all
documents and information furnished by the Plaspamt hereto, or pursuant to the Membership Stdsdand clearly designated by the F
as containing proprietary information of the Plan.

5. The rights hereby granted are exclusive to tha Rithin the geographical area(s) served by the Bn June 30, 1972, and/or as to which
the Plan has been granted a subsequent licensgh stiereby defined as the "Service Area," extiegitBCBSA reserves the right to use the
Licensed Marks in said Service Area, and exceflidaextent that said Service Area may overlap aengd by one or more other licensed
Blue Shield Plans as of said date or subsequentdi as to which overlapping areas the rightslgegeanted are nonexclusive as to such
other Plan or Plans only.

Amended as of November 20, 1997



6. Except as expressly provided by BCBSA with respe National Accounts, Government Programs amthiceother necessary and
collateral uses, the current rules and regulatimerning which are attached as Exhibit 3 and EkHibereto, or as expressly provided
herein, the Plan may not use the Licensed Markd\amde outside the Service Area or in connectioh wiher goods and services, nor may
the Plan use the Licensed Marks or Name in a mamhieh is intended to transfer in the Service Ateagoodwill associated therewith to
another mark or name. Nothing herein shall be coedtto prevent the Plan from engaging in lawftivity anywhere under other marks and
names not confusingly similar to the Licensed Makd Name, provided that engaging in such actoitys and will not dilute or tarnish the
unique value of the Licensed Marks and Name. Irtidto any and all remedies available hereunB&@BSA may impose monetary fines
the Plan for the Plan's use of the Licensed MankisNeames outside the Service Area provided thaptbeedure used in imposing a fine is
consistent with procedures specifically prescribgdCBSA from time to time in regulations of gerleapplication.

7. The Plan agrees that it will display the LicahMarks and Name only in such form, style and maaseshall be specifically prescribed by
BCBSA from time-totime in regulations of general application in ortieprevent impairment of the distinctiveness & ticensed Marks at
Name and the goodwill pertaining thereto. The Rlaall cause to appear on all materials on or imeotion with which the Licensed Mar

or Name are used such legends, markings and netscBEBSA may reasonably request in order to gdprapriate notice of service mark or
other proprietary rights therein or pertaining #gier

8. BCBSA agrees that: (a) it will not grant anyeatlicense effective during the term of this Licedggreement for the use of the Licensed
Marks or Name which is inconsistent with the rigtmtanted to the Plan hereunder; and

(b) it will not itself use the Licensed Marks inrdgation of the rights of the Plan or in a maneedéprive the Plan of the full benefits of this
License Agreement. The Plan agrees that it willattzck the title of BCBSA in and to the Licensedrkis or Name or attack the validity of
the Licensed Marks or of this License Agreement Phan further agrees that all use by it of theehged Marks and Name or any similar
mark or name shall inure to the benefit of BCBS#q ¢he Plan shall cooperate with BCBSA in effedhgathe assignment to BCBSA of any
service mark or trademark registrations of the hégel Marks or any similar mark or name held byRtam or a Controlled Affiliate of the
Plan, all or any portion of which registration cts of the Licensed Marks.

Amended November 18, 1999



9. (a). Should the Plan fail to comply with the yisbons of paragraphs 2-4, 6, 7 and/or 12, anccag such failure within thirty (30) days of
receiving written notice thereof (or commence cgidch failure within such thirty day period andhtioue diligent efforts to complete the
curing of such failure if such curing cannot readuy be completed within such thirty day period;BSA shall have the right to issue a
notice that the Plan is in a state of noncompliaBxeept as to the termination of a Plan's Licehgeement or the merger of two or more
Plans, disputes as to noncompliance, and all alisputes between or among BCBSA, the Plan, otlersPdnd/or Controlled Affiliates, shall
be submitted promptly to mediation and mandatosputie resolution pursuant to the rules and reguiatof BCBSA, a current copy of which
is attached as Exhibit 5 hereto, and shall be timetsented and resolved. The mandatory disputduteesn panel shall have authority to issue
orders for specific performance and assess monptaralties. If a state of noncompliance as afoddsaindisputed by the Plan or is found to
exist by a mandatory dispute resolution panel anthcured as provided above, BCBSA shall haveig to seek judicial enforcement of-
License Agreement. Except, however, as providgahnagraphs 9(d)(iii) and 15(a)(i)-(viii) below, Rtan's license to use the Licensed Marks
and Name may be finally terminated for any reasidhomt the affirmative vote of three-fourths of tRkans and three-fourths of the total then
current weighted vote of all the Plans.

(b). Notwithstanding any other provision of thisénse Agreement, a Plan's license to use the ledevisrks and Name may be forthwith
terminated by the affirmative vote of three-fourttighe Plans and three-fourths of the total thement weighted vote of all the Plans at a
special meeting expressly called by BCBSA for thegppse on ten (10) days written notice to the Ridwising of the specific matters at issue
and granting the Plan an opportunity to be headitampresent its response to Member Plans fofai{i)re to comply with any minimum

capital or liquidity requirement under the MembépsBtandard on Financial Responsibility; or (ii)gending financial insolvency; or

(iii) the pendency of any action instituted agaiinet Plan seeking its dissolution or liquidatioriterassets or seeking appointment of a trustee
interim trustee, receiver or other custodian for ahits property or business or seeking the detiam or establishment of a trust for any of its
property of business, unless this License Agreerasibeen earlier terminated under paragraph 1&(&);) such other reason as is
determined in good faith immediately and irrepaydblthreaten the integrity and reputation of BCB&#e Plans and/or the Licensed Marks.

(c). To the extent not otherwise provided theragither: (i) the Membership Standards Applicabl®émular Members of BCBSA; nor (ii)
the rules and regulations governing National Acésu@overnment Programs and certain other usegjindhe rules and regulations
governing mediation and mandatory dispute resatutisay be amended unless and until each such aneedsrfirst adopted by the
affirmative vote of three-fourths of the Plans afithree-fourths of the total then current weightete of all the Plans.

Amended as of March 11, 1999



9. (d). The Plan may operate as a for-profit corgganthe following conditions:

() The Plan shall discharge all responsibilitidsiet it has to the Association and to other Plansitiue of this Agreement and the Plan's
membership in BCBSA.

(i) The Plan shall not use the licensed Marks Badhe, or any derivative thereof, as part of italegame or any symbol used to identify the
Plan in any securities market. The Plan shall heditensed Marks and Name as part of its tradeenaithin its service area for the sale,
marketing and administration of health care analteel services in the service area.

(iii) The Plan's license to use the Licensed Mankd Name shall automatically terminate effectigg:thirty days after the Plan knows, or
there is an SEC filing indicating that, any Inditnal Investor, has become the Beneficial Owneseafurities representing 10% or more of
voting power of the Plan ("Excess Institutional 83}, unless such Excess Institutional Voter sbadlse to be an Excess Institutional Voter
prior to such automatic termination becoming effext(b) thirty days after the Plan knows, or thisran SEC filing indicating that, any
Noninstitutional Investor has become the Benefi@alner of securities representing 5% or more ofviiteng power of the Plan ("Exce
Noninstitutional Voter") unless such Excess Noringbnal Voter shall cease to be an Excess Notirigtnal Voter prior to such automat
termination becoming effective; (c) thirty dayseafthe Plan knows, or there is an SEC filing inti@athat, any Person has become the
Beneficial Owner of 20% or more of the Plan's tbatstanding common stock or other equity secuniegh (either by themselves or in
combination) represent an ownership interest of 20%hore pursuant to determinations made undegpaph 9(d)(iv) below ("Excess
Owner"), unless such Excess Owner shall cease am li&xcess Owner prior to such automatic terminatiecoming effective; (d) ten
business days after individuals who at the timeRtlae went public constituted the Board of Direstof the Plan (together with any new
directors whose election to the Board was apprdoyea vote of 2/3 of the directors then still inioff who were directors at the time the Plan
went public or whose election or nomination wasvjnesly so approved) (the "Continuing Directors&ase for any reason to constitute a
majority of the Board of Directors; or (e) ten mess days after the Plan consolidates with or nsexgth or into any person or conveys,
assigns, transfers or sells all or substantiallpfals assets to any person other than a mergehich the Plan is the surviving entity and
immediately after which merger, no person is andsgdnstitutional Voter, an Excess Noninstitutioviater or an Excess Owner: provided
that, if requested by the affected Plan in a wgitieceived by BCBSA prior to such automatic terrtioxabecoming effective, the provisions
of this paragraph 9(d)(iii) may be waived, in wholein part,

Amended as of September 17, 1997
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upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the digrested Plans and a majority of the total thereot weighted vote of the disinterested
Plans. Any waiver so granted may be conditionechugaech additional requirements (including but moited to imposing new and
independent grounds for termination of this Licgreseshall be approved by the affirmative vote ofaority of the disinterested Plans and a
majority of the total then current weighted votetod disinterested Plans. If a timely waiver reqeseceived, no automatic termination shall
become effective until the later of:

(1) the conclusion of the applicable time perioddfied in paragraphs

9(d)(iii)(a)-(d) above, or (2) the conclusion oétfirst Member Plan meeting after receipt of sueteéver request.

In the event that the Plan's license to use therlsed Marks and Name is terminated pursuant td*triagraph 9(d)(iii), the license may be
reinstated in BCBSA's sole discretion if, within @8ys of the date of such termination, the Planatestnates that the Person referred to in
clause (a), (b) or (c) of the preceding paragrapioilonger an Excess Institutional Voter, an Esdésninstitutional Voter or an Excess
Owner.

(iv) The Plan shall not issue any class or serdegourity other than

(i) shares of common stock having identical termspiions or derivatives of such common stock,(@h-voting, non-convertible debt
securities or (iii) such other securities as trenRhay approve, provided that BCBSA receives naideast thirty days prior to the issuanc
such securities, including a description of thenefor such securities, and BCBSA shall have thkeaity to determine how such other
securities will be counted in determining whethey Berson is an Excess Institutional Voter, Exdémsinstitutional Voter or an Excess
Owner.

(v) For purposes of paragraph 9(d)(iii), the follog definitions shall apply:

(a) "Affiliate" and "Associate" shall have the resfive meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule2l@bthe General Rules and Regulations
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as artkadd in effect on November 17, 1993 (the "Exclkahdt").

(b) A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owoégnd shall be deemed to "beneficially own" aegusities:
(i) which such Person or any of such Person'siafék or Associates beneficially owns, directlyratirectly;
Amended as of September 17, 1997
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(i) which such Person or any of such Person'sliafés or Associates has (A) the right to acquivkegther such right is exercisable
immediately or only after the passage of time) pam to any agreement, arrangement or understanalingpon the exercise of conversion
rights, exchange rights, warrants or options, beatise; or (B) the right to vote pursuant to agyeament, arrangement or understanding;
provided, however, that a Person shall not be ddeheBeneficial Owner of, or to beneficially ovamy security if the agreement,
arrangement or understanding to vote such sediitgrises solely from a revocable proxy or cong@regn to such Person in response to a
public proxy or consent solicitation made pursutanand in accordance with, the applicable rulesragulations promulgated under the
Exchange Act and

(2) is not also then reportable on Schedule 13Ceutite Exchange Act (or any comparable or succesgort); or

(iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or iimdctly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate osgociate thereof) with which such Person (or
any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates)drasagreement, arrangement or understanding (tithercustomary agreements with and
between underwriters and selling group members reitpect to a bona fide public offering of secasifirelating to the acquisition, holding,
voting (except to the extent contemplated by tlwigo to

(b)(ii)(B) above) or disposing of any securitiestloé Plan.

Notwithstanding anything in this definition of Bdiogéal Ownership to the contrary, the phrase "tbetstanding," when used with referenc
a Person's Beneficial Ownership of securities efRkan, shall mean the number of such securitesidsued and outstanding together with
the number of such securities not then actuallysdsand outstanding which such Person would be e&¢mown beneficially hereunder.

(c) A Person shall be deemed an "Institutional &te€' if (but only if) such Person (i) is an entdy group identified in the SEC's Rule 13d-1
(b)(2)(ii) as constituted on June 1, 1997, andefigry filing made by such Person with the SEC uitkgulation 13D-G (or any successor
Regulation) with respect to such Person's Benéf@ienership of Plan securities shall have contameertification identical to the one
required by item 10 of SEC Schedule 13G as comstitan June 1, 1997.

Amended as of September 17, 1997
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(d) "Noninstitutional Investor" means any Persorovginot an Institutional Investor.

(e) "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, parship, corporation, trust, association, joint weator other entity, and shall include any
successor (by merger or otherwise) or such entity.

Amended as of September 17, 1997 -5d-
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10. This License Agreement shall remain in effégt:until terminated as provided herein; or (b)ilthis and all such other License
Agreements are terminated by the affirmative vdétiniee-fourths of the Plans and three-fourthsheftotal then current weighted vote of all
the Plans; (c) until terminated by the Plan upan(8) months written notice to BCBSA.

11. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 1&ber by the affirmative vote of three-fourthstbe Plans and three-fourths of the total
then current weighted vote of all the Plans, oessithis and all such other License Agreementsiargltaneously terminated by force of law,
the termination of this License Agreement for aggson whatsoever shall cause the reversion to BGB3MArights in and to the Licensed
Marks and Name, and the Plan agrees that it wolinutly discontinue all use of the Licensed Markd Atame, will not use them thereafter,
and will promptly, upon written notice from BCBSghange its corporate name so as to eliminate ttenked Name therefrom.

12. The license hereby granted to Plan to useittenked Marks and Name is and shall be persornhétBlan so licensed and shall not be
assignable by any act of the Plan, directly orriactly, without the written consent of BCBSA. SiaEnse shall not be assignable by
operation of law, nor shall Plan mortgage or patih\wossession or control of this license or agptihereunder, and the Plan shall have no
right to grant any sublicense to use the Licensadksland Name.

13. BCBSA shall maintain appropriate service madistrations of the Licensed Marks and BCBSA sta&ié such lawful steps and
proceedings as may be necessary or proper to fireserof the Licensed Marks by any person who isaothorized to use the same. Any
actions or proceedings undertaken by BCBSA undeptbvisions of this paragraph shall be at BCBSAle cost and expense. BCBSA shall
have the sole right to determine whether or notlaggl action shall be taken on account of unaigbdruse of the Licensed Marks, such r
not to be unreasonably exercised. The Plan shadkrt@any unlawful usage of the Licensed Marks tdBB@ in writing and agrees, free of
charge, to cooperate fully with BCBSA's progranenforcing and protecting the service mark rightsjé name rights and other rights in the
Licensed Marks.

-6-



14. The Plan hereby agrees to save, defend, indeammil hold BCBSA and any other Plan(s) harmlesmfand against all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatiggion which may arise exclusively and directtyaresult of the activities of the Plan.
BCBSA hereby agrees to save, defend, indemnifyhantdi the Plan and any other Plan(s) harmless frathagainst all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatiggion which may arise exclusively and directtyaresult of the activities of BCBSA.

15. (a). This Agreement shall automatically terrteénapon the occurrence of any of the following ese(i) a voluntary petition shall be filed
by the Plan or by BCBSA seeking bankruptcy, reoizgtion, arrangement with creditors or other reliefler the bankruptcy laws of the
United States or any other law governing insolvemicgebtor relief, or (ii) an involuntary petitiar proceeding shall be filed against the Plan
or BCBSA seeking bankruptcy, reorganization, areangnt with creditors or other relief under the brapkcy laws of the United States or ¢
other law governing insolvency or debtor relief andh petition or proceeding is consented to oui@sged in by the Plan or BCBSA or is
dismissed within sixty (60) days of the date updnial the petition or other document commencingpteeeeding is served upon the Plan or
BCBSA respectively, or (iii) an order for relieféntered against the Plan or BCBSA in any caseruhéeébankruptcy laws of the United
States, or the Plan or BCBSA is adjudged bankrupismlvent (as that term is defined in the Unifd@@mmercial Code as enacted in the
state of lllinois) by any court of competent juiitttbn, or (iv) the Plan or BCBSA makes a genesdignment of its assets for the benefit of
creditors, or (v) the Department of Insurance deotegulatory agency assumes control of the Rlaelinquency proceedings (voluntary or
involuntary) are instituted, or (vi) an action i®bght by the Plan or BCBSA seeking its dissolutiotiquidation of its assets or seeking the
appointment of a trustee, interim trustee, receivasther custodian for any of its property or loesis, or (vii) an action is instituted by any
governmental entity or officer against the PlaB@BSA seeking its dissolution or liquidation of &ssets or seeking appointment of a tru:
interim trustee, receiver or other custodian for ahits property or business and such action iseated to or acquiesced in by the Plan or
BCBSA or is not dismissed within one hundred th{@$0) days of the date upon which the pleadingtioer document commencing the
action is served upon the Plan or BCBSA respegtiybvided that if the action is stayed or itsg@oution is enjoined, the one hundred tr
(130) day period is tolled for the duration of #tay or injunction, and provided further, that &ssociation's Board of Directors may toll or
extend the 130 day period at any time prior t@xgiration, or (viii) a trustee, interim trusteeceiver or other custodian for any of the Plan's
or BCBSA's property or business is appointed, elRlan or BCBSA is ordered dissolved or liquidatedjx) the Plan shall fail to pay its
dues and shall not cure such failure within th{9) days of receiving written notice thereof. Nithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, a declaration or a request for dectawaif the existence of a trust over any of the BlanBCBSA's property or business shall

in itself be deemed to constitute or seek appointroga trustee, interim trustee, receiver or othestodian for purposes of subparagraphs 15
(a)(vii) and (viii) of this Agreement.

Amended March 12, 1998



(b). BCBSA, or the Plans (as provided and in additpb the rights conferred in Paragraph 10(b) apoway terminate this Agreement
immediately upon written notice upon the occurreoiceither of the following events: (a) the PlarB&€BSA becomes insolvent (as that term
is defined in the Uniform Commercial Code enactethe state of Illinois), or (b) any final judgmegainst the Plan or BCBSA remains
unsatisfied or unbonded of record for a periodixtly60) days or longer.

(c). If this License Agreement is terminated aB&BSA for any reason stated in subparagraphs Hi@)b) above, the ownership of the
Licensed Marks shall revert to each of the Plans.

(d). Upon termination of this License Agreemenany Controlled Affiliate License Agreement of a gar Controlled Affiliate, as defined in
Exhibit 1 to this License Agreement:

() The terminated entity shall send a notice tigitothe U.S. mails, with first class postage affixedall individual and group customers,
providers, brokers and agents of products or sesvéold, marketed, underwritten or administerethbyterminated entity or its Controlled
Affiliates under the Licensed Marks and Name. Térenfand content of the notice shall be specifieBBBSA and shall, at a minimum,
notify the recipient of the termination of the i, the consequences thereof, and instructiorabtaining alternate products or services
licensed by BCBSA. This notice shall be mailed with5 days after termination or, if terminatiorpigrsuant to paragraph 10(d) of this
Agreement, within 15 days after the written notic@CBSA described in paragraph 10(d).

(i) The terminated entity shall deliver to BCBSAthin five days of a request by BCBSA a listingnattional accounts in which the
terminated entity is involved (in a Control, Papating or Servicing capacity), identifying the ioatal account and the terminated entity's role
therein. For those accounts where the terminatéty énthe Control Plan, the Plan must also intBdhe Participating and Servicing Plans in
the national account syndicate.

Amended as of September 19, 1996



(iiif) Unless the cause of termination is an evéatesl in paragraph 15(a) or (b) above respectinB®& the Plan and its Licensed Controlled
Affiliates shall be jointly liable for payment to®SA of an amount equal to $25 multiplied by thenber of Licensed Enrollees of the
terminated entity and its Licensed Controlled Adfies; provided that if any other Plan is permittgdBCBSA to use marks or names licensed
by BCBSA in the Service Area established by thiselgnent, the payment shall be multiplied by a foactthe numerator of which is the
number of Licensed Enrollees of the terminatedgamd its Licensed Controlled Affiliates and trendminator of which is the total number
of Licensed Enrollees in the Service Area. Licensatbllee means each and every person and covepmhdent who is enrolled as an
individual or member of a group receiving produmtservices sold, marketed or administered undeksrma names licensed by BCBSA as
determined at the earlier of (a) the end of theflasal year of the terminated entity which engeidr to termination or (b) the fiscal year
which ended before any transactions causing tieirtation began. Notwithstanding the foregoing, dh®unt payable pursuant to this
subparagraph (d)(iii) shall be due only to the ekthat, in BCBSA's opinion, it does not causertbeworth of the Plan to fall below 100% of
the capital benchmark formula or its equivalentamahy successor formula, as set forth in the egiplié financial responsibility standards
established by BCBSA (provided such equivalenpigraved for purposes of this sub paragraph by ffivenative vote of three-fourths of the
Plans and three-fourths of the total then curregigtited vote of all the Plans), measured as ofi¢tte of termination and adjusted for the
value of any transactions not made in the ordicanyrse of business. This payment shall not be mgernnection with transactions
exclusively by or among Plan or their affiliatas¢luding reorganizations, combinations or mergaigere the BCBSA Board of Directors
determines that the license termination does rsfitrén a material diminution in the number of Lised Enrollees or the extent of their
coverage.

Amended as of November 19, 1998
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(iv) BCBSA shall have the right to audit the boaksl records of the terminated entity and its LieenSontrolled Affiliates to verify
compliance with this paragraph 15(d).

(v) As to a breach of 15 (d) (i), (ii), (iii) or\), the parties agree that the obligations are idiately enforceable in a court of competent
jurisdiction. As to a breach of 15 (d) (
(i) or (iv) by the Plan, the parties agree therad adequate remedy at law and BCBSA is entiexbtain specific performance.

(e). BCBSA shall be entitled to enjoin the Plarany related party in a court of competent jurisdicfrom entry into any transaction which
would result in a termination of this License Agremnt unless the License Agreement has been temdipairsuant to paragraph 10 (d) of this
Agreement upon the required six (6) month writtetiae.

(f). BCBSA acknowledges that it is not the ownems$ets of the Plan.

16. This Agreement supersedes any and all otheeawnts between the parties with respect to thiecdubatter herein, and contains all of
the covenants and agreements of the parties ae twénsing of the Licensed Marks and Name. Tlgse@ment may be amended only by the
affirmative vote of three-fourths of the Plans dmeke-fourths of the total then current weightetewvar all the Plans as officially recorded by
the BCBSA Corporate Secretary.

17. If any provision or any part of any provisiditlis Agreement is judicially declared unlawfuial and every other provision, or any part
of any provision, shall continue in full force aeffect notwithstanding such judicial declaration.

18. No waiver by BCBSA or the Plan of any breacklefault in performance on the part of BCBSA orBen or any other licensee of any of
the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agredrsball constitute a waiver of any subsequent rescefault in performance of said ter
covenants or conditions.

19a. All notices provided for hereunder shall beviiting and shall be sent in duplicate by reguleail to BCBSA or the Plan at the address
currently published for each by BCBSA and shalhtsrked respectively to the attention of the Pregided, if any, the General Counsel, of
BCBSA or the Plan.

Amended as of November 20, 1997
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19b. Except as provided in paragraphs 9(b), 9{d)lib(a), and 15(b) above, this Agreement mayebminated for a breach only upon at least
30 days' written notice to the Plan advising ofghecific matters at issue and granting the Plaopgortunity to be heard and to present its
response to the Member Plans.

19c. For all provisions of this Agreement referringvoting, the term 'Plans' shall mean all ergitieensed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreemamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentieatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if anyj thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threentbis weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall §e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddst weighted votes in favor of the question.

-8c-
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20. Nothing herein contained shall be construembttstitute the parties hereto as partners or j@nturers, or either as the agent of the other,
and Plan shall have no right to bind or obligateBS®. in any way, nor shall it represent that it hay right to do so. BCBSA shall have no
liability to third parties with respect to any aspef the business, activities, operations, proglumt services of the Plan.

21. This Agreement shall be governed, construedrgietpreted in accordance with the laws of theeSed lllinois.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigihse Agreement to be executed, effective as afateof last signature written
below.

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION

By /s/ Scott P. Serota

Date 11/02/01
Anthem, Inc.

By /s/ Larry C. d asscock

Date 11/02/01



EXHIBIT 1
BLUE SHIELD
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT

(Includes revisions adopted by Member Plans thrabgit November 15, 2001 meeting)

This Agreement by and among Blue Cross and Bluel&lissociation ("BCBSA") and ("Controllaffiliate™), a Controlled
Affiliate of the Blue Shield Plan(s), known as ("Plan™), which is also a Party signatoryeher

WHEREAS, BCBSA is the owner of the BLUE SHIELD aBHUE SHIELD Design service marks;

WHEREAS, Plan and Controlled Affiliate desire thia latter be entitled to use the BLUE SHIELD andJ& SHIELD Design service mar
(collectively the "Licensed Marks") as service nsaakd be entitled to use the term BLUE SHIELD tne@le name ("Licensed Name");

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing #me mutual agreements hereinafter set forth andther good and valuak
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agrémlows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE

Subject to the terms and conditions of this AgresimBCBSA hereby grants to Controlled Affiliate thight to use the Licensed Marks and
Name in connection with, and only in connectionhw(f) health care plans and related servicesgéinetl in BCBSA's License Agreeme

with Plan, and administering the non-health portibmorkers' compensation insurance, and (ii) uwdiéng the indemnity portion of
workers' compensation insurance, provided that ©et Affiliate's total premium revenue comprisess than 15 percent of the sponsoring
Plan's net subscription revenue.

This grant of rights is noexclusive and is limited to the Service Area segdhe Plan. Controlled Affiliate may use the lnsed Marks an
Name in its legal name on the following conditioisthe legal name must be approved in advanceriting, by BCBSA,; (ii) Controllec
Affiliate shall not do business outside the SenAcea under any name or mark; and (iii) Controldtiliate shall not use the Licensed Marks
and Name, or any derivative thereof, as part ofraampe or symbol used to identify itself in any s@ms market. Controlled Affiliate may u
the Licensed Marks and Name in its Trade Name witly the prior, written, consent of BCBSA.

2. QUALITY CONTROL

A. Controlled Affiliate agrees to use the Licendédrks and Name only in connection with the licensed/ices and further agrees to be
bound by the conditions regarding quality conttadwn in attached Exhibit A as they may be amengeB®BSA from time-to-time.

Amended as of November 16, 20C



B. Controlled Affiliate agrees to comply with ajpplicable federal, state and local laws.

C. Controlled Affiliate agrees that it will provid® an annual basis (or more often if reasonalgyired by Plan or by BCBSA) a report or
reports to Plan and BCBSA demonstrating Controliffdiate's compliance with the requirements ofstiiigreement including but not limited
to the quality control provisions of this paragraptd the attached Exhibit A.

D. Controlled Affiliate agrees that Plan and/or BEBmay, from time-to-time, upon reasonable notiegiew and inspect the manner and
method of Controlled Affiliate's rendering of ser@iand use of the Licensed Marks and Name.

E. As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate is defines an entity organized and operated in such aenathat it meets the following
requirements:

(1) A Plan or Plans authorized to use the Licermdatks in the Service Area of the Controlled Affitkgpursuant to separate License
Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other than such Controidfiliate's License Agreement(s), (the "Controfjifrlan(s)"), must have the legal
authority directly or indirectly through wholly-oved subsidiaries to select members of the Contrdiféitiate’'s governing body having not
less than 50% voting control thereof and to:

(a) prevent any change in the articles of incorpanabylaws or other establishing or governingutaents of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur;

(b) exercise control over the policy and operatiohthe Controlled Affiliate at least equal to tleetercised by persons or entities (jointly or
individually) other than the Controlling Plan(sjica

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in (a)ahgh (b) hereof, the Controlled Affiliate's estahlhg or governing documents must ¢
require written approval by the Controlling Plarifgfore the Controlled Affiliate can:

(i) change its legal and/or trade names;
(i) change the geographic area in which it opesate

(iii) change any of the type(s) of businesses iicivit engages;



(iv) create, or become liable for by way of guaesntany indebtedness, other than indebtednessgaiisthe ordinary course of business;
(v) sell any assets, except for sales in the orginaurse of business or sales of equipment nodibageful or being replaced;
(vi) make any loans or advances except in the arglinourse of business;

(vii) enter into any arrangement or agreement aith party directly or indirectly affiliated with grof the owners or persons or entities with
the authority to select or appoint members or boagdchbers of the Controlled Affiliate, other thae fAlan or Plans (excluding owners of
stock holdings of under 5% in a publicly traded Colfed Affiliate);

(viii) conduct any business other than under treehsed Marks and Name;
(ix) take any action that any Controlling Plan cZBSA reasonably believes will adversely affectltimensed Marks and Name.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly owned subsidiaries shall own asté&®% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

Or

(2) A Plan or Plans authorized to use the Licermdatks in the Service Area of the Controlled Affitkgpursuant to separate License
Agreement(s) with BCBSA, other than such Controléfiliate's License Agreement(s), (the "ControgiiPlan(s)"), have the legal authority
directly or indirectly through wholly-owned subsidies to select members of the Controlled Affilisgoverning body having more than 50%
voting control thereof and to:

(a) prevent any change in the articles of incorpanabylaws or other establishing or governingutoents of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concur;

(b) exercise control over the policy and operatiofithe Controlled Affiliate.
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In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly-owned subsidiaries shall own asté#)% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.

3. SERVICE MARK USE

A. Controlled Affiliate recognizes the importandesocomprehensive national network of independePBBA licensees which are committed
to strengthening the Licensed Marks and Name. TdrerGlled Affiliate further recognizes that its imcts within its Service Area may affect
the value of the Licensed Marks and Name nationwide

B. Controlled Affiliate shall at all times make jper service mark use of the Licensed Marks and Namkiding but not limited to use of
such symbols or words as BCBSA shall specify tagmothe Licensed Marks and Name and shall comijily such rules (generally
applicable to Controlled Affiliates licensed to ubke Licensed Marks and Name) relative to serviegkmise, as are issued from time-to-time
by BCBSA. Controlled Affiliate recognizes and aggdleat all use of the Licensed Marks and Name hyti@bed Affiliate shall inure to the
benefit of BCBSA.

C. Controlled Affiliate may not directly or indirlg use the Licensed Marks and Name in a manneittéasfers or is intended to transfer in
the Service Area the goodwill associated theretaithnother mark or name, nor may Controlled Affdi@angage in activity that may dilute or
tarnish the unique value of the Licensed Marksdacdhe.

D. If Controlled Affiliate meets the standards &(2) but not 2E(2) above and any of Controlled Wffe's advertising or promotional

material is reasonably determined by BCBSA andierRlan to be in contravention of rules and regaiatgoverning the use of the Licensed
Marks and Name, Controlled Affiliate shall for nipng€90) days thereafter obtain prior approval frB@BSA of advertising and promotional
efforts using the Licensed Marks and Name, approwdisapproval thereof to be forthcoming withinefi(5) business days of receipt of same
by BCBSA or its designee. In all advertising andrpotional efforts, Controlled Affiliate shall obserthe Service Area limitations applicable
to Plan.

E. Controlled Affiliate shall use its best effomsthe Service Area to promote and build the valihe Licensed Marks and Name.

4



4. SUBLICENSING AND ASSIGNMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall not, directly or indirélg, sublicense, transfer, hypothecate, sell, erimmor mortgage, by operation of law or
otherwise, the rights granted hereunder and anly acicshall be voidable at the sole option of PlaBCBSA. This Agreement and all rights
and duties hereunder are personal to Controlleiigké.

5. INFRINGEMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall promptly notify Plan ariflan shall promptly notify BCBSA of any suspectats of infringement, unfair
competition or passing off that may occur in relatio the Licensed Marks and Name. Controlled #&ffd shall not be entitled to require Plan
or BCBSA to take any actions or institute any peatings to prevent infringement, unfair competittrpassing off by third parties.
Controlled Affiliate agrees to render to Plan ar@BSA, without charge, all reasonable assistancemmection with any matter pertaining to
the protection of the Licensed Marks and Name b3BE.

6. LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION

Controlled Affiliate and Plan hereby agree to salefend, indemnify and hold BCBSA harmless from agdinst all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatliggion (except those arising solely as a resuB@BSA's negligence) that may arise as a
result of or related to Controlled Affiliate's rearthg of services under the Licensed Marks and Name

7. LICENSE TERM

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, the licagrsmted by this Agreement shall remain in effectsf period of one (1) year and shall be
automatically extended for additional one (1) yeariods unless terminated pursuant to the provssimrein.

B. This Agreement and all of Controlled Affiliateights hereunder shall immediately terminate witheny further action by any party or
entity in the event that Plan ceases to be autbdtia use the Licensed Marks and Name.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmgent, this license to use the Licensed Marks aamdeNmay be forthwith terminated by
the Plan or the affirmative vote of the majoritytbé Board of Directors of BCBSA present and votin@ special meeting expressly called by
BCBSA for the purpose on ten

(10) days written notice to the Plan advising @& $pecific matters at issue and granting the Riaspgortunity to be heard and to present its
response to



the Board for: (1) failure to comply with any amglble minimum capital or liquidity requirement undlee quality control standards of this
Agreement; or

(2) failure to comply with the "Organization and&onance" quality control standard of this Agreetnen(3) impending financial
insolvency; or (4) for a Smaller Controlled Affitea(as defined in Exhibit A), failure to comply Wiany of the applicable requirements of
Standards 2, 3, 4, 5 or 7 of attached Exhibit A{(3)rthe pendency of any action instituted agaimstControlled Affiliate seeking its
dissolution or liquidation of its assets or seekapgointment of a trustee, interim trustee, reaeivether custodian for any of its property or
business or seeking the declaration or establishofentrust for any of its property or businessiesgs this Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement has been earlier terminated under paraghee); or (6) failure by a Controlled Affiliatedat meets the standards of 2E(1) but not
2E(2) above to obtain BCBSA's written consent thiange in the identity of any owner, in the extafmwnership, or in the identity of any
person or entity with the authority to select opaipt members or board members, provided that pslticly traded Controlled Affiliates th
provision shall apply only if the change affecisesison or entity that owns at least 5% of the Qe Affiliate's stock before or after the
change; or (7) such other reason as is determimgdad faith immediately and irreparably to threatee integrity and reputation of BCBSA,
the Plans, any other licensee including Controi#diate and/or the Licensed Marks and Name.

D. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 7{f&)) or 7(E) herein, should Controlled Affiliatailfto comply with the provisions of this
Agreement and not cure such failure within thi@p) days of receiving written notice thereof (omtoence a cure within such thirty day
period and continue diligent efforts to complete tlure if such curing cannot reasonably be comgpletthin such thirty day period) BCBSA
or the Plan shall have the right to issue a ndliaethe Controlled Affiliate is in a state of nanepliance. If a state of noncompliance as
aforesaid is undisputed by the Controlled Affiliateis found to exist by a mandatory dispute resmtupanel and is uncured as provided
above, BCBSA shall have the right to seek judieigbrcement of the Agreement or to issue a nofticermination thereof. Notwithstanding
any other provisions of this Agreement, any disp@® to the termination of this License pursuamaagraphs 7(B), 7(C) or 7(E) of this
Agreement shall not be subject to mediation anddatmy dispute resolution. All other disputes beaw&CBSA, the Plan and/or Controlled
Affiliate shall be submitted promptly to mediatiand mandatory dispute resolution. The mandatonyutiésresolution panel shall have
authority to issue orders for specific performaand assess monetary penalties. Except, howevproaisled in Paragraphs 7(B) and 7(E) of
this Agreement, this license to use the Licensedckbland Name may not be finally terminated for eegson without the affirmative vote o
majority of the present and voting members of tbar8 of Directors of BCBSA.
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E. This Agreement and all of Controlled Affiliatelghts hereunder shall immediately terminate witheny further action by any party or
entity in the event that:

(1) Controlled Affiliate shall no longer comply \ifitem 2(E) above;

(2) Appropriate dues, royalties and other payméat€ontrolled Affiliate pursuant to paragraph 9dwf, which are the royalties for this
License Agreement, are more than sixty (60) daysriears to BCBSA, or

(3) Any of the following events occur: (i) a volany petition shall be filed by Controlled Affiliageeking bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement with creditors or other relief undertlankruptcy laws of the United States or any da@rgoverning insolvency or debtor
relief, or (ii) an involuntary petition or proceadi shall be filed against Controlled Affiliate segekbankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement
with creditors or other relief under the bankrupnys of the United States or any other law govegninsolvency or debtor relief and such
petition or proceeding is consented to or acquidgtéy Controlled Affiliate or is not dismissedthin sixty (60) days of the date upon which
the petition or other document commencing the prdirg is served upon the Controlled Affiliate, i) @n order for relief is entered against
Controlled Affiliate in any case under the bankaoypiaws of the United States, or Controlled Affiids adjudged bankrupt or insolvent as
those terms are defined in the Uniform Commerc@d€as enacted in the State of lllinois by any tolicompetent jurisdiction, or (iv)
Controlled Affiliate makes a general assignmeritoéssets for the benefit of creditors, or (v) Department of Insurance or other regulatory
agency assumes control of Controlled Affiliate efiniquency proceedings (voluntary or involuntamg mstituted, or (vi) an action is broug
by Controlled Affiliate seeking its dissolution kguidation of its assets or seeking the appointnoém trustee, interim trustee, receiver or
other custodian for any of its property or business

(vii) an action is instituted by any governmentatity or officer against Controlled Affiliate seelg its dissolution or liquidation of its assets
or seeking the appointment of a trustee, interimatire, receiver or other custodian for any of iitcgprty or business and such action is
consented to or acquiesced in by Controlled At#liar is not dismissed within one hundred thirtyQjLdays of the date upon which the
pleading or other document commencing the actiaeiged upon the Controlled Affiliate, providedttifahe action is stayed or its
prosecution is enjoined, the one hundred thirty

(130) day period is tolled for the duration of #tay or injunction, and provided further, that &ssociation's Board of Directors may toll or
extend the 130 day period at any time prior t@xgiration, or (viii) a trustee, interim trusteeceiver or other custodian for any of Controlled
Affiliate's property or business is appointed a @ontrolled Affiliate is ordered dissolved or lidated. Notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement,



a declaration or a request for declaration of ttistence of a trust over any of the Controlled Kdfe's property or business shall not in itself
be deemed to constitute or seek appointment afstéete, interim trustee, receiver or other custotbapurposes of subparagraphs 7(e)(3)(vii)
and (viii) of this Agreement.

F. Upon termination of this Agreement for causethierwise, Controlled Affiliate agrees that it dhimimediately discontinue all use of the
Licensed Marks and Name, including any use irréitd¢ name.

G. Upon termination of this Agreement, Controlleffiliate shall immediately notify all of its custaens that it is no longer a licensee of
BCBSA and, if directed by the Association's Boaf@®wectors, shall provide instruction on how thestomer can contact BCBSA or a
designated licensee to obtain further informatinrsecuring coverage. The notification requiredHiy paragraph shall be in writing and in a
form approved by BCBSA. The BCBSA shall have tightito audit the terminated entity's books and nésto verify compliance with this
paragraph.

H. In the event this Agreement terminates purst@ii{b) hereof, or in the event the Controlled Kdfe is a Larger Controlled Affiliate (as
defined in Exhibit A), upon termination of this Aggment, the provisions of Paragraph
7.G. shall not apply and the following provisiofsh apply:

(1) The Controlled Affiliate shall send a noticedhgh the U.S. mails, with first class postagexef, to all individual and group customers,
providers, brokers and agents of products or sesvéold, marketed, underwritten or administerethbyControlled Affiliate under the
Licensed Marks and Name. The form and contentehtitice shall be specified by BCBSA and shal§ atinimum, notify the recipient of
the termination of the license, the consequenaa®df, and instructions for obtaining alternatedpicis or services licensed by BCBSA. This
notice shall be mailed within 15 days after terrtiora

(2) The Controlled Affiliate shall deliver to BCBSWithin five days of a request by BCBSA a listinfgnational accounts in which the
Controlled Affiliate is involved (in a control, paripating or servicing capacity), identifying thational account and the Controlled Affiliate's
role therein.

(3) Unless the cause of termination is an evemteaeting BCBSA stated in paragraph 15(a) or (bhefRlan's license agreement with BCBSA
to use the Licensed Marks and Name, the Contrélféiiate, the Plan, and any other Licensed Con¢mlAffiliates of the Plan shall be

jointly liable for payment to BCBSA of an amountuatjto $25 multiplied by the number of Licensed @leies of the Controlled Affiliate
provided that if any other Plan is permitted by BS2Bto use marks or names licensed by BCBSA in thei& Area

8



established by this Agreement, the payment shathibiiplied by a fraction, the numerator of whishthe number of Licensed Enrollees of
Controlled Affiliate, the Plan, and any other Lised Controlled Affiliates and the denominator ofieithis the total number of Licensed
Enrollees in the Service Area. Licensed Enrolleamsesach and every person and covered dependeri$ whimlled as an individual or
member of a group receiving products or servicéd soarketed or administered under marks or namesded by BCBSA as determined at
the earlier of (i) the end of the last fiscal ye&the terminated entity which ended prior to teration or (ii) the fiscal year which ended
before any transactions causing the terminatiomibeljotwithstanding the foregoing, the amount p&yalrsuant to this subparagraph H. (3)
shall be due only to the extent that, in BCBSA'mimm, it does not cause the net worth of the Guled Affiliate, the Plan or any other
Licensed Controlled Affiliates of the Plan to faklow 100% of the capital benchmark formula, oefsiivalent under any successor formula,
as set forth in the applicable financial respotisjbétandards established by BCBSA (provided seghivalent is approved for purposes of
this subparagraph by the affirmative vote of thieeths of the Plans and thrémarths of the total then current weighted votalbthe Plans)
measured as of the date of termination, and adjdetethe value of any transactions not made inottténary course of business. This
payment shall not be due in connection with tratisas exclusively by or among Plans or their &dfiis, including reorganizations,
combinations or mergers, where the BCBSA Boardicdddors determines that the license terminatiossdwt result in a material diminution
in the number of Licensed Enrollees or the extétheir coverage.

(4) BCBSA shall have the right to audit the bookd eecords of the Controlled Affiliate, the Plandaany other Licensed Controlled
Affiliates of the Plan to verify compliance withistparagraph 7.H.

(5) As to a breach of 7.H.(1), (2), (3) or (4), treerties agree that the obligations are immediarfgrceable in a court of competent
jurisdiction. As to a breach of 7.H.(1), (2) or @) the Controlled Affiliate, the parties agreerthis no adequate remedy at law and BCBS
entitled to obtain specific performance.

I. In the event the Controlled Affiliate is a SnealiControlled Affiliate (as defined in Exhibit Athe Controlled Affiliate agrees to be jointly
liable for the amount described in H.3. hereof ufgmination of the BCBSA license agreement of bagger Controlled Affiliate of the Pla

J. BCBSA shall be entitled to enjoin the Controlfftiliate or any related party in a court of contget jurisdiction from entry into any
transaction which would result in a terminatiorttoé Agreement unless the Plan's license from BCBS#se the Licensed Marks and Nar
has been terminated



pursuant to 10(d) of the Plan's license agreemmurt the required 6 month written notice.
K. BCBSA acknowledges that it is not the owner sgeats of the Controlled Affiliate.

L. In the event that the Plan has more than 50gmnoting control of the Controlled Affiliate undBaragraph 2(E)(2) above and is a Larger
Controlled Affiliate (as defined in Exhibit A), thehe vote called for in Paragraphs 7(C) and 7{i2va shall require the affirmative vote of
three-fourths of the Plans and three-fourths oftdii@ then current weighted vote of all the Plans.

8. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The parties agree that any disputes between thdrataeen or among either of them and one or mamesRir Controlled Affiliates of Plans
that use in any manner the Blue Shield and Bluel8&hiarks and Name are subject to the MediationMaddatory Dispute Resolution
process attached to and made a part of Plan'sdedeom BCBSA to use the Licensed Marks and Nantexagbits 5, 5A and 5B as amended
from time-to-time, which documents are incorpordtedein by reference as though fully set forth imere

9. LICENSE FEE
Controlled Affiliate will pay to BCBSA a fee for i License determined pursuant to the formula(sjosth in Exhibit B.
10. JOINT VENTURE

Nothing contained in the Agreement shall be comstras creating a joint venture, partnership, agenemployment relationship betwe
Plan and Controlled Affiliate or between either &8@BSA.

Amended as of March 11, 1999
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11. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE

Notices regarding the subject matter of this Agreehor breach or termination thereof shall be ittimg and shall be addressed in duplic
to the last known address of each other party, ethr&spectively to the attention of its Presidert, & any, its General Counsel.

12. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the complete understandifitiee parties in relation to the subject mattnelof. This Agreement may only be
amended by the affirmative vote of three-fourthshef Plans and three-fourths of the total thenerurweighted vote of all the Plans as
officially recorded by the BCBSA Corporate Secnrgtar

13. SEVERABILITY

If any term of this Agreement is held to be unlaiidfy a court of competent jurisdiction, such finglinshall in no way affect the remaining
obligations of the parties hereunder and the amast substitute a lawful term or condition for amlawful term or condition so long as the
effect of such substitution is to provide the gagtivith the benefits of this Agreement.

14. NONWAIVER

No waiver by BCBSA of any breach or default in penfiance on the part of Controlled Affiliate or astyer licensee of any of the tern
covenants or conditions of this Agreement shalktitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or defaplerformance of said terms,
covenants or conditions.

14A. VOTING

For all provisions of this Agreement referring tmting, the term "Plans' shall mean all entitiesriwed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreemamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentieatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if anyj thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threentbis weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddst weighted votes in favor of the question.

Amended as of June 16, 2000
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15. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by, and constamedinterpreted in accordance with, the laws ofStete of Illinois.
16. HEADINGS

The headings inserted in this agreement are foreruance only and shall have no bearing on thepngééation hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thighse Agreement to be executed and effective e afate of last signature written
below.

Controlled Affiliate:

By:

Date:

Plan:

By:

Date:

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION

By:

Date:
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EXHIBIT A

CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
June 2001

PREAMBLE

The standards for licensing Controlled Affiliates @stablished by BCBSA and are subject to chamge fime-to-time upon the affirmative
vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the Plans and tHmeths (3/4) of the total weighted vote. Eachitised Plan is required to use a standard
Controlled Affiliate license form provided by BCBS#d to cooperate fully in assuring that the lieeh€ontrolled Affiliate maintains
compliance with the license standards.

The Controlled Affiliate License provides a flex@bkehicle to accommodate the potential range dfthead workers' compensation related
products and services Plan Controlled Affiliatesvile. The Controlled Affiliate License collapsesrher health Controlled Affiliate licenses
(HCC, HMO, PPO, TPA, and IDS) into a single licemsing the following business-based criteria tovmte a framework for license
standards:

o Percent of Controlled Affiliate controlled by pat: Greater than 50 percent or 50 percent?
o Risk assumption: yes or no?
o Medical care delivery: yes or no?

o Size of the Controlled Affiliate: If the Contretl Affiliate has health or workers' compensatiomauistration business, does such business
constitute 15 percent or more of the parent's dinerdicensed health subsidiaries' contract enetit

14



EXHIBIT A (continued)
For purposes of definition:

o A "smaller Controlled Affiliate:" (1) comprisesds than fifteen percent (15%) of Plan's anddened Controlled Affiliates' total contract
enrollment (as reported on the BCBSA Quarterly Bmrent Report, excluding rider and freestandingezage, and treating an entity seeking
licensure as licensed);* or (2) underwrites theeimdity portion of workers' compensation insurante laas total premium revenue less than
15 percent of the sponsoring Plan's net subscnipgeenue.

o A "larger Controlled Affiliate" comprises fiftegrercent (15%) or more of Plan's and its licensedt@lled Affiliates' total contract
enrollment (as reported on the BCBSA Quarterly Bmrent Report, excluding rider and freestandingezage, and treating an entity seeking
licensure as licensed.)*

Changes in Controlled Affiliate status:

If any Controlled Affiliate's status changes regagdits Plan ownership level, its risk acceptaacdirect delivery of medical care, the
Controlled Affiliate shall notify BCBSA within thiy (30) days of such occurrence in writing and cante compliance with the applicable
standards within six (6) months.

If a smaller Controlled Affiliate's health and werk' compensation administration business reaahasrpasses fifteen percent (15%) of the
total contract enroliment of the Plan and licenSedtrolled Affiliates, the Controlled Affiliate sha

15



EXHIBIT A (continued)

1. Within thirty (30) days, notify BCBSA of this¢ain writing, including evidence that the Conteall Affiliate meets the minimum liquidity
and capital (BCBSA "Managed Care Organizations fBiaked Capital (MCO-RBC)" as defined by the NAIGI atate-established minimum
reserve) requirements of the larger Controlledlite Financial Responsibility standard; and

2. Within six (6) months after reaching or surpagshe fifteen percent (15%) threshold, demonstatepliance with all license requireme
for a larger Controlled Affiliate.

If a Controlled Affiliate that underwrites the indeity portion of workers' compensation insuranaeiees a change in rating or proposed
change in rating, the Controlled Affiliate shalltiip BCBSA within 30 days of notification by the &xnal rating agency.

*For purposes of this calculation,
The numerator equals:

Applicant Controlled Affiliate's contract enrolimems defined in BCBSA's Quarterly Enrollment Reégexcluding rider and freestanding
coverage).

The denominator equals:

Numerator PLUS Plan and all other licensed CoradoAffiliates' contract enrollment, as reportedi@BSA's Quarterly Enroliment Repc
(excluding rider and freestanding coverage).

November 16, 2000
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

STANDARDS FOR LICENSED CONTROLLED AFFILIATES

As described in Preamble section of Exhibit A te #ffiliate License Agreement, each controlledlaite seeking licensure must answer four

guestions. Depending on the controlled affiliabaiswers, certain standards apply:

1. What percent of the controlled affiliate is aofied by the parent Plan?

More than 50% 50%

[ l
v Vv

Standard 1A, 4

* Applicable only if using the names and marks.

2. Is risk being assumed?

Yes
/1 |
\% \%
Controlled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Contr

underwrites any comprises less than compr
indemnity portion ~ 15% of total contract total

of workers' enroliment of Plan  enrol
compensation and its licensed and i
insurance affiliates, and does affil

Il not underwrite the  notu
\% indemnity portion of indem

Standards 7A-7E workers' worke
compensation compe
insurance insur

[ |
\Y
Standard 2 Stand

(Guidelines 1.1,1.2)

3. Is medical care being directly provided?

Yes
[
\%

Standard 3A

Standard 1B, 4

100% and Primary Business is
Government Non-Risk
Il
\Y
Standard 4*,10A
IN ADDITION,
No
VA /1 [ A
Vv \Y; Vv \%

olled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Controlled Affiliate Controlled

ises >= 15% of comprises less than comprises >=15% of Affiliate's
contract 15% of total contract total cont ract Primary Business
Iment of Plan  enroliment of Plan  enroliment of Plan is Government
ts licensed and its licensed and its li censed Non-Risk
iates, and does affiliates affiliates
nderwrite the |
nity portion of | |
rs' \% \Y
nsation
ance Standard 2 Standard 6 H Standard 10B
(Guidelines 1.1,1.3)
|
\%
ard 6H
IN ADDITION,

No

[

\%

Standard 3B
IN ADDITION,

4. If the controlled affiliate has health or worketompensation administration business, doeslsusiness comprise 15% or more of the total
contract enroliment of Plan and its licensed cdledoaffiliates?

Yes

I
[ \
\%

Standards 6A-61 Controlled Affiliate i
a former primary

No
Il N\
\% \%
S Controlled Controlled Affiliate 's

Affiliate isnota  Primary Business is



licensee

[
v

Standards 5,8,9

former primary Government Non-Risk
licensee
[l
[l v
\

Standards 8, 10(C)
Standards 5,8
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 1 - Organization and Governance
1A.) The Standard for more than 50% Plan control is

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that a licensed Plan or Rlatimrized to use the Licensed Marks in
the Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate purati#o separate License Agreement(s) with BCBSAewthan such Controlled Affiliate's
License Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(shigve the legal authority, directly or indirectlydbigh wholly-owned subsidiaries: 1) to
select members of the Controlled Affiliate's gowegnbody having more than 50% voting control théraad 2) to prevent any change in the
articles of incorporation, bylaws or other estaitig or governing documents of the Controlled Adfié with which the Controlling Plan(s) do
(es) not concur; and 3) to exercise control overpblicy and operations of the Controlled Affiliate addition, a Plan or Plans directly or
indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries stalin more than 50% of any for-profit Controlled Aifite.

1B.) The Standard for 50% Plan control is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that a licensed Plan or Rlatimrized to use the Licensed Marks in
the Service Area of the Controlled Affiliate purati#o separate License Agreement(s) with BCBSAewothan such Controlled Affiliate's
License Agreement(s), (the "Controlling Plan(shigye the legal authority, directly or indirectlydbgh wholly-owned subsidiaries:

1) to select members of the Controlled Affiliatgtsserning body having not less than 50% voting @rhereof; and

2) to prevent any change in the articles of incoaiion, bylaws or other establishing or governinguments of the Controlled Affiliate with
which the Controlling Plan(s) do(es) not concurd an

3) to exercise control over the policy and operatiof the Controlled Affiliate at least equal tatlexercised by persons or entities (jointly or
individually) other than the Controlling Plan(s).
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 1) tigh 3) hereof, the Controlled Affiliate's estabiighor governing documents must a
require written approval by the Controlling Plarifgfore the Controlled Affiliate can:

o change the geographic area in which it operates

o change its legal and/or trade names

o change any of the types of businesses in whiehgages

o create, or become liable for by way of guarardeg,indebtedness, other than indebtedness aiisthg ordinary course of business
o sell any assets, except for sales in the ordicanyse of business or sales of equipment no lomggful or being replaced

o make any loans or advances except in the ordowmse of business

0 enter into any arrangement or agreement withpanty directly or indirectly affiliated with any afie owners or persons or entities with the
authority to select or appoint members or board besmof the Controlled Affiliate, other than tha®lor Plans (excluding owners of stock
holdings of under 5% in a publicly traded Contrdlkffiliate)

o conduct any business other than under the Licekseks and Name
o take any action that any Controlling Plan or B@B8asonably believes will adversely affect thedrised Marks and Name.

In addition, a Plan or Plans directly or indiredtlyough wholly-owned subsidiaries shall own astez0% of any for-profit Controlled
Affiliate.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 2 - Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantigat provides reasonable financial assurancdtthan fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers. If a risk-assumingnttalled Affiliate ceases operations for any rea®loe Cross and/or Blue Cross Plan
coverage will be offered to all Controlled Affilemsubscribers without exclusions, limitations onditions based on health status. If a nonrisk-
assuming Controlled Affiliate ceases operationsafy reason, sponsoring Plan(s) will provide fowvises to its

(their) customers.

Standard 3 - State Licensure/Certification

3A.) The Standard for a Controlled Affiliate thamploys, owns or contracts on a substantially exetubasis for medical services is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain unimpairecc&nsure or certification for its medical care pd&rs to operate under applicable state laws.
3B.) The Standard for a Controlled Affiliate thate$ not employ, own or contract on a substantedfusive basis for medical services is:

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain unimpaireccénsure or certification to operate under applieabdte laws.

Standard 4 - Certain Disclosures

A Controlled Affiliate shall make adequate disclasin contracting with third parties and in disseating public statements of 1) the struc
of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield System; and )rtlependent nature of every licensee; and 3¢ trarolled Affiliate's financial conditiol

Standard 5 - Reports and Records for Certain SmalleControlled Affiliates
For a smaller Controlled Affiliate that does notlenwrite the indemnity portion of workers' compedisainsurance, the Standard is:
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

A Controlled Affiliate and/or its licensed Plan&)all furnish, on a timely and accurate basis, msm@nd records relating to these Standards
and the License Agreements between BCBSA and dtatrAffiliate.

Standard 6 - Other Standards for Larger Controlled Affiliates
Standards 6(A) - (1) that follow apply to larger@mlled Affiliates.
Standard 6(A): Board of Directors

A Controlled Affiliate Governing Board shall acttine interest of its Corporation in providing ceftective health care services to its
customers. A Controlled Affiliate shall maintairgaverning Board, which shall control the Controlksfdiliate, composed of a majority of
persons other than providers of health care sesvigho shall be known as public members. A pubkenber shall not be an employee of or
have a financial interest in a health care provider be a member of a profession which providedtheare services.

Standard 6(B): Responsiveness to Customers
A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mannesponsive to customer needs and requirements.
Standard 6(C): Participation in National Programs

A Controlled Affiliate shall effectively and effiently participate in each national program as ftone to time may be adopted by the Men
Plans for the purposes of providing portabilitynedmbership between the licensees and ease of glaoosssing for customers receiving
benefits outside of the Controlled Affiliate's SeevArea.

Such programs are applicable to licensees, anddacl
1. Transfer Program;
2. BlueCard Program,;
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

3. Inter-Plan Teleprocessing System (ITS);

4. Electronic Claims Routing Process; and

5. National Account Programs, effective Januarg0D2.
Standard 6(D): Financial Performance Requirements

In addition to requirements under the national prots listed in Standard 6C:
Participation in National Programs, a Controlledilfsdte shall take such action as required to eastsrfinancial performance in programs i
contracts of an inter-licensee nature or where BEBS party.

Standard 6(E): Cooperation with Plan PerformancgpBese Process

A Controlled Affiliate shall cooperate with BCBSAB®ard of Directors and its Plan Performance amafdial Standards Committee in the
administration of the Plan Performance ResponseeBroand in addressing Controlled Affiliate perfante problems identified thereunder.

Standard 6(F): Independent Financial Rating

A Controlled Affiliate shall obtain a rating of ifmyancial strength from an independent rating ageapproved by BCBSA's Board of
Directors for such purpose.

Standard 6(G): Best Efforts

During each year, a Controlled Affiliate shall utsebest efforts in the designated Service Argartanote and build the value of the Blue
Cross Mark.

Standard 6(H): Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantteat provides reasonable financial assurancdttban fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 6(1): Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish to BCBSA ontamely and accurate basis reports and recordsnglad compliance with these Standards
and the License Agreements between BCBSA and Atadraffiliate. Such reports and records are thiéofeing:

A) BCBSA Controlled Affiliate Licensure InformatioRequest; and
B) Biennial trade name and service mark usage mjtarcluding disclosure material; and

C) Changes in the ownership and governance of timer@led Affiliate, including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in a Controlled Affiliate's Board compasitior changes in the identity of the Controllediliste’'s Principal Officers, and changes in
risk acceptance, contract growth, or direct deliarmedical care; and

D) Quarterly Financial Report, Semi-annual "He#&tibk-Based Capital (HRBC) Report" as defined byNt#dC, Annual Financial Forecast,
Annual Certified Audit Report, Insurance DepartmEramination Report, Annual Statement filed witht8tinsurance Department (with all
attachments), and

E) Quarterly Enroliment Report, Semi-Annual Ben€fitst Management Report.
Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 6(J): Control by Unlicensed Entities Fritbd

No Controlled Affiliate shall cause or permit artignother than a Plan or a Licensed Controlledlistie thereof to obtain control of tt
Controlled Affiliate or to acquire a substantiartion of its assets related to licensable services.

Standard 7 - Other Standards for Risk-Assuming \&ia'KCompensation Controlled Affiliates
Standards 7(A) - (E) that follow apply to Contrdllaffiliates that underwrite the indemnity portiofiworkers' compensation insurance.
Standard 7 (A): Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantteat provides reasonable financial assurancdttban fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Standard 7(B): Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish, on a timelynd accurate basis, reports and records relatiogripliance with these Standards and the
License Agreements between BCBSA and the Contréifétiate. Such reports and records are the follogy

A. BCBSA Controlled Affiliate Licensure InformatidRequest; and
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mktgeincluding disclosure materials; and

C. Annual Certified Audit Report, Annual Statemastfiled with the State Insurance Department (aitlattachments), Annual NAIC's Risk-
Based Capital Worksheets for Property and Caslradtyrers, Annual Financial Forecast; and

Amended June 16, 2000

24



EXHIBIT A (continued)

Quarterly Financial Report, Quarterly EstimatedkRmsed Capital for Property and Casualty Insulessjrance Department Examination
Report.

D. Notification of all changes and proposed charigesdependent ratings within 30 days of receijt aubmission of a copy of all rating
reports; and

E. Changes in the ownership and governance of tméralled Affiliate including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in a Controlled Affiliate's Board compasitiPlan control, state license status, operatiag,dahe Controlled Affiliate's Principal
Officers or direct delivery of medical care.

Standard 7(C): Loss Prevention
A Controlled Affiliate shall apply loss preventignotocol to both new and existing business.
Standard 7(D): Claims Administration

A Controlled Affiliate shall maintain an effectivdaims administration process that includes allrteeessary functions to assure prompt and
proper resolution of medical and indemnity claims.

Standard 7(E): Disability and Provider Management

A Controlled Affiliate shall arrange for the proias of appropriate and necessary medical and rétadivie services to facilitate early
intervention by medical professionals and timelg appropriate return to work.

Amended November 16, 2000
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 8 - Cooperation with Controlled Affilidteeense Performance Response Process Protocol

A Controlled Affiliate and its Sponsoring Plan(la#l cooperate with BCBSA's Board of Directors @sd’lan Performance and Financial
Standards Committee in the administration of that@dled Affiliate License Performance ResponsecBss Protocol (ALPRPP) and in
addressing Controlled Affiliate compliance probleishantified thereunder.

Standard 9 - Participation in National Programs bySmaller Controlled Affiliates

A smaller Controlled Affiliate for which this staatd applies pursuant to the Preamble section oibliixh of the Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement shall effectively and efficiently pantiate in certain national programs from time to tmsemay be adopted by Member Plans for
the purposes of providing ease of claims procedsingustomers receiving benefits outside of that@dled Affiliate's service area and be
subject to certain relevant financial and reportieguirements.

A. National program requirements include:

o BlueCard Program;

o Inter-Plan Teleprocessing System (ITS);

o Transfer Program;

o Electronic Claims Routing Process ;and

o National Account Programs, effective January0D22
B. Financial Requirements include:

o Standard 6(D): Financial Performance RequiremamtisStandard 6(H):

Financial Responsibility; or

o A financial guarantee covering the Controlledilffe's BlueCard Program obligations in a formd &imm a guarantor, acceptable to
BCBSA.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 9 - Participation in National Programs bySmaller Controlled Affiliates
C. Reporting requirements include:
0 The Semi-Annual Health Risk-Basaed Capital (HRBEport
Amended November 15, 2001
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EXHIBIT A (continued)

Standard 10 - Other Standards for Controlled Affds Whose Primary Business is Government Non-Risk
Standards 10(A) - (C) that follow apply to ContedllAffiliates whose primary business is governnremnt-risk.
Standard 10(A) - Organization and Governance

A Controlled Affiliate shall be organized and operhin such a manner that it is 1) wholly ownedadicensed Plan or Plans and 2) the
sponsoring licensed Plan or Plans have the legiitlyab prevent any change in the articles of immaration, bylaws or other establishing or
governing documents of the Controlled Affiliate mvithich it does not concur.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 10(B) - Financial Responsibility

A Controlled Affiliate shall be operated in a mantigat provides reasonable financial assurancdtthan fulfill all of its contractual
obligations to its customers.

Standard 10(C):- Reports and Records

A Controlled Affiliate shall furnish, on a timelynd accurate basis, reports and records relaticgrtgliance with these Standards and the
License Agreements between BCBSA and the Contréifétiate. Such reports and records are the follogy

A. BCBSA Affiliate Licensure Information Requeshd
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mktgeincluding disclosure material; and

C. Annual Certified Audit Report, Annual Stateméhtequired) as filed with the State Insurance Bement (with all attachments), Annual
NAIC Risk-Based Capital Worksheets (if required) as filethwiie State Insurance Department (with all attastis), and Insurance
Department Examination Report (if applicable)*; and

D. Changes in the ownership and governance of tmgr@lled Affiliate, including changes in its chartarticles of incorporation, or bylaws,
changes in the Controlled Affiliate's Board comgiosi, Plan control, state license status, operaiieg, the Controlled Affiliate's Principal
Officers or direct delivery of medical care.
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EXHIBIT A (continued)
Standard 11: Participation in Electronic Claims fRugiProcess

The Standard is:

A smaller controlled affiliate for which this staandl applies pursuant to the Preamble section oftiifxh of the Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement shall effectively and efficiently pantiate in certain national programs from time to tmsemay be adopted by Member Plans for
the purposes of providing ease of claims procedsingustomers receiving benefits outside of thetialled affiliates service area.

National program requirements incluc
A Electronic Claims Routing Process effective ugmamandated date for implementation of the HIPsdard transaction.
Amended November 15, 2001.
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EXHIBIT B
ROYALTY FORMULA FOR SECTION 9 OF THE
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT

Controlled Affiliate will pay BCBSA a fee for thitkcense in accordance with the following formula:
FOR RISK AND GOVERNMENT NON-RISK PRODUCTS:
For Controlled Affiliates not underwriting the inuaity portion of workers' compensation insurance:

An amount equal to its pro rata share of each sporgPlan's dues payable to BCBSA computed wighattidition of the Controlled
Affiliate's subscription revenue and contractsiaggrom products using the marks. The paymentdshesponsoring Plan of its dues to
BCBSA, including that portion described in this ggaph, will satisfy the requirement of this paegar, and no separate payment will be
necessary.

For Controlled Affiliates underwriting the indenyiportion of workers' compensation insurance:

An amount equal to 0.35 percent of the gross rexgan annum of Controlled Affiliate arising fromopliucts using the marks; plus, an annual
fee of $5,000 per license for a Controlled Affiéatubject to Standard 7.

For Controlled Affiliates whose primary businesgdernment non-risk:

An amount equal to its pro-rata share of each sporg Plan's dues payable to BCBSA computed wighattidition of the Controlled
Affiliate's government nc-risk beneficiaries



EXHIBIT B (continued)

FOR NONRISK PRODUCTS:

An amount equal to 0.24 percent of the gross rexgen annum of Controlled Affiliate arising fromoplucts using the marks; plus:
1) An annual fee of $5,000 per license for a CdledoAffiliate subject to Standard 6 D.

2) An annual fee of $2,000 per license for all otBentrolled Affiliates.

The foregoing shall be reduced by one-half wheth BBBLUE CROSS(R) and BLUE SHIELD(R) License asuied to the same Controlled
Affiliate. In the event that any license periodyigater or less than one (1) year, any amountslaiebe prorated. Royalties under this
formula will be calculated, billed and paid in ars.



EXHIBIT 1A

CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE AGREEMENT
APPLICABLE TO LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

(Includes revisions adopted by Member Plans thrahghr June 15, 2001 meeting)

This agreement by and among Blue Cross and BlugdSAssociation ("BCBSA") ("Controlled
Affiliate"), a Controlled Affiliate of the Blue Skid Plan(s), known as ("Plan™).

WHEREAS, BCBSA is the owner of the BLUE SHIELD aBHUE SHIELD Design service marks;

WHEREAS, the Plan and the Controlled Affiliate deghat the latter be entitled to use the BLUE SHDEand BLUE SHIELD Design
service marks (collectively the "Licensed Marks8)s&rvice marks and be entitled to use the termBBHIIELD in a trade name ("Licensed
Name");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgl he mutual agreements hereinafter set forthf@nother good and valuab
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agréalows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE

Subject to the terms and conditions of this AgresmBCBSA hereby grants to the Controlled Affilidtee exclusive right to use the licensed
Marks and Names in connection with and only in @mtion with those life insurance and related sexwi@uthorized by applicable state law,
other than health care plans and related servaseddfined in the Plan's License Agreements witB8&) which services are not separately
licensed to Controlled Affiliate by BCBSA, in the®ice Area served by the Plan, except that BCB&#&nves the right to use the Licensed
Marks and Name in said Service Area, and exceftte@xtent that said Service Area may overlap tha ar areas served by one or more
other licensed Blue Shield Plans as of the dathisfLicense as to which overlapping areas thetsigkereby granted are non-exclusive as to
such other Plan or Plans and their respective segiControlled Affiliates only. Controlled Affiliatcannot use the Licensed Marks or Name
outside the Service Area or, anything in any otltense to Controlled Affiliate notwithstanding, iils legal or trade name.

2. QUALITY CONTROL

A. Controlled Affiliate agrees to use the Licendédrks and Name only in relation to the sale, mankeand rendering of authorized products
and further agrees to be bound by the conditiogarteng quality control shown in Exhibit A as it ynbe amended by BCBSA from time-to-
time.

Amended as of November 17, 1994
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B. Controlled Affiliate agrees that Plan and/or BE8Bmay, from time-to-time, upon reasonable notiegiew and inspect the manner and
method of Controlled Affiliate's rendering of sergiand use of the Licensed Marks and Name.

C. Controlled Affiliate agrees that it will provid® an annual basis (or more often if reasonalgjyired by Plan or by BCBSA) a report to
Plan and BCBSA demonstrating Controlled Affiliatetsmpliance with the requirements of this Agreenieciuding but not limited to the
quality control provisions of Exhibit A.

D. As used herein, a Controlled Affiliate is defings an entity organized and operated in such aendhat it is subject to the bona fide
control of a Plan or Plans. Absent written apprdxaBCBSA of an alternative method of control, bdide control shall mean the legal
authority, directly or indirectly through wholly-oved subsidiaries: (a) to select members of therGlbed Affiliate's governing body having
not less than 51% voting control thereof; (b) tereise operational control with respect to the goaece thereof; and (c) to prevent any
change in its articles of incorporation, bylawstrer governing documents deemed inappropriataddition, a Plan or Plans shall own at
least 51% of any for-profit Controlled Affiliatef the Controlled Affiliate is a mutual company, tR&n or its designee(s) shall have and
maintain, in lieu of the requirements of itemsdajl (c) above, proxies representing 51% of thesvat@any meeting of the policyholders and
shall demonstrate that there is no reason to leeti@g such proxies shall be revoked by sufficfiicyholders to reduce such percentage
below 51%.

3. SERVICE MARK USE

Controlled Affiliate shall at all times make propmarvice mark use of the Licensed Marks, includingnot limited to use of such symbols or
words as BCBSA shall specify to protect the Licenstarks, and shall comply with such rules (applieab all Controlled Affiliates licensed
to use the Marks) relative to service mark usarasssued from time-to-time by BCBSA. If theraisy public reference to the affiliation
between the Plan and the Controlled Affiliate odithe Controlled Affiliate's licensed servicedlie Service Area of the Plan shall be rend
under the Licensed Marks. Controlled Affiliate rgozes and agrees that all use of the Licensed MaylControlled Affiliate shall inure to
the benefit of BCBSA.

4. SUBLICENSING AND ASSIGNMENT

Controlled Affiliate shall not sublicense, transfeypothecate, sell, encumber or mortgage, by dperaf law or otherwise, the rights granted
hereunder and any such act shall be voidable aiptien of Plan or BCBSA. This Agreement and ahts and duties hereunder are personal
to Controlled Affiliate.
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5. INFRINGEMENTS

Controlled Affiliate shall promptly notify Plan arBICBSA of any suspected acts of infringement, urdampetition or passing off which m
occur in relation to the Licensed Marks. Controli@lliate shall not be entitled to require PlanBEBSA to take any actions or institute any
proceedings to prevent infringement, unfair contjmetior passing off by third parties. Controlledfildite agrees to render to Plan and
BCBSA, free of charge, all reasonable assistancermection with any matter pertaining to the petta of the Licensed Marks by BCBSA.

6. LIABILITY INDEMNIFICATION

Controlled Affiliate hereby agrees to save, deféndemnify and hold Plan and BCBSA harmless from against all claims, damages,
liabilities and costs of every kind, nature andatiggion which may arise as a result of Controldtiliate's rendering of health care services
under the Licensed Marks.

7. LICENSE TERM

The license granted by this Agreement shall rermaeffect for a period of one (1) year and shalblnéomatically extended for additional one
(1) year periods upon evidence satisfactory tdPla@ and BCBSA that Controlled Affiliate meets then applicable quality control
standards, unless one of the parties hereto rothie other party of the termination hereof attlsady (60) days prior to expiration of any
license period.

This Agreement may be terminated by the Plan d®BSA for cause at any time provided that ContrbKdfiliate has been given a
reasonable opportunity to cure and shall not eSach a cure within thirty (30) days of receivingtten notice of the intent to terminate (or
commence a cure within such thirty day period amtiaue diligent efforts to complete the cure i€swcuring cannot reasonably be compl
within such thirty day period). By way of exampledanot for purposes of limitation, Controlled Aféite's failure to abide by the quality
control provisions of Paragraph 2, above, shatidiesidered a proper ground for cancellation of Agseement.

This Agreement and all Controlled Affiliate's rightereunder shall immediately terminate without fmther action by any party or entity in
the event that:
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A. Controlled Affiliate shall no longer comply witBtandard No. 1 (Organization and Governance) aiflixA or, following an opportunity
to cure, with the remaining quality control prowiss of Exhibit A, as it may be amended from timettoe; or

B. Plan ceases to be authorized to use the Licaviagekks; or

C. Appropriate dues for Controlled Affiliate pursiido item 8 hereof, which are the royalties fas thicense Agreement are more than sixty
(60) days in arrears to BCBSA.

Upon termination of this Agreement for cause oeotlise, Controlled Affiliate agrees that it shatimediately discontinue all use of the
Licensed Marks including any use in its trade name.

In the event of any disagreement between Plan &892\ as to whether grounds exist for terminatioa®to any other term or condition
hereof, the decision of BCBSA shall control, subjegrovisions for mediation or mandatory disprgsolution in effect between the parties.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensed CadigrbAffiliate shall immediately notify all of itsustomers that it is no longer a license
the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association andigminstruction on how the customer can contacBtiue Cross and Blue Shield
Association or a designated licensee to obtaiméurinformation on securing coverage. The writtetifitation required by this paragraph
shall be in writing and in a form approved by theséciation. The Association shall have the righaudit the terminated entity's books and
records to verify compliance with this paragraph.

8. DUES
Controlled Affiliate will pay to BCBSA a fee for ihlicense in accordance with the following formula
o An annual fee of five thousand dollars ($5,008) lixense, plus
0 .05% of gross revenue per year from branded gpoogucts, plus
0 .5% of gross revenue per year from branded iddali products plus
0 .14% of gross revenue per year from branded igidal annuity products.
Amended as of November 20, 1997
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The foregoing percentages shall be reduced by atievhere both a BLUE CROSS(R) and BLUE SHIELD(R¥hse are issued to the same
entity. In the event that any License period isatgeor less than one (1) year, any amounts duketghprorated. Royalties under this formula
will be calculated, billed and paid in arrears.

Plan will promptly and timely transmit to BCBSA allies owed by Controlled Affiliate as determinedhoy above formula and if Plan shall
fail to do so, Controlled Affiliate shall pay sudbes directly.

9. JOINT VENTURE

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be carestras creating a joint venture, partnership, agenemployment relationship betwe
Plan and Controlled Affiliate or between either &8@BSA.

9A. VOTING

For all provisions of this Agreement referring t@ting, the term “Plans' shall mean all entitiesri®ed under the Blue Cross License
Agreement and/or the Blue Shield License Agreenaamd,in all votes of the Plans under this AgreentleatPlans shall vote together. For
weighted votes of the Plans, the Plan shall hawenaber of votes equal to the number of weighteew¢if any) that it holds as a Blue Cross
Plan plus the number of weighted votes (if any] thiaolds as a Blue Shield Plan. For all otheregodf the Plans, the Plan shall have one
For all questions requiring an affirmative threexths weighted vote of the Plans, the requiremieall e deemed satisfied with a lesser
weighted vote unless six (6) or more Plans faddet weighted votes in favor of the question.

10. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE

Notices regarding the subject matter of this Agreetor breach or termination thereof shall be iitimg and shall be addressed in duplic
to the last known address of each other party, ethr&spectively to the attention of its Presidet, & any, its General Counsel.

Amended as of June 16, 2000
-4a-
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11. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the complete understandifitiee parties in relation to the subject mattnelof. This Agreement may only be
amended by a writing executed by all parties.

12. SEVERABILITY

If any term of this Agreement is held to be unlaividfy a court of competent jurisdiction, such finglishall in no way effect the remaining
obligations of the parties hereunder and the amast substitute a lawful term or condition for amlawful term or condition so long as the
effect of such substitution is to provide the pegtith the benefits of this Agreement.

13. NONWAIVER

No waiver by BCBSA of any breach or default in penfiance on the part of the Controlled Affiliateamy other licensee of any of the ten
covenants or conditions of this Agreement shalktitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or defaplerformance of said terms,
covenants or conditions.

14. GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by, and constamedinterpreted in accordance with, the laws ofStete of Illinois.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thighse Agreement to be executed, effective as afatesof last signature written
below.

BLUE CROSS AND BLUE SHIELD ASSOCIATION

By:

Date:

Controlled Affiliate

By:

Date:

Plan:




EXHIBIT A
CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

Page 1 of 2
PREAMBLE

The standards for licensing Life Insurance Compa(life and Health Insurance companies, as defiyestate statute) are established by
BCBSA and are subject to change from time-to-tirperuthe affirmative vote of three-fourths (3/4)tleé Plans and three-fourths (3/4) of the
total weighted vote of all Plans. Each Licensedidaequired to use a standard controlled aféliatense form provided by BCBSA and to
cooperate fully in assuring that the licensed Lifeurance Company maintains compliance with trenbe standards.

An organization meeting the following standarddlidia eligible for a license to use the Licensed®kdawithin the service area of its
sponsoring Licensed Plan to the extent and the eraauthorized under the Controlled Affiliate Liceregpplicable to Life Insurance
Companies and the principal license to the Plan.

Standard 1 - Organization and Governance

The LIC shall be organized and operated in sucluan@r that it is controlled by a licensed Planlan® which have, directly or indirectly: 1)
not less than 51% of the voting control of the L@ 2) the legal ability to prevent any changthaarticles of incorporation, bylaws or
other establishing or governing documents of the Wwith which it does not concur; and 3) operatia@itrol of the LIC.

If the LIC is a mutual company, the Plan or itsigaee(s) shall have and maintain, in lieu of thguieements of items 1 and 2 above, proxies
representing at least 51% of the votes at any ylodicler meeting and shall demonstrate that theme iason to believe such proxies shall be
revoked by sufficient policyholders to reduce spehcentage below 51%.

Standard 2 - State Licensure

The LIC must maintain unimpaired licensure or diedie of authority to operate under applicableéestaws as a life and health insurance
company in each state in which the LIC does busines

Standard 3 - Records and Examination

The LIC and its sponsoring licensed Plan(s) shalhtain and furnish, on a timely and accurate basish records and reports regarding the
LIC as may be required in order to establish coamgé with the license agreement. The
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CONTROLLED AFFILIATE LICENSE STANDARDS
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES

Page 2 of 2

LIC and its sponsoring licensed Plan(s) shall peBGIBSA to examine the affairs of the LIC and slagjiee that BCBSA's board may submit
a written report to the chief executive officergsid the board(s) of directors of the sponsoring@)a

Standard 4 - Mediation

The LIC and its sponsoring Plan(s) shall agreestothe thercurrent BCBSA mediation and mandatory dispute tégmi processes, in lieu
a legal action between or among another licensattalted affiliate, a licensed Plan or BCBSA.

Standard 5 - Financial Responsibility
The LIC shall maintain adequate financial resoutogsrotect its customers and meet its businesgatfuns.
Standard 6 - Cooperation with Affiliate License fBemance Response Process Protocol

The LIC and its Sponsoring Plan(s) shall coopenatie BCBSA's Board of Directors and its Plan Pamrfance and Financial Standards
Committee in the administration of the Affiliatedeinse Performance Response Process Protocol (ADRREBm addressing LIC compliar
problems identified thereunder.
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EXHIBIT 2
Membership Standards

Page 1 of 4
Preamble

The Membership Standards apply to all organizatemeking to become or to continue as Regular Mesriifethe Blue Cross and Blue Shield
Association. Any organization seeking to becomeegufar Member must be found to be in substantiaptimnce with all Membership
Standards at the time membership is granted andrtfamization must be found to be in substantial@nce with all Membership Standa
for a period of two (2) years preceding the dat@sofipplication. If Membership is sought by anitgnihich controls or is controlled by one
or more Plans, such compliance shall be deternonetie basis of compliance by such Plan or Plans.

The Regular Member Plans shall have authority terjpret these Standards. Compliance with any MeshiiigStandard may be excused, at
the Plans' discretion, if the Plans agree that diamge with such Standard would require the Plavidtate a law or governmental regulation
governing its operation or activities.

A Regular Member Plan that operates as a "ShelliHgICompany" is defined as an entity that assumasnderwriting risk and has less tt
1% of the consolidated enterprise assets (exclindestments in subsidiaries) and less than 5%ettmnsolidated enterprise general and
administrative expenses.

A Regular Member Plan that operates as a "Hybrildliig Company" is defined as an entity that assuneegnderwriting risk and has either
more than 1% of the consolidated enterprise agsettudes investments in subsidiaries) or more 8tarof the consolidated enterprise
general and administrative expenses.

Standard 1: A Plan's Board shall not be contr olled by any special interest
group, and shall act in the inter est of its Corporation in
providing cost-effective health ¢ are services to its
customers. A Plan shall maintain a governing Board, which
shall control the Plan, composed of a majority of persons
other than providers of health ca re services, who shall be
known as public members. A public member shall not be an
employee of or have a financial i nterest in a health care
provider, nor be a member of a pr ofession which provides

health care services.

Amended as of November 19, 19¢



EXHIBIT 2
Membership Standards

Page 2 of 4
Standard 2: A Plan shall furnish to the Assoc iation on a timely and
accurate basis reports and record s relating to compliance with
these Standards and the License A greements between the
Association and the Plans. Such r eports and records are the

following:
A. BCBSA Membership Information Request;
B. Biennial trade name and service mark usage mhtercluding disclosure material under Standard 7

C. Changes in the governance of the Plan, includiragnges in a Plan's Charter, Articles of Incorfionaor Bylaws, changes in a Plan's
Board composition, or changes in the identity &f Bian's Principal Officers;

D. Quarterly Financial Report, Semi-annual "He&ltbk-Based Capital (HRBC) Report" as defined byNi#d¢C, Annual Financial Forecast,
Annual Certified Audit Report, Insurance DepartmEramination Report, Annual Statement filed witht8tinsurance Department (with all
attachments), Plan, Subsidiary and Affiliate Repant

o Plans that are a Shell Holding Company as defiméide Preamble hereto are required to furnisly ardalendar year-end "Health Risk-
Based Capital (HRBC) Report" as defined by the NAIC

Amended as of November 15, 20C



EXHIBIT 2

Membership Standards

E. Quarterly Enroliment Report

Standard 3:

Standard 4:

Standard 5:

Plans, and include:

A. Transfer Program;

Page 3 of 4
, Semi-Annual Ben€fitst

Management Report and Membe
(MTM) starting 12/31/00 and
and
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Amended as of November 15, 20C



EXHIBIT 2

Membership Standards

Page 4 of 4

Standard 6: In addition to requirements under
in Standard 5: Participation in N
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Amended as of June 18, 1999



EXHIBIT 3

GUIDELINES WITH RESPECT TO USE OF
LICENSED NAME AND MARKS IN CONNECTION WITH NATIONAL
ACCOUNTS

Page 1 of 3

1. The strength of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield NaticAccounts mechanism, and the continued provisfarost effective, quality health care
benefits to National Accounts, are predicated aally managed provider networks coordinated ontmmnal scale in a manner consistent \
effective service to National Account customers emalsistent with the preservation of the integoityhe Blue Cross/Blue Shield system and
the Licensed Marks. These guidelines shall bepnéted in keeping with such ends.

2. A National Account is an entity with employeealfor retiree locations in more than one Plan's iSer&rea. Unless otherwise agreed, a
National Account is deemed located in the ServioesaAn which the corporate headquarters of theoNatiAccount is located. A local plai
office or division headquarters of an entity maydeemed a separate National Account when that daat, office or division headquarters
has employee locations in more than one Servica,Amed 2) has independent health benefit decisiaking authority for the employees
working at such local plant, office or division loggarters and for employees working at other locatioutside the Service Area. In such a
case, the local plant, office or division headgeiaris a National Account that is deemed locateterService Area in which such local plant,
office, or division headquarters is located. Thet@a Plan of a National Account is the Plan in wbd@ervice Area the National Account is
located. A participating ("Par") Plan is a Plamminose Service Area the National Account has emgl@yel/or retiree locations, but in which
the National Account is not located.

3. The National Account Guidelines enunciated mebeilow shall be applicable only with respect ® llusiness of new National Accounts
acquired after January 1, 1991.

4. Control Plans shall utilize National Accountrigification cards complying with then currently eftive BCBSA graphic standards in
connection with all National Accounts businessaailftate administration thereof, to minimize sutiiser and provider confusion, and to
reflect a commitment to cooperation among Plans.

Amended June 15, 200



EXHIBIT 3
Page 2 of 3

5. Disputes among Plans and/or BCBSA as to thepregtion or implementation of these Guidelinea®to other National Accounts issues
shall be submitted to mediation and mandatory déspesolution as provided in the License Agreemieat.two years from the effective date
of the License Agreement, however, such disputal b subject to mediation only, with the reswoltsuch mediation to be collected and
reported in order to establish more definitive apieg parameters for National Accounts businesstasérve as ground rules for future
binding dispute resolution.

6. The Control Plan may use the BlueCard Prograntééined by IPOC) to deliver benefits to employaed nonMedicare eligible retirees
a Participating Plan's service area if an alteveatirrangement with the Participating Plan caneatdgotiated. The Participating Plan's
minimum servicing requirement for those employe®s$ @on-Medicare retirees in its service area delover benefits using the BlueCard
Program. Account delivery is subject to the poBgigrovisions and procedures of the BlueCard Progra

7. For provider payments in a Participating Planésa (on non-BlueCard claims), payment to the plervinay be made by the Participating
Plan or the Control Plan at the Participating Rlaption. If the Participating Plan elects to pag provider, it may not withhold payment of a
claim verified by the Control Plan or its desigmhpEocessor, and payment must be in conformity s&tivice criteria established by the Bc
of Directors of BCBSA (or an authorized committhereof) to assure prompt payment, good servicavananum confusion with providers
and subscribers. The Control Plan, at the Particip@lan's request, will also assure that measanetaken to protect the confidentiality of
the data pertaining to provider reimbursement keaeld profiles.

Amended as of June 14, 19¢



EXHIBIT 3
Page 3 of 3

8. For claim payments in a Participating Plan'adom non-BlueCard claims), Participating Planssarengly encouraged, but not required, to
pass along to the Control Plan part or all of Iqualvider discounts and differentials for use by @ontrol Plan in negotiating financial
arrangements with National Accounts. However, sthessize, basis, form and use of local differéattan vary substantially among Plans
and also by individual National Account charactits the degree and form of any discount or dififéial passed along to the Control Plan
shall be strictly a matter of negotiated contracaggeement between a Participating Plan and thgr@ldPlan and may also vary from one
National Account to another. In order to facilitéhe quotation of national account pricing and the dffgrof a variety of National Account
delivery systems, all Plans are strongly encouragexriodically publish to other Plans and the EB2Btheir National Account contracting
policies with respect to the handling of differafsi

The Control Plan, in its financial agreements veitNational Account, is expected to reasonably ceflee aggregate amount of differentials
passed along to the Control Plan by all ParticigaRlans in a National Account. The exact form sulostance of this may vary from one
National Account to another and shall be a mattexplicit negotiation and contractual relationsbgtween the National Account and
Control Plan. The specifics in an agreement betweeiControl Plan and the National Account may varform (e.g., a guaranteed offset
against retentions, or a direct pass through,guaaanteed aggregate percentage discount, or sdpaek at all, etc.), and the Control Plan
the responsibility and the Authority to negotiateqise arrangements. However, irrespective ofitted &rrangements between the Control
Plan and the National Account, a Participating Bl&ability for passing along differentials shaé limited to the contractual agreement the
Participating Plan has with the Control Plan opectfic National Account.

9. Other than in contracting with health care pdevs or soliciting such contracts in areas contiguo a Plan's Service Area in order to serve
its subscribers or those of its licensed Controfiiate residing or working in its Service Area,Control Plan may not use the Licensed
Marks and/or Name, as a tag line or otherwiseggotiate directly with providers outside its Seevitrea.



EXHIBIT 4
GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS AND CERTAIN OTHER USES

Page 1 of 2

1. A Plan and its licensed Controlled Affiliate mase the Licensed Marks and Name in bidding onexeduting a contract to serve a
Government Program, and in thereafter communicatiitiy the Government concerning the Program. Wagpect, however, to such contri
entered into after the 1st day of January, 199 | tbensed Marks and Name will not be used in compations or transactions with
beneficiaries or providers in the Government Proglacated outside a Plan's Service Area, unlesBldmecan demonstrate to the satisfaction
of BCBSA's governing body that such a restrictioruse of the Licensed Marks and Name will jeoparitiz ability to procure the contract

for the Government Program. As to both existing fatdre contracts for Government Programs, Platisdigicontinue use of the Licensed
Marks and Name as to beneficiaries and Provideisidmutheir Service Area as expenditiously as airstances reasonably permit. Effective
January 1, 1995, except as provided in the finstesee above, all use by a Plan of the Licensek$/and Name in Government Programs
outside of the Plan's Service Area shall be disooad. Incidental communications outside a PlaatyiSe Area with resident or former
resident beneficiaries of the Plan, and other caiteg of necessary incidental communications apmidyy BCBSA, are not prohibited.

2. In connection with activity otherwise in furtla@ce of the License Agreement, a Plan may useitemsed Marks and Name outside its
Service Area in the following circumstances which deemed legitimate and necessary and not liketatise consumer confusion:

a. sending letterhead, envelopes, and similar isotedy for administrative purposes (e.g., notdarposes of marketing, advertising,
promoting, selling or soliciting the sale of heatdire plans and related services);

b. distributing business cards other than in mangedind selling;

c. contracting with health care providers or stifig such contracts in areas contiguous to a P&ergice Area in order to serve its subscri
or those of its licensed Controlled Affiliate reisig or working in its service area;

d. issuing a small sign containing the legal namigamle name of the Plan or its licensed ControMfdiate for display by a provider to
identify the latter as a participating providertioé Plan or Controlled Affiliate;

Amended March 16, 2001



EXHIBIT 4
Page 2 of 2
e. advertising in publications or electronic mesti¢ely to persons for employment;

f. advertising in print, electronic or other medihich serve, as a substantial market, the Serviea Af the Plan or licensed Controlled
Affiliate, provided that no Plan may advertise ddesits Service Area on the national broadcastcatide networks and that advertisements in
national print media are limited to the smallegfioaal edition encompassing the Service Area;

g. advertising by direct mail where the addressap'sode plus 4 includes, at least in part, tremBIService Area or that of a licensed
Controlled Affiliate.

h. negotiating rates with a health care providestrvices to a specific member in case managementided that:

(1) the health care provider does not contract tighLicensee (or any of the Licensees in the ohsgerlapping Service Areas) in whose
Service Area the health care provider is located; a

(2) the Licensee(s) in whose Service Area the healte provider is located consent(s) in advance.

Amended November 15, 200



EXHIBIT 5
MEDIATION AND MANDATORY DISPUTE RESOLUTION (MMDR) R ULES

The Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans ("Plans")thaBlue Cross Blue Shield Association ("BCBSA'§agnize and acknowledge that the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield system is a unique radit@md for-profit system offering cost effectitaealth care financing and services. The
Plans and BCBSA desire to utilize Mediation and Metory Dispute Resolution ("MMDR") to avoid expersand timezonsuming litigatior
that may otherwise occur in the federal and stateejal systems. Even MMDR should be viewed, howgeas methods of last resort, all other
procedures for dispute resolution having failedcépt as otherwise provided in the License Agreesehé Plans, their Controlled Affiliates
and BCBSA agree to submit all disputes to MMDR pard to these Rules and in lieu of litigation.

1. Initiation of Proceedings
A. Pre-MMDR Efforts

Before filing a Complaint to invoke the MMDR proseshe CEQO of a complaining party, or his/her desigd representative, shall undertake
good faith efforts with the other side(s) to tryrésolve any dispute.

B. Complaint

To commence a proceeding, the complaining partp#oties) shall provide by certified mail, retuateipt requested, a written Complaint to
the BCBSA Corporate Secretary (which shall alscstitiute service on BCBSA if it is a respondent) &madny Plan(s) and/or Controlled
Affiliate(s) named therein. The Complaint shall taon:

i. identification of the complaining party (or pag) requesting the proceeding;

ii. identification of the respondent(s);

iii. identification of any other persons or entiti@ho are interested in a resolution of the dispute
iv. a full statement describing the nature of thepdte;

v. identification of all of the issues that arerggsubmitted for resolution;

Amended as of November 21, 19¢



vi. the remedy sought;
vii. a statement as to whether the complainingyp@n parties) elect(s) first to pursue Mediation;

viii. any request, if applicable, that one or morembers of the Mediation Committee be disqualifiedh the proceeding and the grounds for
such request;

ix. any request, if applicable, that the mattehbadled on an expedited basis and the reason$ahexed

X. a statement signed by the CEO of the complaiparty affirming that the CEO has undertaken effaot has directed efforts to be
undertaken, to resolve the dispute before resottiige MMDR process.

The complaining party (or parties) shall file amiv@ with the Complaint copies of all documentsahtthe party (or parties) intend(s) to of
at the Arbitration Hearing and a statement idetgythe witnesses the party (or parties) intenti(gresent at the Hearing, along with a
summary of each witness' expected testimony.

C. Answer

Within twenty (20) days after receipt of the Coniplaeach respondent shall serve on the BCBSA arith® complaining party (or parties)
and on the Chairman of the Mediation Committee;

i. a full Answer to the aforesaid Complaint;

ii. a statement of any Counterclaims against theptaining party (or parties), providing with respdtereto the information specified in
Paragraph 1.B., above;

iii. a statement as to whether the respondentstedirst pursue Mediation;

iv. any request, if applicable, that one or morenhers of the Mediation Committee be disqualifiemhirthe proceeding and the grounds for
such request; and

v. any request, if applicable, that the matter &edbed on an expedited basis and the reasonsdahe



The respondent(s) shall file and serve with thewfersor by the date of the Initial Conference sethfin Paragraph 3.B., below, copies of all
documents which the respondent(s) intend(s) ta efféhe Arbitration Hearing and a statement idgimg the witnesses the party (or parties)
intend(s) to present at the Hearing, along witbrammary of each witness' expected testimony.

D. Reply To Counterclaim

Within ten (10) days after receipt of any Countairal, the complaining party (or parties) shall seasmeBCBSA and on the responding party
(or parties) and on the Chairman of the Mediatiom@ittee, a Reply to the Counterclaim. Such Replgtprovide the same information
required by Paragraph 1.C.

2. Mediation
A. Mediation Committee

To facilitate the mediation of disputes betweeamong BCBSA, the Plans and/or their Controlled lfsffes, the BCBSA Board has
established a Mediation Committee. Mediation maptmesued in lieu of or in an effort to obviate iandatory Dispute Resolution process,
and all parties are strongly urged to exhaust tadiation procedure.

B. Election To Mediate

If any party elects first to pursue Mediation, dhidl appears to the Corporate Secretary that thpude falls within the jurisdiction of the
Mediation Committee, as set forth in Exhibit 5-Aét®, then the Corporate Secretary will promptignfsh the Mediation Committee with
copies of the Complaint, Answer, Counterclaim argli to Counterclaim, and other documents refer@mecé®aragraph 1, above.

C. Selection of Mediators

The parties shall promptly attempt to agree updrihé number of mediators desired, not to exceeskt mediators; and (i) the selection of
the mediator(s) who may include members of the BlEmh Committee and/or experienced mediators frorimdependent entity to mediate
disputes set forth in the Complaint and Answer (@odnterclaim and Reply, if any). In the event plaeties cannot agree upon the number of
mediators desired, that number shall default teehin the event the parties cannot agree uposetieetion of mediator(s), the Chairman will
select the mediator(s), at least one of which df®@kn experienced mediator from an independeity ecnsistent with the provisions set
forth in this Paragraph. No member of the MediatBmmmittee who is a representative of any parth¢éoMediation may b



selected to mediate the dispute. The Chairman alsallendeavor not to select as a mediator any meailthe Mediation Committee whorr
party has requested to be disqualified. If, aftex tegard for availability, expertise, and sucteottonsiderations as may best promote an
expeditious Mediation, the Chairman believes tleabhshe must consider for selection a membereoMédiation Committee whom a party
has requested to be disqualified, the other mendfalee Committee eligible to be selected to medihe dispute shall decide the request for
disqualification. By agreeing to participate in tediation of a dispute, a member of the Mediattmmmittee represents to the party (or
parties) thereto that he or she knows of no growtdsh would require his or her disqualification.

D. Binding Decision

Before the date of the Mediation Hearing describeldw, the Corporate Secretary will contact theypgor parties) to determine whether tt
wish to be bound by any recommendation of the sedemediators for resolution of the disputes. llixash to be bound, the Corporate
Secretary will send appropriate documentation ¢artlior their signatures before the Mediation Heplirgins.

E. Mediation Procedure

The Chairman shall promptly advise the parties efleeduled Mediation Hearing date. Unless a paduests an expedited procedure, or
unless all parties to the proceeding agree to omeooe extensions of time, the Mediation Hearingfeeh below shall be completed within
forty (40) days of BCBSA's receipt of the Complaifihe selected mediators, unless the parties otbegree, shall adhere to the following
procedure:

i. Each party must be represented by its CEO ara#ipresentative who has been delegated full &tythio resolve the dispute. However,
parties may send additional representatives assbeit.

ii. By no later than five (5) days prior to the eakesignated for the Mediation Hearing, each parall supply and serve a list of all persons
who will be attending the Mediation Hearing, andigate who will have the authority to resolve thepdte.

iii. Each party will be given one-half hour to pees its case, beginning with the complaining péotyparties), followed by the other party or
parties. The parties are free to structure thes@ntations as they see fit, using oral statenoemsect examination of withesses. However,
neither cros-examination nor questioning of opposing represengatwill be



permitted. At the close of each presentation, ghected mediators will be given an opportunity $& guestions of the presenters and
witnesses. All parties must be present throughmiMediation Hearing. The selected mediators mégneikthe time allowed for each party's
presentation at the Mediation Hearing. The selectediators may meet in executive session, outbiel@tesence of the parties, or may meet
with the parties separately, to discuss the cortisy

iv. After the close of the presentations, the partiill attempt to negotiate a settlement of tlepdie. If the parties desire, the selected
mediators, or any one or more of the selected nmdiawill sit in on the negotiations.

v. After the close of the presentations, the selbotediators may meet privately to agree upona@metendation for resolution of the dispute
which would be submitted to the parties for thensideration and approval. If the parties haveiptesly agreed to be bound by the results of
this procedure, this recommendation shall be bodioon the parties.

vi. The purpose of the Mediation Hearing is to ststhie parties to settle their grievances shomamfdatory dispute resolution. As a result, the
Mediation Hearing has been designed to be as ibasipossible. Rules of evidence shall not apigtgre will be no transcript of the
proceedings, and no party may make a tape recodfitige Mediation Hearing.

vii. In order to facilitate a free and open diséassthe Mediation proceeding shall remain confitnA "Stipulation to Confidentiality”
which prohibits future use of settlement offers$ palsition papers or other statements furnishatiecselected mediators, and decisions or
recommendations in any Mediation proceeding stakxecuted by each party.

viii. Upon request of the selected mediators, a ohthe parties, BCBSA staff may also submit doentation at any time during the
proceedings



F. Notice Of Termination Of Mediation

If the Mediation cannot be completed within thesorébed or agreed time period due to the lack opeoation of any party, as determined by
the selected mediators, or if the Mediation dods@sult in a final resolution of all disputes la¢ tMediation Hearing or within forty (40) days
after the Complaint was served, whichever comss, fimy party or any one of the selected mediatang so notify the Corporate Secretary,
who shall promptly issue a Notice of terminatiomaddiation to all parties, to the selected med&tand to the MDR Administrator, defined
below. Such notice shall serve to bring the Mediatb an end and to initiate Mandatory Dispute Regm. Upon agreement of all parties
and the selected mediators, the Mediation procegsamntinue at the same time the MDR process skied. The Notice described above
would serve to initiate the MDR proceeding and wioubt terminate the proceedings.

3. Mandatory Dispute Resolution (MDR)

If all parties elect not to first pursue Mediatiam,if a notice of termination of Mediation is igslias set forth in Paragraph 2.F., above, then
the unresolved disputes set forth in any Compkamat Answer (and Counterclaim and Reply, if any)ldf@subject to MDR.

A. MDR Administrator

The Administrator shall be an independent entighsas the Center for Public Resources, Inc. or §gude, Inc., specializing in alternative
dispute resolution. The Administrator shall be geated initially, and may be changed from timerwet by the affirmative vote of a majority
of the Plans present and voting and a majoritheftotal then current weighted vote of all the Blaresent and voting.

B. Initial Conference

Within five (5) days after a Notice of Terminatibas issued, or within five (5) days after the tiimefiling and serving the Reply to any
Counterclaim if the parties elect first not to nagdj the parties shall confer with the Administratodiscuss selecting a dispute resolution
panel ("the Panel"). This Initial Conference mayblgeelephone. The parties are encouraged to agrbe composition of the Panel and to
present that agreement to the Administrator atriiel Conference. If the parties do not agredtm composition of the Panel by the time of
the Initial Conference, or by any extension thewggeed to by all parties and the Administratoentthe Panel Selection Process set forth in
subparagraph C shall be followed.

Amended September 21, 2000



C. Panel Selection Process

The Administrator shall designate at least sevearni@l arbitrators. The exact number designatedl ble sufficient to give each party at least
two peremptory strikes. Each party shall be pesditb strike any designee for cause and the Adtrads shall determine the sufficiency
thereof in its sole discretion. The Administratdl @esignate a replacement for any designee $kstr. Each party shall then be permitted
two peremptory strikes. From the remaining designtree Administrator shall select a three membeeP&he Administrator shall set the
dates for exercising all strikes and shall complleéePanel Selection Process within fifteen (1%)sdzf the Initial Conference. Each Arbitra
shall be compensated at his or her normal houté/og in the absence of an established rateredsonable hourly rate to be promptly fixed
by the Administrator for all time spent in connectiwith the proceedings and shall be reimburseafrgrtravel and other reasonable
expenses.

D. Duties Of The Arbitrators

The Panel shall promptly designate a Presidingtfatair for the purposes reflected below, but stethiin the power to review and modify &
ruling or other action of said Presiding Arbitrateach Arbitrator shall be an independent Arbitrashall be governed by the Code of Ethics
for Arbitrators in Commercial Disputes, appendedaiibit "5-B" hereto, and shall at or prior to tb@mmencement of any Arbitration
Hearing take an oath to that effect. Each Arbitratwll promptly disclose in writing to the Panetlao the parties any circumstances,
whenever arising, that might cause doubt as to subitrator's compliance, or ability to comply, Wwisaid Code of Ethics, and, absent
resignation by such Arbitrator, the remaining Arditibrs shall determine in their sole discretion thbethe circumstances so disclosed
constitute grounds for disqualification and forleeg@ment. With respect to such circumstances grmircoming to the attention of a party
after an Arbitrator's selection, a party may likesvrequest the Arbitrator's resignation or a datetion as to disqualification by the
remaining Arbitrators. With respect to a sole Anditior, the determination as to disqualificationlsba made by the Administrator.

There shall be no ex parte communication betweepé#hnties or their counsel and any member of tmelPa
E. Panel's Jurisdiction And Authority

The Panel's jurisdiction and authority shall extemdll disputes between or among the Plans, eitrolled Affiliates, and/or BCBSA,
except for those disputes excepted from these M\dERedures as set forth in the License Agreem



With the exception of punitive or treble damagks, Panel shall have full authority to award théfét deems appropriate to resolve the
parties' disputes, including monetary awards ajuhations, mandatory or prohibitory. The Panel haswuthority to award punitive or treble
damages except that the Panel may allocate orsasssgmonsibility for punitive or treble damageseased by another tribunal. Subject to the
above limitations, the Panel may, by way of examiple not of limitation:

i. interpret or construe the meaning of any tenpisase or provision in any license between BCBS&aPlan or a Controlled Affiliate
relating to the use of the BLUE CROSS(R)or BLUE EHD(R)service marks.

ii. determine whether BCBSA, a Plan or a ControM¢éfiliate has violated the terms or conditionsanfy license between the BCBSA and a
Plan or a Controlled Affiliate relating to the usiethe BLUE CROSS(R) or BLUE SHIELD(R) service msurk

iii. decide challenges as to its own jurisdiction.
iv. issue such orders for interim relief as it deeppropriate pending Hearing and Award in any thabon.

It is understood that the Panel is expected tdvesssues based on governing principles of lawserving to the maximum extent legally
possible the continued integrity of the Licensedhdaand the BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD system. The Pahall apply federal law to all
issues which, if asserted in the United StatesribisCourt, would give rise to federal questionigdiction, 28 U.S.C. ss. 1331. The Panel shall
apply lllinois law to all issues involving intergagion, performance or construction of any LiceAgeeement or Controlled Affiliate License
Agreement unless the agreement otherwise providet other issues, the Panel shall choose thécapje law based on conflicts of law
principles of the State of Illinoi



F. Administrative Conference And Preliminary Arbitr ation Hearing

Within ten (10) days of the Panel being selectied Rresiding Arbitrator will schedule an Adminisiva Conference to discuss scheduling of
the Arbitration Hearing and any other matter apgedp to be considered including:

any written discovery in the form of requests fasguction of documents or requests to admit fabesjdentity of any witness whose
deposition a party may desire and a showing of gtimeal good cause for the taking of any such diipos the desirability of bifurcation or
other separation of the issues; the need for amtifie of record of conferences and hearings, dictuthe need for transcripts; the need for
expert witnesses and how expert testimony shoulatésented; the appropriateness of motions to disand/or for full or partial summary
judgment; consideration of stipulations; the ddslity of presenting any direct testimony in wrignand the necessity for any-site

inspection by the Panel.

G. Discovery

i. Requests for Production of Documents: All redsiésr the production of documents must be sergeaf she date of the Administrative
Conference as set forth in Paragraph 3.F., abowbitwenty (20) days after receipt of a requestdocuments, a party shall produce all
relevant and non-privileged documents to the retipngeparty. In his or her discretion, the Presidikitrator may require the parties to
provide lists in such detail as is deemed apprtgoéall documents as to which privilege is claih@ad may further require in-camera
inspection of the same.

ii. Requests for Admissions: Requests for Admissioray be served up to 21 days prior to the Arlidnaitiearing. A party served with
Requests For Admissions must respond within twé@y days of receipt of said request. The goodh faste of and response to Requests for
Admissions is encouraged, and the Panel shall fulivdiscretion, with reference to the Federal Rubd Civil Procedure, in awarding
appropriate sanctions with respect to abuse optbeedure



iii. Depositions As a general rule, the partied wilt be permitted to take deposition testimonydisicovery purposes. The Presiding
Arbitrator, in his or her sole discretion, shallveahe authority to permit a party to take suchodépn testimony upon a showing of
exceptional good cause, provided that no deposittordiscovery purposes or otherwise, shall exdbesk (3) hours, excluding objections
and colloquy of counsel.

iv. Expert witness(es): If a party intends to pregbe testimony of an expert witness during thed bearing, it shall provide all other parties
with a written statement setting forth the inforfoatrequired to be provided by Fed. R. Civ. P. 2@8(§A)(i) prior to the expiration of the
discovery period.

v. Discovery cut-off: The Presiding Arbitrator sha@étermine the date on which the discovery pewddend, but the discovery period shall
not exceed forty-five (45) days from its commencetmwithout the agreement of all parties.

vi. Additional discovery: Any additional discovewill be at the discretion of the Presiding ArbitiatThe Presiding Arbitrator is authorizec
resolve all discovery disputes, which resolutiofi aé binding on the parties unless modified by Atnbitration Panel. If a party refuses to
comply with a decision resolving a discovery digpuihe Panel, in keeping with Fed. R. Civ. P. 3dy mefuse to allow that party to suppor
oppose designated claims or defenses, prohibiptrdy from introducing designated matters intalewce or, in extreme cases, decide an
issue submitted for resolution adversely to thatypa

H. Panel Suggested Settlement/Mediation

At any point during the proceedings, the Pandhatéquest of any party or on its own initiativeynsuggest that the parties explore
settlement and that they do so at or before thelasion of the Arbitration Hearing, and the Parwllsgive such assistance in settlement
negotiations as the parties may request and thel Py deem appropriate. Alternatively, the Pangy airect the parties to endeavor to
mediate their disputes as provided above, or ttoex@m mini-trial proceeding, or to have an indegent party render a neutral evaluation of
the parties' respective positions. The Panel gimadlr such sanctions as it deems appropriate esfect to any party failing to pursue in good
faith such Mediation or other alternate disput®haton methods



I. Subpoenas On Third Parties

Pursuant to, and consistent with, the Federal fatiin Act, 9 U.S.C. ss. 9 et seq., a party mayestjthe issuance of a subpoena on a third
party, to compel testimony or documents, and, ddyand sufficient cause is shown, the Panel séglle such a subpoena.

J. Arbitration Hearing

An Arbitration Hearing will be held within thirty30) days after the Administrative Conference ifdigcovery is taken, or within thirty (30)
days after the close of discovery, unless all pardind the Panel agree to extend the ArbitraticariFig date, or unless the parties agree in
writing to waive the Arbitration Hearing. The padimay mutually agree on the location of the Aaltitin Hearing. If the parties fail to agree,
the Arbitration Hearing shall be held in Chicadbnois, or at such other location determined bg Bresiding Arbitrator to be most
convenient to the participants. The Panel will detee the date(s) and time(s) of the ArbitratioraHeg(s) after consultation with all parties
and shall provide reasonable notice thereof tpaties or their representatives.

K. Arbitration Hearing Memoranda

Twenty (20) days prior to the Arbitration Hearirggch party shall submit to the other party (oripgytand to the Panel an Arbitration Hea
Memorandum which sets forth the applicable law amg argument as to any relevant issue. The Arlmtrdiearing Memorandum will
supplement, and not repeat, the allegations, irdtion and documents contained in or with the Coimplénswer, Counterclaim and Reply,
if any. Ten (10) days prior to the Arbitration Hieggy, each party may submit to the other party @tips) and to the Panel a Response
Arbitration Hearing Memorandum which sets forth aegponse to another party's Arbitration Hearingrideandum



L. Notice For Testimony

Ten (10) days prior to the Arbitration Hearing, goarty may serve a Notice on any other party (otigg) requesting the attendance at the
Arbitration Hearing of any officer, employee orefitor of the other party (or parties) for the pwgof providing noncumulative testimony. If
a party fails to produce one of its officers, enygles or directors whose noncumulative testimonindithe Arbitration Hearing is reasonably
requested by an adverse party, the Panel may refusw that party to support or oppose desighataims or defenses, prohibit that party
from introducing designated matters into evidengénoextreme cases, decide an issue submitteshdmdatory dispute resolution adversel
that party. This Rule may not be used for the psepaf burdening or harassing any party, and theiditing Arbitrator may impose such ord
as are appropriate so as to prevent or remedywhylsurden or harassment.

M. Arbitration Hearing Procedures

i. Attendance at Arbitration Hearing: Any persorving a direct interest in the proceeding is erditie attend the Arbitration Hearing. The
Presiding Arbitrator shall otherwise have the potearequire the exclusion of any witness, othenthaarty or other essential person, during
the testimony of any other witness. It shall beditonary with the Presiding Arbitrator to detenmithe propriety of the attendance of any
other person.

ii. Confidentiality: The Panel and all parties $hmhintain the privacy of the Arbitration ProceeagliThe parties and the Panel shall treat the
Arbitration Hearing and any discovery or other medings or events related thereto, including argrdwesulting therefrom, as confidential
except as otherwise necessary in connection witldiaial challenge to or enforcement of an awardmess otherwise required by law.

iii. Stenographic Record: Any party, or if the pastdo not object, the Panel, may request thareogtaphic or other record be made of any
Arbitration Hearing or portion thereof. The costste recording and/or of preparing the transcstmll be borne by the requesting party and
by any party who receives a copy thereof. If thedPaequests a recording and/or a transcript, tisésahereof shall be borne equally by the

parties.



iv. Oaths: The Panel may require witnesses tofyastider oath or affirmation administered by anyydyualified person and, if requested by
any party, shall do so.

v. Order of Arbitration Hearing: An Arbitration Heag shall be opened by the recording of the dateg, and place of the Arbitration
Hearing, and the presence of the Panel, the paatigstheir representatives, if any. The Panel mgthe beginning of the Arbitration Heari
ask for statements clarifying the issues involved.

Unless otherwise agreed, the complaining partyéoties) shall then present evidence to suppoit ¢ke@m(s). The respondent(s) shall then
present evidence supporting their defenses andt€mlaims, if any. The complaining party (or pasjishall then present evidence suppol
defenses to the Counterclaims, if any, and rebuttal

Witnesses for each party shall submit to questignadverse parties and/or the Panel.

The Panel has the discretion to vary these proesdbut shall afford a full and equal opportunétyall parties for the presentation of any
material and relevant evidence

vi. Evidence: The parties may offer such eviderg&s aelevant and material to the dispute and gimatluce such evidence as the Panel may
deem necessary to an understanding and resoldtibe dispute. Unless good cause is shown, asrdeted by the Panel or agreed to by all
other parties, no party shall be permitted to offeidence at the Arbitration Hearing which was distlosed prior to the Arbitration Hearing
by that party. The Panel may receive and consiteevidence of witnesses by affidavit upon sucmsess the Panel deems appropri



The Panel shall be the judge of the relevance aatdnmlity of the evidence offered, and conforntgyegal rules of evidence, other than
enforcement of the attorney-client privilege anel wWork product protection, shall not be necessHng. Federal Rules of Evidence shall be
considered by the Panel in conducting the Arbitratdearing but those rules shall not be controllifigevidence shall be taken in the
presence of the Panel and all of the parties, éxglpere any party is in default or has waived fbtrto be present.

Settlement offers by any party in connection witedihtion or MDR proceedings, decisions or recomragads of the selected mediators,
and a party's position papers or statements fuedish the selected mediators shall not be adméssiitlence or considered by the Panel
without the consent of all parties.

vii. Closing of Arbitration Hearing: The Presididgbitrator shall specifically inquire of all parievhether they have any further proofs to
offer or witnesses to be heard. Upon receiving tiegaeplies or if he or she is satisfied that teeord is complete, the Presiding Arbitrator
shall declare the Arbitration Hearing closed withagpropriate notation made on the record. Subjeoging reopened as provided below, the
time within which the Panel is required to make derd shall commence to run, in the absence dfagnagreement by the parties, upon
closing of the Arbitration Hearing.

With respect to complex disputes, the Panel maisisole discretion, defer the closing of the Awdtion Hearing for a period of up to thirty
(30) days after the presentation of proofs in otdgrermit the parties to submit post-hearing ragid argument, as the Panel deems
appropriate, prior to making an award.

For good cause, the Arbitration Hearing may be eeeg for up to thirty (30) days on the Panel'satiite, or upon application of a party, at
any time before the award is me



N. Awards

An Award must be in writing and shall be made prtynpy the Panel and, unless otherwise agreed dpdnties or specified by law, no later
than thirty

(30) days from the date of closing the Arbitratldearing. If all parties so request, the Award shaiitain findings of fact and conclusions of
law. The Award, and all other rulings and deterrtiores by the Panel, may be by a majority vote.

Parties shall accept as legal delivery of the Awhedplacing of the Award or a true copy thereathie@ mail addressed to a party or its
representative at its last known address or pelsanaice of the Award on a party or its represtvia

Awards are binding only on the parties to the Agtibn and are not binding on any nparties to the Arbitration and may not be useditexd:
as precedent in any other proceeding.

After the expiration of twenty (20) days from iaitidelivery, the Award (with corrections, if anyjal be final and binding on the parties, and
the parties shall undertake to carry out the AweitHout delay.

Proceedings to confirm, modify or vacate an Awdrallsbe conducted in conformity with and controlledthe Federal Arbitration Act. 9
U.S.C.ss.1, et seq.

O. Return Of Documents

Within sixty (60) days after the Award and the doson of any judicial proceedings with respectréte, each party and the Panel shall re
any documents produced by any other party, inctydihcopies thereof. If a party receives a discpvequest in any other proceeding which
would require it to produce any documents produodtlby any other party in a proceeding hereunishall not produce such documents
without first notifying the producing party and gig said party reasonable time to respond, if appate, to the discovery reque



4. Miscellaneous
A. Expedited Procedures

Any party to a Mediation may direct a request foreapedited Mediation Hearing to the Chairman efitediation Committee, to the selec
Mediators, and to all other parties at any timee Thairman of the Mediation Committee, or at his@r direction, the then selected
Mediators, shall grant any request which is suggubhty good and sufficient reasons. If such a regaeganted, the Mediation shall be
completed within as short a period as practicasejetermined by the Chairman of the Mediation Cdtaeor, at his or her direction, the
then selected Mediators.

Any party to an Arbitration may direct a requestéapedited proceedings to the Administrator, ®mRanel, and to all other parties at any
time. The Administrator, or the Presiding Arbitnaiithe Panel has been selected, shall grant acly equest which is supported by good
sufficient reasons. If such a request is grantesl Arbitration shall be completed within as shatit@e as practicable, as determined by the
Administrator and/or the Presiding Arbitrator.

B. Temporary Or Preliminary Injunctive Relief

Any party may seek temporary or preliminary injunetrelief with the filing of a Complaint or at amiyne thereafter. If such relief is sought
prior to the time that an Arbitration Panel hasrbeelected, then the Administrator shall seleébhgls Arbitrator who is a lawyer who has no
interest in the subject matter of the dispute, mmdonnection to any of the parties, to hear anerdene the request for temporary or
preliminary injunction. If such relief is soughtaf the time that an Arbitration Panel has beeecsed], then the Arbitration Panel will hear
and determine the request. The request for temyporagpreliminary injunctive relief will be deterned with reference to the temporary or
preliminary injunction standards set forth in FRdCiv. P. 65.

C. Defaults And Proceedings In The Absence Of A Per

Whenever a party fails to comply with the MDR Ruless manner deemed material by the Panel, thel Baak fix a reasonable time for
compliance and, if the party does not comply witkeid period, the Panel may enter an Order of dtefaafford such other relief as it deems
appropriate. Arbitration may proceed in the evdra default or in the absence of any party wharafue notice, fails to be present or fails to
obtain an extension. An Award shall not be madelgan the default or absence of a party, but #neePshall require the party who is pres
to submit such evidence as !



Panel may require for the making of findings, deteations, conclusions, and Awards.
D. Notice

Each party shall be deemed to have consentedriigiapers, notices, or process necessary or pfoptre initiation or continuation of a
proceeding under these rules or for any court adgticonnection therewith may be served on a gdartsnail addressed to the party or its
representative at its last known address or byopaisservice, in or outside the state where the MibdReeding is to be held.

The Corporate Secretary and the parties may akséagsimile transmission, telex, telegram, or othetten forms of electronic
communication to give the notices required by threges.

E. Expenses

The expenses of withesses shall be paid by thg pausing or requesting the appearance of suctesges. All expenses of the MDR
proceeding, including compensation, required travel other reasonable expenses of the Panel, armt$h of any proof produced at the
direct request of the Panel, shall be borne equgiithe parties and shall be paid periodically dimely basis, unless they agree otherwise or
unless the Panel in the Award assesses such espensay part thereof against any party (or paytie exceptional cases, the Panel may
award reasonable attorneys' fees as an item ohegpand the Panel shall promptly determine theuatmaf such fees based on affidavits or
such other proofs as the Panel deems sufficient.

F. Disqualification Or Disability Of A Panel Member

In the event that any Arbitrator of a Panel withrenthan one Arbitrator should become disqualifredign, die, or refuse or be unable to
perform or discharge his or her duties after thmmencement of MDR but prior to the rendition ofAamard, and the parties are unable to
agree upon a replacement, the remaining Panel nrésjtbe

i. shall designate a replacement, subject to e of any party to challenge such replacementéoise.

ii. shall decide the extent to which previouslychkéarings shall be repeat



If the remaining Panel members consider the prangedo have progressed to a stage as to makecespéant impracticable, the parties may
agree, as an alternative to the recommencemehedflandatory Dispute Resolution process, to resolwf the dispute by the remaining
Panel members.

In the event that a single Arbitrator should becalisgualified, resign, die, or refuse or be undblperform or discharge his or her duties :
the commencement of MDR but prior to the renditban Award, and the parties are unable to agree apeplacement, the Administrator
shall appoint a successor, subject to the riglingfparty to challenge such successor for causkth@nsuccessor shall decide the extent to
which previously held proceedings shall be repeated

G. Extensions of Time

Any time limit set forth in these Rules may be exted upon agreement of the parties and apprové) dfiec Chairman of the Mediation
Committee if the proceeding is then in Mediatidi);the Administrator if the proceeding is in Arkdtion, but no Arbitration Panel has been
selected; or (iii) the Arbitration Panel, if theopeeding is in Arbitration and the Arbitration Pehnas been selected.

H. Intervention

The Plans, their Controlled Affiliates, and BCBS4 the extent subject to MMDR pursuant to theirdrise Agreements, shall have the right
to move to intervene in any pending Arbitrationw#itten motion for intervention shall be made t#tile Administrator, if the proceeding is
in Arbitration, but no Arbitration Panel has beetested; or (ii) the Arbitration Panel, if the pescling is in Arbitration and the Arbitration
Panel has been selected. The written motion ferwention shall be delivered to the BCBSA Corpofsgeretary (which shall also constitute
service on the BCBSA if it is a respondent) andrig Plan(s) and/or Controlled Affiliate(s) whictegrarties to the proceeding. Any party to
the proceeding can submit written objections tortizgion to intervene. The motion for interventidrab be granted upon good cause shown.
Intervention also may be allowed by stipulationited parties to the Arbitration proceeding. Inteti@mshall be allowed upon such terms as
the Arbitration Panel decides.

|. BCBSA Assistance In Resolution of Disputes
The resources and personnel of the BCBSA may heestgd by any member Plan at any time to try tolvedisputes with another Plan.

Amended September 21, 2000



J. Neutral Evaluation
The parties can voluntarily agree at any time teeten independent party render a neutral evaluafitime parties' respective positions.
K. Recovery of Attorney Fees and Expenses
Motions to Compel

Nothwithstanding any other provisions of these Ruémy Party subject to the License Agreementspffigposes of this Section L and all ol
subsections only hereinafter referred to colletyiveand individually as a "Party”) that initiategaurt action or administrative proceeding
solely to compel adherence to these Rules shabedietermined to have violated these Rules biafimy such action or proceeding.

Recovery of Fees, Expenses and Costs

The Arbitration Panel may, in its sole discretiamjard a Party its reasonable attorneys' fees, eggeand costs associated with a filing to
compel adherence to these Rules and/or reasorttdrieeys' fees, expenses and costs incurred immnelapg to an action filed in violation of
these Rules; provided, however, that neither fexgsenses, nor costs shall be awarded by the Atibitr®anel if the Party from which the
award is sought can demonstrate to the Arbitrgtiemel, in its sole discretion, that it did not aitd these Rules or that it had reasonable
grounds for believing that its action did not vielahese Rules.

Requests for Reimbursement

For purposes of this Section L, any Party may regregmbursement of fees, expenses and/or costghipitting said request in writing to the
Arbitration Panel at any time before an award isvde=d pursuant to

Section 3-N hereof, with a copy to the Party frotmch reimbursement is sought, explaining why erigitled to such reimbursement. The
Party from which reimbursement is sought shall i2Z@elays to submit a response to such requesetartitration Panel with a copy to the
Party seeking reimbursement.

Amended September 21, 2000



EXHIBIT 5-A

MEDIATION COMMITTEE

REPORTS TO: Board of Directors

CHARGE: 1. Develop and implement processes for

or disagreements between Plans or betwe
under the following circumstances:

a. Matters at issue regarding
or between Plans and the As

b. Matters at issue regarding
or between Plans and the As

c. Matters at issue under the
and Transfer Programs.

d. Matters at issue regarding
performance under the Medic

2. Determination of equalization allowa
under FEP shall not be considered by th

MEMBERSHIP: Six to Eight

STAFF: Senior Vice President and General Cou

resolving misunderstandings
en Plans and the Association

relationships between Plans
sociation.

relationships between Plans
sociation.

Inter-Plan Bank, Reciprocity,
contractor selection or
are Part A Program.

nces and/or cost allowances
is Committee.



EXHIBIT 21

ANTHEM, INC.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2002

SUBSIDIARY NAME PLACE OF ORGANIZATION

DIRECT SUBSIDIARY OF ANTHEM, INC.
Anthem Insurance Companies, Inc. Indiana

INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES OF ANTHEM, INC.

Anthem East, Inc. Delaware
Anthem Health & Life Insurance Company of New Yo rk New York
Anthem Health Plans, Inc. Connecticut
HealthReach Services, Inc. Connecticut
Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc. Maine
Machigonne, Inc. (d/b/a Benefit Management o f Maine) Maine
Combined Services Limited Liability Com pany New Hampshire
IRM Services, Inc. Maine
Northern General Services Maine
Northern General Services of Massachuse tts, Inc. Massachusetts
Northern General Services of New Ha mpshire, LLC New Hampshire
Maine Partners Health Plan, Inc. Maine
Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, Inc. New Hampshire
Matthew Thornton Health Plan, Inc. New Hampshire
Health Initiatives, Inc. New Hampshire
Northeast Consolidated Services, Inc. New Hampshire
Combined Services Limited Liability Com pany New Hampshire
Anthem Midwest, Inc. Ohio
AdminaStar Federal, Inc. Indiana
Anthem Alliance Health Insurance Company Texas
Anthem Benefit Administrators, Inc. Ohio
Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Inc. Kentucky
Anthem Life Insurance Company Indiana
Consolidated Insurance, Inc. New Mexico
Anthem UM Services, Inc. Indiana
Community Insurance Company Ohio
Anthem Prescription Management, LLC Ohio

Paragon Health System, Ltd. Ohio



Dayton Services Company

Southeastern United Agency, Inc.

SpectraCare, Inc.

The Anthem Companies, Inc.

Anthem West, Inc.

Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, Inc
Benefit Administration Services, Inc.
HMO Colorado, Inc.
Rocky Mountain Health Care Corporation

Occupational Healthcare Management Servic es, Inc.

Health Management Systems, Inc.
Associated Group, Inc.
AllMed Financial Corp.
Anthem Financial, Inc.
Lease Partners, Inc.

Ohio
Kentucky
Kentucky
Indiana
Indiana
Colorado
Colorado
Colorado
Delaware
Colorado

Colorado
Indiana
Indiana
Delaware
Delaware



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the use of our report dated Janu&r2a02 (except for Note 21, as to which the dateebruary 19, 2002) in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Anthem, Inc.

Our audit also included the financial statementsdcte of Anthem, Inc. listed in Item 14(a) of tAisnual Report on Form 10-K. This

financial statement schedule is the responsililitthe Company's management. Our responsibility express an opinion based on our audit.
In our opinion, the financial statement scheduferred to above, when considered in relation toothsic financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respectsitifermation set forth therein.

We also consent to the incorporation by referendbe Registration Statement (Form S-8, No. 333t83pertaining to the Anthem 2001
Stock Incentive Plan and in the Registration Stat@niForm S-8, No. 333-84690) pertaining to theh®nt Employee Stock Purchase Plan of
our report dated January 28, 2002 (except for [dfeas to which the date is February 19, 2002} véspect to the consolidated financial
statements included herein, and our report includeéde preceding paragraph with respect to thanfiial statement schedule included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Anthem, Inc.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

I ndi anapol i s, |ndiana
March 20, 2002



EXHIBIT 99
RISK FACTORS

The following factors, among others, could causaaaesults to differ materially from those contd in forwardlooking statements made
the Annual Report on Form 10-K to which this docuirie an exhibit and presented elsewhere by managefom time to time. Such

factors, among others, may have a material adedfset on our business, financial condition, arslites of operations and you should
carefully consider them. It is not possible to jicedr identify all such factors. Consequently, yahwould not consider any such list to be a
complete statement of all our potential risks crartainties. Because of these and other factossgesformance should not be considered an
indication of future performance.

Our ability to contain health care costs and imm@atrincreases in premium rates affects our prafitab

Our profitability depends in large part on accusapgedicting health care costs and on our abibitynanage future health care costs through
underwriting criteria, utilization management, pnotldesign and negotiation of favorable providertcacts. The aging of the population and
other demographic characteristics and advancediaal technology continue to contribute to risiralth care costs. Government-imposed
limitations on Medicare and Medicaid reimbursentente also caused the private sector to bear aegr&adre of increasing health care costs.
Changes in health care practices, inflation, nehinelogies, the cost of prescription drugs, clisstérhigh cost cases, changes in the
regulatory environment and numerous other factiiexting the cost of health care are beyond anjtt@ian's control and may adversely
affect our ability to predict and manage healtreaarsts, as well as our business, financial candand results of operations.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtte casts, we face pressure to contain premium pri@escustomer contracts may be subject
to renegotiation as customers seek to contain tiosiis. Alternatively, our customers may move tompetitor to obtain more favorable
premiums. Fiscal concerns regarding the continualoility of programs such as Medicare and Medicaaly cause decreasing reimbursement
rates for government-sponsored programs. A linttatn our ability to increase or maintain our pnemievels could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our reserves for policy benefits may prove inadégua

The reserves we establish for health insuranceybknefits and other contractual rights and bé&nhafie based upon assumptions concerning
a number of factors, including trends in healtheaaosts, enroliment in our plans, expenses, geaecalomic conditions and other
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factors. Actual experience will likely differ fromssumed experience, and to the extent the actaiaiskexperience is less favorable than
estimated based on our underlying assumptionspourred losses would increase and future earringkl be adversely affected.

Our profitability may be adversely affected if we anable to maintain our current provider agredgmand to enter into other appropriate
agreements.

Our profitability is dependent upon our abilitydontract on favorable terms with hospitals, physisiand other health benefits providers.
failure to maintain or to secure new cost-effectiealth care provider contracts may result in a lnanembership or higher medical costs. In
addition, our inability to contract with providexs, the inability of providers to provide adequetee, could adversely affect our business.

A reduction in the enrollment in our health bersefitograms could have an adverse effect on ounéssiand profitability.

A reduction in the number of enrollees in our Heaknefits programs could adversely affect ourrdmss, financial condition and results of
operations. Factors that could contribute to actdn in enrollment include:

. failure to obtain new customers or retain exgtnstomers;

. premium increases and benefit changes;

. our exit from a specific market;

. reductions in workforce by existing customers;

. hegative publicity and news coverage;

. failure to attain or maintain nationally-recoggiizaccreditations; and
. general economic downturn that results in busiriaures.

The health benefits industry is subject to neggivilicity, which can adversely affect our profitéip.

The health benefits industry is subject to negatiwilicity. Negative publicity may result in incssd regulation and legislative review of
industry practices, which may further increaseaasts of doing business and adversely affect afitability by:

. adversely affecting our ability to market our gwets and services;
. requiring us to change our products and servimes;
. increasing the regulatory burdens under whicloperate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross Bhield, or BCBS, names and marks in marketing eatth benefits products and services,
any negative publicity concerning the Blue

-2



Cross Blue Shield Association, or BCBSA, or oth@HSBA licensees may adversely affect us and theodalar health benefits products and
services.

Changes in state and federal regulations may adfacbusiness, financial condition and resultspxrations.

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries are subjecktiensive regulation and supervision by the insuearegulatory authorities of each state in
which they are licensed or authorized, as welbaggulation by federal and local agencies. Sesiti&ss -- Regulation” in the Annual Report
on Form 10-K to which this document is an exhiie cannot assure you that future regulatory adiiostate insurance authorities will not
have a material adverse effect on the profitabditynarketability of our health benefits or managearck products or on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In additiogcduse of our participation in government-sponspredrams such as Medicare and
Medicaid, changes in government regulations orcgodith respect to, among other things, reimburserteyvels, could also adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results adrafions.

Moreover, state legislatures and Congress contmémcus on health care issues. Congress is camgidearious forms of Patients' Bill of
Rights legislation which, if adopted, could fundantadly alter the treatment of coverage decisiondenthe Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, or ERISA. Additionally, therecently have been legislative attempts to linil EA's preemptive effect on state laws
adopted, such limitations could increase our ligbé&xposure and could permit greater state regulatf our operations. Other proposed bills
and regulations at state and federal levels magaingertain aspects of our business, includingiges\contracting, claims payments and
processing and confidentiality of health informati®Vhile we cannot predict if any of these initi@s will ultimately become effective or, if
enacted, what their terms will be, their enactnoenid increase our costs, expose us to expandatityiaor require us to revise the ways in
which we conduct business. Further, as we contioimplement our e-business initiatives, uncertagitrrounding the regulatory authority
and requirements in this area may make it difficménsure compliance.

We face risks related to litigation.

We may be a party to a variety of legal actions #ffect any business, such as employment and ¢mgliot discrimination-related suits,
employee benefit claims, breach of contract actitors claims and intellectual property relate@htion. In addition, because of the nature of
our business, we are subject to a variety of laghbns relating to our business operations, irnlyithe design, management and offering of
our products and services. These could include:

. claims relating to the denial of health care lfiésie
. medical malpractice actions;
. allegations of anti-competitive and unfair busmactivities;



. provider disputes over compensation and termdnadf provider contracts;
. disputes related to self-funded business;

. disputes over co-payment calculations;

. claims related to the failure to disclose certaisiness practices; and

. claims relating to customer audits and contractggmance.

A number of class action lawsuits have been filgairast us and certain of our competitors in the agad care business. The suits are
purported class actions on behalf of certain ofrnanaged care members and network providers feged breaches of various state and
federal laws. For more information about these @hér lawsuits filed against us, see "Legal Progggd-Litigation” in the Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K to which this document is an exhibit. Vghie intend to defend these suits vigorously, vileimcur expenses in the defense of
these suits and we cannot predict their outcome.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity rimyease our exposure for any of these typesaiingl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic, treble or punitive damages may be soMghtcurrently have insurance coverage for sombeaxd potential liabilities. Other
potential liabilities may not be covered by insw@ninsurers may dispute coverage or the amounsafance may not be enough to cover
damages awarded. In addition, certain types of dasyasuch as punitive damages, may not be covgredilirance and insurance coverage
for all or certain forms of liability may becomeawailable or prohibitively expensive in the future.

We have also received subpoenas from the Offi¢daspfector General, or OIG, related to our Medide®al intermediary Part A and Part B
operations and our Federal Employee Program opesatSee "Legal Proceedings--Other Contingenciettie Annual Report on Form 10-K
to which this document is an exhibit.

We are using the Blue Cross and Blue Shield namesrearks as identifiers for our products and sewviender licenses from the Blue Cross
Blue Shield Association. The termination of théserise agreements could adversely affect our bssifi@ancial condition and results of
operations.

We are a party to license agreements with the BCB@Aentitle us to the exclusive use of the BCB&es and marks in the states of
Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New HampsHidaine, Colorado and Nevada. The license agreeswamttain certain requirements
and restrictions regarding the operations of Antlaerh our use of the BCBS names and marks, including

. minimum capital and liquidity requirements;

. enrollment and customer service performance rements;

. participation in programs which provide portalilbf membership between plans;
. disclosures to the BCBSA relating to enrollmemd &inancial conditions;
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. disclosures as to the structure of the BCBS aydtecontracts with third parties and in publictetaents;

. plan governance requirements;

. a requirement that at least 80% of a licensewlaa combined net revenue attributable to health plans within its service area must be
sold, marketed, administered or underwritten utldeBCBS names and marks;

. a requirement that neither a plan nor any dfdensed affiliates may permit an entity other tiagplan or a licensed affiliate to obtain control
of the plan or the licensed affiliate or to acquirsubstantial portion of its assets related &nlsable services;

. a requirement that we guarantee the contrachehfinancial obligations of our licensed affiliatesd

. a requirement that we indemnify the BCBSA agaamst claims asserted against it resulting fromctir@tractual and financial obligations of
AdminaStar Federal, our subsidiary which serves fiscal intermediary providing administrative sees for Medicare Parts A and B.

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesangently in compliance with these standards.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatighe license agreements, we would no longer iaeeight to use the BCBS names and
marks in one or more of Indiana, Kentucky, Ohionecticut, New Hampshire, Maine, Colorado and Nav&dirthermore, BCBSA would

be free to issue a license to use the BCBS nantemarks in these states to another entity. Evehishacould cause the termination of a
license agreement with BCBSA include failure to phyrwith minimum capital requirements imposed bg BCBSA, a change of control or
violation of the BCBSA ownership limitations on atapital stock, impending financial insolvency, gppointment of a trustee or receiver or
the commencement of any action against Anthem sgetd dissolution. We believe that the BCBS naara$ marks are valuable identifiers
of our products and services in the marketplaceofdingly, termination of the license agreementdaddave a material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries are subjedskshased capital requirements. Our failure to ntleese standards could subject us to
regulatory actions.

Anthem Insurance and our other insurance and HMiBidiaries are subject to risk-based capital, oER&andards, imposed by their states
of domicile. These laws are based on the RBC MAdehdopted by the National Association of Insua@ommissioners, or NAIC, and
require our regulated subsidiaries to report thesults of risk-based capital calculations to thpadtments of insurance and the NAIC. Failure
to maintain the minimum RBC standards could subjectregulated subsidiaries to corrective actinoluding state supervision or

liquidation. Anthem Insurance and our other insaeaand HMO subsidiaries are currently in compliawi the risk-based capital
requirements imposed by their respective state®oficile.
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Compliance with the requirements of the Health tasae Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,HIPAA, is expected to be costly.

In December 2000, the Department of Health and HuB&vices, known as HHS, promulgated certain egguis under HIPAA related to
the privacy of individually identifiable health mfmation, or protected health information. Thesputations require health plans,
clearinghouses and providers to:

. comply with various requirements and restricticglated to the use, storage and disclosure oégied health information;
. adopt rigorous internal procedures to guard ptetehealth information; and
. enter into specific written agreements with bassassociates to whom protected health informétidisclosed.

The regulations establish significant criminal géasa and civil sanctions for noncompliance. In iéidd, the regulations could expose us to
additional liability for, among other things, vitilans by our business associates. We must complytive new regulations by April 14, 2003.
We believe the costs required to comply with thgutations could be material.

Regional concentrations of our business may subgtd economic downturns in those states.

Our operating segments include regional companiegtéd in the Midwest, East and West, with mostwfrevenues generated in the statt
Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, Connecticut, New Hampshifaine, Colorado and Nevada. Due to this concgatraf business in a small number
of states, we are exposed to potential lossestieg@ilom the risk of an economic downturn in thetaes. If economic conditions in these
states deteriorate, we may experience a redugtieristing and new business, which may have a masetverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

A downgrade in our ratings may adversely affectlmsginess, financial condition and results of ofiena.

Claims paying ability and financial strength rasry recognized rating organizations have becomeagasingly important factor in
establishing the competitive position of insuranompanies and health benefits companies. Ratirap@gtions continue to review the
financial performance and condition of insurersjuding Anthem Insurance and our other regulatdxisiiaries. Each of the rating agencies
reviews its ratings periodically and there can bessurance that current ratings will be maintaingtie future. We believe our strong rati
are an important factor in marketing our produoteur customers, since ratings information is bipd@éseminated and generally used
throughout the industry. If our ratings are downlgh or placed under surveillance or review, witegilde negative implications, the
downgrade, surveillance or review could adverséflscaour business, financial condition and resafts
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operations. Our ratings reflect each rating agsnaginion of our financial strength, operating periance and ability to meet our obligations
to policyholders, and are not evaluations dirett®eard the protection of investors in our commarcktor Equity Security Units.

Our investment portfolio is subject to varying eocoric and market conditions, as well as regulation.

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of fckenaturity securities, indexed mutual funds, shemn investments, cash and other
investments. The market value of our investment&sdrom time to time depending on economic andcketaconditions. For various reaso
we may sell certain of our investments at prices e less than the carrying value of the investmén addition, in periods of declining
interest rates, bond calls and mortgage loan prapats generally increase, resulting in the reimaest of these funds at the then lower
market rates. Although there have been adverseoedorconditions over the last several quartershant's liquidity has not been impactec
a negative manner. Our fixed maturity portfolio laasaverage credit rating of approximately doubjexs#d the equity securities portfolio is
currently invested in S&P 500 and S&P 400 indexuabfunds. We cannot assure you that our investperttolio will produce positive
returns in future periods.

Our regulated subsidiaries are subject to state &awd regulations that require diversification of mvestment portfolios and limit the amo

of investments in certain investment categoriesh@as below-investment-grade fixed income secayitigrtgage loans, real estate and equity
investments. Failure to comply with these laws mglilations might cause investments exceeding aégyl limitations to be treated as non-
admitted assets for purposes of measuring statatopius and riskased capital, and, in some instances, requirsaleeof those investmen

As a Medicare fiscal intermediary, we are subjeatdmplex regulations. If we fail to comply withetbe regulations, we may be exposed to
criminal sanctions and significant civil penalties.

Anthem, like a number of other BCBS companies,eens a fiscal intermediary for the Medicare prograhich generally provides covere
for persons who are 65 or older and for personis ariid-stage renal disease. Part A of the Medicaxgram provides coverage for services
provided by hospitals, skilled nursing facilitisdaother health care facilities. Part B of the Madé program provides coverage for services
provided by physicians, physical and occupationefapists and other professional providers. Anteeraes as a fiscal intermediary for
Medicare Part A for Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio, IllispNew Hampshire, Maine, Vermont and Massachusetisas a fiscal intermediary for
Medicare Part B for Indiana and Kentucky. As adldntermediary for these programs, we receive beirsement for certain costs and
expenditures, which is subject to adjustment upatitdy the federal Centers for Medicare and Medi&ervices, or CMS, formerly the
Health Care Financing Administration, or HCFA. The's and regulations governing fiscal intermedmf@ the Medicare program are
complex,
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subject to interpretation and can expose a fistathmediary to penalties for non-compliance. Figa@rmediaries may be subject to criminal
fines, civil penalties or other sanctions as altefisuch audits or reviews. In the fourth quad&i999, one of our subsidiaries reached a
settlement agreement with the federal governmetitéramount of $41.9 million to resolve an investign into the Medicare fiscal
intermediary operations of a predecessor of theididry. The period investigated was before we aeduhe subsidiary. While we believe
that we are in compliance in all material respegth the regulations governing fiscal intermediarithere are ongoing reviews by the federal
government of our activities under certain of owditare fiscal intermediary contracts. One of adosadiaries, AdminaStar Federal, Inc.,
received several subpoenas from the OIG, HealthHamdan Services, and from the U.S. Department stickiseeking documents and
information concerning its responsibilities as adidare Part B contractor in its Kentucky officedaequesting certain financial records from
AdminaStar Federal, Inc. and from us related toMedicare fiscal intermediary Part A and Part Bragiens. For additional information, see
"Legal Proceedings--Other Contingencies" in the dairReport on Form 10-K to which this documentriseahibit.

We face significant competition from other healénbfits companies.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant chan
from business consolidations, new strategic alkantegislative reform, aggressive marketing pcastby other health benefits organizations
and market pressures brought about by an informddeganized customer base, particularly amongelargployers. This environment has
produced and will likely continue to produce siggaht pressures on the profitability of health Héaaeompanies. Many of our competitors
are larger and have greater financial and oth@uress. In addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act,igéhgives banks and other financial
institutions the ability to affiliate with insuraacompanies, could result in new competitors wighificant financial resources entering our
markets. We cannot assure you that we will be tmbémmpete successfully against current and futanepetitors or that competitive presst
faced by us will not materially and adversely affegr business, financial condition and resultsdrations. For a more detailed discussion
of our competition, please refer to "Business--Cetitipn" in the Annual Report on Form 10-K to whittis document is an exhibit.

Acquisitions we have made or may make in the futoag not be successful, which could cause our basiand future growth prospects to
suffer.

We have built a significant portion of our currénisiness through mergers and acquisitions and pecéxo pursue acquisitions in the future.
The following are some of the risks associated waituisitions that could have a material adverfeeebdn our business, financial condition
and results of operations:

. some of the acquired businesses may not achigigipated revenues, earnings or cash flow;

-8



. we may assume liabilities that were not discldaseuds;

. we may be unable to integrate acquired businesgeessfully and realize anticipated economicraifmmal and other benefits in a timely
manner, which could result in substantial costsdaldys or other operational, technical or finahgrablems;

. acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing businégstract management, divert resources and mak#idudt to maintain our current business
standards, controls and procedures;

. we may finance future acquisitions by issuing own stock for some or all of the purchase pricactvisould dilute the ownership interests
of our shareholders;

. we may also incur additional debt related to feitaicquisitions; and

. we would be competing with other firms, many dfigh have greater financial and other resourceactmire attractive companies.

In addition, we have signed a definitive agreemttt Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Kansas, or BaE%-pursuant to which we agreed to
acquire BCBS-KS. Under the agreement, BCBS-KS wdsltiutualize and become a subsidiary of ours. Hewen February 11, 2002, the
Kansas Insurance Commissioner disapproved the pedpimansaction, which had been previously apprbyetie BCBS-KS policyholders in
January 2002. On February 19, 2002, the boardre€uirs of BCBS-KS voted unanimously to appealkhasas Insurance Commissioner's
decision and BCBS-KS will seek to have the decisiearturned in Shawnee County District Court. W# j@in BCBS-KS in the appeal. We
cannot predict the final outcome of this appeal.

The failure to effectively maintain and modernizg operations in an Internet environment could sskly affect our business.

Our businesses depend significantly on effectifermation systems, and we have many different mffon systems for our various
businesses. Our information systems require aninggmmmitment of significant resources to maintmu enhance existing systems and
develop new systems in order to keep pace withimaing changes in information processing technol@yplving industry and regulatory
standards, and changing customer preferences. Wérama time to time obtain significant portionsair systemselated or other services
facilities from independent third parties, whichymaake our operations vulnerable to such thirdigsirtailure to perform adequately. As a
result of our merger and acquisition activitieshese acquired additional systems. Our failure tinta@n effective and efficient information
systems, or our failure to efficiently and effeeli consolidate our information systems to eliminadundant or obsolete applications, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition and results of operations.

Also, like many of our competitors in the healtméfits industry, our vision for the future includescoming a premier e-business
organization by modernizing interactions with cuséss, brokers, agents, employees and other stalersdhrough web-enabling technology
and re-designing internal operations. We are d@iedpour e-business strategy with the goal of bengrwidely regarded as an e-business
leader in the health benefits industry. The stnatagludes not only sales and distribution of Hegltoducts on the Internet, but also
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implementation of advanced self-service capalsliienefiting customers, agents, brokers, partmetemployees. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to successfully realize olnusiness vision or integrate e-business operatighsour current method of operations. The
failure to develop successful e-business capaslitould result in competitive and cost disadvaegdg us as compared to our competitors.

Our ability to meet our obligations may be affedbgthe limitation on dividends state insurancedampose on our regulated subsidiaries.

We are a holding company whose assets includd #ieoutstanding shares of common stock of Anth&suarance. As a holding company,
we depend on dividends from Anthem Insurance anckiteipt of dividends from our other regulatedsidibries. State insurance laws may
restrict the ability of our regulated subsidiariepay dividends. For a discussion of these rd&ins, see "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems--Liquidity and Capital Resources--Dividetfidsn Subsidiaries" in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K to which this document is ahileit. Our ability to pay dividends in the futur@ dur shareholders and meet our
obligations, including paying operating expenseas @ebt service on the debentures and other delbtjepiend upon the receipt of dividends
from our subsidiaries. An inability of our subsidés to pay dividends in the future in an amounfticient for us to meet our financial
obligations may materially adversely affect ourihass, financial condition and results of operation
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